








TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Pelham, New Hampshire (the Town} conform
to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable tc governmentzl units,
except as noted beiow. The following is a summary of the more significant
policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements include the transactions of all funds and
acccunt groups of the Town of FPelham and other governmental organizations over
which the Town's elected officials exercise oversight responsibility in
accordance with the criteria set forth in the National Council on Governmental
Accounting (NCGA) Statement No. 3. The account groups are those required by
financial reporting standards for governmental units.

B. Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Tcown are organized on the basis of funds or account groups,
each of which is ceonsidered a separate accounting entity. The operations of
each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, equities, revenues and expenditures or
expenses. The various funds are grouped by type in the financial statements as
follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

1) General Fund - The General Fund is the general cperating fund of the Town.
All gereral tax revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law
or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund.
From the fund are paid the general ¢perating expenditures, the fixed
charges and the capital improvement ¢osts that are not paid through other
funds.

2) Svecial Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the
proceess of specific revenue resources (other than expendable trust or
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or
regulatory provisicns or administrative action. This fund includes the
Public Library, Conservation Commission, Planning Fees and the Fire Arm
Fees Fund.

3) Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or constructicn of
major capital facilities other than those financed by enterprise
operations and trust funds.

{Continued)
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{Continued)
FIDUCTARY FUNDS
4} Trusts and Agency Funds - Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for

assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other
funds. These include Expendable Trust, Nonexpendable Trust and Agency
Funds.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds (Town Trust Funds}) are accounted for in essentially
the same manner as proprietary funds since capital maintenance is critical.
Expendable Trust Funds (General Trust, Capital Reserve Funds and School Capital
Reserve) are accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds.
Agency Funds (Developers' Performance Bond, Deferred Compensation Plan) are
custodial in nature [assets eguals liabilities) and do not involve measurement
of results of operations.

ACCOUNT GROUPS

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets and long-term
liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. AllL
Governmental Funds and Expendable Trust Funds are accocunted for on a spending or
"financial flow" measurement focus. This means that cnly current assets and
current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their
reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure cf "available
spendable resources." Governmental Fund cperating statements present increases
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a
summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resocurces"™ during a period.

General Fixed Assa2ts Account Group

General fixed assets have been acquired for general governmental purposes and
have been recorded a2s expenditures in the fund making the expenditure. These
expenditures are required to be capitalized at historical cost in a General
Fixed Asset Group of Accounts for accountability purpeses. In accordance with
the practices followed by many other municipal entities in the State, the Town
does not maintain a record of its general fixed assets and accordingly, a
statement of general fixed assets, required by generally accepted accounting
principles, is not included in this financial report.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from Governmental Funds are
accounted for in the General Long-term Debt Account Group, not in the
Governmental Funds.

The account groups are not "funds"™. They are concerned only with the
measurement of financial position. They are not invelved with measurement of
results of operations.

Noncurrent portions ¢f the long-term receivables due to Governmental Funcs are
reported con their balance sheets, in spite of their spending measurement focus.
Special reporting treatments are used to indicate, however, that they should not
be considered "available spendable resources", since they do not represent net

{Continued)
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currant assets, Recognition of Govermmental Fund type revenues represented by
noncurrent receivables is deferred until they become current receivables.

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for
governmental fund types is limited to exclude amounts represented by noncurrent
liakilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term
amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund
liabilities. They are instead reported as liabilities in the General Long-term
Debt Account Group.

The Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for on a cost of services or
"capital maintenance” measurement focus. This means that all assets and all
liabilities {whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are

included on their balance sheets.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the method by which revenues and expenditures or
expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made,
ragardless of the measurement focus applied.

All Governmental Funds, Expendable Trust Funds and Agency Funds are accounted
for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are
racognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets.

The National Council on Governmental Accounting in its Interpretation 3, Revenue
Recognition -~ Property Taxes, requires that if property taxes are not collected
within 60 days after year end the revenue is not considered ah "available
spendaple rescurce” and should be deferred; i.e., not recognized as revenue
until collected. This interpretaticn has not been followed in the accompanying
financial stetements because: (a) The amount due the School District at
December 31 is not due within the 60-day criterion established, but rather over
a & month period, (b) the property tax levy in New Hampshire does not occur
until late in the budget year and (c) the subsequent pattern of collection of
taxes 1s a result of the timing of the issue of the tax levy.

Licenses and permits, charges for services and other revenues are recorded as
revenues when received in cash, as they are generally not measurable until
actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned if they are both
measurable and available.

{Continued)
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In aprlying the "susceptible to accrual” ccncept to intergovernmental revenues
(grants, subsidies and shared revenues), the legal and contractual requirements
of the numerous individual programs are used as guicdance. There are, however,
essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the Town:
therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the
other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to the purpose of expenditure and
nearly irrevocable; i.e., revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed
compliance requirements (e.g., equal employment opportunity). These resources
are refiected as revenues at the time of receipt, or earlier, if they meet the
criterion of availability.

Expenditures are generally recognlzed under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions te this
general rule include: (1) principal and interest on general long-term debt which
i5 recognized when due and (2) accumulated unpaid vacetion and sick pay which do

not vest.

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their
expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

D. Budgetary Accounting

Expenditures in budgetary funds are limited tc the Town's budget adopted at the
annual cor special Town meeting, subject £o RSA Chapter 32. The Selectmen are
required by statute to properly enter and record expenditures. They may
transfer budget amounts between appropriaticons, but no new purpose may be
intreduced that was not contained in the adopted budget. HNo amounts may be
transferred from special warrant articles. Total expenditures may not exceed
the total amount approved at the annual or special Town meeting, with certain
statutory exceptions.

All appropriations lapse at Year end unless (1} the expenditure has been legally
committed by an outstanding contract or purchase orcer, (2} the amount is in a
special neon-lapsing fund such as a Capital Reserve, Special Revenue or Trust
Fund, {3} the amount has been raised by a bond issue or is to be received as
part of a grant, or {4) is a special warrant article. A special warrant article
may be encumbered by the selectmen for one additional year, or for up to five
years, if the original adopted article so states.

Under rules adopted Ly the Department of Revenue Administration, beginning
General Fund fund balance may be used at the discretion of the Selectmen as a
revenue source in establishing the tax rate. The General Fund is budgeted.

{Continued)
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E. Deposits and Tempcrary Investments

Deposits

At year end, the carrying amount of the Town's deposits (cash and temporary
investments) was $7,006,975 and the bank balance was $7,008,059. ¢f the bank
balance, $2,289,149 was covered by federal depositeory insurance and

$4,708,910 was uninsured and uncollateralized. The uninsured amounts were held

by the General Fund.

Tamporary Investments

Temporary investments consist of certificates of deposit and are reported at
cost, which approximates market wvalue.

The Town Treasurer is authorized by State statutes to invest excess funds "in
obligations of the U.S. Government, in the public deposit investment pool
established pursuvant to RSA 383:22, in savings bank deposits of banks
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire or in certificates of
deposits of banks incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire or
in naticnal banks located within the State of Massachusetts.”

New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool

The Town participates in the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool
established in accordance with N.H. RSA 383:22-24. Total Town funds on deposit
with the Pool at year end were $133,294 and are reported as temporary
investments on the General Fund and Fiduciary Funds. Based on GASB Statement
No. 3, investments with the Pool are considéered to be unclassified. At this
time, the Peol's investments are limited to "short-term U.S. Treasury and U.S.
Government Agency obligations, State of New Hampshire and New Hampshire
municipal obligations, certificates of deposit from Al/Pl-rated banks, money
markaet muteal funds (maximum 20% portfolie), overnight to 30-day repurchase
agreements (no limit, but collateral level at 102% in U.S. Treasury and
Government Agency instruments delivered to the Custodian of the Pool) and
reverse overnight repurchase agreements with primary dealers or dealer banks."

Cash Ecuivalents

For purposes c¢f the Statement of Cash Flows, all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

{Continued!
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{Continued)

F. Investments

Marketable equity securities are stated at the lower of aggregate cost or
market. A valuation allowance is established by a charge to unrealized gain
{lecss) on investments, adjusting the carrying value of the securities to market
when lower than cost. Fair market value atr year end amount to $85,231 and cost
amounted to $85,231. Under New Hampshire law, the trustees of trust funds may
invest:

"Only by deposit in some savings bank or in the savings department
of a national bank or trust company in this state or in shares of
any building and loan association or co-operative bank, incorporated
and deing business under the laws of this state or in the shares of
any federal savings and loan association, located and deing business
in this state or in bonds, notes or other obligations of the United
S5tates Government or in state, county, town, c<ity, school district,
water and sewer district bonds and notes of towns or cities in this
state; and such stocks and bonds as are legal for investment by New
Hampshire savings banks and when so invested, the trustees shall not
be liable for the loss thereof; and in any common trust fund
established by the New Hampshire Charitable Fund in accordance with
RSA 292:23.

The Trustees are also required to report annually to the State Attorney General.

Investments of the Agency fund (IRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan) are
carried at market value (5874,300). The deferred compensation plan is operated
by a third party and the investments are pooled. The investments of the Plan
are not subject to credit classification.

G. Inventory

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-cut method. The
consumption method is used to account for inventories. The General Fund
inventory consists of gasoline inventory. Reported inventories are equally
offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they de not constitute
available spendable resources.

H. Property by Tax lLiens and Tax Deeded Properties

Under New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated {RSA) 72:38A, elderly property
owners in the Town may request that the Town file a tax lien against their
property for the amount of their annual property taxes. Interest accrues
annually at 5% and is payable, along with the property taxes, from the
individual's estate.

{Continued)
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Under New Hampshire RSA, if property taxes have not been paid within two years
of tax lien date, the property is conveyed to the Town by deed. The Town then
offers the property for public sale annually with all proceeds remicted to the
General Fund. Tax deeded properties represents the cost of property in the
process of being sold at year end.

I. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue of the General Fund represents $55,971 which is not considered
tc be measurable and available revenue for recognition in the current period.

J. Compensated Absences

Statement 4 of the NCGA requires that the current and non-current portions of
earned time liabilities be reported on the governmental fund and general long-
term debt account group balance sheets respectively. The Town does not accrue
accumulated personal and sick pay in the General Fund, but rather records these
costs at the time the pavments are made. At year end current General fund
liabilities for earned time are nct recorded in the General Fund, a departure
from generally accepted acccunting principles. However, earned time has been
recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

Earned time accrues based on length of employment as fcllows:

Length of Personal Leave
Emplovment Earned Annually
0-5 Years 24 Days
6-10 Years 29 Days

11 Years anc Beyond 36 Days

Earned time may only accumulate up to 60 davs per employee.

K. Total Columns (Memorandum Only) on Combined Statements

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "Memorandum Only" to
indicate that they are presented only tc facilitate financial analysis. Data in
these columns do not present financial position, results of operations or
changes in financial position in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund
eliminations have not besn made in the aggregation of this data.

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY TAX

The Town semi-annually, in May and Octeober, bills and collects its own property
taxes and taxes for the Scheol District and County. (In accordance with an
opinion from the NCGA Technical Guidance Committee, the School and Councy taxes
are not reported as Agency Funds). Property tax revenues are recognized in the
fiscal year for which taxes have been levied.

Property taxes billed or collected in advance of the year for which they are
levied are recorded as defsrred revenue.

{Centinued)
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Property taxes are due by December 1. At the time of tax lien, a lien is
recorded on the property at the Register of Deeds. The lien is a pricrity tax
lien which accrues interest at the rate of 18% per annum. If the property taxes
{redemptions) are not paid within two years of the tax lien date, then the
property may be conveved to the Town by deed and subsequently sold at public

sale.

Property taXxes receivables as reported net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$37,812.

The Town annually budgets, following New Hampshire budget procedures, an overlay
for abatements ($52,109 in the current vear) for resident and property tax
abatements and refunds. All abatements and refunds zre charged to overlay and
reported net of property tax revenues. The tectal for the current year was

5166,370.

The tax rate for the year was $47.18: $8.93 Town, $3.92 County and $34.33
School District.

NOTE 3 - DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Bmounts due at year end include:
Due to Qther Govermments

General Fund

School District $5,006,640

FROTE 4 - INDIVIDUAL INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYADLE

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Pavables

General Fund 5402, 495 551,039
Special Revenue Funds:

Conservation 723 -
Planning 280

Trust and Agency Funds:
Town Nonexpendable

Trust 11,750 7,835
Capital Reserve Fund - 166,698
General Town Trust 38,286 227,962

Total $453, 534 $453,534

{Continued)
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NOTE 5 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the Town for the
year.

General
Obligation

Debt
Long~-Term Debt Payable, January 1 51,176,663

Bonds Issued

Long-Term Debt Retired (105,000}
Payment on Capital Lease Obligaticns (9,969)
Net Change in Employee Benefits Payable 37,621
Long-Term Debt Payable, December 31 $1,089,3:5

Long-term debt payable is comprised of the following individual issues:

General
Obligation
Debt

General Obligation Bonds

$1,050,000 - Bonds Payable, due
in Annual Installments of
5105,000 Through 2004,
Interest varies from 4.55 to

B.50% $840,000
Capital Lease Obligation

Partner Phone System Capital

Lease Due in Annual

Installments of §113,

Including Interest at 14.64%,

Final Payment Due in 1997. 257

1594 Ford F450 with Plow

Capital Lease Due in Monthly

Installments of §709,

Including Interest at 6.00%,

Final Payment Due in 1995. 19,104

1994 John Deere Tractor/Mower
Capital Lease Due in Annual
Installments of $3,184,
Including Interest at 9.00%,

Final Payment Due in 1998. 3,444
Total Capital Lease Obligation $24.802
(Continued)

-85



TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continuad)

The annual requirements to amortize all generazl obligation debt cutstanding,
including interest payments, are as follows:

General Obligation Debt

Fiscal Year Ending

December J1, Principal Interest Total
1987 $ 105,000 $ 46,200 S 151,200
1998 105,000 47,775 152,775
1998 105,000 40,5950 145,950
2000 105,000 36,750 141,750
2001 105,000 29,400 154,400

Subtotal 525,000 201,075 726,075
2002-2004 315,000 44,10¢ 339,100
Total 5 B40,000 § 245,175 S5 1,085,178

Ennual requirements to amortize capital leases:

Capital Leases

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31, Principal Interest Total
1987 $ 10,353 3 1,455 $ 11,808
1998 10,958 736 il1,685
1999 3,493 _ 52 3,545
Total $. 24,805 $ 2,243 $§ 27,048

NOTE & - RESERVES AND DESIGNATICNS OF FUND EQUITY

The Town has set up "reserves" of fund equity to segregate fund balances which
are not available for expenditure in the future or which are legally set easice
for a specific future use. Fund "designaticns" have also been established to
indicate tentative plans for future financial utilization.

!Concinued)
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The Town's reserves and designations were as follows:

Reserved for Encumbrances - Encumbrances of fund balances of the General and
Special Revenue Funds are carried forward to the subsequent fiscal year.
Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund
balances since they de not yet constitute expenditures or liabilities.

General Fund
1994 Pclice Federal Grant
1994 Hepatitis B. Vaccinatlons
1994 TDD Telecommunications System
1995 S5alt Shed
1995 Tax Maps
1895 Simpson Mill Road Landfill
1995 Long Pond Weed Infestation
1995 Forest Management Program
1995 Police Radiec Antenna
1996 Lease for Fire Truck
1996 Protective Clothing
1996 Hydrant Fees
1996 Highway Block Grant
1996 Simpson Mill Road Landfill
1996 Raymond Park Maintenance
1936 PVMP Resurfacing
1996 Monument at Muldoon Park
1996 Renovation at Senior Center
1996 Library Card Catalogue
1996 Health Care Fund

Total

$33,653
1,286
2,266
2,020
4,800
2,050
2,943
2,700
2,330
50,554
2,562
7,688
3,300
9,753
338
753
1,200
37,000
26,995
5,000
5 00

Reserved by Trust Instruments ~ The fund balance reserved by trust instruments
represents the principal portion of Nonexpendable Trusts Fund fund balance, As

ftollows:

Nonexpendable Trust Funds
{Fund Balance as Follows)

Cemeteries
support of Libraries
Scholarships
Raymond Park
Total Nonexpendable Trust Funds

$188,127
31,678
20,000

48,905

£288,71¢

{Continued)
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Designated for Capital Acquisition - The fund balance designated for capital
acquisitions represents fund balances designated as follows:

Capital Resgerves:

Ambulance 5 40,432
Raymond Park 25¢
Abbott Bridge 21,225
5t. Margaret's Drive 85,515
Gibson Cemetery 1,124
Library Fund 364
Landfill Closure 105,152
New Recycling Buildings 45,726
Recycling Equipment 17,276
Maintenance on Recycling Facility 43
Municipal Building 408,875
Senior Bus 11,701
Revaluation 96,168

Total Capital Reserve Funds 5843, 851

Designated by Trust Instruments — The fund balance designated by trust
instruments represents the income portion of Nonexpendable Trust Fund fund
balance as follows:

Nonexpendable Trust Funds:

Cemeteries $ 1,374
Support of Libraries 5,469
Scholarships 1,200
Raymond Park 2,687
Total Nonexpendable Town Trust 510,740
Expendable Trust - Town
Robinson Tennis Courts 59,008
General Fund Trust (RSA 31:19A)
Compensated Absences $ 57,809
Health Insurance Fund 217,832
Cable System 42,583
Forest Commission 63,351
Inmergency HWay 3,584
PVMP Maintenance 3,680
Funds Conservation Easemént 5,185
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{Continuad)

Highway Dept. New Equipment 20,741
Valley Hill Read 2,421
ADA Modification 17,071
School Building Maintenance 11,144
Goldon Brock Public Trust 256
Muldoon Park Public Trust 256
Muldoon Park Private Trust 100
250th Anniversary 27,790

Total General Fund Trust 473,803

Total Designated 5493, 551

Designated for Soecific Purvose - Designated for future expenditures of that
fund as follows:

Library $ 2,815
Conservation Commission 4,330
Planning Department Fees 6,335
Fire Arms License Fee 841

Total §14,321

NOTE 7 ~ BUDGETED DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE

The $4B7,562 budgeted decrease in General Fund fund balance shown on Exhibit C
represents $216, 000 budgeted by the Town to reduce the 1996 tax rate and
$271,562 of prior year's encumbrances.

FOTE § — FENSION PLAN

Plan Description - Substantially all Town employees participate in the State of
New Hampshire Retirement System (the System), a cost-sharing multiple~employer
defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). All Town full-time
employees are eligible to participate in the System. The System is divided into
two employee groups: Group I which includes all employees except fire fighters
and police officers and Group II which is for fire fighters and police officers
{including county Sheriff's Departments). The New Hampshire Retirement System
issues annually & publicly available financial report that includes firancial
statements and required supclementary information for the System. That report
may be obtained by writing to the New Hampshire Retirement System, 4 Chenell
Drive, Concord, NH,

Group I emplovees who retire at or after age 60 put before age 65 are entitled
to retirement benefits egual to 1.667% of the average of their three highest
paid years of compensation, multiplied by their years of service. AL age 65 the
benefit is recaiculated at 1.50% of AfC nmultiplied by their vears of service
credit. Earlier retirement allowances at reduced rates are available after age
50 with 10 years of service. Benefits fully vest upon reaching 10 years of
service or attaining age 60.
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Group II employees who attain age 45 with 20 years or more of service are
entitled te retirement benefits equal to 2.53% of the average of their three
highest paid years cof service, multiplied by their years of service, not to
exceed 40. Benefits vest ratably beginning after 10 vears of service.

The System also provides death and disability benefits. Cost-of-living
increases have been periodically granted to retirees by the State Legislature.

Funding Policv - The System is funded by contributions from both the employees
and emplovers. Group I employees are regquired by State statute to contribute
5.0 percent of gross earnings. Group II employees are required to contribute
9.3 percent of their gross earnings. The employer must, under the same statute,
contribute monthly at an actuarially determined rate. The current rates are
3.14% {2.18% for teachers and regular employees, 2.48% for police officers and
4.87% for firefighters) of covered payrcll. The contribution requirement for
the year ended December 31, 1996 was $89,194, which consisted of $24,159 from
the Town and $65,035 from employees. The Town's contributions to the System for
the years ended Decembrer 31, 1995 and 1994 were $24,159 and $25, 161,
respectively, which were equal to the amount reguired under State statute tc be
contributed for each year.

NCOTIE § - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Town offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Secticn 457. The plan, available to all Town
enployees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

The plan is administered by a nongovernmental third party which provides
financial data to the Town annually. The Town remits all compensation deferred
to this administrator for investment as reguested by the participant employees.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights
purchased with those amounts and all income attributable to those amounts,
property or rights are solely the property and rights cf the Town until paid or
made available to the employee or other beneficiary (without being restricted to
the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject cnly to the claims of the
Town's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to
those of general crediters of the Town in an amount equal to the fair market
value of the deferred account for each participant.

It is the opinion of the Tewn's legal counsel that the Town has no liability for
losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required
of an ordinary prudent investor. The Town believes that it is unlikely that it
will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future.

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related tc terts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors a2nd omissions; injuries fo emplovees; and
natural disasters. The Town, alcng with numercus other municipalities in the
State, is a member of three public entity risk pcols in the State currently
cperating as a common risk management and insurance program for which all
political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire are eligible to
participate. The pools provide coverage for workers' compensation, unemployment
and property liability insurance. The Town pays an ahnbal premium tfo the pools
for its various insurance coverages.

{Continued}
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NOTE 11 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

Federal and State laws and requlations require that the Town place a final cover
on its ash landfill when closed and perfeorm certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the landfill site after clcsure. A liability should be recognized
in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group based on the future closure and
postclosure care costs that will pbe incurred near or after the date the landfill
no longer accepts waste. The recognition cf these landfill closure and
postclosure costs is based on the amount ¢f the landfill used through the end of
the year. The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care may
be substantial due to inflation, changes in technoclogy, or changes in landfill
laws and regulations.

The State of New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services reguires that
all entities which received licensing for landfills since 1921 meet general
financial assurance requirements. The Town has not met these requirements by
finalization of a comprehensive plan to be implemented at a predetermined time
during the operaticnal life of the facility which will generate the recuired
funds for clcsure.

The Town expects to finance the closure and postclcsure care costs by user fees
and recycling income. The Town has established a capitzl reserve fund for
landfill closure and postclosure care costs which has a balance of $105,152 at

year end.

NOTE 12 - LITIGATION

The Town is the defendant in a number of lawsuits pending at year end with an
estimated potential liability of up to $150,000. The Town generally focliows the
practice of recording liabilities resulting from claims and legal actions only
when they become fixed or determinable in amount.
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SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for the rescurces traditionally associated

with government operations which are not recuired legally by scund financial

management to be acccunted fer in ancther fund. It is the overall operating
entity of the Town. Most of the essential governmental services and functions
are provided by the General Fund, including police and fire protection; street

maintenance, plowing and lighting; welfare; parks and playground maintenance;
planning and zoning; and general administration.
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

LI

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Variance
Favorebie
Budget Actual (Unfavorabie)
REVENLUES
Taxes
Property, Net of Overiay $13,559,840 £13,563,744 $3,904
Land Use Charge and Yield 16,000 59,812 43,812
Inierest and Penalties 135,000 162,350 27,350
Total Taxes 13,710,840 13,785,906 75,066
Li j Permi
Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 800,000 997,165 197,165
Building Permits 35,000 42271 7,271
COther Licenses, Permits and Fees 65,000 73,263 8,263
Total Licensas and Permits 900,000 1,112,699 212,699
{ntergovernmental
Shared Revenues 324,798 324,798 -
Highway Block Gramt 161,655 161,655 -
Municipai Court Fines 1,000 1,302 302
State and Federai Forest Land Reimb. 83 308 225
Federal Grants 21,615 34,398 12,783
Totzl Intergovernmental 509,151 522,461 13,310
Charges for Services
Income from Departments 84,000 142,311 58,311
L { Dividend
Interest on Deposits 50,000 118,741 68,741
Miscellaneous
Sale of Town Property - 1,362 1,362
Fines and Forfeits 1,000 2,065 1,065
Insurance Dividends and Reimbursements 104,000 116,202 12,202
Cable Franchise Fees 45,000 58,731 13,731
Other Miscellaneous Revenues 1,000 2,731 1,731
Total Miscellaneous 151,000 181,091 30,091
Total Revenues 15,404,991 15,863,209 458,218
ther F ) r
Operating Transfers In:
From Town/Cemetery Trust Funds - 85,016 85,016
Total Other Financing Sources - 85,016 85,016
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $15,404,991 315,948,225 §$543234
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TOWN OF PLLHAM, NEW HAMFPSHIRE
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES « BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Variance
Favorable
Budget Agtual (Unfavorable)
EXPENDITURES
Town
Gepenal Govermment
Executive $41,362 $40,462 5900
Elections end Registrations 50,548 48,359 2,189
Financial Administration 260,842 256,829 4,013
Prior Year's Encumbrance 1,816 1,316 -
Revaluation of Property 39,929 38,647 1,282
Legal Expense 60,000 70,933 (10,933)
Personnel Administration 105,000 109,277 4,217
Planning snd Zoning 125,693 113,285 12,408
Prior Year's Encumbrance 5210 3 5,207
Getteral Government Buildings 82,913 95,735 (12,822)
Cemeteries 34,831 34,936 (105)
Inmrance 174,370 179,207 (4,837)
Total Geterat Government 982,314 089,480 (6,975)
Police Department 389,718 864,203 25,515
Prioc Year's Encumbrance 78,187 44,5313 33,654
Fire Department 323,019 286,952 36,067
Prior Yoar's Encumbrance 5.355 4,069 1,286
Toul Public Safety 1.5%6, 1,199,757 X
Highways and Streets 469,308 465,577 4231
Bridges 500 - 500
Street Ligining 22,877 23,262 (385)
Total Highways and Steets 293,183 458,839 4,346
Sttt
Solid Wase Disposal 183,636 187,368 (3.732)
Haalth
Administration 2543 2,293 250
Health Service 44,473 36,997 7,476
Total Health 47,016 39,260 T30
Wiifare
Administration - - -
Direct Assistance 49,025 30307 18,718
Total Weifare : T %9015 | 0307 i8I
(Continued)
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Vartance
Favorable
Budeet Actual (Unfavorable)
Culture and Recreation
Perks and Recreation $147,249 5137,964 59,285
Library 121,474 115272 6,202
Patriotic Purposes 1,600 1,000 -
Cable 25173 25,028 145
Prior Year's Encumbrance 1,732 1,732 -
Total Culture and Recreation 296,628 280,996 15,632
Conservation
Conservation Commission 1,629 1,629 -
Prior Year'’s Encumbrance 9.209 6.509 2,700
Tonal Conservation 10,838 8.138 2,700
Debt Service
Principa| - Long-Term Debt 105,000 105,000 -

Total Principal 105,000 105,000 -
Interest - Long-Term Debt 42,525 42,641 (116)
Interest - Tax Anticipation Note 5,000 - 5,000

Total Interest 47 525 47,641 4 884

Capital Qutlay
Land and Improvements 35,000 34,920 80

Prior Year's Encumbrance 16,180 13,237 2,943
Machinery, Vehicles and Equipmert 133,514 £3,00 80,511

Prior Year's Encumbrance 11,751 5,826 5,965
Buildings 37,000 - 37,000

Prior Year's Encumbrance 44,352 24,484 19,868
Improvemems Other Than Buildings 171,656 158,594 13,062

Prior Year's Encumbrance 182,746 180.696 2,050

Total Capital Qutlay 632,239 70,760 161,479
Total Town Expenditures 4,143,885 3,842 585 301,300
School Digtrict Assessment 10,096,640 10,096,640 -
County Taxes 1,144 812 1,144.812 -
Total Other Governmenial Units 11,241,452 11,241,452 -
Total Expenditures 15,385,337 15,084,037 301,300
Operating Transfers Cut:
To Capital Reserves 328,700 328,700 -
To General Fund Trusts 263,532 263,532 -
Total Other Financing Uses 592.232 392,232 -
Toral Expenditures and Other Financing Uses £15,977,569 $15.676,269 $301,300
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SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

These funds account for certain revenue scurces which are restricted by law or
other formal action tc expenditures fcr specific purposes.

Public Librarv - To account for the operation of the Town's public library.

Conservation Commission - To aczount for funds designated for the protection of
natural resources and watershed rescurces of the Town.

Planning Department Fees - To acceount for funds designated fcr planning
department fee expenditures.

Fire Arm License Fees — To account for funds received from the collection of
firearm licenses.
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1996

Public Conservation Planning Fire Arm
Library Commission  Fees Fees Totals

ASSETS
Cash 52,815 $3,607  $6,055 §841 $13,318

Due From Other Funds:
From General Fund - 723 280 - 1,003

TOTAL ASSETS 52,815 $4,330 §6,335 $841 514,321

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Accounts Payable s - s - $ - §$ .- 5 -
Total Libiliies - : - —

Fund Balapce

Unreserved - -
Designated for Specific Projects/Purpose 2,815 4,330 8,
Total Fund Balance 2,815 4330 6.

35 841 . 14,521
35 841 14,321

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE =~ 52,815 $4.330 §6,335 §341. 514,321
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Schedule B-2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Public Conservation Planning Fire Amm

Library Commission Fees Fees Totals
Revenues
Charges for Services 51,320 § - $7,236 % - £8,556
Licenses, Permits & Fees - - - 660 660
Interest and Dividends 57 79 89 - 225
Total Revenues 1,377 79 7,325 660 9.44]
Expenditures
General Government - - 1,406 - 1,406
Public Safety - - - 1,389 1,389
Culture and Recreation 2,516 - - - 2,516
Total Expenditures 2,516 - 1,406 1,389 5311
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures  (1,139) 79 5,919 (729) 4,130
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In:
From Library Trust Fund
From General Fund - 723 - - 723
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 723 - - 723
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
end Other Financing Sources {Uses) (L139) 802 5,919 (729) 4,853
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 3,954 3,528 416 1,570 9,468

Fund Balances, End of Year

52,815 $4330 86,335

$841 514,321
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SUPPORTING SCHEDULES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other govermments and other
funds. These include Expendable Trust, Nonexpendable Trust, and Agency Funds.
Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for and reported as proprietary funds,
since capital maintenance is required. Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for
in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. Agency Funds are
custodial in nature and do not measure the results of operation.

Individual Funds:
Honexpendabla Trust Funds:
Town Trust Funds - To account for nonexpendable gifts te the Town. Income is

available for the maintenance of various cemeteries, support of libraries,
acholarships and care of Raymond Park.

Expandable Trust Funds:

General Trust Funds - To account for compensated absences, health insurance,
cable system, forest commission, emergency way, PVMP maintenance and the 230th
anniversary of the Towa.

Carital Reserve - To account for funds designated at Tewn Mesting for future
capital expenditures.

Agency Funds:
Developers Performance Bond Fund - To account for monies held by the Town for

various developers and companies pending satisfactory completion of verious
projects.

Deferred Compensation Fund - To account for monies held by the Town for
employees participating in the deferred compensation plan.

School District Capital Reserves - To account for monies held by the Town for
the Schcool District.
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBEER 31, 1996

Nonexpendable Expendable

Trust Funds Trust Fund
Town General
Trust Trust Capital
Fund Fund Reserves Agency Totals
ASSETS
Cash $105,386 $34,541 $491,146 $303,376 §934,449
Temporary [nvestments 104,918 637,946 519,403 13,701 1,275,968
Investments, At Cost 85,231 - - £74,500 959,531
Due To Trust Funds:
*rom General Fund 11,750 38,286 - - 50,036
TOTAL ASSETS $307,285 $710,7713 $£1,010,549 81,191,377 $3,219,984
L ANCE
Due To Other Funds:
To General Fund £7,835  $227,962 $166,698 - $402,495
Due to Specific Individuals/Groups - - - 1191377 1,191.377
Total Liabilities 7,835 227,962 166,698 1,191,377 1,593,872
Reserved by Trust Instrument 288,710 - - - 288,710
Designated Copital Acquisition - - 843 851 - 843,851
Designated by Trust Instrument 10,740 482,811 - - 493,551
Total Fund Balance 299,450 482,311 843,851 - 1,626,112

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE £307,285 §710,773 51,010,549 51191377  $5.219984
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
ALL EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Town
Trust Capital
Funds Reserves Torals
Operating Revenues
Interest on Deposits 528,999 $33,402 $£62,401
Miscellaneous:
New Funds From School District 16,250 - 16,250
Toral Miscellaneous 16,250 - 16,250
Total Operating Revenuss 45,249 33,402 78,651
Ev~epdifures
.sneral Government 176,576 154,473 331,049
Highways and Streets 48918 - 48918
Sanimtion - 11,957 11,957
Culture and Recreation 2,468 378 2.846
Total Expenditures 227,962 166,808 394,770
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenses (182,713) (133,406) (316,119)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In:
From General Fund 339,818 308,700 648,518
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 339818 308,700 648,518
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenses
and Other Financing Sources (Uses) 157,105 175,294 332,399
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 325,706 668,557 994,263
Fund Balances, End of Year 482811 £843,851 51,326,662
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHAANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Balance Balance
January |  Additions Deductions December 31

PERFORMANCE BONDS

ASSETS

Cash $141,938  §177,458 $16,020  $303376
Total Assets T $141,938 " $177458  $16,020  $303376

LIABILITIES
Due to Specific Individuals 5141938 §177.458 $16,020 $303,376

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
ASSETS
Temporary Investments $824,118 $55,092 $4910  $874,300
Total Assets $824,118 $55,002 $4910  $874,300

LIABILITTES
Due to Specific Individuals 3824118 $55,092 54910 £874 300

SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVES

ASSETS
Investments $13,094 $607 § - $13,701
LIABILITIES
Due to Specific Individuals $13.094 $607 - $13,701

Total Liabilities $13,094 — %607 § - $13,701

TOTALS
ASSETS
Cash $141,938  $177,458 $16020  $303,376
Investments 13,094 607 - 13,701
Temporary Investments 824,118 55,092 4910 874,300

Total Assets 78979150 T $233,157 ~ 320,930 SI1.191377

LIABILITIES

Due to Specific Individuals 979,150 233,157 20930 1,191,377
Total Liabilities T §979,150 ~$233.157  $30,030 S$1,191577
. T, e e
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TOWN OF PELHAM

6 Main Street
Pelham, New Hampshire 03076-3723

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
1997 ANNUAL REPORT

To The Board of Selectmen and Town Residents:

The Board of Adjustment meets on the second Monday of every month at 7:30 pm in the Second
Floor Meeting Room at the Town Hall, 6 Main Street. | would like to take this opportunity to thank all the
members of the Board of Adjustment for their dedication throughout the past year and the Recording
Secretary for providing thorough and accurate minutes. | also wish to thank the Planning Department staff
for assisting residents with the BOA application process.

The following cases were heard in 1997:

Requests for Variances 12
Requests Granted 7
Requests Denied/Withdrawn/Forfeited 5

Requests for Special Exceptions 8
Requests Granted 6
Requests Denied 2

Appeal to Administrative Decision 2
Appeal to Administrative Decision Denied 2

Respectfull bmitted,

Peter Fisher, Chairman
Board of Adjustment

Members of the Board

Peter Fisher, Chairman 1998
Paul DeCarolis, Vice Chairman 2000
Edmund Gleason, Clerk 1999
Walter Kosik 1998
Kandy Davitt (Resigned October 1997)

Peter LaPolice, Alternate 1998
George LaBonte, Jr. Alternate 2000

Planning/Building Dept. 635-7811 / Assessing Dept. 635-3317 / Fax 635-6954
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Town of Pelham

UM B A

60 Old Bridge St. No.
Pelham, N.H. 03076

Cable Television
Department

CABLE TELEVISION DEPARTMENT

1997 REPORT

1997 proved to be another productive year for the Cable Television
Department. The Cable Television Advisory Committee has gone from
a membership of 4 to 11, It has always been the philosophy of the
Department - that the more people there are invelved, the more
diversity of opinion will be reflected, which is exactly what is
needed for a strong public access television operation.

Statistically, PTV has broadcast 530 hours of new programming with
3,198 hours of taped replay on Channel 52. Towards the end of the
year, it had become evident that Channel 52 must be expanded in
order to handle the addition of new programs like, the Rockingham
Cougars Semi-pro Football Games, the Pelham Python Football Games
and Tax Talk.

PTV aired 825.5 hours of LIVE government meetings on Channel 51 &
20 with 3,102 hours of taped replay of those meetings. That amount
of exposure insures that every person who is interested in knowing
what their local government is doing has the opportunity to see it
in action. We are continuing to try to improve the audio guality
of some of these meetings. There is a warrant articles in the 1998
warrant which would require public officials to wear persocnal
microphones at these meetings. We hope that you support this
warrant article.

The Cable Department paid for 1820 hours of staffing, while
volunteers furnished another 3,218 hours of work. In addition to
operating the three channels, PTV certified 18 new people on
various aspects of the operation. This brings the total number of
certified people to 128.

Through an opportune purchase, the Cable Department was able to
expand the equipment used by the High School TV Broadcast Class.
All the equipment used in this class is provided by PTV and all the
broadcast supplies are donated through the Friends of PTV. The
Friends organization was able to arrange the deonation of a computer
which has been used to help facilitate the Beta Test for Cable
Internet Access. This Test has already provided the Town with
better reception on the three Town channels and it has made new
broadcast equipment available to us. In addition, the cCabkle
Department purchased its own computer system which will interface
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Cable TV Dept.
1997 Report Cont.

with the Cable system and internet system. It can be used for both
internal and external applications. 1In 1998 you will see the Cable
Department setting up and managing its own web page linked from the
Pelham page.

As in the past, I would like to thank my staff, Linda Doherty and
Ron Bourque, for their excellent work keeping the studio humning.
I would also like to thank the many volunteers who work tirelessly
and the members of the Cable Television Advisory Committee for
their guidance and support. This is truly a team effort and Pelhanm
is fortunate to have a winning team.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda J./ Dowling
Cable Coordinator

Cable Television Advisory Comnittee

Charles Newton, Chairman

William Dowling

Charlene Takesian

James Greenwood

James Cryan

Liz Fontanella

Cheryl Hood

Ron Bourque, School Coordinator

Robert Bean, School Board Representative
Gregory Farris, Selectmen’s Representative
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1998-2004
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LI AMLWA

Prepared by the Pelham Capital Improvements Plan Commitiee

Jeff Gowan, Chairman
Bill Scanzani, ¥Yice Chairman
Robert Bean
Raymond Caisse
Greg Farris
Vincent Messina
John Wenetta

With the assistance of the

BENJAMIN FROST, ESQ.
Professional Planning Consultant
30 Grafton Drive
Bedford, New Hampshire 03110
Tel: (603) 4710841
Fax: (603) 472-6671

Adopted by the Petham Planning Board

Clark Harris, Chairman Jeff Gowan, Vice Chairman William Croteas, Clerk
Roger Montbleau Peter Fisher Carl Heuther, Alternate
Paddy Culbert Greg Farris, Selectman

Janstary 35, 1998
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PELHAM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 1998-2004

INTRODUCTION

The preparation and adoption of a Capital Improvernents Plan (CIP) is an important part of
Petham’s planning process. A CIP aims to recognize and resolve deficiencies in existing facilities
and to anticipete and meet future demand for capital facilities. A CIP is a multi-year schedule that
lays out a series of municipal projecis and their associated costs. Over the period considered by the
CIP, it shows how the town should plan to expand or renovate its facilitics and services to meet the
demands of existing or new population and businesses.

A CIP is an advisory document that can serve a number of purposes: (a) to guide the
Selectmen and the Budget Committee in the ennual budgeting process, (b} to contribute to stabilizing
the town’s real property tax rate; {c) to aid the coordination of various municipel improvements; (d)
10 inform residents, business owners, and developers of planned improvements; and (e) to provide a
necessary legal basis for developing and administering an impact fee system,

Pelham’s population underwent rapid growth between 1960 and 1980, Since then, however,
the pace of development has abated somewhat (Table 1, Figure 1). Nonetheless, the town must plan
to meet the needs of a population that continues to grow at a regular rate. The 1994 population
estimate for the town indicates that Pelham’s population had in that year already reached a level it
was predicted 1o surpass sometime between 1995 and 2000. There is no indication that the trend
toward steady population growth will change.

FIGURE |

Pelham Hiatorical and Projected Population, 1800-2010
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Sources: U.S. Census and New Hampshire Office of State Planning
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TORN OF PELHAM
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN, 19982004

Page 2.
TABLE !
POPULATION, 1900-2015
Historical Fopulation Recent Estimates 1994 Projections
Year | Populati % Change Year | Populati % Change || Year |Popalation |% Change
1900 875 1992 9,569 1995 9,542
1910 826 -5.6% 1993 9,791 2.3% 2000 10,332 3.9%
1920 974 17.9% 1994 10,005 2.2% 2005 11,037 6.8%
1930 814 -16.4% 1995 10,169 1.6% 2010 11,668 5.7%
1940 979 203% 2035 12,379 6.1%
1950 1,3E7 34.5%
1960 2,605 97.8%
1970 5,408 107.6%
1980 8,090 49.6%
1990 9,408 16.3%
Source: U.S. Census, New Hampshire Office of State Planning.
A comparison of the town’s annual operating costs over the last ten years with capital outlay
and debt suggests that while the overali budget of the town has been increasing regularly, the
municipal portion devoted to capital outlay and debt service has been somewhat irregular (Table 1).
It is a principal goat of the CIP to increase the predictability and regularity of the town’s budget by
planning for purchases of capital equipment and determining appropriate methods for meeting the
town's capital needs,
TABLE 2
MUNICIPAL AND SCHOOL CAPITAL OUTLAY AND DEBT SERVICE, 1986-1995
MUNICIPAL EXPENDITURES SCHOOL DISTRICT EXPENDITURES ™ TOTAL EXPENDITURES
CAPITAL CARITAL]CAPITAL CAPITAL [CAPITAL CAPITAL
ouT Ay L] OPERATING » % OF |OUTLAY k] OPERATHG bd X or |OUTLAY k.3 OPERATING k.3 uOF
YEAR | & DEBT CHANGE CasTs CHANGE TOTAL | & DEBT CHANGE COSTS CHANGE TOYAL | & DEBT CHANGE COSTS CHANGE TOTAL
| 7908 | 84804 4112% 2458747 46.%  33% | 225405 -16.2% T36443 1A% 40% | 210,208 86% T005,180  206% T
wer | 216022 13a7% 2473 02% A% | 27355 6% 520080 0% 39% | 4BFT W% TISEM Q6% 5I%
1588 AT 50.3% 251830 16% I6% 164,205 -15.2% B442260 21.8% 28% 278,778 57% 2945240 154% 0%
1989 | 107437 137 ZBOOM0 119%  3T% | TEZME -146% BT854 GO%  23% | 204785 60% 9566854 B9% 27%
1990 124081 155% 28716689 2.5% 4.1% 151,240 Q9% TIMETA 2% 20% 275334 40% 10,258 343 TI% 28%
1851 BE,189 -305% ZFEIE  48% 31% 145138 -40% 8050693 9.0% 1.0% 2127 -16.0% 10.790.329 5.2% 21%
1962 55744 D52% 3474790 24E6% 18% 13903 42 7611.446 55% 1 8% 184777 158% 11,026,236 2.2% 1.7%
1963 W20 NTTH JU2EBE  -3.3% &.6% 127928 80% 8451 182 11.2% 1.5% 380,796  B5.2% 11.783,868 B7% 3.0%
1994 [1063m4e aseow  3ALTeE 0% 243% 0 1000% B3N A% Q0% |1063848 1645% 12136401 32% arms
1895 710518 -332% 3438004 38% 17 1% 71819  NA 9217080  4.4% :X.. % 782137 -105% 12,653,114 43% 53%
e | seeam sew  JEIGEB MER  135M | 71819 O 9766311 BO% 0% | E60671 .14d% 13604008  T.S% 48

*Schood district figures are for the school year {e.g. 1890 = school year 8%/90).

The Pelham Capital Improvements Plan Committee (the Committee) has prepared this report
under the authority of the Planning Board and RSA 674:5-8 (Appendix A). It is the Committee’s
intention that this report reflect the capitai needs of the town for the period between 1997-2003 and
to offer recommendations to the Budget Committee for consideration as part of the annual budget.
Information was submitted to the Committee from the various town Departments, Boards and
Committees which helped form the basis of this document. Although this Capital improvements
Plan includes a seven-year period, the CIP should be updated every year to reflect changing
demands, new needs, and regular assessment of priorities. This document contains those elements
required by law to be included in a Capital Improvements Plan.

.82 -




TOWN OF PELHAM
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN, 1998-1004
Page 3.

As indicated, the adoption of a CIP by the Planning Board is a statutory prerequisite to the
application of impact fees. An mpact fee system may be a useful too] for Pelham to employ in an
effort to control capital expenditures. Impact fees, however, have significant limitations. They can
only be used to offset the proportion of capital expenses that may be attributed to new development.
They may not be used to meet existing capital deficiencies. Also, they must be properly used within
six vears, or the town must return the funds to the developer who paid them. Despite these
constraints, which are more clearly delineated in the statute in Appendix B, it is the strong
recommendation of the CIP Committee that the Planning Board actively pursue the study of impact
fees relative to their use in reducing the future cost of capital improvements. Furthermore, there are
several capital improvement projects recommended in the Capital Improvements Plan that are
consistent with and supportive/ of the long term goals of the Pelham Master Plan as summarized in
Appendix C.

For the purposes of this document, a capital improvement is defined by its cost and its useful
life. items included have a cost of at least $10,000 and generally have a usetul life of at least three
years. Eligible items include new buildings or additions, land purchases, substantial road
improvements and purchases of major vehicles and equipment. Operating expenditures for persennel
and other general costs are not included. Expenditures for maintenance or repair are generafly not
inciuded unless the cost or scope of the project is substantial enough to increase the level of a facility
improvement. A summary of each of the projects included in the 1998 to 2004 CIP is provided in
the following section. Starting dates are not provided for deferred projects.

FINANCING METHODS

In the project summary below, there are four different financing methods used. All methods
require appropriations either as part of the town’s annual operating budget or as independent
warrant articles at Town Meeting. The I-Year Appropriation is the most common method, and
refers to those projects which are proposed to be funded by real property tax revenues in a single
year. The Capitel Reserve method requires appropriations over more than one year, with the actual
project being accomplished only when the total appropriations meet the project cost.
Lease/Purchase method has been used by the fire department for the purchase of major vehicles.
Bonds are generally limited to the most expensive capital projects, such as schools, and allow capital
facilities needs to be met immediately while spreading out the cost over many years in the future.
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TOWN OF PELHAM
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN, [993-2004
4

PRIORITY SYSTEM

The Committee has established a system to assess the relative priority of projects requested
by the various departments, boards, and committees. Each proposed project was individualiy
considered by the Committee and assessed a priority rank based on the descriptions below:

“U"—Urgent Cannot be delayed. Needed for health or safety.

“C”—Committed Part of an existing contractual agreement or otherwise legally required.

“N”—Necessary  Needed within one, two, or three years to maintain basic level and
quality of community services.

“D”—-Desirable  Needed within four, five, or six yeats to improve quality or level of
services.

“F"—Deferrable  Can be placed on hold until after 6-year period, but supports
community development goals.
“R”—Research  Pending results of ongoing research, planning, and coordination.

“I”—Inconsistent Conflicts with an alternative project/solution recommended by the CIP.

Contrary to land use planning or community development goals.
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TABLE 3
SUMMARY OF PROJECTS REQUESTED
Cost CIP Committee
Without Starting Priority
Department/Project Debt/Revenue  Year  Financing Method Recommendation
IU CNDFR Il
L Admin./Gen’l Government
A. Abbot Bridge Repair $185,000 1998  Prior Appropriation x
B. Municipal Building Cap. Res. $50,000 1998  Capital Reserve Acent X
C. Future Needs Gen’l Cap. Res. $600,000 2000 Capital Reserve Accnt X
D. Senior Citizens’ Ctr. Renov, $74,000 1998  Prior Appropriation x
E. Traffic Signal Project £150,000 Not programmed x
F. Police Station $500,000 Not programmed X
G. Addition to Police/Fire Station $390,000 Not programmed x
1L Police Department
A. Cruiser Replacement (2) $58,000 1998  1-Year Appropriation |x] } |
B. Cruiser Replacement (1) $29.000 1999  |-Year Appropriation x
C. Cruiser Replacement (2) £58,000 2000 1-Year Appropriation x
D. Cruiser Replacement (1) $29,000 2001  1-Year Appropriation X
E. Cruiser Replacement (2) $58,000 2002 1-Year Appropriation x
F. Cruiser Replacement (1) $29,000 2003  1-Year Appropriation x
G. Cruiser Replacement (2) $58,000 2004 1-Year Appropriation X
H. Animal Control Van $10,455 1998  3-Year Appropriation X
. Mobile Data Access System $30,000 2000  1-Year Appropriation X
HI. Fire Department
A. Ambulance $130,000 2001 Capital Reserve X |
B. 1996 Fire Truck $275,000 1996 Lease/Purchase x
C. 2001 Fire Truck $275,000 1999  Capital Reserve X
D. Fire Station Renovations $130,000 1999  1-Year Appropriation X
E. Ventilation System $12,000 1999  1-Year Appropriation X i
F. 2nd Vehicle Replacement $28,000 2002 1-Year Appropriation X
IV Highway Department
A. St. Margaret’s Drive $135,000 1998  Capital Reserve X !
B. Dump Truck/Plow/Sander $90,994 2000 Capital Reserve x
C. Hinds Lane Reconstruction $214,800 2000 Capital Reserve X
D. Chipper $20,000 1998  1-Year Appropriation X
14 Solid Waste Disposal
A. Incinerator Purchase & Install. $170,000 1998  1-Year Appropriation |x
B. Install Above-Ground Tanks $28,000 1998 1-Year Appropriation | ix
C. Ash Landfill Closure $300,000 2001 x
D. Facility Expansion $15,000 2000  1-Year Appropriation X
E. Cathodize Existing UG Tanks 519,125 Not progreammed X
F. Retaining Wall for Trans Stat’'n $15,000 Not Programmed X
G. Remove Existing Incinerators $35,000 Not Programmed X
H. Compactor $80,000 Not Programmed l P 1x
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Page 6.
Cost CIP Commitree
Without Starting Priority
Department/Project Debt/Revenue  Year  Financing Method Recommendation
IU CNDFRI
VI Parks & Recreation

A. Community Center $720,000 Not programmed 1x
B. Bicycle Path $55,000 2000 1-Year Appropriation x

C. Boat Ramp $80,000 2001  1-Year Appropriation xi
D. Recreation Fields $87,650 2001  Bond (5-year) x

E. Tennis/Basketball at PYMP $40,000 1999  1-Year Appropriation X

F. Pick-up Truck £18,000 1999 1-Year Appropriation X

VH. Schoo!

A. New Elementary School $11,864,098 1999  Bond (20-year) x

B. School Bldg. Maint. Cap. Res. $50,000/yr 1998  Annual Appropriation X

C. Sherburne School Roof $34,000 1998  1-Year Appropriation X

D. Tractor $35,000 1998  1-Year Appropriation X

E. Memorial Sch. Classroom Roof $51,000 1998  1-Year Appropriation x

F. Sherburne School Qil Tank $35,000 1998  1-Year Appropriation X

G. Technology Program $100,000 1998  1-Year Appropriation X

H. Sherburne Sch. Vent. System $50,000 1999  1-Year Appropriation X

I. Memorial School Gym Roof $35,000 2000  1-Year Appropriation X

J. High School Roof $250,000 2001  Capital Reserve x
K. Memorial School Floor Tiles $58,000 2003  1-Year Appropriation x

L. High School Floor Tiles $£40,000 2003  1-Year Appropriation Xi ]
M. High School Acoustic Tiles $30,000 2003  1-Year Appropriation X

N. Modular Classrooms (Mem.) $142,563 Not Programmed X

0. Modular Classrooms (Sherb.} $311,782 Not Programmed X

P. High School Stage/Music $455,000 Not programmed X

Q. Kindergarten Facilities $690,000 Not programmed | X
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“Ur--Urgent:

ILA.

V.A.

DISCUSSION OF PROJECTS BY RECOMMENDED PRIORITY

Cannot be delayed. Needed for health or safety.

Cruiser Replacement: The 1-2 cycle of replacement of police cruisers has been
recommended by the NH Association of Chiefs of Police in a Management Study of
the Pelham Police Department, which was performed at the request of the town.

Incinerator Purchase angd Installation: The CIP Committee considered three
options for future solid waste dispesal: 1. Transfer station; 2. Rehabilitate the
existing incinerator; or 3. Purchase and install a used incinerator and removal of
existing incinerator. The Committee determined that the last option, purchase of a
used incinerator, would be most cost-effective. The Committee does not support any
expenditure at this time for a transfer station without further research.

“C"--Committed  Part of an existing contractual agreement or otherwise legally

ITLB.

V.B.

VILF,

required.
1996 Fire Truck: Replacement of a 30-year old truck.

Install Above Ground Tanks: Town action will be required by state law in 1998
either to cathodize the existing tarks or to replace them with above-ground tanks.
The CIP Committee has determined that it is more cost-effective to install new
above-ground tanks.

Sherburne Schoot Oil Tanks: The removal of underground tanks is a preventative
measure. The tanks are not suspected of leaking..

“N"--Necessary: Needed within one, two, or three years to mainiain basic level and

LA.

I.B.

I.D.

ILB-G.

[LH.

quality of community services.

Abbot Bridge Repair: This is the final installment toward a capital reserve account
for repairs to Abbot Bridge.

Municipal Building Capital Reserve: This would fund an account that would be
used to develop a new municipal center.

Future Needs General Capital Reserve: The CIP Committee advocates the
establishment of a general capital reserve to help fund future capital needs and to aid
in the stabilization of the tax rate.

Senior Citizen’s Center Renovations: Needed to upgrade existing facility.

Cruiser Replacement: The 1-2 cycle of replacement of police cruisers has been
recommended by the NH Association of Chiefs of Police in a Management Study of
the Pelham Police Department, which was performed at the request of the town.

Animal Control Van, Needed to replace a badly deteriorated vehicle.
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NLA. Ambulance Replacement: Needed to replace existing vehicle with potential body
and engine failure; funded by a dedicated Capital Reserve account.

1.C. 2001 Fire Truck: Needed to replace existing vehicle. Although the town’s recent
purchases of fire vehicles has been accomplished by a lease/purchase arrangement,
the Committee recommends utilizing the existing capital reserve account dedicated to
the purchase of fire vehicles, starting with this purchase.

IV.A. St. Margaret’s Drive: The final installment of an existing capital reserve account.

IV.B. Dump Truck/Plow/Sander: Needed to replace one hired truck and to augment the
town’s 1991 truck.

IV.C. Hind’s Lane Reconstruction: Establishment of a capital reserve account, which
extends beyond the 7-year scope of this CIP,

Iv.D. Chipper: Purchase would eliminate the need for annual rental of a this equipment.

VILA. New Elementary School: The CIP Committee has determined that this project is the
most cost-cffective means of meeting the immediate demands of the Pelham schools,
as well as providing potential solutions to municipal space needs.

VIL.B. School Building Maintenance Capital Reserve Fund: The CIP Committee
advocates the establishment of a school building maintenance capital reserve fund,
rather than an expendable trust, because money allocated to the capital reserve
requires the approval of the Annual School District Meeting before it may be used.

VIL.D.  Tractor: Replacement of a 20-year-old piece of equipment.

“D”-.Desirable: Needed within four, five, or six vears to improve guality or level of
services.

VLD. Recreation Fields; Multi-purpose athletic fields to meet existing and future demand.

VI.E. Pick-up Truck: Needed to replace a 10-year-old vehicle.

VIIi.C. Sherburne School Roof:

VILE. Memorial School Classroom Roof:

VILH. Sherburne School Ventilation System: Necessary to improve air quality.

“F"--Deferrable: Can be placed on hold until after 6-year period, but supports

ItLE.

community development goals.

Fire Station Renovations: Includes both interior renovations and replacement of
overhead doors; portions of this project deemed deferrable, pending resolution of
Municipal Building construction.
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Puge 9.
11L.F. Ventilation System: Pending resolution of Municipal Building construction.
“R"--Research: Pending results of ongoing research, planning, and coordination.
ILE. Traffic Signalization Project: Not programmed because it requires further research.
L.F-G. Police Station/Fire Station: Not programmed because it requires further research.
1L Mobile Data Access System: Not programmed because it requires further research.
IILF. 2nd Vehicle Replacement
V.E. Ash Landfill Closure: Pending further information.
V.F. Solid Waste Facility Expansion: Pending findings of Solid Waste Committee.
V1.B. Bicycle Path. Requires further research.
VI.C. Boat Ramp at Pelham Veterans Memorial Park.
VLE. Tennis/Basketball Courts at FVMP: Requires further research.
VILG. Technology Program: Pending the school’s success at obtaining funding.
VILL Memorial School Gym Roof.
VILJ. High School Roof.
VILK. Memorial School Floor Tiles.
VII.M.  High School Floor Tiles.
VILN. High School Acoustic Tiles.
VILO-P. Modular Classrooms: Requires further study.
VILM.  High School Stage/Music: Pending further information
IX.N. Kindergarten: Pending possible mandatory public kindergarten

“I"--Inconsistent:  Conflicts with an alternative project/solution scheduled by the CIP.

V.E.

Contrary fo land use planning or community development goals.

Cathodize Existing Underground Tanks: Not scheduled by the CIP Committee
because it conflicts with the alternative of installation of above-ground tanks.
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|

V.F.

v.G.

V.H.

VLA,

Retaining Wall for Transfer Station: The CIP Committee does not recommend any
expenditures on a transfer station at this time.

Remove Existing Incinerators. The CIP Committee does recommend replacement
of the existing incinerators, and has accounted for the need to remove the old ones

elsewhere in this report.

Compactor. The CIP Committee does not recommend any expenditures associated
with a transfer station at this time.

Recreation/Community Center: Not scheduled by the CIP Committee because it
conflicts with the potential use of the Sherburne School as a new municipal facility.
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SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
AND SCHEDULE OF NON-PROPERTY TAX REVENUES

The attached schedule (Table 5) displays the actual 7-year CIP as reviewed by the
Commiitee. It includes (a) project name and sources of revenue; (b) the priority rank of the project;
{c) annual expenditures and revenues; (d) a 7-year expenditures total; (€} a 7-year revenues total; {f)
the total cost of the project (including interest, where applicable); (g) outstanding revenues; (h) net
balance to be paid by the town beyond the 7-year period; and (i} unprogrammed projects. The
bottom of the table shows the total capital expenditures, the proiected assessed valuation, and the
annual tax rate impact of those projects programmed in any given year.

The projected assessed valuation is based on the average annual growth rate of the net
taxable valuation of the town, Between 1986 and 1996, the average annual growth rate was 3.3
percent. Because this rate reflects a significant and unusual period of growth in the late 1980s, the
trend for the period 1990-96 was determined by the Committee to be a better indicator of growth in
the net taxable valuation of the Town in the near future. A 2.0 percentgrowth rate was applied to the
1996 net taxable valuation of the Town, which was $289,772,131.

TABLE 4
NET TAXABLE VALUE, 1986-96

Net Taxable Value Change

1986 $211,954,028
1987 $224,792,420 6.1%
1988 $234,052,465 4.1%
1989 $246,015,583 5.1%
1990 $256,148,295 4.1%
1991 $262,553,885 2.5%
1992 $265,502,888 1.1%
1993 $273,729,995 3.1%
1994 $278,706,341 1.8%
1995 $283,494,782 1.7%
1996 $289,772,131 2.2%

Average Annual Change, 1986-96 I3%

Average Annual Change, 1990-95 2.2%
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TABLE 5: SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS: ANNUAL COSTS AND REVENUES (Page 1 of 2)

PRGJECT COSTS: In bold face type  REVENUES: (in parentheses)

PROJECT OR EQUIPMENT
AMD SOURCE OF REVENUES
By Dept or Service Area

Priority
Rank

Existing
Capital

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

I ADMINISTRATIVE/GENERAL GOV'T

Reserve

A |Abbot Bridge Repair

N

$185,000

|Funded in 1887

{$185,000)

$558,875

350,000

B Municipal Building Capital Reserve
C _|Future Needs General Capital Reserve

N
N

$150,000

$150,000

$150

D |Senior Citizen Center Renavations

$74,000

JFunded in 1967

(§74,000

Traffic Signalization

Aa

Palice Station

Addition to Pelice/Fire Station

el

POLICE DEPARTMENT

Crulser Replacement (2)

$58,000

Crulser Replacernent (1)

$29,000

Cruiser Replacernent (2}

$58,000

Cruiser Replacement (1)

$29,000

Cruiser Replacement (2)

$58,

Cruisgr Rep it{n

Cruiser Replacement (2)

Animal Control Van

34,443

$4,008

32,004

—lx{@|mim|o|O | [=]|a|™m]m

Moblle Data Access System

Alz|z|z|zlZ|2|Z2|=

$30,000

__Junspecified Aid

. FIRE DEPARTMENT =

{$24.000)

Ambulance

4

$130,000

JAmbulance Fund

$55.432

$15.000

—{5130,000)

1996 Fire Truck

$55,000

$55,000

$55,000

|0w i3

2001 Fire Truck

$45,000

$45,000

$45,000

$45,

Fire Station Renovations

$130,000

Ventilation System

$12,000

2nd Vehicle Replace (4WD)

wfnnlz|o

$28,(

. HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

S REE

|5t Margaret's Drive

z

$135,000

Funded in 1997

{$135,000)

Dump Truck/Plow/Sander

Z

$22,748

$22.748

$22.748

$22,7

Hinds Lane Reconstruction

=

$30,686

530,686

£30.6

Chipper

4

$20.000

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL

T

Purchase & ion

$170,000

FEIEE E R

Install Above-Ground Tanks

$28,000

Ash Landfill Closure

$100,000

$300,0

Fac/lity Expansion

$15,000

Cathodize Existing UG Tanks

Retaining Wall for Transfer Station

Remowve Existing incinerators

T{d|T[m{o|o

Compacior

-—|=]=|=|2|3|O{c

PRIORITY RANK KEY: U--Urgent C-Committed MN--

This tabte Is continued on the following page.

ja F--Daf

y DD
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I-Year 7-Year Total Net Balance Unpro-
2003 2004 Total Total Project Qutstanding | To Be Pald grammad
Cost Ravenues Town Projects
$185,000 A
(5185,000) |
$50,000 $50,000 B |
$150,000 $800,000 $600,000 [
$74,000 $74,000 o]
($74,000
$0 3150,000
$0 ) $500,000
$0 3$380,000
> S tp ebmer d A T A et e R R

l:lmjﬂlmlnlolml) =[o[7[m

$28,000
$58,000
1
{324.000)
P irag i ¢ T A e A oty I
A
{$130,000
$165,000 $165,000 N
$45,000 $45,000 $270,000 $275,000 35,000 c |
$130,000 $130,000 D
$12,000 $12,000 E_|
$28,000 $28,000 [F ]
st T L . - v = i R 1.7
$135.,000 $135,000 A
($135,000) L]
$90,904 380,904 B
$30,606 $30,688 $153,430 $214,800 $61,370 lz
$20,000 $20,000 D
- " o et oy N - - T NS 7]
$170, $170,000 A
§28, $28,000 B
$100,000 $300, $300,000 5
315,000 $18,000 D
$0 $19,125 [E
30 $12,000 |F
0 335,000 [G
0 380,000 [H
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TABLE 6: SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL IMPRCVEMENT PROJECTS: ANNUAL COSTS AND REVENUES {Page 2 of 2)

PROJECT COSTS: in bold face type REVENUES: (in parentheses)
PROJECT OR EQUIPMENT

AND SOURCE OF REVENUES Priority 1998 1989 2000 2001 20t
By Dept or Sefvice Area Rank
V. PARKS AND RECREATION
A__{Community Center {10-yr bond) |
I8 _|Bicycie Path R $55,000
¢ [Bpat Ramp R $80,000
{LWCF ($26.000)
O |Recreation Fields (5-yr bond) 8] 517,530 $
JoweE ($25,000)
E |Tennis/Basketball Courts at PVMP R $40,000
|L.'ser Fegs ($5.000)
F  |Pick-up Truck D $18,000
OTA +]. AR f EXP D R . . b ATSEG Throug pTOPE s
TOTAL, Municipal $400,443 §350,756 $439,438 $424,964 S4

VIl. SCHOOL CAPTAL EXPENDITURES - - § Lt -
A~ [New Elem School (20-y bond) $503,205 $593,205 $593,205 §5¢
TState Building Aid {555,265) (558 673) (362,292) 3¢
School Bldg Maintenance Cag Res $50,000 $50,000 §50,000 $50,000 35
Sharburne Schooi Roof $34,000
Tractor 535,000
Memorial Sehool Classreom Rool $51,000
Sherburne Schoo! Oil Tank $45,000
Technology Program $100,000
|Federal Grant {5100.000)
H | Sherburne School ventilation Syst $50,000
|Sehool Bldg Cap Reserve {$50.000)
I {Memorial School Gym Roof R $35,000
School Bidg Cap Reserve ($35,000)
J  [High School Roof R $125,000 §12:
[Schoo! Bidg Cap Reserve {$65,000) i85
K [Memorial Schoot Floor Tiles
school Bidg Cap Reserve
L JHigh Scheol Flcor Tiles.
M |High School Acoustic Ties
N IModuiar Classrooms (Memorial}
0  [Medular Classrooms {Sherburne)
P
Q

=z

G|mm|D|Ofm
A|O|go|z|ofz

o

]

High Schoo! StagemMusic
Kindergarten {10-yaar bong)

EE AR E T B

OTA o0 APIT AL EXPENDILIRES (A

TOTAL, School $215,000 $587,940 $584,532 $640,913 $652

& Yapidhrorah oo faxes

[PROJECTED ASSESSED VALUATION | 1998 | 1999 | 2000 0 | 2001 | 200;
$285.567.574 | $301 658, $319,93

Otﬂl Capltal Expenmres;.’ Assessed Valuaunn)) X$1, DﬂD
These figures do not represent the actual increase in the combined tax rate.

PRIORITY RANK KEY: U--Urgent C--Committed N--Necessary D-Desireable F-Deferrable R--Ressarch K-inconsistent
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Page 13
I-Year 7-Year Total Net Balance Unpro-
2003 2004 Total Total Project Outstanding | To Ba Pald grammed
Costs Reverues Cost Revenues By Town Projects
Lt s e B Tw AR - . ’ B . Lo i
$0 $720,000 [A
$55,000 555,000 iTa_':
$80,000 . $80,000 C
($25,000)
$17,530 $17,530 $70,320 $87,650 $17,530 M
{$25,000
$40,000 $40,000 E |
{$5,000),
$12,000 $18,000 F
$372,218 $151,216 | $3178,999 ($603,000 §3,262,859 $83,900
N - T e - L, AR . --—.""=‘j~‘--fxv5.\;.', o S - va
$593,205 5591,205 $3,559,230 $11,884,09 {$1,603,728] $6,701,132 A
(370,214) (574,544) ($331,857)
$50,000 $50,000 $350,000 £350,000
534,000
$35,000
51,000
45,000
$100,000 $100,000
$50,000 $50,000
($50.000)
$35,000 $35,000 |
($35,0C0
$250,000 $250,000 J
($115,000
$58,000 $58,000 $58,000 K
{$50,000) ($50,000)
$40,000 $40,000 $40,000
$30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000
$0 $142,563
50 $311,782
50 $455,000

50 N 690,000

$4,837.230 |  (5551,857)  $12,777,098 | (51,603.735)]  $6,701,132 ]

$7,816,229 .154,857))  $16,038,997 ] (§1503.736.0)] 56,785,032
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Town of Pelham
Town Hall Annex
60 Old Bridge St. No.

Pelham, N-H. 03076 Boa.l'd Of &ktmn

635-8233

REPORT OF THE CEMETERY TRUSTEES

The Board of Trustees meet the second Wednesday of every month
throughout the year. Special meetings are held at the Call of the
Chairman. Meetings are held at the Hearse House Gibson Cemetery,
officers are elected once a year and minutes are kept of all
meetings. The office of Superintendent of the Cemetery is
appointed by the Board of Trustees.

Burials are held in summer and winter. There is an extra fee for
winter burials when the frost has permeated the ground. There were
49 burials this year including 10 cremation and 2 baby burials for
a total of 61 burials for the year.

In addition to the burials we also maintain cutting and raking of
the grass, raking leaves, small maintenance jobs such as some
painting, repairing damaged stones, repairing some of the walls and
some small maintenance to the gas powered equipment. We maintain
the water supply system and do some tree trimming. Most of this
work 1s performed by two part time employees under the supervision
of Superintendent, Don Foss.

Supérintendent Foss also sells cemetery lots, keeps records cof
them, keeps records of the burials and lays out lots for grave
openings.

The Trustees oversee five (5) Town owned cemeteries, roughly about
36 acres. The Trustees would like to report that we have started
a program to grow a crop of good healthy grass. Two years agc the
Gibson Cemetery was hit hard by beatles that ate away at the grass
roots. We were able to correct the problems we are having with the
frost heaving granite blocks at two historical vaults at the Gumpas
Cemetery. With the assistance of Superintendent Foss and the Town
backhoce, the front blocks of the Butler Vault were returned to
their original place. The ground area around the vault had to be
dug out by hand and then the backhce was used tc move the granite
back in place. The large granite blocks on top of the Richardson
Vault were also moved back using the same method.

Another project accomplished this year was the repairing of the
front gates at the entrance con Marsh Road. These gates have been
rusted in the open position for years. These gates are now in very
gocod working order and may be opened and closed when necessary.,
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The iron doors at the rear of the maintenance house have also been
replaced. This chamber under the maintenance house is where the
caskets were once kept for spring burials. The iron doors had
rotted and were falling apart. If for some reason we have to hold
over a burial, we now have a place teo put it.

Total revenue for the year as reported to us is $37,300.00.

Lastly, it upsets the Trustees that snowmobiles and recreational
vehicles are trespassing in the cemetery. Cur cemeteries are
sacred grounds where our loved ones, ancestors and friends are laid
to rest. If any person should observe anyone disturbing the peace
and tranguility that should exist there, we would very much like to
know of it.

Respectfully Submitted,
Pelham Cemetery Trustees
Ralph Daly, Chairman

Richard Jensen, Vice Chairman
Walter Kosik. Secretary

Ralph Boutwell

Richard Derby
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Helham Qonservation  ommission

PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
03076
Tel. 635-7811

PELHAM CONSERVATION COMMISSION
1997 ANNUAL REPORT

The Conservation Commission is a group of town residents whose goal is to insure that
the natural resources of the Town of Pelham, including the wetlands, watershed and
aquifer areas are protected. The protection of Pelham's natural resources enables all of
the townspeople and future generations to enjoy clean drinking water and the open spaces
of the town, as well as to participate in such activities as: canoeing on Beaver Brook,
hiking through a local forest, observing wildlife in a natural habitat, and studying rare and
endangered species such as the swamp azaela.

The Conservation Commission is involved in:

& Serving as the "eyes and ears” for the State of NH with regard to wetland dredge and
fill permits and violations of the Shoreline Protection Act

« Open space planning to establish and preserve wildlife corridors and create an
integrated network of recreational trails that will allow the townspeople to enjoy the
considerable, unique beauty of the town

e (Creating land use and land cover maps in partnership with the Nashua Regional
Planning Commission as a vital planning tool in town development and as a source of
information for the residents of Pelham

s Coordinating educational lectures on land conservation and open space concepts, as
well as providing educational literature on these topics

+ Monitoring the water quality of the ponds and brook for high bacteria levels that can
cause dangerous health situations

s Working with the surrounding towns to look at regional conservation of open space
and the protection of the Beaver Brook watershed that feeds our aquifer-providing
clean drinking water for all.

Future projects of the Conservation Commission include studying 33 sites in town for
potential prime wetland designation and reviewing current safeguards for the protection
of surface and groundwaters. Conservation of Pelham's natural resources is critical given
the rapid rate of development occurring in town. As a volunteer board with more projects
than time we are always in search of interested individuals who can assist us in any
manner.
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The Conservation Commission would like to remind the townspeople that if any kind of

work at all is done:

1) in or within 50 feet of any wetland, stream, pond, or brook

2) within 250 feet of any lake /pond owned by the state, and Beaver Brook from Golden
Brook to the State line,

Such work must first be reviewed by the Conservation Commission and, in some cases,
the State of NH.

As a final reminder, for town residents interested in establishing a conservation easement
on their property, the Town of Pelham and Conservation Commission established a fund
to help ease the financial burden by assisting with surveying and legal fees. Interested
residents should contact the Conservation Commission.

The Conservation Commission members are working on behalf of the town to conserve
important natural resources valuable to the town. If any resident has a question, concem.
or desire to help, please contact the Conservation Commission.

Respectfully submitted, i 5

Mark Edgar, Chairman Alicia Symonovit

Kathleen Johnson, Vice Chairman Dan Dubreuil

Paul McLaughlin William McDevitt, Selectman's Rep.
Alicia Harshfield
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PELHAM FIRE DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX 321
PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03076

EMERGENCY TEL. 635-2421
Chief E. David Fisher BUSINESS TEL. 635-2703
Asst. Chief Raymond J. Cashman, Sr.

PELHAM FIRE DEPARTMENT

1997 ANNUAL REPORT

To the Honorable Selectmen and the Residents of the Town of Pelham :

1 am pleased to once again have the opportunity to present you with my annual report regarding the
Peiham Fire Department and its activilies, as we (ry to serve our community.

It is with great pleasure that I can place in service the new fire truck which the department has been
engineering for the past two years. The truck commitiee and olher members of the department have worked
very hard to make this truck functional for the town, The fire department is very proud of this truck and
hope the townspeople are also.

The purchase of two new 12 lead defibrillators along with training, has given the Fire Department the
newest and most modern equipment available, This and many other pieces of equipment along with many
hours of training, have allowed the ambulance service to bring the beginning of advanced life support to the
residents of Pelham.

We are continuing (o work in the field of fire prevention, working with the school system, business,
industry, general public and PTV-52. This has proven to be very successful and we hope with their
conlinued support we can expand our goals. Fire prevention is one of my personal goals and I believe time
and personnel must be directed to this to save life and property

Unforiunately, fire prevention does not stop all accidents from occurring. As in past years, we must
make sure we have the best trained and most highly motivated personnel to do the job. (Therefore making
the firefighters job easier and quicker, and cutting down on the loss in the Town of Pelham).

This year as in past years, has been very active for the fire department as the attached numbers show.
The nunibers do not show hours spent in training and certification with the state, local community
involvement and maintenance work. Training and centificalion are our foremost goals.

Wilth pleasure I would like to express iny thanks to the Board of Selectinen, all town depaniments,
indusiry, business and private individuals for Lheir assistance and understanding in regard 1o improving the
safety for all town employees and residents against fire and accidents Uwough a comprehensive prevention
program. We have had tremendous cooperation from the businesses in town as we go about doing our
inspections, making our recorminendations to them, upgrading their alanm systems and fire protection
systems and in making Lheir businesses safe for their employees and Lhe public.

Respectfully subgtted,
C'C }(Cﬁ‘-i;—?{:,

E. DAVID FISHER
Fire Chief
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The Pelham Fire Department responded to 1022 incidents in 1997:
Ambulance. . . . . . . 587 Misc. calls, . . . . . . 48
Brush Fires. . . . . . 18 Chimney Fires. . . ., . . 7
Car Fires. . . . . . . 16 0il Burner Problems. . . 10
Structure Fires. . . . 7 Propane Gas Problems . 2
False Alarms . . . . . 74 Storm Coverage . . . . . 2
Mutual ARid . . . . . . 44 Wires Down ., . . . . . . 9
Service Calls. . . . . 16 Water Problems . . . . . 2
Hazardous Materials. . B Carbon Monoxide. . . . . 36
Investigations . . . . 48 Standby. . . . . . . . . 4
Illegal Burns. , . ., . 36 Work Details . . . . . . 8
Training . . . . . . . 34 Wood/Furnace . . . . . . 3
Water Rescue . . . ., . 1 Qut of Control Burns . 2
PELEAM FIRE DEPARTMENT 1997 ROSTER
E. David Fisher, Chief
Willis Atwood, Asst. Chief
Raymond J. Cashman, Asst. Chief
Philip E. Colburn, Deputy Chief
George F. Garland, Deputy Chief
Richard D. Vinal, Deputy Chief
Father Edward Richard, Chaplain
Steven Amero, Captain Jonathan Cares, Lieutenant

Allen Farwell, Captaim Wendy Smigelski, Lieutenant
Albert Cote, Captain Jack Tirrell, Lieutenant
Robert Bordeleau, Acting Lieutenant
Robert Chatel, Acting Lieutenant

FIREFIGHTERS

Orie Allen

Paul Barrett
Russell Boland
Chad Bordeleau
Robert Bourgue
William Campbell
Jean Cashman
Raymond Cashman,
David Clark

Robert Bourgeois

Jr.

Donna Clark
Richard Clermont
Robert Deschene
Matthew Duke
Daniel Farwell
James Foley
Robert Gargano
John Hodge

DIVE TEAM

Gary Fisher

Robert Bourgeois, III
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Christopher Kulick

Jason Marsella
Hubert Mason

Howard Mastropiero

Maureen McNamara
Kenneth Mullaney
Frank Murphy
Karyn Zabel

Stanley Draper,

III



REPORT OF TOWN FOREST FiRE WARDEN AND STATE FOREST RANGER

To aid your Forest Fire Warden, Fire Departnient and State Forest Ranger, contact your
local Warden or Fire Deparanent 1o find out i1 a permit is required. Violations of RSA 227-L:17,
the fire permit law anc the other burning laws of the State of New Hampshire are misdeineanors
punishable by fines of up to $2,000 and/or a year in jail. Violators are also liable for all fire
suppression costs.

‘There are ten Forest Rangers who work for the New Hampshire Division of Forests and
Lands, Forest Protection Bureau. State Forest Rangers ate available to assist communities with
forest fire suppression, prevention and training programs as well as the enforcement of forest fire
and timber harvest laws. 1{ you have any questions regarding forest fire or timber harvest laws,
please call our office at 271-2217.

There are 2400 Forest F:re Wardens and Deputy Forest Fire Wardens throughout the
state. Each town has a Ferest Fire Wearden and several Deputy Wardens who assist the Forest
Rangess with forest fire suppression, prevention, and law enforcement. The 1997 fite season was
a safe period for wildland firefighters with no maior injuries reported. The drought conditions
experienced during the sarly sunnmer months was a significant factor resulting in the total
number of fires reported during the season.

The State of New Hampshire operates 15 fire towers, 2 mobile patrols and 3 contract
aircraft patrols. This early detection and reports irom citizens aid in the quick response irom
local fire departments. This is a criticai factor in controlling the size of wildland fires and
keeping the loss of property and suppression costs as low as possible.

1997 FIRE STATISTICS
(All Frres Reported thris December 23, 1997)

FiRES REPORTED BY COUNTY CAUSES OF FIRES REPORTED
Belknap 58 Smoking 54
Carroli 96 Detris Buming 261
Cheshire 63 Campfire 59
Coos =9 Power Line 33
Grafton 51 Railroad 3
Hillsborough 145 Equipment Use 23
Mermrimack 148 Lightuing 14
Rockingham 54 Children 60
Swafford 63 OHRV 0
Sullivan 19 Miscellanecus 130

Incendiary 33
TOTAL FIRES 726 Fireworks 16
TOTAL ACRES 19717 7
o o o
Ajf‘« - 4‘4’, Z/W i
~~ Yorest Ranger Forest Fire Warden
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M

Town Hall Annex
60 Old Bridge St. No.

Pelham, N.H. 03076 Board of Selectmen

635-8233

Pelham Forestry Committee
1997 Annual Report

Congratulations to the citizens of Pelham for being awarded the
1998 New Hampshire Qutstanding Community Tree Farm of the Year!

Having received the 1997 Outstanding Hillsborough County Tree Farm Award, we
were selected from the 1700 Tree Farmers in NH as a positive example of a
community working together for the benefit of Pelham's citizens and forested natural
resources. Historically, we have reserved lands across town including parks, forests,
watercourses, scenic and natural resources. This award is sponsored by the Society
for the Protection of New Hampshire Forests, University of New Hampshire
Cooperative Extension Services and New Hampshire Timberland Owners
Association,

New Hampshire is 83% forested. Forestry is the second largest industry in New
Hampshire, following tourism. Fifteen years ago, Pelham Forestry Committee was
initiated as an outgrowth of conservation and planning activities. Seven years ago,
the people at Pelnam Town Meeting reactivated the Pelham Forestry Committee to
study appropriate town lands for forest management. We lead the way for community
cooperation for sound long term forestry practices that will produce high quality
timber, diverse wildiife habitat, passive recreation and scenic beauty for us and our
descendants to enjoy for hundreds of years.
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We extend our thanks to Dan Cyr and John Fergusson for their professional forestry
skills and their exemplary sensitivity to cur community. With their guidance, we have
begun long term forestry management practices on Arthur H. Peabody Town
Forest, George M. & Teresa F. Muldoon, Pelham Veterans Memorlal and
Elmer G. Raymond Memorial Parks.

This year we initiated forestry cleanup on Blueberry Circle Town Forest. Our
goal is to improve the timber stand for future harvests, preserve the existing trails,
improve diverse wildlife habitats, provide buffers for abutters and water features
such as vernal pocls and produce an aesthetically pleasing town forest.

In the fall and winter, 1997, we presented a Long Term Forest Management Plan,
conducted a public hearing and site walk to interested abutters of the Quarry Town
Forest off Shepherd Drive. Subsequent to approvai by the Pelham Board of
Selectmen, the first stage of the harvest will go out to bid and be conducted during
the dry part of this summer.

To date, the Pelham Forestry Committee has studied approximately half of Petham’s
1200 acres of town owned forested lands for Long Term Forestry Management. We
urge you to support the continued forestry education services provided through
volunteer hours and monies from the Pelham Forestry Maintenance Fund as noted in
the current Forestry Education Warrant Article.

Two land-locked parcels contiguous to Arthur H. Peabody Town Forest have been
offered for sale to the Town of Pelham by Beatris and Albert Maki of Peoria, Arizona
with 9.75 acres on ML #007-007 and Pam Alexander and Daris Staples of Lakeville,
Massachusetts with 7 acres on ML #007-006. The Petham Forestry Committee
negotiated the purchase of such lands during the course of 1997, Due to the quality
of their forestry potential, the nature of their landlocked and contiguous position to
Arthur H. Peabody Town Forest, the Pelham Forestry Committee recommends your
positive vote for the release of $13,000. from The Pelham Forestry Maintenance
Fund to purchase these lands.

Please enjoy the combined efforts of the Pelham Boy Scouts, Forestry and Parks &
Recreation Departments as you waik the one mile Nature Trail at Muldoon Park,
They are improving more trails at Elmer G. Raymond Memorial Park in 1998. We are
working together to provide safer and pleasing walking and cross country skiing sites
in Pelham.

Avail yourself of the Forestry Education Leaflet Display in the Pelham Town Hall,
Watch the elementary school age children of Pelham with the aid of grants from the
National Tree Trust and New Hampshire State Forest Nursery raise hundreds of
trees to be planted on town lands! Aid the Pelham Business Network in their three
year beautification project to spruce up our shopping corridor on Route 38.
Participate in Pelham’s annual Fall Beaver Brook Cleanup. Putter in the town center
gardens and put a healthy smile on Pelham’s face.
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Please come out and celebrate our achievements

Arbor Day, Friday, April 24, 1998
with State Officials and our teachers and children in the Pelham elementary schools!
&

Walk the trails, meet NH foresters and participate in forestry, wildlife, agriculture and
environmental demonstrations with a chili cook off at Muldoon and Raymond Parks
Saturday, Aprii 25, 1998,
10am - 2 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Gayle A. Plouffe, Co-Chair
Harold V. Lynde, Co-Chair
E. David Fisher, Tree & Fire Warden
Kathleen D. Johnson
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Town of Pelham
Town Hall Annex
60 Old Bridge St. No.

Pelham, N.H. 03076 Board of Selectmen

635-8233

HEALTH OFFICER’S REPORT

1997

The Health Officer continued to perform assigned duties such
as sanitary inspection of public and private facilities in
addition, chaired the Board of Health when required.

Complaints relative to dog bites, to septic system failures,
and other health related preblems were investigated and resolved
where applicable.

No major outbreak of communicable diseases were noted. There
were some cases of Measles, Chicken Pox and Whooping Cough noted.

We again wish to thank the Administrative Staff of the
Selectmen’s Office and the Planning 0ffice for their support. Also
the assistance of the Police and Fire Departments.

Respectfully submitted

MJM
Robert Einsidler f?”/

Health Officer
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Town Hall Annex
60 Old Bridge St. No.

Petham, N.H. 03076
Board of Selectmen

635-8233

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
1997 ANNUAL REPCRT

To the Board of Selectmen and the Residents of the Town of IPelham:

This year the Highway Department was able to purchase some much
needed new equipment, a new 555C New Holland rubber tire hackhoe,
a 1997 GMC 1 ton pickup truck with a snow plow, a new plov and a
new wing plow. I would like to thank the Board of Selectmen, the
Budget Committee, the Capital Improvement Plan Committee and the
Residents of Pelham for their support in funding this new
equipment.

Winter maintenance funds were used for plowing, sanding and
salting, patching, equipment maintenance, new equipment, and brush
and tree cutting. alsc the Highway Department plows, sands and
salts the parking lots at all the Town buildings, Sherburne School,
Memorial School, Pelham High School, Veterans Mcmorial Park,
Muldoon Park, Raymcnd Park and the rcads in Gibson Cemetery.

Summer maintenance funds were used for general maintenance of Town
roads such as sign replacement, patching, repairing drainage
systems and installing new drainage systems, grading and adding
gravel to the dirt roads, c¢leaning catchbasins, safety line
painting, and crack sealing. New dralnage systems were installed
on Blueberry Ccircle, Hayden Road, Meadow Lane, Overlook Drive,
Colonial Drive, Greenwcod Terrace, Independence Drive and Kennedy
Drive. Crack sealing was done on Hobbs Road, Hayden Recad, Ledge
Road, Cote Drive, Poplar Hill Road, Surrey Lane and a portion of
Simpscn Reoad.

The Highway Block Grant Funds were used to prepare and pave Meadow
Lane, Common Street, 0ld Gage Hill Reocad Scuth, Colonial Drive,
Atwood Road, Atwood Road Extension, Valley Hill Road, Greenwood
Terrace, Kosik Terrace, Campbell Reoad, 0ld Bridge Street North, and
portions of Simpson Mill Road, Independence Drive and Tenncy Road.
A leveling course of hottop was applied to Livingston Road which
will be followed by a finish course in 1998. Lori Lane was dug out
and gravel was added so that it is ready for paving in 199=2.
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In conclusion, I would like to extend my appreciation to the entire
Highway Department crew for a job well done.
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Respectfully submitted

W?fj\’wiﬂ

Donald E. Foss, Sr.
Highway Agent



| | ||
Goiden Brook Park
windham Road

Pzlharn, New Hampshire
03078

603-635-3964

PELHAM INCINERATOR REPORT

Revenues for 1997 were cover $25000 for the year $17000 was in
recycling revenue and the balance of 58000 was for private burns.

The Incinerator facility was faced with a variety of problems in
1997. The biggest issue was with our Insurance carrier and the
liability of our employees carrying out their normal maintence
routines due to the deteriorated condition of both Incinerators.
We ended up hiring a contractor to do these monthly routines. This
proved to be guite costly and contributed to some of our budget
over run. Also several areas in the Incinerators required
extensive repairs which added to our budget woes. Other
contributing factors to our budget over run was an excessive amount
of Wood Ash from the large amount of brush generated from a severe
storm in December of 1996. Another area contributing to our budget
overrun was in the amount of furniture, mattresses etc. generated
throughout the year.

I have addressed these areas in my new budget with increases in
Repairs, Ash and Furniture hauling. Also, I might ad their is an
increase in the Expense line regarding Lead and Cadmium testing and
Chest X-Rays for all.Incinerator employees. The Department of
Envirconmental Services put on a seminar in 1297 recommending that
these tests be performed as to reduce future Town liability.

In conclusion I want to thank all the people that utilize the
Incinerator/Recycling facility and continue to do the right thing
by Recycling to help keep costs down.

Bruce Mason
Superintendent
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(@ elham 9 wblic cgil:rary

5 Main Street
Petham, NH 03076-2859
635-7581

Annual Report 1997

The year brought many changes to the Library. Donna Beales, after resigning as
Director, returned to her previous position in children's services. The Board of Trustees and
Staff extended themselves to fill the vacancy and continue to provide Library services to the
community.

561 new patrons registered for library cards. Materials added through purchases and
donations were: 1,092 books, 33 videos and 89 cassette tapes. Annual circulation was
26,959 items. The Library borrowed 151 items through interlibrary loan and lcaned 46
through the same program. The library was regularly open 45 hours each week; more than
2,200 hours for the year.

Over the summer, children tock part in the Knights of the Ring program under the
guidance of Donna Beales. They enjoyed a scavenger hunt and researched and performed
a medieval skill. Participants also vowed to perform an act of community service during the
year. The Knighting Ceremony was held in August. The Knights program, an original
concept of Ms. Beales, was the subject of an arlicle in Schoo! Library Journal.

In September a cooperative story hour for preschooiers was begun, and it continues
to be successful. Children enjoy a story and craft-making program each week thanks to the
efforts of participating parents.

Carol Anne Razewski was hired as Library Director and began work in August.
Donna Beales resigned her position, and Martha Dickerson assumed the children's services
duties in November. Both Carol and Martha are new to Pelham and are enjoying getting to
know the library and community.

Athena, the automated library catalog and circulation product of Nichols Advanced
Technologies, was purchased late in the fall. The entire staff has been working to learn its
procedures and build the library's patron and materials databases.

Thanks to the generosity of the 250" Watkway Committee and Hammar and Sons, the
Library has a new sign on Main Street; supported by a granite post. The Garden Club gave
a iot of time, effort and materials to make the brick walkway a real treasure in the town
center.

Board of Trustees

Charles Greenwood, Chair
Jane Gaskell, Secretary
Carol Theoharous, Treasurer
Charlotte Vautier

Rodney Mansfield
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1997 ANNUAL REPORT
of the

N

to the
TOWN OF PELHAM

The end of the 1997 fiscal year marked my arrival as the Executive Director of the Nashua Regional
Planning Commission. Having grown up in the Nashua region, and having lived in other states, it is a pleasure
to be back in New Hampshire. If any one has any issues of concerns regarding local planning, do not hesitate to
contact me at the NRPC. We at the NRPC are grateful for the participation of Pelham's NRPC Commissioner
Greg Farris.

The following is a brief summary of our accomplishments in 1997;
Geographic Information System

Staff applied our GIS resources and technology to a broad vanety of local applications in a number of
our communities inchuding real property parcel mapping, build oet analyses, floodplain and floodway mapping,
aquifer protection, development constraints mapping, long range visioning and traffic analyses.

The NRPC produced several natural resource maps containing information about wetlands, ponds,
public drinking water, rarc and endangered species and aquifer tranmissivity. This information will be used by
the Conservation Commission for analysis designed to protect existing town resources. This process will
continue into the next fiscal year. The NRPC will be developing a land use/land cover database utilizing
information from local parcel information, the State of NH GRANIT project, USGS and NRPC data. This
information wiil be used by the Town to examing its current pattern of development.

NRPC also worked on the development of a GIS based traffic data reporting system for the Town of
Pelham.

Planning Board Training

The Regional Planning Commission conducted an evening workshop in Apnl for all member
communitics. The topic of the workshop was on sound decision making for planning issues. In addition to this,
through funding through the Office of State Planning, NRPC produced a video tape on community growth
management. The video is available to all local planning commissioners in the region.

TravelNet Information System

The NRPC completed the development of a computer based system of transportation related
information, such as ridematching availability, transit schedules, airline information, transportation project status
reports, currently planned projects and other information. The systern will soon be available at public kiosk
locations in the region and on the Internet.

Highway Data Collection Program

With automatic counters at over 30 locations throughout the region, NRPC maintained a traffic count
system to provide the most accurate and current data to meet the needs of both public agencies and private
businesses. The data were published in an annual summary document and distributed to local communities.

Respecifully sub:tted,

Andrew Singelakis
Executive Director
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Parks and Recreation Department

60 Old Bridge Street North
pelham, New Hampshire 03076
Tel. (603) 635-2721

PARKS AND RECREATICN DEPARTMENT
1997 ANNUAL REPORT

We hope you all had a great 1997, everyone here at the Parks
and Recreatlion Department had a great year of fun, games, and
development.

1997 gaw the inaugural year of semi-pro football in Pelham as
the Rockingham Cougars of the New England Football League made
Muldoon Park their home. They played 5 exciting games before the
Pelham falthful. We are looking forward to another great year 1in
1958.

In other news from Muldoon Park, the new garade for the
tractor was competed this year. This bullding was entirely funded
and buillt by the Pelham Little League and Pelham/Windham
Razorbacks. A huge thank you to both organizations for their hard
work put in at Muldoon Park. &Also, the Pelham Playground Committee
has been approved for Muldoon Park as the site of a new children’s
playground. Money 15 being raised and construction is hopefully
goling to be under way in 1998 or early 1n 1999. If anyone 1is
interested 1in taking part in this project can call the Parks and
Recreation Department.

Other great news for the parks 1n Pelham was recelving grant
money from the 1997 National Recreation Trails Fund. The Town will
recelve over 56,000 to refurblsh and expand the trail system at
Elmer G. Raymond Memorial Park. With the help of all local scout
troops, Boarder Riders, and other organizations, this trall system
will be completed in the Spring of 1998,

Finally, in 1997 we were able to put together a comprehensive
list of users of the Parks and Recreatlion Department services.
Including program participants - both adults and kids, beach users,
coaches, etc. we directly served over 15@@ Pelham residents during
the 1997 calendar year. We look forward to expanding on this
number in 1998, If you have 1deas for new programs or ways to
improve our existing programs please give us a call or stop by our
office at the Town Hall Annex.

Thanke to everyone who took part 1n our programs and
activities 1in 1997. Without your help and dedication we would not
be able to offer the extensive range of programs Wwe now offer.

Resp ctfu Submitted,

.
Ji Druding, rector

Recreation Advisory Board: Bob Sherman - Chairman, Bob Tryon -
Vice Chairman, Jon Lowe, Hal Lynde, Bob Blinn, Andy Vanti,

Dave Cate, Kathleen Johnson, Jim Hodgson, Jim Bonomo

Greg Farrils - Sel. Rep., Marle Stadtmiller - Sch. Rep.

Pride In Our Community
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TOWN OF PELHAM

6 Main Street
Pelham, New Hampshire 03076-3723

1997 ANNUAL REPORT
PLANNING BOARD

In 1997 the Planning Board has dealt with many changes affecting the day fo day operation of the Board. In February the
previous Planning Director John Tucker resigned. The selectmen then hired, through the Nashua Regional Planning
Commission, an Interim Planning Director, Ben Frost, who kept the Planning Board running on course while the Selectomen
searched for a new Planning Director. This happened in June, when the Selectmen hired Heidi Griffin. After Heidi returned from
a leave of absence, she began gathering information for the Board. With her guidance and direction, together we look forward to
her new energy and insights.

In September, the Board again lost an important figure in its day to day operations with the resignation of Doreen Strawbridge.
For thirteen years Doreen was the person who made the life of Board members bearable. She made certain forms were in order,
notices were mailed, and was the person who received the brunt of complaints from customers. For this she will be greatly missed.

In November, the Board also received the resignation of its subdivision inspector Frank Keefe. Frank was the eyes of the Planning
Board as well as it’s liaison between contractors and the Board. November also brought Deborah Sangillo o the Planing
Department as Ms. Strawbridges’ replacement who is settling into her new surrounding also.

Through this, the Planning Board has kept some resemblance of consistency. The Board gave its approval of 56 lots in 1997 as
well as a number of site plan approvals, least to mention, the coming of National Northeast to the vacant Somerville Lumber
building. The Board has kept their second monthly meetings fo workshops in which it spent much time discussing used car lots,
Wetland Conservation Districts and Impact Fees.

Jeff Gawan and his Capital Improvement Committee were once agrin very active in organizing and managing a feasible plan for
the Town.

I would like to thank my fellow Board members for volunteering countless hours to their commitiee.

Jeff Gowan, Vice Chairman
Bill Croteau, Secretary
Roger Montbleau
Peter Fisher
Paddy Culbert
Carl Huether, Alternate
Greg Farris, Seleckman’s Representalive

It would be a great injustice to overlook the dedication and professionalism of our Recording Secretary Susan Tesch for her skills
are far too often taken for granted.

Respectfully submitted,

(Ao Pirnico

Clark Harris
Chairman
Petham Planning Board

Planning/Building Dept. 635-7811 / Assessing Dept. 635-3317 / Fax 635-6954
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TOWN OF PELHAM

6 Main Street
Pelham, New Hampshire 03076-3723

PLANNING D R T
1997 ANNUAL REPORT

The Planning Department has worked vigorously this past year on enhancing its fevel of customer service.
A majority of forms utilized in the Planning Department have been revised in order to promote an easier
level of understanding for its customers.

In addition to these revisions, the Planning Department has changed their hours of operation in order fo
better serve the public. Effective January 1, 1998 the Planning Department is now open on Tuesday
Evenings from 5:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m., and on Wednesdays from 8:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.

Another policy that the Planning Department has been pursuing include an Economic Development Plan
for the town in order to promote a business-friendly atmosphere, The State of NH Business and
Economic Development has provided input for this document.  In conjunction with the Administrative
Assistant, the Planning Director and the Planning Department Inspectors meet with companies who are
interested in relocating to Petham to give a thorough understanding of the permitting process they will
need {o engage in.

The Planning Department provides assistance to land-use boards, and a major project that has been
undertaken ai the request of some members of the Planning Board was to revise the subdivision
regulations for the Town. Although this project is in rough draft form, it is anticipated that public hearings
will occur in February of 1998.

The Planning Department has experienced a tremendous turnover of staff in 1997, The previous
Planning Director, John Tucker, resigned in early 1997, and was replaced by the Interim Pianning
Director, Benjamin Frost, who worked for the town until the arrival of myself in June. The previous
Planning Assistant, Ms. Doreen Strawbridge, announced her resignation in October, and with her
departure she took with her thiteen years of invaiuablie knowledge of the Pianning Department, and will
be greatly missed. Ms. Deborah Sangillo replaced her as the new Planning Assistant, and she has
provided many new ideas on ways to improve the Planning Department,

Throughout this time of staff transition since my arrival in June, the one employee who must be
acknowledged is the Planning Clerk, Ms. Susan Tesch. The Planning Clerk was more than eager to go
above and beyond the scope of her job and work additional hours if necessary. | personally would like to
thank her for her dedication, without which the transitional period could not have transpired quite so
smoothiy.

Respectfully Submitted,

Iy - .
/&_4_(‘.(,\“,,_ Q:.J(‘-J{.i/li, A
Heidi Griffin

Planning Director

Planning/Building Dept. 635-7811 / Assessing Dept. 635-3317 / Fax 635-6954
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BUILDING DEPARTMENT

L

1097

STATISTICS OF 1987 BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED:

Commercial 12

Single Family Dwellings 77

Elderly Housing Units 2

Accessory Dwelling Units 2

Additions/Family Rooms 24

Garages 18

Sheds/Bams 18

Decks/Porches 27

Septic Repairs 38

Signs 8

Pools 26

Certificates of Occupancy 20

Miscellaneous; includes alterations, permit renewals, chimneys, fireplaces and

razing of buildings 7

Total Building Permits issued M3

Total Electrical Parmits issued 9

Total Plumbing Permits issued 172
Revenues

Building Permit Fees Collected $74,113.40

Building Fines Collected 776.00

Electrical Permit Fees Collected 10.575.00

Plumbing/Propane Fees Collacted 7,050.00

Reinspection Fees Collected 1.8756.00

Pool Fees Collected 165.00

Cerlificate of Occupancy Fees Collected 825.00

Total Revenues Collected $08,470.40
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BUILDING DEPARTMENT OFFICE HOURS

MONDAY, THURSDAY, FRIDAY
8:30 A.M. - 4:00 P.M.
TUESDAY
8:30 AM. - 4:00 P.M. and 5:30 P.M. - 7:00 P.M.
WEDNESDAY

8:30 AM. - 12:30 P.M.

All work performed in the Town of Pelham must mest cumrent Building Officials Code Administrator (BOCA
Intemational, inc.); Naticnal Building Code, National Electrical Code and National Plumbing Code.

INSPECTORS
Roland J. Soucy
Building Inspector

Appointed April 10, 1995

Timothy Zelonis
Electrical Inspector

Appointed April 5, 1988

Walter Kosik
Plumbing Inspector

Appointed April 1996
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POLICE DEPARTMENT

65 OLD BRIDGE ST. NO.
PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03078

Chief of Police Telephone
DAVID F. ROWELL {603) 635-2411

To The Residents of Pelham:

The Police Department lost two fine police officers who retired
this past year after many, many years of service to Pelham. Sgt.
Michael Ogonowski and Patrolman Eugene Briggs will be missed by the
Police Department.

The best news I have to report is that the total burglaries
(residential and business) stands at 24 for 1997. Since 1990 the
burglaries have been steadily reduced and this trend seems to be
continuing. '

This year we hope to concentrate on juvenile crimes with the
addition of a diversion in house and through the court. This will
allow for a non-serious offender to be put into a diversion program
where he or she will devote time towards community service and
other community oriented programs in lieu of being adjudicated a
delinguent child.

You may have noted our bike patrols on 0ld Home Day. We have had
such good response to this that we intend teo put bike patrols ocut
on other celebrations and holiday activities within the Town.

We will continue our COPS FOR KIDS preogram in all schools this year
with an officer assigned to each school. This program will help
the Police Department in its endeavor to keep improving
relationships among pupils, faculty, and police officers.

Thank you for your continued support as we strive to make 1998 an
even better yvear in our efforts to make Pelham a safe community.

Respectfully,

Voo F Fawld)

David F. Rowell
Chief of Police
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1997 Petham Police Department Statistics

CATEGORY 1997 1996 1995 1994
M/V ACCIDENTS am 174 42 229
DOMESTICS 119 103 129 261
HARASSMENT 50 93 105 80
THREATENING 37 36 18 2
BURGLARY 2 27 30 70
ASSAULTS % 37 21 30
JUVENILE 104 63 27 35
THEFTS 124 145 134 154
VANDALISM 175 161 148 137
AUTO THEFT 23 26 30 38
ARSON 0 0 ] 3
SEX OFFENSES 17 7 9 13
DRUG OFFENSES 36 46 34 9%
WEAPON OFFENSES n 10 12 2
D.W.L ' 22 3 29 61
M/V SUMMONS 377 406 242 233
M/V WARNINGS 1362 1584 1138 1592
FRAUD 18 12 13 12
PARKING TICKETS 78 12 49 a1
ANIMAL CALLS 177 1296 1363 1387
TOTAL CALLS RESPONDED

TO BY POLICE OFFICERS 13,055 15510 13290 9816
MISC. CALLS HANDLED BY

DISPATCH CENTER

PHONE CALLS 12,107 13,520 12,284 12,008
WALK INS 7,243 7.661 6,799 7.326
TOTAL CALLS HANDLED BY

THE POLICE DEPT. 32,405 36,691 32,373 29,147
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POLICE DEPARTMENT COFFICERS/EMPLOYEES -

CHIEF DAVID F.

Sergeant Michael S. Ogonowski
Retired 12/97

Sergeant Michael A. Ogiba

Sergeant Evan E.J. Haglund

Sergeant D. Gary Fisher

Sergeant Andrew J. McNally

Officer James W. Basinas
Officer Eugene A. Briggs
Retireada 09/97
Officer Charles G. Laponius
Officer Dennis P. Lyons
Cfficer Dennis J." Mannion
Officer Joseph G. McDowell
Officer Kenneth H. Owen, Jr.
Oofficer Michael J. Pickles
Oofficer Albert A. Piccolo, Jr.
Officer Joseph A. Roark

Special COfficers

Steven A. Cahalane
Neal J. Murphy
John R. Ogden
Kathy E. Ogiba
John R. Ogden
Timothy D. Vincent

1997

ROWELL

Dispatchers

Anne C. Barrett
Jacquelyn McInerney
Lauren E. Mackey
Resigned 12/97
Records Clerk

Brenda M. Rizzo

Secretary to the Chief

Laurette E. Poleatewich

Animal Control Officer

Timothy D. Vincent

Crossing Guards

Carla Bordeleau
Jeanette McCoy

Part-Time Dispatchers

Steven A. Cahalane
Maureen C. McNamara
Laurette E. Poleatewich
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PELHAM SENIOR CENTER

Eight Nashua Road
Pelham, NH 03076
Tel: 603-635-3800
Fax: 603-635-6971

Our Senior Center has become very involved in the
commmity this year and has generously donated money to

many wortiy causes. The Food Pantry, Good Neighbor
Fund, Darrry Hall Fund and Home Health & Hospice to name

a few. The Senlors also bought gloves for the Pelham
High School Barnd members and made a donation to the PHS

Scholarship Fund. The Senlor women baked and donated
goodies for the Anmual Yuletide Ceremony. We have many

members who knit and crochet items for the Salvation
Army at Christmas time.

In 1997 we had eighteen members who passed away and
donations in their memory were made to the Pelham
Firefighters Assocliation Ambulance Fund.

This past year we have also had many intergenerational
activities with the youth of our town. The young
people from the Congregational Church gave the Senlors
a dimmer and program of entertairment in May. The
Senlors participated in Commmnity Night at the High
School. In Octcber we had young people from the 7th
grade come to help out here at the Center. The boys
raked leaves and cleaned the yard while the girls made
and served ice cream sundaes, The sixth grade invited
tha Senlors '

to the school for a Halloween party with goodies and a
varlety show,

We had entertaimment by the High School Band on the
front lawn here at the Center to the delight of all the
Seniors. There were also many groups that did caroling
at the elderly housing complexes in town. The Spanish
class from the High School came to us with a Christmas
program that included a snowman piniata. Last but not
least was the delicious dinner in December put on by
the Honor Soclety students, with entertairment by the
High School Bar. To all of these young people we say
thank you and ksep up the good work.

-123 -



M

Wittermore Arena in Durham, the submarine base in
Groton, Comn., Rockingham Race Track, HMartha’s
Vineyard, the Spirit of Boston, New Hampshire Museam in
Concord, folliage tour to the Balsams, Deerfield Fair,
apple picking, theatrical production of 42nd Street,
and finally to Springfleld, Mass. to see the display
of over 30@,000 Christmas 1lights. We also ran bi-
monthly trips to Foxwoods,

Multi day trips were taken to Philadelphia via MAmtrack,
Prince Exiward Island and the Von Trapp Family lodge in
Stowe, Vermont.

Again we hosted a meeting of the New Hampshire
Association of Senior Centers and in October I becams
President of the Assoclation, an office that I will
hold for two ywars.

Anmual events held by the Senior Center such as our
Strawberry Festival and Christmas Fair contimue to be
good fundraipers for us and are well attended by
townspeople. Our dollhouse raffle is also wvery
popular.

We continue to run the Senlor Center with a strong core
of Volunteers who are always appreciated and whose time
amd talent is utilized to the fullest extent.

Membership to the Senior Club is $2.00 for anmual dues
and you will receive a monthly newsletter. You must be
55 years of age and be a Pelham resident to become a
membor. However, you may come to the Center and eat
meals if you are 6@ ysars old. You do not have to be a
¢lub member to participate in the lunch program.
Transportation can be provided to and from the Center
on Tuesday through Friday by calling 635-3800.

We also have blood pressure and foot clinics monthly.
Seminars amd speakers on recent managed care and
insurance programs are offered regularly.



I am always available to answer qQuestions on senlor
services to family members or elders who need help.
Our doors are always open to welcome new particlipants.
Our atmosphere is warm and friemily and the coffes pot

is always onl

Respectfully sulmitted
Susamms Hovling, Director
PELHAM SENIOR
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SOUTHEASTERN N.H. HAZMMAD

(Southeastern N H. Hazardous Materials Mutual Aid District)

The Southeastern New Hampshire Hazardous Materials Mutual Aid District is organized
as a regional solution to the hazardous materials problem. The purpose of the district is
to prepare our communities, regionally, for responses to hazardous materials incidents,
both with training and equipment. The 15 communities that comprise the district are:
Auburn, Atkinson, Chester, Danville, Derry, East Derry, Hampstead, Hooksett,
Litchfield, Londonderry, Pelham, Plaistow, Salem and Windham.

The District is managed by an Operations Committee, consisting of a Chief Officer from
each member community, who carries out the day-to-day business of the organization;
and a Board of Directors, consisting of an elected or appointed member of municipal
government in each community, who provide oversight and fiscal management.

Dastrict resources include two response trailers, equipped with generators, oil spill and
decontamination equipment, and chemical reference material. The District also owns a
response truck equipped in the same manrer as the trailers. Equipment upgrades to the
Derry Fire Department Special Services Vehicle and the Pelham Fire Department Rescue
Truck enable these vehicles to function as mobile command posts, complete with
computerized reference sofiware, as well as radio, fax, and cellular communications. The
District trailers and truck are strategically located to respond to any community
requesting them. A new trailer located in Londonderry is equipped with mass casualty
supplies, which is available to respond to any member community.

Since the incident command system is mandated by law at a hazardous materials incident,
the District has devised an on-call notification system whereby a member community
may request Chief Officers from member communities to stafT positions in the incident
command system.

Six technician team leaders, and twenty-four team members are now on-call to respond to
member communities, to conduct research, advise the incident commander on control
activities and safety, and fill incident command system staff positions. They also assist
member communities with planning, since the District has been recognized as a regional
Local Emergency Planning Committee, to comply with SARA Title III of the federal
regulations governing hazardous materials. This allows the District to be eligible for
Emergency Management Assistance funding.

On October 1, the District’s Level “B” hazardous materials response team became
operational; the members of which are on-call to respond to any member community to
assist with control activities at a hazardous materials incident. The next goal to be
accomplished is the movement of the response team from Level “B” to Level “A”, the
highest level of control activity at an incident,

The District has and will continue to move forward to meet our original goal: Te provide
the most cost effective manner of responding to a hazardous materials incident.

Respectfully submitted:

For the Board of Directors For the Operations Committee
Mr, Donald Chase Chief Alan J. Sypek
Commissioner, East Derry Fire Precinct Londonderry Fire Department
Chair, Board of Directors Chair, Operations Committee
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Town of Pelham
Town Hall Annex
60 Old Bridge St. No.

Pelham, N.H. 03076 Board of Selectmen

635-8233

THE PELHAM TECHNICAL STAFF
1997 ANNUAL REPORT

The Pelham Technical Staff
The Pelham Technical staff was formed in 1984. The purpose of the Technical Staff is to apply
the capabilities of technology in the service of the Town and School District of Pelham New
Hampshire. The Staff also serves as a technical resource for the Board of Selectmen, School
Board, and other town bodics.

http://www.pelham-nh.com

In 1997, we've seen Pelham's presence on the Intemet grow with town departments, schools and
organizations adding their pages to the site. 1998 will hopefully bring even more information to
the web site. This has been accomplished by the volunteer effort of Technical Staff Chairperson,
Jim Greenwoeod with minimal funding from the town. Please visit the site, sign the guest book
and enjoy what has been provided for the Town, it’s residents and the world. The Webmaster
{Jim Greenwood) is available for assisting other town organizations and departments on the Web
site, for more information contact the Webmaster via email, at webmaster@pelham-nh.com.

Town Computer Projects

During 1997 Vince Messina, the towns system administrator, under the guidance of the technical
staff provided high quality technical and hardware support for the towns various computer
systems. Technology is changing at a very rapid pace, and with the expert guidance and direction
of Vince and the technical staff the town will continue to make a smooth transition into the
future.

1997 brought the Library a step into the future with the addition of a computer network to
automate the book check out and fine collection process. The Library computers are currently in
place and are equipped with software (Athena) to complete the automation. The Athena software
is a fully integrated library automation system that combines circulation, catalog searching
(OPAC), cataloging, union cataiog, and inventory functions in a complete system. The Library
Staff is presently cataloging and bar coding all of the books to include them into the data base.
This system will completely replace the card catalog index. Book searches can then be performed
using computer terminals throughout the Library.

1997 and the revaluation of the town brought a new computer and appraisal software package
online for the Town Assessor, Janet Reardon. The appraisal sofiware will help provide and
maintain an accurate, equitable analysis and appraisal of resident's properties. This system, as
well as all of the systems in the town, helps reduce administrative cost and pass savings on to the
taxpayets.
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Cable Internet Access

In 1997, through a cooperative effort between PTV, CTAC, Harron Communications and the
Technical Staff, a Beta Site test has been initiated. One of the largest steps has been achieved
(Intermet connectivity). In the coming months, resident Beta testing will occur with hopes of
providing cable Intemnet access in the first part of 1998. This high-speed access will also be
avaitable free at the Public Library to all Pelham residents.

School Computer Projects

The-1997 - 1998 school year brings an addition to the Pelham - Windham School Districts, with
the appointment of Terry Bullard, as Technology Director. In December Terry submitted a school
district technology plan for state approval in order to position the district for future grant
opportunities and E-Rate funding. She is pleased to let the residents know that the plan has been
approved by the state. In December, She subnitted a joint grant application {on behalf of Pelham
and Windham Districts) to the State for the Technology Literacy Challenge Fund. She submitted
a proposal for the maximum amount of $100,000. Terry has aiso been in the process of forming
the Petham School District Technology Committee. The first meeting will be taking place
sometime in the beginning of 1998. Terry is very professional, knowledgeable and will be a great
technology asset to the School district and the town.

The Staff

The Pelham Technical Staff is comprised of (9) members, a Selectmen's representative, a School
Board representative, and the planning director. In addition to the school board member, the
Schoo! District Technology Director also attends the meetings. There are currently (3) openings
in the Technical Staff available for interested residents. To qualify, a resident should be
knowledgeable in technology, its use, development, implementation, and have a genuine desire to
assist the town in its technological decisions. In short a genuine desire to help and knowledge in
technology is what we are looking for. Interested residents should fill out a volunteer position
application, at the Town Hall Annex, located at 60, Old Bridge Street North. The applicant then
goes before the Board of Selectmen to be appointed. The Technical Staff meets on the second
Thursday of the month at 7:30 p.m. in the Senior-Center located on Nashua Road. For more
information contact Peter Flynn (635-8233) or selectmen@pelham-nh.com), or James Greenwood
{635-2266 or jgreenwood@jbg.inv.com).

Respectfully Submitted;
Lo g foe Z7

James B. Greenwood

Chairperson

Dominic Buonarosa, Vice Chairperson Thomas McCallion

Vince Messina, Systems Administrator Jack Caynon

Robert Bean 111, School Board Rep. Dan Casseres

Stan Draper, Selectmen's Rep. Peter Desautels, High School Liaison

Terry Bullard, School District Tech. Dir.
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Town of Pelham
Employee Gross Wages
As of December 31, 1997

1997
Year-to-date
Name of EmploYee Salary
Ackerman, Jeannemarie $1,453.14
Alberghene, Mary E. 154.51
Aleksonis, Arnold J 23,341,20
Allen, George R 17,091.06
Allen, Orie E 897.12
Amera, Stephen D 217.77
Barrett, Anne Regular Pay 25,641.40
Cvertime FPay 1,866.21
Barrett, Paul 1,764.43
Basinas, James Regular Pay 34,039.23
Overtime & Special Pay 13,563.78
Beales, Donna L 12,976.02
Bedrosian, Daniel 81.11
Belcher, Stephen J 27,405.63
Bordeleau, Carla 3,347.52
Bordeleau, Chad 2,103.12
Bordeleau, Robert R 3,282.28
Boucher, Gerard R. 1,967.75
Bourgeois Sr. Robert J. 654,93
Bourgeois, Robert IT 76.94
Bourque, Robert 996,28
Bourque, Ronald 7,297.85
Boyden, Randy 747.82
Briggs, Eugene Regular Pay 25,873.56
Earntime Payout 11,105.13
Cahalane, Steven A &,580.60
Campbell, William 26,625.0%
Cares, Jonathan R 3,901.26
Carr, Kathleen 13,643.44
Cashman Jr., Raymond 3,606.02
Cashman, Jean 3,616.10
Cashman, Raymond J 6,405.78
Chamberlin, Charles 12,189.086
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EnploYee Gross wWages
As of December 31, 1997

1997
Year-to-date
Name of Employee Salary
Chatel, Robert B 5,689.16
Chester, Jennifer 1,726.80
Clark, David 1,922.13
Clark, Donna 1,748.17
Clermont, Leighana M, 1,210.00
Clermont, Richard G 2,141.05
Colburn, Philip 4,122.67
Cosgro, Teodd 42.73
Cote, Albert 4,899.59
Cryan Jr, James 215.64
Cunic, John A 447.66
Cutter, Henry H 2,953.75
Czarnionka, Casimir Regular Pay 14,961.09
Overtime Pay 4,818.63
Earntime Payout 394 .37
D'Agata, Jason 1,331.00
Daley, Ralph 15,457.80
D'Arcangele, Donna 954.73
Davis, Andrea B 1,868.69
Davis, Jcan B 5,335.83
Deery Jr,, John 42.73
Derby, Linda M -36,716.60
Deschene, Robert E 4,277.13
Desmarais, Roxanne 1,782.00
Dickerson, Martha W. 2,223.60
Doherty, Linda T 2,130.10
Dowling, Linda J Secretary 24,005.09
Cable Coordinator 8,707.43
Dowling, William F 15,445.89
Draper, Stanley IIT 80.92
Drew, Carlene F. 149.35
Druding, James S 27,327.86
Ducharme, Michael N. 2,200.00
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Town of Pelham
Employee Gross Wages
As of December 31, 1997

1997
Year-to-date
Name of Employee Salary

Duke, Matthew 27,826.57
Durand, Derek G. 1,040.00
Einsidler, Robert 2,352.59
Farwell, Allen M 5,089.98
Farwell, Daniel M 3,778.90
Ferreira Jr, Francis M 30,224.35
Fisher, D. Gary Regular Pay 41,554.39

Overtime & Special Pay 25,442.50
Fisher, Ernest D 40,528.27
Flynn, Peter R 40,545.70
Foley, James 28,057.38
Foss Jr., Donald E. 121.51
Foss, Donald E 39,094.69
Gargano, Robert 4,676.82
Garland, George 1,639.98
Gillis, Todd 172.92
Girolamo, Andrea 760,50
Greenwood, Kevin 300.00
Griffin, Heidi A. 14,889.82
Haglund, Evan J Regular Pay 41,721.07

Overtime & Special Pay 15,574.90
Halko, Sara - 1,122.88
Hayes, Judith 3,159.61
Hill, Justin T. 1,234.75
Hodge Jr., Jochn 2,046.32
Hoffman, Craig 26,391.41
Hone, Jonathan R. 1,232.50
Hovling, Susanne C. 23,442,43
Jeknavorian, Aram 1,569.75
Johnson, Mary M. 1,166.25
Kelley, Betteann J 18,876.25
Kempton, Carolyn A. 1,022.50
Kempton, Pamela A 23,504.60
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Employee Gross Wages
As of December 31, 1997

1997
Year-to-date
Name of Employee Salary
Kosik, Walter J. 3,999.96
Kropp, Julia A, 1,465.75
Kulick, Christopher J 2,195.18
Lamarre, Kevin 1,053.50
Lapenius, Charles Regular Pay 30,058.40
Overtime & Special Pay 18,380.36
Larcochelle, John 56.25
Law, Jonathan P 28,502.79
Lazdowski, Gary E 0.00
Levassgeur, Douglas R 1,807.50
Levesgue, Amy L 1,787.40
Levine, Rachel 985,00
Lowe, Martha A 1,95%9.55
Lyons, Dennis P 41,380.03
Mackey, Lauren Regular Pay 8,770.08
Overtime Pay 1,034.55
Earntime Payout 387.20
Malloy, Christopher S. 1,090.00
Mann, Maureen 36.05
Mannioh, Dennis J Regular Pay 12,871.27
Overtime & Special Pay 3,240.74
Marsden, Derothy A T26,535.12
Marsella, Jason 2,488.48
Martin, Mandi Jo 1,303.50
Mascn, Bruce A 33,217.75
Mason, Hubert L 170.88
Mastropierec, Howard 1,523.74
McCoy, Jeannette P, 2,850.18
McDowell, Joseph Regqular Pay 28,505.28
Overtime & Special Pay 19,871.83
McInerney, Jacguelyn Regular Pay 21,916.10
Overtime & Special Pay 6,464.63
McNally, Andrew J Regular Pay 34,289.23
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Town of Pelham
Employee Gross Wages
As of December 31, 1997

1997
Year-to-date
Name of Employee salary

Overtime & Special Pay 23,049.07

McNamara, Maureen € 27,173.79

Mierswa, Jacdquelyn 15,562.45

Miscia, Christine M 1,275.01

Moore, Stephen J 787.70

Morrissette, Diane 16,963.67

Mullaney, Kenneth 3,250.89

Murphy, Francis C 3,493.97

Murphy, Neal 683.18

Neskey, Larry 30,161.23

Newton, Charles 337.51

Newton, Paul R. 4,868.00

Cgden, John R. 491,76

Ogiba, Kathy E 3,747.15

Ogiba, Michael A Regular Pay 41,571.07

Overtime & Special Pay 17,113.57

Ogonowski, Michael Regular Pay 41,921.07

Overtime & Special Pay 32,174.69

Earntime Payout 30,822.22

Owen Jr, Kenneth H Regular Pay 33,939.22

overtime & Special Pay 16,636.17

Pelosi, Jacqueline ~'1,881.35

Petterngill, Eric S. 196.88

Pickles, Michael Jr. Regular Pay 29,758.40

ov ime & Special Pay 10,971.29

Pinkham, Jason S. 82.50

Pinksten, Holly A 51.50

Poleatewich, Laurette E Regular Pay 25,482.40

Cvertime Pay 5,499.15

Provencal, Thomas 1,202.75

Razewski, Carol Anne 11,923.00

Rearden, Janet G 30,086.65
Rizzo, Brenda M Regular Pay.
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Emnployee Gross wages
As of December 31, 1997

1997
Year~to-date
Name of Employee Salary
Overtime Pay 2,398.07
Roark, Joseph A. Regular Pay 27,777.28
overtime & Special Pay 14,109.04
Rowell, David F 44,733.06
Sangillo, Deborah A. 2,555.95
Sarnc, John II 618.80
Savole, Diane 31,358.84
Sawyer, Robert 2,360.05
Slusarczyk, Anita 14,744.40
Smigelski, Wendy J 1,840.84
Smith, Roberta, F. 1,381.94
Soucy, Roland J. 15,143.20
Stadtmiller, Barbara A. 1,519.20
Strawbridge, Doreen M Regular Pay 20,749.12
Earntime Payout 533.80
Surprenant, Cheryl 1,947.20
Sutcliffe, Annette 14,003.33
Sutton, Eric R. 1,242.50
Takesian, Charlene 1,714.56
Terry, Nicholas R. 1,640.64
Tesch, Susan 13,328.96
Tirrell, John H ~32,646.76
Trull, Patricia E. 159.65
Tucker, John E Regular Pay l§,060.54
Earntime Payout 6E211.70
vautier, Charlotte ‘181.28
Vinal, Richard D 1,258.7¢
Vincent, Timothy D Regular Pay 27,984.93
Overtime & Special Pay 5,888.63
Vivier, Chantal R. 990.00
Webster, Sandra L 332.50
Weigler, Brent 270.00
Weigler, Brian 202.50
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Town of Pelham
Employee Gross Wages
As of December 31, 1997

1997
Year-to-date
Name of Employee S8alary
Wilkins, Thomas J. 401.25
Will, April N. 10.30
Wright, Marjorie A 10,375.79
Zabel, Karyn M 514.39%
Zelonis, Timothy 7,212.36

TOTAL ALL EMPLOYEES
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BIRTHS RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997

DATE PLACE SEX NAME NAME OF FATHER
MAIDEN NAME OF MOTHER

JAN 02 NASHUA M NICHOLAS ANDREW WOLFROM BRUCE ANDREW WOLFRCM
KERRIANN POPLAR

JAN 04 MANCHESTER F HOLLY MICHELLE KATHIOS JAMES GECORGE KATHIOS
LINDA PATRICIA DART

JAN 24 NASHUA M BRENDAN CHARLES SMITH MICHAEL PETER SMITH
SUZANNE MARIE MARTIN

JAN 28  NASHUA F HAILEE RACHEL PERRIN RONALD ERNEST PERRIN
CHARLENE ANN POTTER

JAN 3t NASHUA F ALISON SANDRA BLANCHARD STEPHEN GEORGE BLANCHARD
SANDRA JEAN GCODWIN

FEB 16 NASHUA F LAUREN HALEY CHAPMAN JOSEFH KEVIN CHAPMAN
CHRISTINE GONSALVES

FEB 18 CONCORD F SARAH JANE SPICER CHARLES BCOKER SPICER [l
PATRICE LOUISE ROY

MAR 14 NASHUA M RYAN MICHAEL HILLSGRGVE CUMMINGS KEVIN DANIEL CUMMINGS
DARYLE ANNE HILLSGROVE

MAR 26 NASHUA F KATELYN DEANNA SURPRENANT CHRISTOPHER JOSEPH SURPRENANT
DEANNA DELIA SOQUZA

APRO4 DERRY M RYAN MICHAEL CHILDS RAYMOND JOSEPH CHILDS
SHEILA THERESA TROWBRIDGE

APR 05 NASHUA F MICAELA ROSE COUGHLIN CHRISTOPHER MATTHEW COUGHLIN
TRISHA O’BRIEN

APR 25 NASHUA F ANGELA MAY VIEIRA WILLIAM STANISLAUS VIEIRA
PAMELA ANNE WEBSTER

APR 26 NASHUA M DOMINIC JAMES LOIACONO DANIEL ANTHONY LOIACONO
CORI'MICHELLE COSGRO

MAY 05 PORTSMOUTH F SHAILEY SUE DOHERTY TIMOTHY JOHN DOHERTY
LORI| ANN HARTFORD

MAY 05 MANCHESTER F RACHAEL GRACE LAPOLICE PETER REED LAPOLICE
NANCY JANE SHAWVER

MAY 23 MANCHESTER M MATTHEW SALVATORE SANTANGELO PAUL MICHAEL SANTANGELO
MAUREEN MCDONALD

MAY 24 NASHUA F KENNA VALLES MATTEC VALLES JR
KIM HOFFMAN

MAY 28 DERRY F ALEXANDRA ROSE KFOURY MARK GEORGE KFOURY

LISA ANNE DUQUETTE
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BIRTHS RECORDED

IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997

DATE PLACE SEX NAME NAME OF FATHER
MAIDEN NAME OF MOTHER

JUNE 22 NASHUA F ALEXANDRA MARIE FERREIRA RAYMOND AGUIAR FERREIRA
DORENE SUSAN NOWAK

JUN 29 NASHUA F APRIL ANN REIDY DAVID SCOTT REIDY
DONNA MARIE GROULX

JUL 13 NASHUA M CHRISTOPHER JOHN MURPHY JR CHRISTOPHER JOHN MURPHY
MARIA TERESA ANGELES G. GOCHOCO

AUG 15 NASHUA M PATRICK JOHN BARRY WILLIAM JOHN BARRY
JENNIFER LYN ROBERTS

AUG 28 NASHUA F OLIVIA VERNETTA DAIGLE DANIEL RAYMOND DAIGLE
JANET RUTH LEPORE

AUG 28 NASHUA M JOSHUA ROBERT SARGENT RONALD JOSEPH SARGENT
KIM MARIE KNAPP

SEP 05 NASHUA F TAYLOR RENE BEDARD DOUGLAS JOHN BEDARD
DIANE MARIE CLOUTIER

SEP 05 NASHUA M MARK WILLIAM EDWARDS WILLIAM RICHARD EDWARDS
DONNA LYNN HORTON

SEP 10 STONEHAM, MA M JOSEPH MONROE HOLDEN WILLIAM LAVERN HOLDEN
MELANIE CALITRI

SEP 13 NASHUA M ETHAN THOMAS MCCALLION THOMAS JAMES MCCALLION
ERIN MARIE GRUBMULLER

SEP 23 MANCHESTER F KAITLIN MARIE HOWARD DAVID REED HOWARD
DONNA MARIE SMITH

OCT 10 NASHUA M ZACHARY MALCOLM DORMAN ERIC VERNON DORMAN
KAREN FRANCES JOHNSTONE

OCT 13 NASHUA M JACOB DANIEL CUNNINGHAM SEAN DANIEL CUNNINGHAM
MATINA HELEN ZAHARIAS

OCT 16 DERRY M DANE TRISTAN GERARD HOOVER 1l DANE FREDERICK HOOVER JR
MAUREEN THERESA DUBE

OCT 22 NASHUA F KATHRYN RITA BLAIS RAYMOND VICTOR BLAIS
RITA LILLIAN BEMISH

OCT 22 STONEHAM, MA F SHANNON ELIZABETH KINSELLA DANIEL VINCENT KINSELLA SR

' ELIZABETH ANN PETERS

OCT 31 NASHUA F ELISABETH ANN LEVESQUE FRANK EDWARD LEVESQUE
JUDY MARIE GREEN

NOV 07 PELHAM F HANNAH ROSE SOMOGIE ALLEN RAY SOMOGIE

LESLIE REED SWENSRUD
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BIRTHS RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997

DATE PLACE SEX NAME NAME OF FATHER
MAIDEN NAME OF MOTHER

NOV 10 NASHUA F ALLISON ROSE JEAN KEVIN THOMAS JEAN
DIANE EVA CHASSE

NOV 17 NASHUA M NICHOLAS JOHN JAREK JR NICHOLAS JOHN JAREK SR
PAULA DEE CARDOZA

NOV 21 NASHUA M KYLE RAYMOND ST.GERMAIN SCOTT DANIEL ST GERMAIN
MANUELLA MARGARETHA GIBSON

DEC 12 NASHUA M CONOR JACK BATTLES CHRISTOPHER JOHN BATTLES
ERIN RENE KIRCHNER

DEC 12 NASHUA M DECLAN JAMES BATTLES CHRISTOPHER JOHN BATTLES
ERIN RENE KIRCHNER

DEC 23 NASHUA F DEVIN MCKENZIE PAQUETTE JOSEPH EMILE PAQUETTE

LISA MARIE TANGUAY



MARRIAGES RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NH
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 19597

DATES NAMES RESIDENCE
JAN 10 WILLIAM N. COCHRAN SCOTT CITY, MO
BONNIE JEAN COCHRAN LOWELL, MA
JAN 13 THOMAS SAMUEL D‘AMORE PELHAM, NH
KORINNE WHITNEY SPENCE PELHAM, NH
JAN 17 RONALD ERNEST PERRIN PELHAM, NH
CHARLENE ANN DIONNE PELHAM, NH
JAN 19 LUIS M. ROJA LAWRENCE, MA
YOLANDA GONZALEZ LAWRENCE, MA
FEB 01 WARREN THOMAS CRAWFORD PELHAM, NH
SANDRA ANN MCGEE PELHAM, NH
FEB 01 LUIS ANTONIO SANTANA FRAMINGHAM, MA
ALDONSA LUCILA PEREYRA LAWRENCE, MA
FEB 02 JORGE LUIS ROIG LAWRENCE, MA
IDELIS MERCEDES PALMA TAVERAS METHUEN, MA
FEB 06 MIGUEL ANGEL BRITO GARCIA LOWELL, MA
SANTA DONES LOWELL, MA
FEB 0B KELVIN DIAZ LOWELL, MA
YOLANDA I. SANCHEZ LOWELL, MA
FEB (8 LUIS ANTONIO MENDEZ LOWELL, MA
LYMARIE CORA LOWELL, MA
FEB 08 GUILLERMO TORO RAMIREZ LOWELL, MA
MARIA ELENA CASTANEDA LOWELL, MA
FEB 13 ARTHUR E. GREENWOOD JR PELHAM, NH
JANICE C. SINGLETON PELHAM, NH
FEB 14 PHILIP WAYNE COLARUSSO MEDFORD, MA
DOROTHY ANN MOREIRA REVERE, MA
FEB 14 MICHAEL JOSEPH FLOYD PELHAM, NH
KAREN MARIE ROCHELEAU PELHAM, NH
FEB 14 JEAN-GUY J. BERGERON JR PELHAM, NH
SAMANTHA L. MATTHEWS TYNGSBORO, MA
FEB 14 FLOYD WILLIAM GRAY DRACUT, MA
BARBARA JANE HAGAN DRACUT, MA
FEB 15 JOHN J. CLARK PELHAM, NH
MARIAN D. SUTTON PELHAM, NH
FEB 16 CRISTOBAL RUIZ LOWELL, MA
MARIBEL NARVAEZ LOWELL, MA
FEB 22 MICHAEL C. BRANTMULLER PELHAM, NH
DAWN MARIE RATTELADE PELHAM, NH
FEB 22 RALPH EDWARD FUNARO LOWELL, MA
MARI MARGARET CALIANNO DRACUT, MA
FEB 22 JOSE DANIEL PEREZ LAWRENCE, MA
LUZ MABEL OCAMPO LOWELL, MA
FEB 22 GARY JAMES WOOD PELHAM, NH
ALYSHEA MARIE SHAW PELHAM, NH
FEB 28 KENNETH J. FOOTE LOWELL, MA
CATHERINE A. MELLEN LOWELL, MA
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MARRIAGES RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM,

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1997

DATES NAMES RESIDENCE
MAR 01 FRANK CATANC LOWELL, MA
MARIA ROLON LOWELL, MA
MAR 01 FELIX VEGA LCWELL, MA
MARGARITA LABOY LCWELL, MA
MAR 03 JORGE A. BETANCCURT LAWRENCE, MA
LUZ DEL CARMEN RAMOS LAWRENCE, MA
MAR 03 LUIS MANUEL ORTIZ METHUEN, MA
CLAUDIA PERDCOMO METHUEN, MA
MAR 07 ISMAEL FRANCO LAWRENCE, MA
MARINA DE LECN LAWRENCE, MA
MAR C% BRIAN PATRICK CHASE NC. ANDOVER, MA
AMY ELIZABETH HORNE NO. ANDOVER, MA
MAR 09 HENRY JACK GUILES LOWELL, MA
OLUKEMI FEHINTOLA AJAYI LOWELL, MA
MAR 10 JOSE JHOEL LEBRON LOWELL, MA
LEYDA MEDRANO-REYNOSO LOWELL, MA
MAR 13 FRANCISCO BATISTA LOWELL, MA
NCLIS PENA LOWELL, MA
MAR 15 LUIS F. ARBOLEDA LOWELL, MA
MARTIA GILMA AGUDELO LOWELL, MA
MAR 15 WILFREDO PEREZ FLORES LOWELL, MA
WALKIRYS ©O. SANTANA LOWELL, MA
MAR 15 CARMELC REYNOSO LAWRENCE, MA
EDDY MARIA TAVERAS LAWRENCE, MA
MAR 15 JOSE GABRIEL HERNANDEZ LOWELL, MA
ZULEIKA KOHENA LOWELL, MA
MAR 15 JAMES EADIE PELHAM, NH
FADIA NADER ROCKY RIVER, OH
MAR 22 JOSE OSMEDC URRUTIA MENJIVAR LOWELL, MA
CLARIDANY PCLANCO LAWRENCE, MA
MAR 22 ANGEL M. RIOS LOWELL, MA
MARIA E, SANCHEZ LOWELL, MA
MAR 23 JULIO CESAR ARIAS LOWELL, MA
KIMBERLY A. DOBAY LOWELL, MA
MAR 23 LUIS MALDONADO LOWELL, MA
ALEXANDRA MARIA GUZMAN LOWELL, MA
MAR 24 JUAN JOSE ESTRELLA HUDSCN, MA
CAMARIS RODRIGUEZ SPRINGFIELD, MA
MAR 26 BENITC URBINA JR LOWELL, MA
MARTA ESTELA RIVAS LOWELL, MA
MAR 285 CARLOS ENRIQUE AIZPURUA LOWELL, MA
MELIDA A. ROJAS LOWELL, MA
MAR 29 MICHAEL JOHN MORAN LOWELL, MA
REBECCA ANN OUELLETTE LOWELL, MA
MAR 31 JOSE MILAGROS TORRES RIVERA LCWELL, MA
DIANA PATRICIA MONSALVE LOWELL, MA
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MARRIAGES RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM,

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 3],

DATES NAMES RESIDENCE

APR 04 JAMES LUIS LACAGNINA GREENWICH, CT
JO MARIE DEAMICIS LOWELL, MA

APR 04 KEVIN JOHN PATENAUDE PELHAM, NH
DEBORAH JEAN MORSE PELHAM, NH

APR 05 DAVID WILLIAM GREENWOOD NASHUA, NH

) DAWN LISA GERMAIN PELHAM, NH

APR 05 ORLANDO MILLAN LOWELL, MA
MIRIUM BONILLA LOWELL, MA

APR 12 JAMES FRANCIS XENNEDY JEFFERSONVILLE, PAa
CHRISTINE LEE BEAULIEU JEFFERSONVILLE, PA

APR 12 CHRISTOPHER M. O'BRIEN DRACUT, MA
LORRAINE L. TRYON DRACUT, Ma

APR 19 TIMOTHY A. WALKUP METHUEN, MA

' KRISTEN M. GRENDA PELHAM, NH

APR 27 PAUL VINCENT ZAGAMI SALEM, NH
JULIE ANN ROCHE PELHAM, NH

MAY 03 PHILIP J. LAGASSE CHELMSFORD, MA
LISSA A. MCCOY PELHAM, NH

MAY 03 GLEN ARTHUR DESROCHERS PELHAM, NH
TINA MARIE PEASLEE PELHAM, NH

MAY 05 CARLOS ALBERTO PREIS LOWELL, MA
BRENDA MAE FIELDING WILMINGTON, MA

MAY 07 RAFAEL ROSADO LAWRENCE, MA
WANDA D. CARBUCCIA LAWRENCE, MA

MAY 09 HANDE H. HARISH LOWELL, MA
RUPAL A. TRIVEDI LOWELL, MA

MAY 10 ROBERTQ ALEXI GALINDO LOWELL, MA
EVELYN CRUZ LOWELL, MA

MAY 10 HECTOR RADHAMES GUERREROQ LAWRENCE, MA
ELIZABETH MERCADO LAWRENCE, MA

MAY 10 DAVID J. MAINE LOWELL, MA
MARCELLA A. PARENT LOWELL, MA

MAY 10 WILLIAM E. TORRES LOWELL, MA
XIOMARA VARGAS PEREZ LOWELL, MA

MAY 12 JEFFREY ERNEST NORMAND LOWELL, MA
ROSEMARY CATHERINE SEVIGNY LOWELL, MA

MAY 16 RONALD HENRY PATENAUDE PELHAM, NH
DIANE SUSAN COOK LOWELL, MA

MAY 17 JAY ECWARD FALARDEAU NO. CHELMSFORD, MA
KRISTEN VALERIE LAGRASSA CHELMSFORD, MA

MAY 20 JAY NILES CARTER NASHUA, NH
DARLENE L. WRIGHT PELHAM, NH

MAY 23 JOSEPH ALBINI ROLAND RAZA JR PELHAM, NH
REGINA MAY STONE PELHAM, NH

MAY 24 JASON ROLAND ANTHONY LEBLANC PELHAM, NH
SHERRY LYNN SURPRENANT LOWELL, MA
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MARRIAGES RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NH
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1997

DATES NAMES RESIDENCE
MAY 31 CALVIN EMANUAL BALES PELHAM, NH
DONNA MARIE COTE PELHAM, NH
MAY 31 DENNIS R. PROULX DRACUT, MA
APRIL MARIE CHRISTIAN DRACUT, MA
MAY 31 BRANDON JOHN WELLS PELHAM, NH
CINDY L. BROWN PELHAM, NH
MAY 31 RICHARD LINCOLN MOORE W. NEWION, MA
KRISTIN KESLO NORWOOL, MaA
JUN 01 CHRISTOPHER JAMES WAGNER PELHAM, NH
SHARON ANNE MORRIS PELHAM, NH
JUN 01 WILLIAM DAVID JOHNSON RINDGE, NH
NANETTE MARIE MARVEL PELHAM, NH
JUN 07 PAUL T. GOAD PELHAM, NH
ELIZABETH M. GREEN PELHAM, NH
JUN 09 MICHAEL PAUL GRESKA N. BILLERICA, MA
ANGELA MARIE WHITMER N. BILLERICA, MA
JUN 09 FRED Y. SANTER LAWRENCE, MA
ELIZABETH L. RUIZ LAWRENCE, MA
JUN 14 DANIEL GEORGE GENCTER PELHAM, NH
KAREN LOUISE CHASSE PELHAM, NH
JUN 14 TODD CHARLES NORWOOD DRACUT, MA
KRISTINE CAROL LARGAY DRACUT, MA
JUN 14 CHRISTCHER MICHAEL GRASSO PELHAM, NH
AMY LAURA SARRIS PELHAM, NH
JUN 14 DARREN NICHOLAS WOOD PELHAM, NH
ELIZABETH JOAN RACCA PELHAM, NH
JUN 20 FREDERICK M. TORRES PELHAM, NH
LAURIE LEE MALVEIRA PELHAM, NH
JUN 20 WILLIAM R. BENNETT III LOWELL, MA
DIANA D. SMITH LOWELL, MA
JUN 21 MATTHEW DUBE PELHAM, NH
STACEY J. KALANTZIS MANCHEELTER, NH
JUN 21 MICHAEL W. GRAVEL METHUEN, MA
LANDRA SUZZANNE LEWIS METHUErF , MA
JUN 21 DANTIEL DAVID GAUTHIER LOWELL, MA
KIM MARIE MULLIGAN LOWELL, MA
JUN 22 IAN JASON VAWTER PELHAM, NH
ANNE-MARIE SOUCY PELHAM, NH
JUN 27 MICHAEL C. O'MALLEY NORWOOL , MA
LISA C. RYAN PELHAM, NH
JUN 27 JAMES EDWARD SPINELLI METHUEF, MA
HEIDI AUKSTOLIS METHUE}, MA
JUN 28 GARRETT ERNEST FERRIS METHUE}M, MA
JILL ELIZABETH GAUNT METHUE}M, MA
JUN 28 MATTHEW JOSEPH KUPKA NEW YOFK, NY
MARTHA ANGELA ROSSI NEW YOFK, NY
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MARRIAGES RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NH
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1997

DATES NIMES RESIDENCE
JUL 03 M7 RK PAUL COQTE PELHAM, NH
S:LLY KATHRYN RAFUSE PELHAM, NH
JUL 03 A} THONY LYNN DARDEN RAEFORD, NC
M]CHELLE AGNES MERCIER PELHAM, NH
JUL 04 EF.IC V. DORMAN PELHAM, NH
KIREN F. NOWAK PELHAM, NH
JUL 04 WIRREN G. HAMLIN PELHAM, NH
LINDA JEAN SAINDON ANDOVER, MA
JUL ¢7 ROBERT Z. MORRISSETTE LOWELL, MA
MZRIA LUIZA DIAS LOWELL, MA
JUL 11 FEANK P. WALKER LAWRENCE, MA
DINISE M. LAHEY LAWRENCE, MA
JUL 12 DINIEL JOSEPH MEARLS JR PELHAM, NH
KF.ISTINA ELIZABETH NIEBEL BEDFORD, NH
JUL 12 R]1 CHARD HUGH RATCLIFFE JR PELHAM, NH
N. CHOLE LEE MILLS HAMPSTEARD, NH
JUL 12 EIIC S. WENSLEY BROCKTON, MA
KI’MBERLY ANN PIEMOCNTE BROCKTON, MA
JUL 12 KENNETH GECRGE DOERR N. CHELMSFORD, Ma
EI.IZABETH ANN MORGAN N. CHELMSFORD, MA
JUL 12 DINIEL JOHN SILVA LOWELL, MA
AMNGELA MARIE JEROME LOWELL, MA
JUL 19 P2.UL MANUEL AREIAS LOWELL, MA
JENNIFER MARIE CRONIER DRACUT, MA
JUL 19 ROBERT ALBEIRO TOBON ZULUAGA LOWELL, MA
EI.IZABETH GONZALEZ LOWELL, MA
JUL 19 M:.RK RICHARD BERARD PELHAM, NH
JENNIFER LEE WATKINS PELHAM, NH
JuL 20 ROBERT FRANCIS MCCARTHY WEBSTER, MA
MI/CHELLE C. LAPLANTE LOWELL, MA
JUL 23 OHCAR TAMAYQ LOWELL, MA
CONCEPCION SIERRA LOWELL, MA
JUL 26 PAUL F., DALEY MAYNARD, MA
BARBARA J. LEDWELL MAYNARD, MA
JUL 26 RIICHARD ALAN SOLAZZI LOWELL, MA
BLENDA LOUISE SILVA LOWELL, MA
AUG 01 JOSEPH HENRY HARNE DRACUT, MA
PAMELA J. BUCKLER PELHAM, NH
AUG 02 CHLASIMIR CZARNIONKA LOWELL, MA
ENL.TZABETH ANN O'NEIL LOWELL, MA
AUG 02 STEVEN M, CHAMBERLAND TYNGSBORO, MA
MELANIE ANN SIMARD LOWELL, MA
AUG 09 CHAD MICHAEL COCK HAVERHILL, MA
EIIKA JUNE RASCHELLA METHUEN, MA
AUG 09 CIARLES EDWARD PICKWELL III PELHAM, NH

HETHER MARIE RASCHICK
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MARRIAGES RECORDED
IN THE TOWN QOF PELHAM, NH
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1957

DATES NAMES RESIDEKCE
AUG 10 MICHAEL JOSEPH KELLY PELHAM, NH
JEANNINE NOELLA MARTONE PELHAM, NH
AUG 15 LANCE RCY CUNNINGHAM LOWELL, MA
MAUREEN SULLIVAN LOWELL, MA
AUG 16 LUIS S. ESPINOZA LOWELL, MA
LUZ MERY TORO AGUDELO LOWELL, MA
AUG 16 JAMES PATRICK MCCONNELL LOWELL, MA
BONNIE ANN PIESLAK PELHAM, NH
AUG 16 JAMES MICHAEL O'BOYLE TYNGSBCRO, MA
KELLY LYNN DALEY CHELMSFORD, MA
AUG 16 SOTIRIOS ROGGOTIS PELHAM, NH
BRICEIDA TORRES PELHAM, NH
AUG 17 JEFFREY PAUL DANDRETA CANTON, MA
DIANE LYNNE RYAN BRCCKT(N, MA
AUG 23 KENNETH WESLEY KIESMAN MANCHES TER, NH
WENDY ANN SURPRENANT PELHAM, NH
AUG 24 PAUL JOSPEH LAFONTAINE PELHAM, NH
SHERRY MARIE HARDY PELHAM, NH
AUG 24 RICHARD J. DICN JR LOWELL, MA
LISA M. MALTESE LOWELL, MA
AUG 30 MICHAEL ROY HAYWARD DRACUT, MA
KAREN MARGARET WALSH TEWKSBLURY, MA
AUG 30 MARC ANDREW KEREPKA PELHAM, NH
KIMBERLY ANN FLETCHER PELHAM, NH
AUG 31 PETER JOSEPH KOSTER JR LONDONDERRY, NH
MAUREEN GAIL MULLEN PELHAM, NH
SEP 05 JOHN FITZGERALD FOLEY SR PELHAM, NH
CORINA ESFINOLA LCWELL, MA
SEP 05 MICHAEL JCSEFPH WAGNER PELHAM, NH
JENNIFER ANN LAVERY PELHAM, NH
SEP 06 DONALD ALBANESE METHUEL, MA
PATRICIA ANNE GILLIS METHUELI, MA
SEP 06 MARK ANTHCNY DUVAL PELHAM, NH
DCNNA J. CONN PELHAM, NH
SEP 06 ANDREW JOSEPH O’DONNELL LOWELL, MA
ANNEMARIE ST.JEAN PELHAM, NH
SEP 12 ROBERT L. MCCULLOUGH PELHAM, NH
EILEEN A. ROBINSON PELHAM NH
SEP 12 PAUL WILLIAM VIGEANT LCWELL,K MA
TAMI L. GOUVEIA LCWELL MA
SEP 13 JOHN J. KATIN WINDHAM, NH
LISA M. DREUSICKE PELHAM NH
SEP 13 DAVID R. PARENT PELHAM NH
LEANNE MARIE DUFOUR PELHAM NH
SEP 13 WILLIAM W. WHITE PELHAM NH
CHRISTINA E. SHEA PELHAM NH
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MARRIAGES RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NH
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1997

JENNIFER ANNE ROMAR
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DATES NAMES RESIDENCE
SEP 13 WILFER HERNANDEZ LOWELL, MA
BESAIDA CRUZ LOWELL, MA
SEP 20 GLENN EDWARD DOW PELHAM, NY
JOHANNA LOUISE TUMMINELLI BILLERICA, MA
SEP 20 FREDERICK KARL NEWEY NASHUA, NY
PAMELA THERESA GOYETTE PELHAM, NH
SEP 20 JHON F. VASQUEZ LOWELL, MA
LINA L. MONSALVE LOWELL, MA
SEP 27 STEVEN C. MILINAZZO DRACUT, MA
DONNA MARIE COOMBS PELHAM, NH
SEP 27 STEPHEN JOHN QUINTILIANI PELHAM, NH
TRACY ST. AMAND DERRY, NH
OCT 04 HEMRY J. LANDRY LOWELL, MA
JUDITH A. PAYELIAN DRACUT, MA
OCT 05 RANDALL JOHN COQOK JR METHUEN, Ma
MARY ELIZABETH CROTEAU PELHAM, NH
OCT 10 DANIEL ROBERT LOVE PELHAM, NH
TRACY LYNN DUFFIELD PELHAM, NH
OCT 10 MICHAEL ROBERT BROWN LOWELL, MA
LAURIE ANN LAMARRE DRACUT, MA
OCT 1z GEORGE ARTHUR HELLIWELL TYNGSBOROUGH, MA
KATHLEEN MARIE LUBIN TYNGSBOROUGH, MA
OCT 14 KENNETH OMER MILLETTE DRACUT, MA
LOBRAINE LEE LAURENT LOWELL, MA
OCT 17 CHRISTOPHER SCOTT CRAIG PELHAM, NH
MAFISA A. PEREIRA LOWELL, MA
OCT 18 JOHN JIMENEZ DERRY, NH
SOEPIEDAD VASQUEZ LOWELL, MA
OCT 18 LEONEL SANTIAGO LOWELL, MA
SANDRA BAILDERA VALDEZ LOWELL, MA
oCT 21 MICHAEL ANTHONY MOORE JR LOWELL, MA
ANDETH VANN LOWELL, MA
OCT 25 LUTS ©O. RODRIQUEZ LOWELL, MA
ESTELA PINTOQ LOWELL, MA
OCT 25 RAJESH KUMAR SHARMA OLD GREENWICH, CT
LISA ANN BELIVEAU OLD GREENWICH, CT
OCT 31 CAFMEN ANTHONY DECENZO SALEM, MA
BONNIE LYN ADDISON SALEM, MA
NOV 02 CHF.ISTOPHER GEORGE PORTER DRACUT, MA
DAWN MARIE PORTER LOWELL, MA
‘NOV 08 PATRICE J. BERGERON PELHAM, NH
JEMNIFER MARIE LINDQUIST HUDSON , NH
NOV 08 MICHAEL LAWTON BEVENS JR LOWELL, MA
NANCY JEBN YEATON LOWELL, MA
NOV 08 DAVID ANTHONY BUSH PELHAM, NH

MANCHESTER, NH



MARRIAGES RECORDED
IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NH
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1997

DATES NAMES RESIDENCE
NOV 08 JOSE H. FAGUNDES LOWELL, MA
MARIA J. CUNHA LOWELL, MA
NOV 08 ROGER N. LARCCHELLE LOWELL, MA
CATHERINE G. FAUVEL FELHAM, NH
NOV 09 JAMES ALEXANDER PFATTERSON FELHAM, NH
LYNNE MARIE MERCIER PELHAM, NH
NOV 14 DANIEL JAMES CHURCH PELHAM, NH
. PRISCILLA ELIZABETH PIKE PELHAM, NH
NOV 15 DENNIS J. ONEIL TEWKSBIRY, MA
STEPHANIE LEE PAQUETTE LOWELL, MA
NOV 21 JOHN BRIAN GROELE NO CHELMSFORD, MA
LAURA M. MACARTHUR NO CHELMSFORD, MA
NCV 22 JONATHAN D.STARKEY NASHUA, NH
MICHELLE R. BERARD LOWELL, MA
DEC 06 BRIAN ALBERT GENDRON LOWELL, MA
. MARILYN MARIE STELLY LOWELL, MA
DEC 07 ARTHUR E. ROBINSON DRACUT, MA
NANCY A. CARR FELHAM, NH
DEC 11 MANUEL COLON LAWRENCE, MA
RUTH GAMON LAWRENCE, MA
DEC 13 THOMAS M. MALVAROSA PELHAM, NH
SANDRA ALLAIRE PELHAM, NH
DEC 15 ADRIANO NUNEZ LAWRENCE, MA
ELYTHET RODRIGUEZ LAWRENCE, MA
DEC 20 STEPHEN R. NELSON DERRY, NH
LORI A. CASTELHANC PELHAM, NH
DEC 22 ECIO M. MASCARENHAS LOWELL, MA
ANGELINA CAMBOIM TENORIO PLACIDO LOWELL, MA
DEC 25 JOSE FABIAN LAWRENCE, MA
JULIA A. VALDEZ LAWREKCE, MA
DEC 27 MIGUEL ANGEL CANIZALEZ JR FELHAN, NH
TIA LEE RAMSEY FELHAN, NH
DEC 28 RICHARD BROCK DAGGETT FELHAVM, NH
MELANIE ANN REGAN FELHAM, NH
DEC 31 MICHAEL JOSPEH TRZCIENSKI LOWELL, MA
KAREN BNN TRZCIENSKI LOWELL, MA
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DEATHS RECORDED IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NH
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,1997

DATE NAME OF DECEASED AGE PLACE OF DEATH
FEB 05 MICHaAEL J, FOLEY 39 MANCHESTER, NH
MAR 16 AUSTIN T. BURNS 79 FELHAM, NH
MAR 16 BERNARD E. FLANDERS 78 PELHAM, NH
APR 11 EDWARI} RONALD SMITH 60 DERRY, NH
MAY 25 LISA J. MCCOY 31 PELHAM, NH
JUN 06 THCMAS E. WITTS SR 43 PELHAM, NH
JUN 22 FLORENCE BRITT 87 DERRY, NH
JUL 11 HELEN E. REILLY 83 PELHAM, NH
JUL 18 MARTIM F, O'DONNELL 41 PELHAM, NH
JUL 21 MARGAPET ARLENE GCULET 79 PELHAM, NH
AUG 02 WARREMN THOMAS CRAWFORD 62 PELHAM, NH
AUG 11 PATRICIA MADDEN 46 PELHAM, NH
AUG 12 FRANCIS POWERS a5 PELHAM, NH
AUG 13 MARK &. CHAGNON 44 DERRY, NH
AUG 15 AUDREY F. ©O'HARE 88 PELHAM, NH
AUG 16 RONALD E. PARK 50 DERRY, NH
AUG 19 GEORGE: H. TESSIER 75 PELHAM, NH
AUG 20 PRISCILLA KILBRIDE 67 PELHAM, NH
AUG 31 EMILE THEODCRE THIBAULT 91 PELHAM, NH
SEP 15 WILLAFD F. SCOTT 75 PELHAM, NH
SEP 22 STASIZ BATTLES 85 NASHUA, NH
OCT 06 ALINE A. BRUNELLE 75 PELHAM, NH
OCT 11 JEAN M. BOISSONNEAULT 43 PELHAM, NH
OCT 14 JAMES A. CRAWFORD 27 PELHAM, NH
CCT 14 JUNE LOUISE PROCTCR 68 PELHAM, NH
OCT 15 CATHERINE ANN POWERS 81 PELHAM, NH
CCT 23 ARNCLLDI H. BENTLEY SR 69 PELHAM, NH
DEC 28 WALTEF. T. MATTHEWS 85 PELHAM, NH
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BURIALS IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 19%%7

DATE NAME OF DECEASED AGE PLACE OF DEATH
DEC 30 1996 FELICIA M. KUBACKI 83 BILLERICA, Ma
JAN 03 EDWARD BRZOZOWSKI 66 BOSTON, MA
JAN 04 THEODORE J. NOVAK 8s LOWELL, MA
JAN 06 GLENN W. DUTTCN 53 LOWELL, Ma
JAN 07 ROSWELL DARLING FOX 72 HOLDEN, Ma
JAN 10 RYAN EMMANUEL DOMINQUEZ NASHUA, NH
JAN 14 CHARLES W. THURLOW B0 WESTFORD, MA
JAN 15 MARY SOPHIE DZIEGIEL 84 LOWELL, MA
JBEN 16 LEWIS J. PARECE LOWELL, MA
JEN 26 PHILIP J. MCLAIN 78 LOWELL, Ma
FEB 01 MARY E. WHOLEY 70 PHILADELPHIA,PA
FEB 05 EVELYN P. BUTLER g8 ERIE, PA

FEB 08 MICHAEL J. FOLEY 39 MANCHESTER, NH
FEB 08 NORMA B. MCDONALD 79 LAWRENCE, MA
FEB 24 WILLIAM ROBERT WADE 81 BEVERLY, Ma
FEB 25 ELLEN M. ANDREWS 66 LOWELL, MA
MAR 17 LYLE E. RANSOM 79 LOWELL, MA
MAR 19 AUSTIN T. BURNS 79 PELHAM, NH
MAR 20 BERNARD E. FLANDERS 78 PELHAM, NH
MAR 27 GERALD F. GORMLEY 58 LOWELL, MA
MAR 28 ARTHUR F. SPEAR 87 NASHUA, NH
APR 07 LOUIS C. HAAS JR 49 LOWELL, MA
APR (7 ARTHUR J. SKREKAS 76 LOWELL, Ma
APR 08 JOSEPH B. ARSENAULT 73 LOWELL, Ma
APR 08 HARRY NYMAN 75 BOSTON, Ma
APR 16 JOHN CASTELHANO 62 CONCORD, NH
APR 19 RICHARD GREENWOOD 36 NORTHGLENN, CO
MAY 01 ALICE W. KIMBALL 95 ACTON, MA
MAY 16 WALTER J. SOQCZAUA 79 LOWELL, Ma
MAY 17 ALICE CARON 73 BOSTON, MA
MAY 17 OMER. A. CARON 90 LOWELL, MA
MAY 24 EDWARD J. COUTU 54 BOSTON, MA
MAY 28 LISA J. MCCOY 31 PELHAM, NH
JUN 16 WANDA L. MACPHERSON

JUN 17 GRACE C. O'HEBRN CITRUS, FL
JUN 18 JAMES A. ROWNTREE 63 NASHUA, NH
JUN 21 ARTHUR Y. AMOS 76 LOWELL, MA
JUN 25 LOUIS P. MILINAZZO 60 LOWELL, MA
JUL 24 MARGARET ARLENE GOULET 79 PELHAM, NH
RUG 01 FRANK A. MARTIN 71 LOWELL, MA
AUG 04 ANN M. MCCARTHY 53 LOWELL, MA
AUG 05 WARREN THOMAS CRAWFORD 61 PELHAM, NH
AUG 08 BELLA FADDEN 87 LOWELL, MA
AUG 18 MARK S. CHAGNON 44 DERRY, NH
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BURIALS IN THE TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,

DATE NAME OF DECEASED AGE PLACE OF DEATH
AUG 22 GECRGE H. TESSIER 75 PELHAM, NH

AUG 23 PRISCILLA KILBRIDE 67 PELHAM, NH

AUG 29 DOROTHY FRANCES ZIMMER 85 METHUEN, MA
SEP 03 JEANNETTE LILLIAN BELANGER 86 MILFCRD, NH
SEP 06 MICHAEL G. LACHUT 59 DRACUT, MA

SEP 14 GERDA DREUSICKE 85 LOWELL, Ma

SEP 20 MARY RITA CLARK 81 SANTA MONICA,CA
SEP 27 AGNES R. HARPER 89 LOWELL, MA

SEP 286 STASIA BATTLES 85 NASHUA, NH

OCT 06 FLORENCE L. TILLOTSON 87 SAUGUS, MA

OCT 09 ALINE A. BRUNELLE 75 PELHAM, NH

OCT 11 RALPH A. HARMON 84 LOWELL, MA

OCT 15 JEAN M. BOISSONNEAULT 43 PELHAM, NH

OCT 1e EDWARD J. BRIERE JR 44 BOSTCN, MA

QCT 17 GECRGE J. VENNE &8 LOWELL, MA

OCT 20 MARY K. KARMAN 76 CHELMSFORD, MA
OCT 21 JAMES A. CRAWFORD 27 PELHAM, NH

OCT 23 WALTER L. TWAROG S0 WESTFORD, MA
OCT 231 YIU TSUI 85 LOWELL, MA

NOvV 01 LUCILLE A. MESSERY 73 NASHUA, NH

NOV 03 LISA A. RUSSELL 35 DRACUT, MA

NOV 05 AGNES FLORENCE CIANCA 79 DERRY, NH

NOV 13 ARISTOTLE J. TAVOQULARIS 69 METHUEN, MA
NCV 17 DANA R. DESMARATS 44 BURLINGTON, MA
DEC 01 CAROL STANLEY KAPALA 84 LOWELL, MA

DEC 16 M. DIANE LAMOUREUX 57 LAWRENCE, MA
DEC 18 MARY KOCHANEK 98 AYER, MA

DEC 20 ARNCLD V. BALCOM BROOKSVILLE, FL
DEC 23 MARTION H. YONGE 98 HAVERHILL, MA
DEC 27 WALTER WITALIS 30 GOFFSTOWN, NH
DEC 29 FRANCIS M. FERREIRA SR 60 DERRY, NH



We, the undersigned Selectmen of the Town of Pelham, do hereby
certify that on the 23th day of February 1998, we did post attested
copies of the 1997 Annual Town Meeting Warrant at the Pelham Town
Hall on Main Street and at the Town Hall Annex at 0ld Bridge Street
North and at the Pelham Memorial Schocl on Marsh Road of said Town,
the latter being the place of the Town Meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

William Ji/ McDevitt, Chairman

O

Richard W. Derby, Vice Chajrman

. \%JJ, WW%,

stanley J. (_D/r;aperl\)Selectman
I

Jaﬁs A. Hardy, Sele?:man

s
P S 7

-y A

Gregory FArris; Selectman

My Commission Expiras
January 28, 2003

- 180 -



TOWN OF PELHAM

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

WARRANT
1998 TOWN MEETING

To the inhabitants of the Town of Pelham, in the county of
Hillsborough and the State of New Hampshire, gualified tec vote in
Town affairs:

You are hereby notified that the annual
meeting of the Town of Pelham will be held at
the Memorial School on Marsh Reoad in said
Pelham cn Tuesday, March 10, 1998 at 10:00 in
the forencon feor the choice of town officers
elected by official ballot and other action

- reguired to be 1inserted on said official
ballot. The polls for the election of town
officers and other action required to be
inserted on said ballot will open on said date
at 10:00 in the forenoon and will close not
earlier than 8:00 in the evening.

You are hereby neotified that the second
session of the annual meeting of the Town of
Pelham will be held at the Memcorial School on
Marsh Road in said Pelham on Saturday, March
14, 1998 at 9:00 in the morning to act on the
matters not to be acted upon by official
kallot.
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You are hereby notified to chose all necessary town officials
for the ensuing year. (BY BALLOT)

OFFICIAL BALLOT REFERENDUM QUESTICNS

QUESTION # 1

ED A T TQ THE PE] ZON| ORDINANC,

BURPOSE; To restrict the allowance of new or used (retail) auto deaierships to portions of the
Business Districts No. 3 and 4, and Business Districts No. 1 and 2 from the most southernly
intersection of Puipit Rock Road and Route 38 to the intersections of Atwood Road and Old Bridge
Street North, and to further restrict these new or used (retail) auto dealerships so that they may
not be [ocated closer than two-thousand (2,000) linear feet of frontage between or adjacent to any
other new or used car dealership in the above cited permitted districts.

PROPOSAL: To see if the Town will vote to add Section 307-19-D to the Peiham Zoning
Ordinance so as to read as follows:

“D. Additional Requirements for New or Used (Retail) Auto Dealerships. New or used

(retail) car dealerships shall be permitted in Business Districts No. 2 and 4, and Business Districts
No. 1 and 2 from the most southernly intersection of Pulpit Rock Road and Route 38 to the
intersections of Atwood Road and Old Bridge Street North (intersections delineated on Town
Zoning Map). No new or used (retail) car deaiership in the above cited permitted districts may be
located closer than two-thousand (2,000) linear feet of frontage between or adjacent to any other
new or used car dealership. For the purposes of this sub-section, “new or used (retail) auto
dealership™” means that portion of a [ot or structure devoted in whole or part to:

1. The sale of two {2) or more new or used automobiles;

2. The display of twa {2) or more new or used automobiles for the purpose of sale;

3. All new or used {retail) dealerships will be in conformance with all applicable local and
state regulations.

And;

To see if the Town wiil vote to revise Section 307-18, Table 2, of the Pelham Zoning Ordinance so
as to read as follows:

Tahie 2
Uses R B 1 Ru _RCA
Establishments selling new boats,
trailers, aircraft, & related products P P P
Establishments se!ling new or used (retail) automobiles P

P* = Permitted Use as defined and delineated in Section 307-19D, and reflected in the Town Zoning
Map.

Recommended by Planning Board 15 -



QUESTION # 2

OSED AMEND O THE PELHAM ZONING ORDI

PURPQSE: To change the definition of wetland to conform with the state and
federal definition.

PROPOSAL; To see if the Town will vote to replace Section 307-6-23. so as
to read as follows:

“23. Wetland: A wetland is an area that is inundated or saturated by
surface or ground water at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and
that under normal conditions, does support a prevalence of vegetation typically
adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include, but are
not limited to, swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas. Wetlands shall be
delineated by either a certified soil scientist or a professional wetland scientist
according to the Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual, 1987, and the
Regional Field Indicators for Identifying Hydric Soils in New England, 1995.”

Recommended by Planning Board

QUESTION # 3

Purpose:

In order to promote land use and development in appropriate areas of Pelham that will
help to lower the residential tax rate, we the undersigned registered voters (signatures
on onginal citizen's petition in Planning Dept.) of the Town of Pelham propose changes
be made to the Pelham Zoning Qrdinance that will provide that any lot with frontage on
state maintained highways that are specifically described herein fo be also zoned for

business use.

This praposal is in harmony with the existing Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Pelham
since the present zoning article states that any use permitted in an area zoned
residential is also permitted in a business zoned area.
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Therefore in accordance with the provisions of New Hampshire Revised Statue
Annctated 675:4 (Method of Enactment by Petition), we propose the following areas be
added te the Official Zoning Map to establish and provide opportunities for development
of general retail and wholesale uses, services, office uses and customary accessory
uses and structures in a manner compatible with the rural/residential character of the
town as defined in 307-17 of the Pelham Zening Ordinance Section B.

r sal:

To see if the Town will vote to amend the Official Zoning Map of the Town of Pelham so
as to extend the present district boundary (Business District No. 1 and Business District
No. 2) on Route 38, for ali lots with frontage on Route 38, to the Pelham/Salem Town
line.

Recommended by Planning Board

QUESTION # 4

Ose:

ARTICLE 307-3
Non-Conforming Uses

Proposal:

Ta see if the Town will vote to replace section 307-8 of the Pelham Zoning Ordinance;,
Non-conforming Uses in its entirety; and to add Section 307-6-27, definition of a non-

confarming use.
A. A Non-cenforming Use may continue in its present use except as provided herein:

1. No extension of a Non-conforming Use will be allowed when the use is
located on a lot that cannot meet the lot requirements of a lot in a district

permitting the use.
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2. Provided that the requirements of 307-8-A-1 are met, the extension of a Non-
conforming use wiil be allowed only after the issuance of a special exception
by the Board of Adjustment (B.O.A.). The B.O.A. shall determine that the
following conditions relevant to the case are met:

A. The proposed extension will not change the nature or purpose of the

original use
B. The proposed extension will not have a different effect on the district in

which it is located
C. Where a change to the exterior of the structure is to occur, the exterior
appearance of the proposed extension shall be compatible with the

district

B. A Nen-conforming Lot may continue in its present form except as provided herein:

1. No permit to build, erect, extend, enlarge or alteration of any structure which is
located on a Non-conforming Lot of Record shall be issued except when it is
shown that all dimensional set back requirements for the proposed structure can
be met. When the propose structure, extension, enlargement or alteration shalt
increase the amount of waste water to be discharged, it shall be shown by the
applicant that there is subsuriace waste water disposal system that has been
approved by the New Hampshire Water Supply and Poilution Control
Commission (N.HW.S.P.C.C.)}, or that a system adequate for the proposed
change shalil be installed as a condition of issuing a permit. This section shall not
apply to any change being sought that will have no effect on the amount of waste
water that is discharged or will not occupy any area of land that may be necessary
for the construction of a waste water disposal system

C. A Non-conforming Use may not be re-established after an intentional abandonment

of the use for a period of 18 months, except to a conforming use.

Definitions: (to be added at 307-6)

27. Non-conforming Use;
A Non-conforming Use is a use in legal existence a the time that a zoning ordinance is
adopted, that restricts or prohibits that use in the district in which it is located, or a use

which has been legally established what would otherwise not be allowed in the district
in which it is located.

Recommended by Planning Board
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REFERENDUM QUESTION #5

Senate Bill 2 to read as follows:
"Shall the Town adopt the provision of RSA 40:13 to allow official
ballot voting on all issues before the Town Meeting. (BY PETITION)

DELIBERATIVE SESSION

STANDARD ARTICLE

ARTICLE 6 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board
of Selectmen to accept on behalf of the town, gifts, legacies and
devises made to the town in trust for any public purpose, as
permitted by RSA 31:19. {(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)

ARTICLE 7 To hear the reports of auditors, agents and other
committees heretofore chosen and pass any votes relating thereto.
(RECOMMENDED RBY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)

ARTICLE 8 To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen and
Town Treasurer to borrow in anticipation of taxes, such sums as may
be necessary to meet the obligatery expenses to the town as
provided for in RSA 33:7 (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)

ARTICLE 9 To see if the Town will vote to accept the following
roads as Town roads:

Brown Avenue

Angus Way

Andrew Lane

Andrea Lane
, (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)
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ARTICLE 10

town operations.

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $3,608,428,.13 (Three Million Six Hundred Eight Thousand
Four Hundred Twenty Eight Dollars and Thirteen Cents) for general

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS $3,549,094.00)

SELECTMEN BUDGET COMMITTEE
SERIES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION RECOMMENDATION
100/6000 Town Officers $ 42,382.86 $ 42,382.00
101/6010 Selectmen 168,006.86 15%,574.00
102/6020 Town Clerk 42,775.00 42,775.00
103/6030 Tax Collector 44,633.00 44,633.00
104/6040 Treasurer 3,923.00 3,923.00
105/6050 Budget Committee 2,150.93 2,151.00
106/6540 Planning Department 102,360.63 97,562.00
107/6380 Trust Accounts 35.00 35.00
108/8200 Conservation Comm. 2,572.50 2,473.00
110/6070 Elections 3,300.00 4,300.00
112/6090 Town Buildings 80,995.00 81,882.00
11376100 Appraisal 38,175.64 36,960.00
114/6200 Retirement 115,337.00 115,337.00
120/6410 Technical Staff 100.00 1.00
121/6420 Computer 45,328.00 43,793,00
122/6600 Cable TV 29,8B09.13 29,655.00
200/6510 Police Department 942,608.60 960,414.00
202/6520 Fires/Ambulance 377,09%9.94 376,39%.00
204/6150 Board of Adjustment 2,300.00 1,809.00
205/6160 FPlanning Board 13,955.00 B,214%9.00
206/6250 Insurance 18¢,211.00 192 ,500.00
207/6180 Legal 70,000.00 60,000.00
208/6530 Emergency Management 1,088.00 1,000.00
209/6550 Regional Planning 6,787.00 6,787.00
300/7510 Health (Officer) 2,661.83 2,662.00
302/7520 Health Services 38,466.00 38,066.00
304/7220 Incinerator 239,591.66 230,142.00
400/7110 Summer 178,377.00 178,377.00
40177120 Winter 288,630.78 269,318.00
404/7130 Street Lighting 24,151.00 24,151.00
406,/7140 Bridges 500.00 500.00
500/8010 Library 134,102.00 124,978.00
600/7810 Human Services 30,000.00 30,000.00
700/8110 Memorial Day 1,000.00 1,000.00
701/8120 Soldiers’ Aid 25.00 25.00
800/8010 Parks & Recreation 118,994.00 114,724.00
803/8300 Senior Citizens 35,504 .58 34,855.00
200/6080 Cemetery 43,484 .85 42,285.00
1000/845% Int. Temp Loans 5,000.00 5,000.00
1001/8454 Int. Notes 38,006.00 33,516.00
1002/8453 Princ. Notes 105,000.00 105,000.00

Total: $3,608,428.13
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ARTICLE 11 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of up to $50,000.00 (Fifty Thousand Dcllars) to be added to
the Municipal Building Capital Reserve Fund and authorize transfer
of the December 31, 1997 Fund Balance in that amount for said
purpese. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) {NOT RECOMMENDED BY
THE BUDGET CCMMITTEE) (SCHEDULED BY THE CIP)

ARTICLE 12 Te see 1f the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $232,000.00 (Two Hundred Thirty Two Thousand Dellars) to
be placed in the Town Health Insurance Fund established at the 1995
Town Meeting, for the purpose of paying the annual health premiums
and related health insurance administrative expenses, and also
including deductible and co-insurance amocunts for eligible town
employees. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY
THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 13 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $186,294.75 (One Hundred Eighty Six Thousand Twe Hundred
Ninety Four Dollars Seventy Five Cents) to be offset by the State
Highway Grant for highway construction. (NO PORTICN OF SAID AMOUNT
SHALL BE RAISED BY LOCAL TAXES) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 14 To see if the Town of Pelham will vote to approve the
cost items included in the collective bargaining agreement reached
between the Town of Pelham and the AFSCME Local #3657 Police Union
which calls for the following increases in salaries and benefits
per a two year agreement:

Year Increase
April 1, 1997 to March 31, 1998 g 0.00
April 1, 1998 to March 31, 1999 $ 49,751.00

and further tec raise and appropriate the sum of $34,291.00 (Thirty
Four Thousand Two Hundred Ninety One Dollars) for said contract
term such sum attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits
over those of the appropriation at current staffing levels paid in
the prior fiscal year. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE}

ARTICLE 15 shall the Town, 1f Article 15 is defeated, authorize
the governing body to call one Special (Town) Meeting at it’s
option, per RSA 31:5,III, to address cost items only, of a Police
Contract. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BCOARD OF SELECTMEN)
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ARTICLE 16 To see if the Town of Pelham will vote to approve the
cost items included in the collective bargaining agreement reached
between the Town of Pelham and the AFSCME Local #1801 Support Staff
Union which calls for the following increases in salaries and
benefits per a twoc year agreement:

Year Increase
April 1, 1997 to March 31, 1998 S 0.00
April 1, 1958 to march 31, 1999 $42,534.00

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $29,481.25 (Twenty
.Nine Thousand Four Hundred Eighty One Dollars and Twenty Five
Cents) for said contract term. Such sum attributable to the
increase in salaries and benefits over those of the appropriation
at current staffing levels paid in the prior fiscal year.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)} (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET
COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 17 8hall the Town, if Article 17 is defeated authorize
the governing body to call one Special Town Meeting at it‘’s option,
per RSA 31:5,III, to address cost items only of a Support Staff
Contract. (RECCMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)

ARTICLE 18 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $57,772.00 (Fifty Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy
Two Dollars) for the purchase of two (2) brand new Ford Crown
Victoria Police Interceptor patrol vehicles to include the cost of
lettering, consoles, prisoner cages, siren, blue 1lights and
installation. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (ONE CRUISER
AT $26,726.00 RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) (2 (TWO)
CRUISERS SCHEDULED BY THE CIP)

ARTICLE 19 To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen to
enter into an agreement to lease a pick-up truck for the Police
Department/Animal Contrel Unit for the total sum of $10,455.00 (Ten
Thousand Fecur Hundred Fifty Five Dollars) over a 30 month pericd,
and to raise and appropriate the sum of $3,107.00(Three Thousand
One Hundred Seven Dollars for the remainder of the 1998 fiscal
year. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE) (SCHEDULED BY THE CIP)

ARTICLE 20 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $67,882.71 (Sixty Seven Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty
Two Dollars and Seventy One Cents) to fund salaries and benefits
for two police officers currently being funded by a COPS FAST
grant. In addition, to see if the Town will accept the Federal
Grant meonies associated with the above stated amount of $50,912.03,
{Fifty Thousand Nine Hundred Twelve Docllars and Three Cents}), the
remaining $16,970.00 (Sixteen Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Dollars
and Sixty Eight Cents) will be raised by taxation. (RECOMMENDED BY
THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)
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ARTICLE 21 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $35,000.00 (Thirty Five Thousand Dollars) for the
purpose of funding salaries for special detail assignments for the
Pelham Police Department personnel. These funds are reimbursable
to the Town and have no effect on taxes. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMEN) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 22 To see if. the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate $31,500.00 (Thirty One Thousand Five Hundred Dcllars)
for the purpose of purchasing a 6000 galleon above ground fuel tank
for #2 fuel o0il storage, to include tank, pad, fill limiters,
electrical, crane, plumbing and freight and to remove two twenty
year old #2 fuel storage tanks to include excavation, open and
clean both tanks, engineer or geclogist and removal of both tanks.
This will be a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7 and will not lapse
until the project is complete or in twe years, whichever is
less. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE) (SCHEDULED BY THE CIP)

ARTICLE 23 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
an eoperating transfer to the existing Ambulance Capital Reserve
Fund from surplus, the sum of $15,000.00 {Fifteen Thousand Docllars)
and authorize the use/transfer of the December 31, 1997 fund
balance for this purpose. {RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) (SCHEDULED BY THE
CIP)

ARTICLE 24 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $25,000.00 (Twenty Five Thousand Dollars) towards the
Compensated Absence Fund for the purpese of disbursing accrued
earned time to terminating employees. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 25 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $15,000.00 (Fifteen Thousand Decllars) to be paid to
Consumers New Hampshire Water Company for hydrant fees.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET
COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 26 To see 1if the Town will wvote to raise and
appropriate to the Emergency Way Maintenance Fund established at
the 1995 Town Meeting the sum of $2,000.00 (Two Thousand Dollars)
for the maintenance of Emergency Ways established by the Board of
Selectmen as provided by RSA 231:59-~a. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 27 To see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $20,000.00 (Twenty Thousand Dollars) for a
new 1998 brush chipper to be used by the Highway, Incineratecr and
Cemetery Departments. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)
(RECOMMENDED" BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) (SCHEDULED BY THE CIP)
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ARTICLE 28 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $2,008.00 (Two Thousand Eight Dollars) from surplus for
the purpsce of adding funds to the Pelham Veterans Memorial Park
Trust Fund. This amount is equivalent to the amount of income
generated from beach sticker fees. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)

ARTICLE 29 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $6,320 (Six Thousand Three Hundred and Twenty Dollars)
for the restoration and construction of 2 +/- miles of nature trail
at Elmer G. Raymond Memorial Park. This amount to be 100%
reimbursed by the National Recreation Trails Fund Grant Program.
This will be a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7 and will not lapse
until the project is complete or in three years, whichever is less.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET
COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 30 To see 1if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $13,000.00 {(Thirteen Thousand Decllars) for
the purpose ¢f funding professional services of the Nashua Regional
Planning Commission and other related administrative funds reguired
to complete the necessary research and final plan to establish an
Impact Fee Ordinance. Such future Impact Fee Ordinance, if
adopted, would follow the provisions as cutlined in RSA 674:21.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET
COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 31 To see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $8,971.00 (Eight Theousand Nine Hundred
Seventy One Dcllars) which represents the total of salaries and
benefits from April 1, 1998 to December 31, 1998, to fund the
creation of the position of Code and Zoning Enforcement Officer.
This positiecn will be for the purpose of field inspection duties
and enforcement issues. Said Officer shall report to and be
overseen by the Planning Director. Administrative duties and
prosecution of wviolaters shall remain the responsibility of the
Planning Director and said officer. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN) (RECCMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 32 To see 1f the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $29,120.00 (Twenty Nine Thousand One Hundred
Twenty Dollars) for the purpcse of employing two people in the
full-time permanent position of Library Assistant I at the Pelham
Public Library. These positicns are being sought in order to
expedite clerical werk for the library automaticn project provide
patren services during library open hours and assist in maintaining
the order and development of the collecticn. ({RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)
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ARTICLE 33 To see 1if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $2,000.00 (Two Thousand Deollars) to be paid
to the Schoeol District to partially pay for the cocperative Town
wide census which will include questions pertinent to both the Town
and School to plan for future projects. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMEN) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 34 To see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $13,000.00 (Thirteen Thousand Dollars) for
the purchase of Pelham Forestry Lands and to authorize the
withdrawal of this amount from the Pelham Forestry Maintenance Fund
established for this purpose pursuant to RSA 31:113 to acquire land
known as Map and Lot 007-007 which includes approximately 9.75
acres adjacent to the Arthur B. Peabody Town Forest and map and lot
007-006 of approximately 7 acres and offered by the current
landowners. This will be a non-lapsing acceount per RSA 32:3,VI and
will not lapse for three years. (NO PORTION OF SAID AMOUNT SHALL
BE RAISED BY LOCAL TAXES) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 35 To see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $1,000.00 (One Thousand Dollars} for Pelham
Forestry and to authorize the withdrawal of this amount from the
Pelham Forest Maintenance Fund established for this purpose
pursuant to RSA 31:113 to continue the Multiple Use Forest
Management & Education Program for all of Pelham’s forests and as
first undertaken under article 33 voted at the 1992 Town Meeting.
This will be a non=lapsing account per RSA 32:3,VI and will not
lapse for three years. (NO PORTION OF SAID AMOUNT SHALL BE RAISED
BY LOCAL TAXES) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED
BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICIE 36 Tc see 1f the Tewn will wvote te raise and
appropriate the”™ sum of $3,500.00 (Three Thousand Five Hundred
Dollars) to support the Pelham 250th Spirit Group to put on a 1998
Community Fourth of July Celebration. Balance of funds needed to
be raised by other community fundraising. (BY PETITION} (RECOMMENDED
BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 37 To see if the Town will vote to require all elected
and appecinted officials to wear microphones at any; public meeting
when available as defined in RSA 91-A:1-a (Definition of Public
Proceedings for the purpose of broadcasting and taping clear
quality audio. Clear quality audic being necessary for both the
keeping of official minutes of said public meetings and the
exercise of the right of any person to be permitted to use
recording equipment in accordance with RSA 91-A:2 (Meetings Open to
Public). The recording of the above mentioned meetings by the
local public access cable television netweork to be considered an
exercise of the right of that network to properly record said
meetings in accordance with RSA 91-A:2 and the wearing of
microphones being necessary for the clear quality audiec to be
assured to the subscribers of sald network. (BY PETITION)
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)
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ARTICLE 38 To see if the Town will vote to change the purpose of
the existing Municipal Building capital Reserve Fund to include
renovation or equipping or new construction or any similar capital
improvement to any Town municipal building (excluding School
District property) and not limited to the site known as the Mill‘s
Property, Map 1 - Let 237. This article requires a 2/3 majority
vote of the veoters present per RSA 35:16. (2/3 MAJORITY VOTE
REQUIRED) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY
THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 39 To see if the Town will vote to change the purpose of
the capital Reserve Fund Landfill Closure Fund to include purchase
and installation or renevation of Incinerator furnace equipment and
systems and not be limited to Closure of the ash landfill. This
article requires a 2/3 majority vote of the voters present per RSA
35:16. (2/3 MAJCORITY VOTE REQUIRED) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)} . (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 40 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $250,000.00 (Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dellars) for the
purpose of purchasing, installation and site work for a used 36 ton
per day ipcinerator Model #36TO to be located at the site of the
present incinerator facility building and to remove the two 24 year
old incinerators now on the gite at the Facility, said amount to be
offset by withdrawal <f $100,000.00 (One Hundred Thousand Dollars)
from the Capital Reserve Fund Landfill Closure Fund and $150,000.00
(One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars) to be withdrawn from the Town
Fund Balance. And to also allow the Selectmen, in the event of
failure of said incinerator tc meet Federal and State regulationg
or an unfavorable independent engineering report, to do a partial
rebuild of the present incinerators already at the incinerator site
to include steel and refractory rebuild on the furnace, secondary
and stack. The Selectmen shall hire an independent engineer or
consultant with expertise in municipal solid waste, incinerators,
and New Hampshire municipal solid waste regulations, who is to
present a report at a public hearing. This is to eccur before any
funds are spent for purchase or installation. This will be a non-
lapsing account per RSA 32:7, and will not lapse until the project
is completed or in two years, whichever is less. (RECOMMENDED BY
THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)
(SCHEDULED BY THE CIP}

ARTICLE 41 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $15,000.00 {Fifteen Thousand Dollars) for the purpose of
funding a professional feasibility study to address the future
needs of the Town relative to Municipal Solid Waste Disposal
options to include total recycling and transfer and incineration
upgrade and also to recommend a process for clesing the ash
landfill located at the facility. This will be a non-lapsing
account per RSA 32:7, and will not lapse until the project is
completed or in two years, whichever is less. (RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY BUDGET COMMITTEE)
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ARTICLE 42 To see if the Town will vote to establish a Capital
Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA 35:1 for the purpose of
constructing 1821 feet of sidewalk between Memorial Schoel and
Pelham High School on the east side of Marsh Reoad to include
engineering, drainage and culvert work, curbs and complete hot top
surfacing of sidewalk and tc raise and appropriate the sum of
$45,000.00 (Forty Five Thousand Dollars) teo be placed in this fund
as the first porticn of a three year proposal. (RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 43 A) To see if the Town will vote to have published any
and all future expenditures which will have an impact on the tax
rate for one year or less, and tc have that tax impact figure as
well as the difference between it and the previous year tax impact
of the same item (if applicable) published, along with the other
legal notices for that voting period, including the Town Report,
prior to any voting on that expenditure.

B) To see if the Town will vote to have published
any: and all future expenditures which will have an impact on the
tax rate for more than one year, and toc have the tax impact
calculated out for a minimum of three years {if applicable) and
those figures along with any other information pertaining to
financing shall be published along with any other legal notices,
including the Town Report, pertaining to that voting period, prior
to any vote expenditure. (BY PETITION) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMEN)

ARTICLE 44 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of $1,560.00 (One Thousand Five Hundred Sixty Deollars) for
salaries and benefits and for office supgplies for clerical support
to assist and coordinate the Conservation Commission activities.
(BY PETITION) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY
THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 45 To see if the Town will vote to create a capital
reserve fund to be known as the Vital Open Spaces Capital Reserve
Fund in accordance with RSA 36-A:5, and te fund said capital
Reserve Fund with 75% of revenues collected annually pursuant to
RSA 79-2 {Land Use Change Tax) not to exceed $50,000.00 annually.
The purpose of this Vital Open Spaces Capital Reserve Fund is to
conserve vital open spaces for the preservation, through purchases
or other means, of wetlands and ground water protection, wildlife
corridors, open space, rare and endangered species or related
purpose. All such land purchased through this fund must first be
approved for said purpose by the Planning Board and the
Conservaticn Commission, after which the Conservation Commission
and the Board of Selectmen have held public hearings on the
purchase and further to authorize the Selectmen as agents of the
fund. (BY PETITION) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)

(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)
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ARTICLE 46 To see Aif the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $400,000.00 {Four Hundred Thousand Dollars),
for the construction of a stand-alone police station, to provide
for the Town of Pelham’s urgent space needs, to include architect,
engineering and other professional consulting fees, along with the
necessary communication and furnishings for the Police Department,
on Town-owned land known as the Mills property (1990 tax map 7, lot
237), and to authorize the withdrawal of up to $400,000 (Four
Hundred Thousand Dollars) from funds now in the Municipal Building
Capital Reserve Fund created for that purpose. This will be a non-
lapsing account per RSA 32:7, and will not lapse until the project
is completed or in tweo years, whichever is less. (BY PETITION) (NOT
RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 47 To see if the Town will vote to adopt the following
animal waste ordinance:

A. An owner or person having custody of any dog(s), with the
exception of Town owned animals, shall not permit said dog(s) to
defecate on any public property including public streets, beaches,
alleys, sidewalks, parks or any other public ground within the Town
unless defecation is removed immediately.

B. Any person who violates the provisions of this section
shall be fined not less than $10.00 and not more than $25.00 for
each viglation.

C. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect as of the
date of its passage. (BY PETITION) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD BY
SELECTMEN)

ARTICLE 48 To see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $2,700.00 (Two Thousand Seven Hundred
Dollars) for the purpose of installing a sprinkler system on the
athletic field at Elmer G. Raymond Memorial Park. {BY PETITION}
{RECCMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE)

ARTICLE 49 To see if the Town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of $500,000.00 (Five Hundred Thousand Dollars),
for the construction of a stand-alone police station to provide for
the Town of Pelham’s urgent space needs, to include architect,
engineering and other professional consulting fees, along with the
necessary communication and furnishings for the Police Department,
on Town-owned land known as the Mills property (19%0 tax map 7, lot
237), and to authorize the withdrawal of up to $500,000.00 (Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars) from funds now in the Municipal Building
Capital Reserve fund created for that purpose. This will be a non-
lapsing account per RSA 32:7, and will not lapse until the project
is completed or in two years, whichever is less. (BY PETITION) (NOT
RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE
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PELHAM, NH TAX RATE HISTORY

INDIVIDUAL TAX RATES

Tax Rate
Valuation Per $1,000

per $1.00 of  of Assessed Town School County -
Year Tax Rate Value Tax Rate TaxRate Tax Rate
1988 $234,052 $34.10 $5.72 $£26.11 $2.27
1989 246 016 36.55 5.65 27.68 322
1990 256,027 3829 6.40 2878 31
1991 262251 3750 8.84 2540 326
1992 268,103 41.57 877 2923 357
§993 273,730 40.90 7.88 2937 3.65
1994 278,706 42 50 8.13 30.87 3.50
1995 283.495 4495 8.04 3328 3.63
1996 289,772 4718 893 34.33 392

REVALUATION IN 1997

1997 497,982 2630 4.14 19.87 229
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Tax Rate Comparison

IQQQ to 1097

Total Tax Rate

$50.00
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Rate
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Tax Rate Comparison
198868 to 1997

Town Tax Rate

Tax Rate

1988 1589 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997
Year

School Tax Rate

$35.00 -

$30.00

$25.00

$20.00 -

Tax Rate

$15.00 4

$10.00

$6.00

088 1980 1960 1991 1992 1993 1094 1995 1696 1997
Year
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Amount

I’laldlilel[,lillfrﬂi)(lIIJIJP]EIEIIIBTP()IIII

$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

$0

Increase
{Decrease)
Taxes to be from prior
Year Raised year
1989 8,957,643
1990 9,803,290 845,647
1991 9,834,406 31,116
1992 11,145,066 1,310,660
1993 11,195,556 50,490
1994 11,845,020 649,464
1995 12,743,090 898,070
199§ 13,671,449 928,359
1997 13,096,918 (574,531)

19590 1991 1992

1993
Year
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PEILMHAM NH TANX RATE HISTORY

(Town Portion)
Taxes to be

(School Portion) (County Portion)

Taxes to be

Taxes to be

Year Raised Raised Raised
1990 1,639,204 7,367,641 796,445
1991 2,318,144 6,660,842 855,420
1992 2,350,464 7,836,806 957,796
1993 2,157,683 8,038,772 999,101
1994 2,264,043 8,604,650 976,327
1995 2,280,315 9,434,717 1,028,058
1996 2,587,641 9,947,118 1,136,690
1997 2,064,476 9,894,401 1,138,041
Taxes to be Raised for Town
$3,000.000 #
$2,500,000 i
$2,000,000
g $1,500.000
I

Amount

$1,000,000

$500,000

30

$10.000,000
$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7.000,000
$6.000,000
$5,000,000
$4.000,000

$3.000,000 -
$2,000,0Q0 -
$1,0G0,000 -

30 -

1880 1991

1992

1993 1994
Year

1995

1996

1997

Taxes to be Raised for School

1990 1981

1992

1993
Year

1994

1995
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198S to 1997

Tax Rate Per

$1,000 of Asgessment Effective
Year Assessed Value Ratio Tax Rate
1988 34.10 43.00% 14.66
1989 36.55 47.00% 17.18
1990 318.29 49.00% 18.76
1991 37.50 54.00% 20.25
1992 41.57 59.00% 24.53
1993 40.90 61.00% 24.95
1994 42.50 61.00% 25.93
1995 44.95 58.00% 26.07
1996 47.18 56.00% 26.42
1997 26.30 100.00% 26.30

The Effective Tax Rate is determined by multiplying the actual tax
rate by the assessment ratio. The Effective Tax reflects the tax
rates at market value.

Rate

%

EFFECTIVE TAX RATES

1988 1988 1950 1991 19592 1993 1994 1955

Year

PERCENTAGE OF CHANGE

1589 1990 1991 1892 1693 1994 1995 1996 1997

Year
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TOWN OF PELHAM

OPERATING BUDGET HISTORY

1998 1998
1897 Selectmen's  Budget Comm.
1994 1995 1996 Town 1957 Budget Budget

Department Expended Expended Expended Appropr Expended Recommend. Recommend.
Tawn Officers 44 687 .00 39.668.00 40,452.00 42,340.00 42,340.00 42 382.66 4238200
Selectmen 1440,714.00 138,847.00 154,688 00 148,214.00 141,869.00 168,006.56 188,574 00
Town Buildings 61.509.00 67 599.00 95,735.00 79.137.00 72.315.00 80,995.00 81.882.00
Town Clerk 43,388.00 37 664.00 44,426 00 42.893.00 42.781.00 4277500 42.775.00
Tax Collector 42,098.00 39.370.00 4427200 47 871.00 47 127.00 44 633.00 44,633.00
Treasurer £,380.00 6.811.00 3,138.00 3,841.00 3,002.00 3,823.00 392300
Budget 1,699.00 1,543.00 1,886.00 2,107.00 2,126.00 215093 2,151.00
Trust Funds - 70.00 35.00 70.00 70.00 36.00 3500
Elections 2,650.00 2,280.00 383400 2,500.00 2.026.00 3300.00 4,300 00
Appraisal 48,583.00 41,010.00 38,648.00 39,929.00 3219400 3817564 36,960 00
Technical Staff 1.00 - 500 100.00 - 100.00 1.00
Computer 12,287.00 31,778.00 40,385.00 38,169.00 39107.00 4532800 43,793.00
Folice 791,728.00 812.354.00 864.203.00 911,563.00 §28,070.00 942 606 60 960,414.00
Fre 252,619.00 268,126.00 277.630,00 310,157.00 304,699.00 377,089.94 376,399.00
Emergency Management 44000 122.00 211.00 1.088.00 402.00 1,088.00 1,000.00
Planning 90,706.00 ° 90,579.00 §8,031.00 §7 855.00 104,281.00 102,360.63 97 562.00
Board of Adjustment 2,374.00 2352.00 1.526.00 2,300.00 1,591.00 230000 1,809.00
Planning Board 582700 6,953.00 7.139.00 8,566.00 6,427.00 13,855.00 8,149.00
Regional Planning 6,518.00 6,518.00 6,580.00 €,787.00 6,787.00 6.787.00 6,7987.00
Conservation 2331.00 1,521.00 1,629.00 2,200.00 220000 257250 2,473.00
Retirement 895,380.00 87,759.00 108,934 .00 106,687.00 114,283.00 115337.00 115,337.00
Insurance 326,791.00 125,162.00 179.207.00 190,000.00 184,805.00 188.211.00 192,500.00
Legal 58.415.00 53,747.00 70.932.00 54,000.00 75.401.00 70,000.00 60,000.00
Health 221200 2.303.00 2,283.00 2,603.00 2,353.00 2661.83 2,662.00
Heazltk Services 39.163.00 37 506.00 38,857 .00 1.00 - 2B, 466.00 38.086.00
Summer {Highway) 184.28200 147 347.00 157,738.00 170,033.00 164.622.00 178,377.00 178,377.00
Winter (Highway) 271.77000 227,891.00 308.233.00 225.000.00 231.764.00 28863078 2689 316 00
Bridges 998.00 985.00 - 500.60 - 50000 500.0C
Streel Lighting 22.755.00 22,577.00 23,262.00 22,877.00 23.677.00 24,151.00 24,151.00
tncinerator 210.647.00 208,376.00 187,367.00 199,790.00 220.338.00 238,591.00 230,143.00
Library 108.211.00 113,555.00 11527200 121, 116.00 112,658.00 134,102.00 124.978.00
Cable 25.040.00 17.769.00 25027.00 27,588.00 2757200 29,809.13 29.655.00
Parks & Recreation 163.151.00 114,672.00 108,443.00 114612.00 107.221.00 118,994.00 114724.00
Senior Citizens 11.826.00 11,858.00 23,837.00 34,818.00 34,058.00 35,504.58 34,855.00
Cemelery 31.957.00 33,743.00 34,936.00 41,400.00 35,436.00 43,484 85 42.285.00
Human Services 51.912.00 4761400 30,307.00 36,750.00 2495200 30,000.00 30.000.00
Memorial Day 932.00 962.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1.000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Soldiers Aid - - - 25.00 - 25.00 25.00
Interest en TAN 3.781.00 - - 5.000.00 5.000.00 5,000.00
Int on Long Term Debt - 47,775.00 42,641.00 42.840.00 43,435.00 38,006.00 33,516 00
Princ. on Long Term Debt - 105,000.00 105,000.00 105.000.00 105.000.00 105.000.00 105,000.00
Total 310980300 3,002,108.00 3,286,059.00 3.290.429.00 3,280.429.00 3,608.428.13 3.549.,094.00
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Town of Pelham

N

Annual Report

1998 1998
1997 Selectimen's Budget Comm.
1985 1996 Town 1987 Budget Budget
Department Expended Expended Appropr. Expended | Recommend Recommend
TOWN OFFICERS
Salaries 39,868.00 40,462.00 42,340.00 42,340.00 42,362 86 42,382.00
Supplies - - - N . .
Utilities - - - - - -
Gas,Qil,etc - - - - -
Repairs - - - - . -
Rentals - - - - - -
New Equip - - - - - -
Expenses - - - - - -
Misc/Special - - - - - -
TOTAL 39,868.00 40,462.00 42,340.00 42 340,00 42,382.85 42,382.00
SELECTMEN
Salaries 103,597.00 117,486.00 110,765.00 110,306.00 129,051.66 122,203.00
Supplies 3,649.00 5,410.00 4,689.00 3,621.00 5,048.60 4,829.00
Utilities 2,398.00 2,368.00 2,634.00 3,167.00 3,300.00 2,713,00
Gas,Qilelc - - . - - -
Repairs 2,497.00 3,786.00 3,425.00 2,134.00 3,596.00 3,425.00
Rentals 1,674.00 740.00 1,233.00 1,033.00 1,035.60 1,036.00
New Equip 255.00 507.00 100.00 191.00 - -
Expenses 24,677.00 24,391.00 25,368.00 21,417.00 25,975.00 25,368.00
Misc/Special - - - - - -
TOTAL 138,847.00 154,688.00 148,214.00 141,869.00 168,006.86 159,574.00
TOWN BUILDINGS
Salaries 22.405.00 23,961.00 23,861.00 23,090.00 23,860.80 23,861.00
Supplies 1.238.00 1,179.00 1,746.00 1,843.00 2,354,986 1,724.00
Utilities 23,276.00 24,080.00 25,644.00 22,910.00 25,620.00 24,024.00
Gas,Oilete 10,424 .00 10,752.00 17,168.00 11,096.00 18,535.00 18,535.00
Repairs 7.004 00 16,954.00 6,600.00 9,290.00 6,148.00 6,148.00
Rentais 2,148.00 1,869.00 2,248.00 2,148.00 2,148.00 1,814.00
New Equip 687.00 13,750.00 400.00 566.00 400.00 3,136.00
Expenses 31.00 3,070.00 1,270.00 1,372.00 1,928.24 2,640.00
Misc/Special 386.00 - - - -
TOTAL 67,599.00 95,735.00 79,137.00 72,315.00 80,895.00 §1,882.00
TOWN CLERK
Salaries 32617.00 37,117.00 37.872.00 37,872.00 35,628.00 35,828.00
Supplies 3.416.00 6,150.00 3,750.00 3,756.00 5,750.00 5,750,00
Utilities 647.00 647.00 873.00 676.00 74700 747.00
Gas . Ciletc - - . - - -
Repairs 99.00 - - - -
Rentals - - - - - -
New Equip - - - - - -
Expenses 885.00 511.00 500.00 477.00 450.00 450.00
Misc/Special - - - - - -
TCTAL 37,664.00 44,425.00 4299500 42,781.00 42,775.00 42,775.00
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Town of Pelham
Operating Budget
Annual Report

Department

1995
Expended

1996
Expended

1997
Town
Appropr.

1997
Expended

1988

1998

Selectmen’s Budget Comm.

Budget
Recommend

Budget
Recommend

TAX COLLECTOR

Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Oil.etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Special
TOTAL

TREASURER
Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas, Qil elc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Special

TOTAL

BUDGET
Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Ciletc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Special

TOTAL

TRUST FUNDS
Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Cil.etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Special

TOTAL

30,753.00
6,425.00
576.00
99.00

1,517.00

36,654.00
5213.00
656.00

1,749.00

39,274.00
§,100.00
T747.00

1,750.00

38,713.00
6,057.00
688.00

1,669.00

37,036.00
5,100.00
747.00

1,750.00

37,036.00
5,100.00
747.00

1,750.00

39,370.00

3,970.00
1,252.00

1,689.00

44 272 00

1,467.00

1.671.00

47,871.00

1,706.00

2,135.00

47,127.00

1,151.00

1,851.00

44,633.00

1,788.00

2,135.00

44,633.00

1,788.00

2,135.00

6.,911.00

1.509.00
3400

3,138.00

1.514.00
372.00

3,84100

1,757.00
350.00

3,002.00

1,958.00
167.00

3.923.00

1,800.93
350.00

3,923.00

1,801.00
350.00

1,543.00

70.00

1,886.00

3500

2,07.00

2,126.00

2,150.83

35.00

2,151.00

35.00

70.00

35.00
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Town of Pelham

ELL

Annual Report

1998 1998
1997 Selectmen's Budget Comm.
1995 1996 Town 1997 Budget Budget
Department Expended Expended Appropr. Expended | Recommend Recommend
ELECTIONS
Salaries 1,630.00 2,930.00 1,700.00 1,630.00 2,400.00 2,400.00
Supplies 650.00 729.00 400.00 121.00 600.00 600 00
Utilities - - - - - -
Gas,Qil.etc - - - - - -
Repairs - 275.00 300.00 275.00 300.00 300.00
Rentals - - - - - -
New Equip - - - - 1,000.00
Expenses - - 100.00 - - -
Misc/Special - - - - - -
TOTAL 2,280.00 3,834.00 2,500.00 2,026.00 3,300.00 4,300.00
APPRAISAL
Salaries 37,845.00 27,329.00 33,119.00 29.645.00 30,671.00 30,671.00
Supplies 1,165.00 4,080.00 1,962.00 936.00 1,880.64 1,881.00
Utitities 8588.00 580.00 750.00 £24.00 612.00 612.00
Gas,Oil etc - 57.00 150.00 24.00 150.00 15000
Repairs - 947.00 925.00 313.00 500.00 900.00
Rentals - 30.00 99.00 66 00 86.00 86.00
New Equip - - - - - -
Expenses §98.00 8,625.00 2,714.00 1,174.00 3,681.00 2.465.00
Misc/Specials 104,00 - 210.00 412.00 185.00 185.00
TOTAL 41,010.00 38,645.00 39,926.00 33,194 00 38,175.64 36,960.00
TECHNICAL STAFF
Salartes - - - - -
Supplies - - - - -
Utilities - - - - -
Gas,Qil etc - - - - -
Repairs - - - - - -
Renta:s - - - - -
New Equip - - - - - -
Expenses . 5.00 100.00 - 100.00 1.00
Misc/Specials - - - - - .
TOTAL - 5.00 100.00 - 100.00 1.00
COMPUTER
Salaries - - - - - -
Supplies 210.00 25.00 590.00 §5.00 589.00 585.00
Utilities 396.00 319.00 480.00 337.00 480.00 480.00
Gas,Qil.etc - - - - - -
Repairs 637.00 1,702.00 2,690.00 2,230.00 3,000.00 2,825.00
Rentals - 30.00 84.00 - 8400 84.00
New Equip 5.495.00 4,563.00 5,100.00 5,525.00 8,550.00 6,100.00
Expenses 25,037.00 33,746 .00 30,225.00 30,520.00 32,625.00 33,715.00
Misc/Specials - - - - - -
TOTAL 31,778.00 40,385.00 39,168.00 39,107.00 45,328.00 43,793.00
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POLICE
Salaries 688,234.00 746,341.00 805,399.00 783,618.00 £15,954.91 840,000.00
Supplies 11,036.00 8,349.00 13,000.00 14,664.00 17,967.07 13,000.00
Utilities 11,359.00 11,492.00 12,000.00 16,000.00 15,180.00 12,000.00
Gas,Qil,etc 20,771.00 23,978.00 21,000.00 20,3681.00 24,258.10 21,000.00
Repairs £,654.00 9,742.C0 9,000.00 14,087.00 11,734.00 10,000.00
Rentals 7.249.00 3,321.00 4,414.00 5,097.00 4.414.00 4,414.00
New Equip - 9,060.00 1,750.00 1,434 00 - -
Expenses 29,932.00 28,415.00 25,000.00 24.619.00 33,100.52 25,000.00
Misc/Specials 25,119.00 23,505.00 20,000.00 49,160.00 20,000.00 35,000.00
TOTAL 812,354.00 864,203.00 911,563.00 825,070.00 942 .608.60 960,414 .00
FIRE/AMBULANCE
Salaries 198,613.00 230,517.00 259,743.00 257,422.00 263,812.17 263.,812.00
Supplies 5,299.00 5,748.00 7.853.00 8,110.00 7.511.00 7.511.00
Utilities 2,431.00 2,745.00 2,990.00 2,496.00 3,060.48 3,060.00
Gas,Oil elc 2,855.00 2,948.00 3,540.00 2,993.00 3,704.44 3,704.00
Repairs 10,675.00 14,640.00 1565500 15,234.00 18,018.00 19,018.00
Rentals 29,698.00 1,250.00 1,405.00 1,024.00 52,202.75 52,203.00
New Equip 9142.00 11,440.00 6,272.00 5,732.00 14,083.00 13,393.00
Expenses 5,021.00 6,570.00 8,749.00 7.,852.00 9,248.10 9,248.00
Misc/Specials 4,352.00 1,772.00 3.650.00 4.036.00 4,450.00 4,450.00
TOTAL 268,126.00 277.630.00 310,157.00 304 889.00 377.099.594 376,399.00
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
Salaries - 111.00 400.00 - 400.00 400.00
Supplies - 100.00 51.00 100.00 100.00
Utilities - - - - - -
Gas,Qil,etc - 88.00 - §8.00 -
Repairs - - 250.00 219.00 250.00 250.00
Rentals 112.00 100.00 150.00 132.00 150.00 150.00
New Equip 10.00 - 100.00 - 100.00 100.00
Expenses - - - - - -
Misc/Speciats - - - - - -
TOTAL 122.00 211.00 1,088.00 402.00 1,088.00 1,000.00
PLANNING
Salaries 84,305.00 88,408.00 85,726.00 88,536.00 87,508.59 84,745.00
Supplies 1,846.00 §38.00 3,700.00 1,337.00 3,673.36 3,674.00
Utilities 1,958.00 2,057.00 2,180.00 2,426.00 2,268.72 2,131.00
Gas,Qil.etc 29.00 113.00 211.00 - 318.48 232,00
Repairs (34.00) 551.00 1,700.00 1,326.00 2,058.28 1,848.00
Rentals 560.00 789.00 613.00 771.00 B83.12 863.00
New Equip - 38.00 - - . -
Expenses 1,215.00 5,126.00 3,375.00 9,478.00 5,299.08 3,698.00
Misc/Specials 750.00 10.00 350.00 407.00 350.00 350.00
TOTAL 90,579.00 98,031.00 §7,855.00 104,281.00 102,360.63 97,562.00
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BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Qiletc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Specials
TOTAL

PLANNING BOARD
Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Qil,etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Speciats

TOTAL

REGIONAL PLANNING

778.00
1,396.00

218.00

579.00
647.00

300.00

1,051.00
569.00

680.00

620.00
835.00

136.00

1,104.00
872.00

324.00

324.00

2,392.00

3,261.00
1.331.00

2.361.00

1,526.00

3.114.00
1,163.00

2,300.00

3,600.00
1,859.00

1,350.00
1,757.00

1,591.00

2,381.00
1,201.00

995.00
1,850.00

2,300.00

4,200.00
1.733.00

4,550.00
3472.00

1,809.00

3,444.00
1,733.00

1,350.00
1,622.00

Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Qiletc
Repairs
Rentais
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Speciats
TOTAL

CONSERVATION
Sataries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas Qil.etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Speciais

TOTAL

6,953.00

5518.00

6,590.00

8,566.00

6,767.00

6.427.00

6,787.00

13.855.00

5.787.00

3,149.00

6,787.00

5,518.00

839.00
123.00

559.00

6,590.00

1,234 00

6,787.00

855.00
165.00

1,180.00

6.787.00

720.00
154.00

1,326.00

5,787.00

922.50
400.00

1,250.00

6,787.00

§23.00
300.00

1,250.00

1,521.00

1,629.00
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RETIREMENT
Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Qil etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Specials

TOTAL

INSURANCE

Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
5as,Cil.etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Eqguip
Expenses
Misc/Speciats
TOTAL

LEGAL
Salaries
Supplies
Ltilities
Gas,Oil.etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses

- Misc/Specials

TOTAL

HEALTH
Salaries
Supplies
Ditilities
Gas,Oil etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Specials

TOTAL

87,758.00

108,934.00

106,687.00

114,283.00

115,337.00

115,337.00

87,759.00

125,162.00

108,534.00

179,207.00

106,687.00

190,000.00

114,283.00

184,805.00

115,337.00

189,211.00

115,337.060

1982,500.00

125,162.00

53,747.00

178,207.00

70,933.00

190,000.00

54,000.00

184,805.00

75,401.00

189,211.00

70,000.00

192,500.00

60,000.00

53,747.00

2,228.00

75.00

70,833.00

2,293.00

54,000.00

2,353.00
150.00

100.00

75,401.00

2,353.00

70,000.00

2,411.83
150.00

700.00

6C,000.00

2,412.00
150.00

100.00

2,303.00

2,283.00

2,603.00
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HEALTH SERVICES
Salaries - - - - - .
Supplies - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - .
Gas,Qil etc - - - - - .
Repairs - - - - - -
Rentatls - - - - - -
New Equip - - - - - -
Expenses 37,506.00 36,997.00 1.00 - 38,466.00 38,066.00
Misc/Specials - - - - - -
TOTAL 37,506.00 35,987.00 1.00 - 38,466.00 38,066.00
SUMMER (HIGHWAY}
Salaries 76,545 00 79,224.00 B2,168.00 82,594.00 89,573.19 89,573.00
Supplies 5,192.00 19,787.00 28,616.00 30,801.00 33,757.00 33,757.00
Utilities 353.00 319.00 336.00 319.00 336.00 336.00
Gas,Qil,etc 2,708.00 3,210.00 4,193.00 2,621.00 3,789.88 3,790.00
Repairs 6,088.00 8,636.00 7,000.00 4,8358.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
Rentals 33,249.00 36,229.00 38.873.00 35,213.00 37,890.62 37,991.00
New Equip 5,208.00 2,620.00 1,000.00 783.00 1,150.00 1,150.00
Expenses 1,962.00 2,039.00 2,171.00 1,975.00 2,106.31 2,106.00
Misc/Specials 15,641.00 5674.00 5,674.00 5,674 00 5.674.00 5,674.00
TOTAL 147.347.00 157,738.00 170,033.00 164.822.00 178,377.00 175,377.00
WINTER (HIGHWAY}
Salaries T0,316.00 88,573.00 60,355.00 73,188.00 90,976.28 90,976.00
Supplies 73,520.00 78,200.00 69,190.00 £9,729.00 63,190.11 63,190.00
Utilities 160.00 79.00 168.00 131.00 168.00 168.00
Gas,Qil.etc 3171.00 4,391.00 3,210.00 3,445.00 2,872.58 2,873.00
Repairs 4,980.00 10,527.00 6,000.00 11,899.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
Rentals 65,013.00 112,917.00 77,011.00 73,530.00 116,354.31 97,041.00
New Equip 450.00 9.705.00 5,500.00 5,140.00 7.,000.00 7,000.00
Expenses 827.00 952.00 729.00 835.00 732.50 733.00
Misc/Specials 9.454.00 2,949.00 2,837.00 2.837.00 2.837.00 . 2,837.00
TOTAL 227.891.00 308,293.00 225,000.00 231,764 .00 288,630.78 269,318.00
BRIDGES
Salaries - - - - - -
Supplies - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - -
Gas,Qiletc - - - - - -
Repairs - - - - - -
Rentals - - - - - -
New Equip . - - . - -
Expenses 985.00 .- £500.00 - 500.00 500,00
Misc/Specials - - - - - -
TOTAL $85.00 - 500.00 . 500.00 500.00
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STREET LIGHTING
Salaries - - - - - -
Supplies - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - -
Gas,Qil,etc - - - -
Repairs - - - -
Rentals - - - - -
New Equip - - - - - -
Expenses 22,577.00 23,262.00 22.877.00 23,677.00 24 151.00 24,151.00
Misc/Specials - - - -
TOTAL 22,577.00 23,262.00 22,877.00 23,677.00 24.151.00 24,151.00
INCINERATOR
Salanes 106,751.00 95,791.00 96,435.00 96.406.00 96,568.52 96,568.52
Supplies 4,596.00 1,786.00 1,350.00 4,085.00 3,600.00 1,900.00
Utilities 14,788.00 13,356.00 14,852.00 13,065.00 15,594.64 15,297.60
Gas Oil.etc 19,169.00 15,097.00 30,819.00 20,134.00 27.407.36 27.,407.38
Repairs 9,307.00 B,658.00 4,428.00 24,431.00 22,183.14 20,022.52
Rentals 105.00 108.00 1035.00 116.00 110.00 110.00
New Equip 1,352.00 - 100.00 255.00 1.00 1.00
Expenses 52,308.00 52,571.00 51,701.00 61,845.00 74,126.34 68,836.00
Misc/Specials - - - - - -
TOTAL 208,376.00 187.367.00 199,790.00 220,338.00 238.591.00 23014300
LIBRARY
Salaries §8,663.00 89,186.00 91,548.00 7B,321.00 98,503.26 95,314.00
Supplies 2,516.00 3,204.00 2,480.00 2,224.00 2,399.70 2,400.00
Litilities 1,575.00 1,526.00 2,365.00 1,471.00 2,109.28 1,472.00
Gas,Qil,etc - - - - - -
Repairs 2,242.00 1,169.00 1,613.00 456.00 1,615.00 1,615.00
Rentals - - - - - -
New Equip 2,011.00 1,470.00 2,019.00 3,552.00 - B
Expenses 1,250.00 1,357.00 1,085.00 4,705.00 1,095.00 1,085.00
Misc/Specials 15,298.00 17,360.00 19,996.00 21,969.00 28.079.76 20,082.00
TOTAL 113,5655.00 115,272.00 121,116.00 112,698.00 134,102.00 124,978.00
CABLE
Salaries 14,023.00 19,023.00 16,849.00 22,575.00 24,17%.09 24.025.00
Supplies 2,078.00 1,756.00 2,024 .00 1,794.00 3,118.10 3,119.00
Utilities 1,217.00 775.00 825.00 899.00 849.75 850.00
Gas,Oil.etc 201.00 - 50.00 20.00 50.00 50.00
Repairs - - - 14.00 - -
Rentals - - 75.00 - 75.12 75.00
New Equip B - 7,000.00 230.00 - -
Expenses 249.00 3,473.00 765.00 2,040.00 968.18 968.00
Misc/Specials - - - - 567,89 568.00
TOTAL 17,769.00 25,027.00 27.588.00 27,572.00 29,809.13 29,655.00
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PARKS & RECREATION
Salaries 85,593.00 82,609.00 §7,540.00 81,136.00 88,761.40 £8,761.00
Supplies §,817.00 6,955.00 6.278.00 5,934.00 §,547.10 6,278.00
Utilities 2,033.00 2,043.00 2,271.00 2,243.00 2,345.00 2,345.00
Gas,Oil,etc 484.00 523.00 615.00 347.00 604.00 604.00
Repairs 6,350 00 6,014 00 5,750.00 5.462.00 §,000.00 5,250.00
Rentals 3,384.00 3184.00 3,184.00 3,184.00 3.184.11 3,184.00
New Equip 520.00 174.00 200 00 151.00 698.39 448.00
Expenses 7,204.00 5664.00 662400 6,513.00 §,804.00 6,154.00
Misc/Speciais 2,187.00 1.076.00 2,150.00 2,251.00 4,050.00 1,700.00
TOTAL 114,672.00 108,443.00 114,812.00 107,221.00 118,994.00 114,724.00
SENIOR CITIZENS
Salaries 5,030.00 17,561.00 29,503.00 29,593.00 29,665.78 29,666.00
Supplies 567.00 515.00 575.00 191.00 475.00 475.00
Utilities 507.00 714.00 45500 781.00 778.58 779.00
Gas,Oiletc 438.00 516.00 1,000.00 539.00 800 00 800.00
Repairs 684.00 234.00 1,300.00 1,522.00 1,300.00 5§50.00
Rentals 289.00 307.00 300.00 310.00 300.00 300.00
New Equip 92.00 1.348.00 - 41.00 - -
Expenses 4,251.00 2,642 00 1,685,00 1,081.00 2,185.12 2,185.00
Misc/Specials - - - - - -
TOTAL 11,858.00 23,837.00 34,818.00 34.058.00 35,504.58 34,855.00
CEMETERIES
Saiaries 22.842.00 24,534.00 25714.00 25,524 .00 27.,382.35 27.382.00
Supplies 3,738.00 3,235.00 5,355.00 £.764.00 6,692.50 5.653.00
Utilities - - - - - -
Gas, Oil etc 403.00 366.00 680.00 518.00 785.00 785.00
Repairs 594.00 66.00 900.00 54.00 §50.00 650.00
Rentals 2,710.00 4,654.00 3,000.00 258.00 2,640.00 2,640.00
HNew Equip 2,254.00 1,587.00 800.00 637.00 675.00 6§75.00
Expenses 1,202.00 495 .00 3,950.00 2,197.00 4,260.00 4,260.00
Misc/Specials - 19.00 - 484.00 400.00 200.00
TOTAL 33,743.00 34,935 .00 41,400.00 35,436.00 43,484.85 42,285.00
HUMAN SERVICES
Salaries - - - - - -
Supplies - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - -
Gas,Oil.etc - - - - - -
Repairs - - - - - -
Rentals - - - - -
New Equip - - - - - -
Expenses 47,614.00 30,307.00 35,750.00 24,852.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
Misc/Speciais - - - - - -
TOTAL 47,614.00 30,307.00 36,750.00 24,952 00 30,000.00 30,000.00
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IN MEMORIAL
TO THOSE WHO IN THEIR LIVES HAVE SERVED
THE TOWN OF PELHAM

AUSTIN T. BURNS

BUDGET COMMITTEE
1969-1971

CEMETERY TRUSTEE
1967-1982

1986-UNTIL THE TIME OF HIS DEATH IN 1997
SUPERVISOR OF THE CHECK LIST

1967-1968

PAUL FISHER
BALLOT CLERK
1970
CONSERVATION COMMISSION
1968-1969
INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION
1961-1966
PLANNING BOARD
1958-1973

BERNARD E. FLANDERS
SPECIAL POLICE OFFICER
1968-1969
POLICE OFFICER
1969-1980

DANIEL A. GLEASON
RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD
1989-UNTIL THE TIME OF HIS DEATH IN 1997

RALPH A. HARMON
TOWN CLERK
1963-1965
TAX COLLECTCR
1954-1956

CHARLES C. JACK
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
1955-1959

GRACE C. O’HEARN
BUDGET COMMITTEE
1972,1976-1977
NH HIGHWAY SAFETY COMMITTEE
1970-1974

GEORGE H. TESSIER
BUILDING INSPECTOR
1988-1994
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DEPARTMENT

Selectmen

Agssessor

Town Clerk
&
Tax Collector

Planning Department

Parks & Recreation
Department

Police Department

Fire Department

Library

Incinerator/Recycling

Facility

Highway Department

Senior Citizens Center

TOWN OFFICES

HOURS

PHONE NUMBER

635-8233

635-3317

635-2040

635-3480

635-7811

635-2721

635-2411
911

635-2703

911

635-7581

635-3964

635-8526

635-3800

Business
Emergency

Business

Emergency

HOURS

Monday - Friday
8:30 a.m. = 4:30 p.m.

8:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.
Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri
Closed Wednesday

8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.
Mon, Wed, Thurs, Fri
Tues 8:00 am = 7:00 pm

Mon, Thurs, Fri

8§:30 a.m. = 4:00 p.m.
Tues §:30 am - 7:00 pm
Wed 8:30 am - 12:30 pm

8:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.
Monday - Friday

9:00 a.m, - 4:00 p.m.
Monday - Friday

Monday and Thursday
10:00 a.m, - 8:00 p.m.
Tues, Wed, Fri
10:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.
Saturday
10:00 a.m, — 2:00 p.m.

Closed Monday

Tues 9:00 am = 7:00 pm
Wed, Thurs, Fri, Sat
8:30a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

7:00 a.m.
Monday -

= 3:30 p.m.
Friday

8:00 a.m. — 2:00 p.m.
Monday - Friday



TOWN OFFICERS

Representatives to the General Court . James Fenton 98
Michael Marcinkowski 98
Harold Lynde 98
Donald White 98

Board of Selectmen ....... e e William McDevitt, 98
Richard W. Derby, 99
Stanley Draper, 98
James Hardy 99
Gregory Farris 00

Town Moderator ......... et sa e Philip Currier 99
Supervisors of the Checklist ......... Dorothy A. Hardy 00

Avis Falrbanks 98
Joyce Mason 99

Tax Collector ........cuoeuan e Linda Derby, 99
Town Clerk ........ S e et Linda Derby, 99
Town Treasurer .......s.erese- fhe e Charlene Takesian, 99
Town Admininistrator......... Chvea e Peter R. Flynn
Animal Control Officer........... ..--. Timothy Vincent
ASSeSS0T ... ecenaans Cea e e e ++--. Janet Reardon
Building Inspector .......cciiiiiinonns Roland Soucy
Cable Television Coordinater ......... Linda J. Dowling
Cemetery Superintendent ....... e Donald Foss, Sr.
Civil Defense Director ........ e E. pavid Fisher
Code Enforcement Officer..... Cer e Roland Soucy

Director of Senior Facility & Elderly Affairs......
Sue Hovling

Electrical Inspector ......... e e Tim Zelonis
Executive Secretary ......... Chesaaes Linda J. Dowling
Fire Chief .,...... St r e e . E. David Fisher
Health officer .......... e e ... Robert Einsidler



Highway Agent ..... et e e e Donald Foss, Sr.

Human Services Agent ............cev.- Peter R. Flynn
Incinerator Superintendent ........... Bruce A. Mason
Library Director ....eiuserearcaronensns Carol Razewski
Planning Director........cioveinurenns Heidi Griffin
Police Chief ................. evsees.. David F. Rowell
Plumbing Inspector ......... weeieean.. Walter Kosik
Recreation Director .......cicierunnsn James Druding
Senior Financial Analyst ............. Diane Savoie



TOWN COMMITTEES

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT ..............

BUDGET COMMITTEE ............. “e e

CABLE TELEVISION ADVISORY COMMITTEE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE

Walter Kosik 98

Peter Fisher 98

Paul DeCarolis 00

George Labonte, alt 00
Kandy Davitt, (resigned)
Edmund Gleason 99

Peter LaPolice, alt 98
Susan Tesch Sec.

Gregory Farris. Sel. Rep.
William McDevitt, Sel. Rep.

John Lavallee Chr 00
Claudia Bourgque 99
Raymond Caisse 99
Harold Lynde 99
Russell Beland 98
Michael Marcinkowski 98
Daniel Guimond 00
Andrew Borsa 98
Dennis Viger 00

, Sch. Rep.
Richard Derby, Sel. Rep.

Charles Newton 98

William Dowling 99

Charlene Takesian 00

James Greenwood (0

James Cryan 00

Liz Fontanella 00

Cheryl Hood 00

Robert Bean, School Board Rep
Ron Bourque, School Coordinator
Linda Dowling, Coordinator
Gregory Farris, Sel. Rep.

Jeff Gowan, Chr.
Greg Farris
William Scanzani
William McDevitt
Russell Boland
John Wenetta
Andrew Borsa
Paul DeCarolis
Raymond Caisse
Vincent Messina



CEMETERY TRUSTEES .4t sensuvovnssns

CONSERVATION COMMISSION ....0v00u

COUNCIL ON AGING ..{(one year).....
FORESTRY COMMITTEE v vvvvwrnnnnnns
LIBRARY TRUSTEES .....e0vecernnnns
PLANNING BOARD ..... teses e e

RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD ........
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Ralph Daley 99
Richard Jensen 9%
Walter Kosik 98
Richard Derby 00
Ralph Boutwell 00
James Hardy, Sel. Rep.

Mark Edgar Chr. 99

Alice Harshfield 98

Alicia Symonovit 00

Paul Mclaughlin 99

Kathleen Jchnson 99

Daniel Dubreuil 00

William McDevitt, Sel. Rep.
Heidi Griffin, Planning Director

Willis Atwood
Frank Atwood
Harriet Foreman
Charlotte Vautier
Hedwig Burns
Marcelle Jennings
Otis E. Titcomb Jr.
Blanche Forest
Frank Lessard
Harriet Mansfield
Keith Oliver
Kathleen Silloway

Harold Lynde 0097
Gayle Ploutffe 0097
Kathleen Johnson 99

Charlotte Vautier 99

Jane Gaskell 98

Carcl Theoharus 00
Charles Greenwood Chr. 98
Rodney Mansfield 00

James Hardy, Sel. Rep.

William Croteau 99

Peter Fisher 98

Patrick Culbert 99

Carl Huether,alt 58
Roger Montbleau 00

Clark Harris 00

Jeff Gowan 98B

Gregory Farris, Sel. Rep.
Engineering Consultant
Susan Tesch Sec.

Robert Sherman Chr.98



RAYMOND PARK ADVISORY BOARD

SENIOR CITIZENS’ CLUB .{one year).

SOLID WASTE COMMITTEE ......

TECHNICAL STAFF ............

TRUSTEES OF THE TRUST FUNDS

-1 -

Kathleen Johnson 98

Robert Blinn 99

James Bonomo 98

James Hodgson 99

Andy Vanti 99

David Webber 97

Jon Lowe 97

Robert Tryon 99

Dave Cate 00

Michael Jones, Ex. Officic
Marie Stadtmiller Sch. Brd. Rep
Gregory Farris, Sel. Rep.

Michael Sawicki

Robert Sherman

David Cate

Steve Barker

Louise Korzeb

Richard Derby, Sel. Rep.

Hedwig Burns Pres.

Harriet Foreman, Vice Pres.
Charlotte Vautier, Sec.
Frank Atwood, Tres.

Richard Derby, Sel. Rep.

Henry Deluca, Chr.
William Dowling

Ron Bourdgue (Resigned)
Joseph Shamma

Stanley Draper, Sel. Rep.

James Greenwcod Chr. 99
Jack Caynon 98

Donimic Buonarosa 00
Robert Bean 97

Andrew Peterscon 97

Thomas McCallion 98

Genhe Thecharcus 99

Lisa Escalera 99

Daniel Casseres 00

Stanley Draper, Sel. Rep.
Heidi Griffin, Planning Director
Schocl Computer Specialist

Hal Lynde 98

Ron Bourgue 99

Richard Craven 00

School Computer Specialist



Town of Pelham

W fnnex
60 Old Bridge St. No.
Pelham, N.H. 03076 Board of Selectmen
635-8233

SELECTMEN’S REPORT
1997

The past year was one of the most important yvears insofar as the
town’s tax assessment structure is concerned. The completion of
the revaluation this past summer placed all property owners on an
even keel and brought more fairness to the property taxing system.
All properties are now assessed at 100% valuation which set the new
tax rate at $26.30 per thousand.

Capital expenditures brought the arrival of a new fire pumper,
backhoe tractor, Highway pickup truck and final funding for the
Seniors’ kitchen renovation project. Also, the funding for the
Abbott Bridge restoration was approved at Town Meeting.

As in the past, the Selectmen have met the charge from the taxpayer
which was to live within the total budget allotment authorized at
Town Meeting. Sound fiscal management of all Town Departments has
been a top priority.

The Board of Selectmen will continue to work very hard for the
citizens of Pelham in attempting to keep the taxes to a minimum and
to accomplish the most positive results for the tax dollars,

We wish to thank you for your cooperation in the past and look
forward to your continued cooperation in the future.

P:lham Boa%’eiw
Wll Lﬂzz:;/}t
JLJ_J, - i

ﬁfa ey (L Dra ekj Selectman

es A. Har ctman

Gregoridaé,?érrls, Selectman
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TOWN ELECTION
PELHAM, N.H.
MEMORIAL SCHCOL

MARCH 11, 1997

Prior to the opening of the polls, the ballot box was
inspected and locked. Checklists were certified and the required
postings were done. The pells were opened at 10:00AM by the
Mcderator, Philip Currier. Ballot clerks on shifts throughout
the day were: Barbara Smith, Dorothy Matthews, Priscilla Pike,
Mary Valorose, Ed Martin, Marie Ward, Danny Atwood, and Donna
D'Arcangelo,

Total Names On Checklist 6321
Total Regular Ballots Cast 2089
Total Absentee Ballots Cast 57

SELECTMEN (ONE FOR 3 YEARS)

GREGORY B. FARRIS 903+* Elected
WAYNE E. HELLIWELL SR. 219
CHARLOTTE-GAY VAUTIER 862
Write-Ins 11

BUDGET_COMMITTE (THREE FCR 3 YEARS)

DANIEL GUIMOND 824

JOHN C. LAVALLEE 1353+ Elected
GARY M. LAZARUS 822

DENNIS VIGER 994* Elected
Write-Ins

AL, GREENHALGH 337
Miscellaneous 32

LIBRARY TRUSTEE (ONE FOR 3 YEARS)

CAROL A. THEOCHARUS 1620* Elected
Write-Ins 7

CEMETERY TRUSTEE {TWO FOR 2 YEARS!

AUSTIN T. BURNS 1478*% Elected
RICHARD W DERBY 1391* Elected
Write-Ins 7

TRUSTEE _QF TRUST FUND(ONE FOR 3 YEARS)
RICHARD D. CRAVEN 1568* Elected

-13 -



ZONING_QUESTIONS

QUESTION 1: "To see 1f the Town of Pelham will vote to replace in
its entirety Section 307-64 of the Pelham Zoning Ordinance;
Additional Requirements for Accessory Dwelling Units, in its
entirety." (Recommended by Planning Boazd)

YES...1052 NO...852

QUESTION 2: "To see if the Town of Pelham will vote to replace
Section 307--8 of the Pelham Zoning Ordinance; Non-Conforming

Uses, in its entirety." {Recommended by Planning Board)
YES...951 NO..,L5968
QUESTION 3: "To see if the Town of Pelham will wvote to add a new

subsection, 307-65:F of the Town of Pelham Zoning Ordinance, to
place additional requirements on the installation of
ccmmunication towers in the Residential Zone." {Recommended by
Planning Beard)

YES...115¢ NO...726

QUESTION 4: "To see if the Town of Pelham will vote to amend
Section 307-10 of the Pelham Zoning Ordinance to allow for
additional requirements for a driveway permit." (Recommended by
Planning Board)

YES...74¢6 NO...1130

QUESTION 5: "To see if the Town of Pelham will vote to amend
Section 307-71 of the Pelham Zoning Ordinance to place additional
regquirements for violations of the Zoning Ordinance."
(Recommended by Planning Board)

YES...925 NO...926
QUESTION €: "To see if the Town of Pelham will vote to amend
Section 183-15 of the Pelham Building Code, regulating work
requiring a building permit." {Recommended by Planning Board)
YES...882 NO..,972

QUESTION 7: "To see if the Town of Pelham will vote to replace
Section 307-64 of the Pelham Zoning Ordinance ; Additional
Requirements for Accessory Dwelling Units, in its entirety." BY
PETITICN (Not Recommended by Planning Board)

YES...452 NO.,.1393
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EF UESTION

QUESTION 3: "Shall we modify the elderly exemptions from property
tax in the Town of Pelham, based con assessced value, for qualified
taxpayers, to be as follows: for a person 65 years of age up to
74 years, $25,000.00 for a person 75 years of age up to 7% years,
EXEMPT; for a person 80 years of age or older, EXEMPT? To
qualify,the person must have been a New Hampshire resident for at
least five years, own the real estate individually or jointly or
if the real estate is owned by such person’s spouse, they must
have been married for at least five years. In addition, the
taxpayer must have a net income of not more than $1%,000.00 or,
if married, a combined net income of less than $28,100.00; and
own net assets not in excess of $60,000.00."

YES...1351 NO...574

Ballots used and unused were sealed according to law and
turned over to the Town Clerk for preservation at 10:00pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Linda Derby, Town Clerk

-15 -
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TOWN OF PELHAM

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

WARRANT
1997 TOWN MEETING

To the inhabitants of the Town of Pelham, in the county of Hillsborough and the
State of New Hampshire, quaiified to vote in Town affairs:

You are hereby notified that the annual meeting of the
Town of Pelham will be held at the Memorial School on Marsh
Road in said Pelham on Tuesday, March 11, 1997 at 10:00 in
the forenoon for the choice of town officers elected by official
ballot and other action required to be inserted on said officiai
ballot. The polls for the election of town officers and other
action required to be inserted on said ballot will cpen on said
date at 10:00 in the forenoon and will close not earlier than
8:00 in the evening.

You are hereby notified that the second session of the
annuai meeting of the Town of Pelham will be held at the
Memorial School on Marsh Road in said Pelham on Saturday,
March 15, 1997 at 9:00 in the forenoon to act on the matters
not to be acted upon by official ballot.
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You are hereby notified to choose all necessary town officials for the ensuing year.
(BY BALLOT)

OFFICIAL BALLOT REFERENDUM QUESTIONS
REFERENDUM QUESTION #1
Senate Bill 2 to read as follows:

"Shall the School District adopt the provision of RSA 40:13 to allow offictal ballot voting on
all issues before the School District Meeting.

REFERENDUM QUESTION #2

"Shall a Charter Commission be established for the purpose of revising the Municipal
Charter or establishing a new Municipal Charter?”

REFERENDUM QUESTION #3

Shall we modify the eiderly exemptions from property tax in the Town of Petham, based
on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers, to be as follows: for a person 65 years of age
up to 74 years, $25,000.00; for a person 75 years of age up to 80 years, exempt; for a
person 80 years of age and older, exempt. To gualify, the person must have been a New
Hampshire resident for at least five years, own the real estate individually or jointly, or if
the real estate is owned by such person's spouse, they must have been mared for at
least five years. In addition, the taxpayer must have a net income of not mere than
$19,000.00 or , if married, a combined net income of less than $28,100.00; and own net
assets not in excess of $60,000.00. (BY BALLOT) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMEN])

DELIBERATIVE SESSION

ARTICLE 11 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$804,000.00 (Eight Hundred Four Thousand Dollars) for the purpose of Constructing and
equipping a Police Station/Municipal Office Building to provide for the Town of
Pelham's urgent space needs regarding public meeting rooms, town coffices and Police,
on town owned fand known as the Mills Property (1990 Tax Map - 7, Lot - 237),

$246,000.00 (Two Hundred Forty Six Thousand Dollars) of such sum to be raised
through the issuance of bonds or notes under and in compliance with the Municipal
Finance Act, RES 33:1 et sec.,

to authorize the Selectmen to apply for, obtain and accept Federal, State or Other
Aid, if any, which may be available for equipping said, building and to comply with all laws
applicable to said equipping,

to authorize the Selectmen to issue, negotiate, sell and deliver said bonds and
notes, to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity and other terms thereof,

and to authorize the Selectmen to take any other action or to pass any other vote
relative thereto;

furthermore, to raise and appropriate $150,000.00 (One Hundred Fifty Thousand
Dollars) by taxation of which amount wifl be placed into the Municipal Building Capital
Reserve Fund previously estabiished for this purpose,

to authorize the withdrawal of $408,000.00 (Four Hundred Eight Thousand Dollars)
from funds now or hereafter place in the Municipal Building Capital Reserve Fund created
for this purpose (2/3 MAJORITY VOTE REQUIREDYBY SECRET BALLOT)
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{RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)}(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE) Bill McDevitt proposed that this article be indefinitely postponed.
Seconded. Motion carried. Article 11 is indefinitely postponed.

STANDARD ARTICLES

ARTICLE 12 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept
on behalf of the town, gifts, legacies and devises made to the town in trust for any
public purpose, as penmitted by RSA 31;19. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN) Moved and seconded. Article 12 is adopted.

ARTICLE 13 To hear the reports of auditors, agents and other committees
heretofore chosen and pass any votes relating thereto. (RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN) Moved and seconded. Article 13 is adopted.

ARTICLE 14 To see if the Town will vote to autherize the prepayment of taxes and
authorize the Tax Collector to accept payments in prepayment of taxes.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) Biill McDevitt offered an
amendment to this article. His amendment read as follows: “TO SEE IF THE TOWN
WILL VOTE TO AUTHORIZE THE PREPAYMENT OF TAXES AND AUTHORIZE THE
TAX COLLECTOR TO ACCEPT PAYMENTS IN PREPAYMENT OF TAXES UNTIL
OTHERWISE RESCINDED.” Seconded. Amendment is adopted. Afticle 14 as
amended is adopted.

ARTICLE 15 To see if the Town will authorize the Selectmen and Town Treasurer to
borrow in anticipation of taxes, such sums as may be necessary to meet the obligatory
expenses to the town as provided for in RSA 33:.7 (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMEN) Moved and seconded. Article 15 is adopted.

ARTICLE 16  To see if the Town will vote to accept the following roads as Town
roads:

Andrew Lane

Angus Way

Pondview Road

Wilshire Lane

RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) Lisa Escalera offered an
amendment to divide the question and voted on each road separately. Seconded.
Motion to divide is defeated. Bill McDevitt moved to amend this article so as to include
ALEXANDRA DRIVE on the list of roads to be accepted. Amendment is adopted. Article
16 as amended is adopted.

Lisa Escalera moved to take Article 25 out of order because the vote on this article has a
direct bearing on the outcome of Article 17. Seconded. Motion is adopted.

ARTICLE 25 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$260,000.00 (Two Hundred Sixty Thousand Dcllars) for Winter Maintenance

Series Department Appropriation
4017120 Winter $260,000.00

-19 -



for the purpose of segregating Winter Maintenance outside of the operating budget to
allow these funds to be utilized specifically for Winter Maintenance (BY PETITION){NOT
RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) Lisa Escalera moved to amend
Article 25 to change the figure to $225,000.00. Seconded. Discussion followed and
debate was limited. Amendment is adopted. Article 25 as amended is defeated.

ARTICLE 17 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$3,520,839.00 (Three Million Five Hundred Twenty Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty Nine
Dallars) for general town operations. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)(BUDGET COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS $3,290,429.00)

SELECTMEN BUDGET COMMITTEE
SERIES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION RECOMMENDATION
100/6000 Town Officers $43,181.00 $42,340.00
101/6010 Selectmen 163,377.00 148,214.00
102/6020 Town Clerk 42,995.00 42,995.00
103/6030 Tax Collector 47.871.00 47.871.00
104/6040 Treasurer 3,941.00 3,841.00
105/6050 Budget Committee 2,107.00 2,107.00
106/6540 Planning Department 103,776.00 97,855.00
107/6380 Trust Accounts 70.00 70.00
108/8200 Conservation Comm. 3,229.00 2,200.00
110/6070 Elections 2,500.00 2,500.00
112/6090 Town Buildings 79,137.00 79,137.00
113/6100 Appraisal 43 586.00 39,929.00
114/6200 Retirement 1086,687.00 106,687.00
120/6410 Technical Staff 100.00 100.00
121/6420 Computer 47 ,564.00 39,169.00
122/6600 Cable TV 27,588.00 27,588.00
200/6510 Police Department §934,134.00 911,563.00
202/6520 Fire/Ambulance 311,107.00 310,157.00
204/6150 Board of Adjustment 2,449 00 2,300.00
205/6160 Planning Beard 10,631.00 8,566.00
206/6250 insurance 208,420.00 190,000.00
207/6180 Legal 60,000.00 54,000.00
208/8530 Emergency Management 1,088.00 1,088.00
209/6550 Regional Planning 6,787.00 6,787.00
300/7510 Health (Officer) 11,303.00 2,603.00
302/7520 Health Services 39,473.00 1.00
30477220 Incinerator 200,755.00 199,790.00
4007110 Summer 177,248.00 170,033.00
401/7120 Winter 294,343.00 225,000.00
40477130 Street Lighting 23,564.00 22,877.00
408/7140 Bridges 500.00 500.00
500/8010 Library 124 .615.00 121,116.00
600/7810 Human Services 45,000.00 36,750.00
700/8110 Memornial Day 1,000.00 1,000.00
701/8120 Soldiers’ Aid 25.00 25.00
800/8010 Parks & Recreation 119,354.00 114,612.00
803/8300 Senior Citizens 35,084.00 34,818.00
900/6080 Cemetery 43,400.00 41.400.00
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1000/8455 Int. Temp Loans 5,000.00 5,000.00

1001/8454 Int. Notes 42 840.00 42,840.00
1002/8453 Princ. Notes 105,000.00 105,000.00
Total: $3,520,839.00 $3,290,429.00

Motion was made to adopt the Budget Committee’s figure of $3,290,429.00. Seconded.
Article 17, with the budget committee figure is adopted. $3,290,429.00 (T)

ARTICLE 18 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$625,380.00 (Six Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Three Hundred Eighty Dollars) for the
purpose of constructing and equipping a Police Station and Municipal Office Shell to
provide for the Town of Pelham's urgent space needs regarding public meeting rooms,
town offices and Police, on town owned land known as the Mills Property (1990 Tax Map
-7, Lot - 237),and to authorize the Selectmen to take any other action or pass any other
vote relative thereto, and authorize the withdrawal of $408,000.00 from the Municipai
Building Capital Reserve Fund created for this purpose. The balance of $217,380.00 is to
come from general taxation. This will be a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7, and will
not lapse untili the project is completed or in two years, whichever is less.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN}{NOCT RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE)(NOT SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
COMMITTEE) Bill McDevitt moved to indefinitely postpone Article 18. Motion carried.
Article 18 is indefinitely postponed.

ARTICLE 19 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate $460,000.00 {Four
Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars) for the purpose of constructing and equipping a police
station to provide for the Town of Pelham's urgent space needs for the Police
Department on town owned land know as the Mills property (1990 tax map-7,Lot 237),
and to authorize the Selectmen to take any cther action or pass any other vote refative
thereto, and authorize the withdrawal of $408,000.00 from the Municipal Building Capitai
Reserve Fund created for this purpose. The balance of $52,000.00 is to come from
general taxation.

This will be a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7, and will not lapse until the project
is completed or in two years, whichever is less. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)}NOT
SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE) Moction was
made to indefinitely postpone Article 19. Motion carried. Article 19 is indefinitely
postponed.

Motion was made to restrict reconsideration on Articles 18 & 19. Seconded. Articles 18
and 19 are subject to restricted reconsideration.

ARTICLE 20 To see if the Town will vote to change the purpose of the existing
Municipal Building Capital Reserve Fund ta include renovation of the Sherburne
School property, should it become available for a municipal use as was previously
designated for the Mills Froperty (ML 7-237). This article requires a 2/3 majority vote of
the wvoters present per RSA 35186, (23 MAJORITY VOTE REQUIRED)
{RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. Hand count was taken for final vote and
the resuits were: YES---55 NO---186  Article 20 is defeated.
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Motion to restrict reconsideration was made. Seconded. Article 20 is subject to restricted
reconsideration.

ARTICLE 21 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$150,000.00 (One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars) to be added to the Municipal Building
Capital Reserve Fund previously created for that purpose. (RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN}(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

(SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE) An amendment
was offered to add to the end of this article the following phrase; “WITHDRAWAL OF
FUNDS FROM THIS ACCOUNT CANNOT BE DONE WITHOUT APPROVAL OF
TOWN MEETING.” Seconded. After much discussion debate was limited. Amendment
is adopted. Vote on Article 21 as amended reguired a hand count. Results of the hand
count: YES—150 NO-—-113, Article 21 as amended is adopted. $150,000.00 (T).

Motion to restrict reconsideration on Article 21. Seconded. Article 21 is subject to
restricted reconsideration.

ARTICLE 22 (To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$232,000.00 (Two Hundred Thirty Two Thousand Dollars) to be placed in the Town
Health Insurance Fund established at the 1995 Town Meeting, for the purpose of paying
the annual health premiums and related heaith insurance administrative expenses, and
also including deductible and co-insurance amounts for eligible town employees.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)}{(RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. Article 22 is adopted. $232,000.00 (T)

Moction was made to allow the use of placards during town meeting. Seconded. Much
discussion followed and debate was limited. Motion is adopted.

ARTICLE 23 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$150,000.00 (One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars), $120,000.00 of this appropriation to
be offset by Federal Urban system Funds available to the Town, the balance of the
appropriation to be raised by taxation for the purpose of impilementing traffic
signalization in the Town Center at the following intersections: 1) Main Street, Nashua
Road and Route 111A, and 2) Route 111A and Old Bridge Street North. This will be a
non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7 and will not lapse until the project is compieted or in
three vyears. whichever is less. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN}NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)NOT
SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. After much discussion debate was limited and a vote was taken. Article 23 is
defeated.

Motion was made to restrict reconsideration on all previously enacted warrant articles.
Seconded. Articles 11 through 23 inclusive are subject to restricted reconsideration.

ARTICLE 24 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$180,018.00 (One Hundred Eighty Thousand Eighteen Doilars) to be offset by the State
Highway Grant for highway construction. (NO PORTION OF SAID AMOUNT SHALL BE
RAISED BY LOCAL TAXES) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)}RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. Article 24 is adopted. $180,018.00 (N)

-22 -



ARTICLE 26 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the amount of
$135,000.00 (One Hundred Thirty Five Thousand Dollars) for the purpose of
reconstruction and paving of St. Margaret's Drive including preparation and drainage;
and to autharize the withdrawal of $20,000.00 (Ninety Thousand Dollars) from funds now
or hereafter placed in the St. Margaret's Drive Fund. The baiance of $45,000.00 {Forty
Five Thousand Dollars) to be raised by general taxation. (RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF SELECTMENYRECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)
{(SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. Article 26 is adopted. $90,000.00 (N) $45,000.00 (T}

ARTICLE 27 To see if the Town wiil vote to raise and appropnate the sum of
$41,000.00 {Forty One Thousand Doilars} to purchase a 1997 4 x 4 backhoe for the
Highway Department, and authorize the withdrawal of $20,000.00 from the highway
equipment fund, created for that purpose, the balance of $21,000.00 to come from
general taxation. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN}NOT
RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) {SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE) Donaid Foss moved to amend this article by
increasing the total figure from $41,000.00 to $48,000.00 and the amount to be raised by
taxes increased to $28,000.00. Seconded. Amendment is adopted. Adicle 27 as
amended is adopted.  $20,000.00 {N)  $28,000.00 {T)

ARTICLE 28 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$29,946.00 (Twenty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Forty Six Doilars) for a 1997 4 x 4
pick up truck with an eight (8) foot plow for the Highway Department.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE){(SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
COMMITTEE} Moved and seconded. Article 28 is adopted.  $29,946.00 (T)

ARTICLE 29 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to exceed
$25,000.00 (Twenty-five Thousand Doilars} for the purpose of engaging professional
engineering services to complete a sewerage feasibility study for a portion of Route 38
from Atwood Road fo the Dracut Town Line and to authorize the Selectmen as agents of
the Town to enter into and execute all contractual agreements necessary to carry out the
project. This will be a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7 and will not lapse until the
project is completed or in two years, whichever is less. (RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF SELECTMEN)(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)
{(SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. After considerable discussion of the pros and cons, debate was limited. A
hand count was taken and the results were: YES—81 NO--125. Article 29 is defeated.

Motion to restrict reconsideration on Article 29. Seconded. Article 29 is subject to
restricted reconsideration.

ARTICLE 30 To see if the Town wiil vote to raise and appropriate the amount of
$17,000.00 (Seventeen Thousand Dollars) to be added to the Abbott Bridge Fund
previously established. {RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN){(RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)}(SCHEDULED BY
THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. Aricle 30
is adopted. $17,000.00 (T)

ARTICLE 31 To see if the Town will vote fo create an expendable general fund trust
fund under the provisions of RSA 31:19-a, to be known as the "Private Funding For the
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Abbott Bridge Restoration Trust Fund", for the purpose of accepting donations from
private contribution sources and grants to said Trust Fund at any time by private
individuals, corporations or trusts and or private charities and any cther sources pursuant
to RSA 31:19-a,lV,

and further to appoint the Selectmen as agents of the fund pursuant to RSA 31;32;

and further to provide that contributions and grants to said trust may be made at
any time by private individuais, corporations or trusts and/or private charities and any
other pursuant to RSA 31:19-alV. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)} Moved and seconded. Article 31 is adopted.

The audience gave Anne Hargreaves a large round of applause for the time, expense,
and effort she contributed to the Abbot Bridge Project.

ARTICLE 32 To see if the Town of Pelham will vote to approve the cost items included in
the collective bargaining agreement reached between the Town of Pelham and the
AFSCME Local #3657 Police Union which calls for the following increases in salaries
and benefits:

Year increase
April 1, 1996 o December 31, 1986 $7.674.00
January 1, 1997 to March 31, 1997 $3.,838.00

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $28,148.00 (Twenty Eight Thousand One
Hundred Forty Eight Dollars) for above said contract term such sum representing the
additional cost of the operating budget attributable te the increase in salaries and benefits
over those of the appropriation at current staffing levels paid in the prior fiscal
year.(SUBMITTED BYTHE BCARD OF SELECTMEN WITHOUT RECOMMENDATION)
(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE} Moved and seconded. After
significant discussion, debate was limited. A secret ballot vote was requested. Results
were: YES--152 NO---88 Article 32 is adepted. Contract is approved for
$11,512.00. $28,148.00 (T)

ARTICLE 33 To see if the Town will vote {o raise and appropriate the sum of
$25,161.00 {Twenty Five Thousand One Hundred Sixty One Dollars) for the purchase of
one (1) 1997 Ford Crown Victoria Police Cruiser. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMENYRECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE){SCHEDULED
BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE } Moved and seconded. Aricle
33 is adopted. $25,161.00 (T

Motion to restrict reconsideration on all previous articles. Seconded. Articles 11 through
33 inclusive are subject to restricted reconsideration,

ARTICLE 34 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate an operating transfer
to the existing General Fund Trust Maintenance of Recycling Facility in the amount of
$12,000.00 (Twelve Thousand Dollars) to be funded from surplus. (RECOMMENDED BY
THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)(RECCMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)
Moved and seconded. Debate was limited. Article 34 is defeated.

ARTICLE 35 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate an operating transfer
to the existing Capital Reserve Fund Land Fill Closure (at the incinerator} in the
amount of $1,00000 (COne Thousand Dollars} to be funded from surplus.
{(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)(RECOMMENDED BY THE -
BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and seccnded. Article 34 is adopted. $1,000.00 (N)
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Motian to restrict reconsideration on all previously enacted warrant articles. Seconded.
Avrticles 11 through 35 inclusive are subject to restricted reconsideration.

ARTICLE 36 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate an operating transfer

to the existing Capital Reserve Fund New Recycling Building in the amount of
$1,000.00 {One Thousand Dallars) to be funded from surplus. (RECOMMENDED BY
THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN}NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET
COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. Article 36 is defeated.

ARTICLE 37 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate an operating transfer
to the existing Recycling Equipment Fund in the amount of $2,000.00 (Two Thousand
Dollars) to be funded from surplus. {RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. Article 37 is defeated.

ARTICLE 38 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$30,000.00 (Thirty Thousand Dollars) for the purchase of defibrillators for use by the
Pelham Fire Department Ambulance. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)(RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)}{(SCHEDULED BY
THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. Article 38
is adopted. $30,000.00 (T)

ARTICLE 29 To see if the Town wiil vote to raise and appropriate an operating transfer
to the existing Ambulance Capital Reserve Fund from surplus, the sum of $15,000.00
(Fifteen Thousand Dellars) and authorize the usefransfer of the December 31, 1996 fund
balance for this purpose. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN){(RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. Article 39 is adopted. $15,000.00 (N)

Metion to restrict reconsideration on Articles 34-39. Seconded. Aricles 34 through 39
inclusive are subject to restricted reconsideration,

ARTICLE 40 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$15,000.00 {Fifteen Thousand Dollars) towards the Compensated Absence Fund for
the purpose of disbursing accrued eamed time o terminating employees.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)(RECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. An amendment was made and
subsequently withdrawn because it changed the purpose of this article too much. Article
40 as onginally presented and written is adopted. $15,000.00 (T)

ARTICLE 41 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$15,000.00 (Fifteen Thousand Dollars) to be paid to Consumers New Hampshire Water
Company for hydrant fees. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)(NOT RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. Article 41 is adopted. $15,000.00 (T}

ARTICLE 42 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$37,000.00 (Thirty Seven Thousand Dollars) to renovate and equip the Pelham Senior
Center as listed:

Structural Improvements

Reinforcement of the Dining Room Floor
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Refurbishing and Expanding the Kitchen Area
Improvement of the Recreation and Dining Area

to authorize the Selectmen to apply for, obtain and accept Federal, State, or cther
aid and grants, if any, which may be avaitable for this project and to comply with all laws
applicabie to the project;

this article to be a non-lapsing account pursuant to RSA 32:7 and will not lapse
until the project is completed or in two years whichever is less. {(RECOMMENDED BY
THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET
COMMITTEE)(SCHEDULED BY THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FLAN COMMITTEE)
Moved and seconded. Article 42 is adopted. $37,000.00 (T}

ARTICLE 43  To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate to the Emergency
Way Maintenance Fund established at the 1995 Town Meeting the sum of $2,000.00
(Two Thousand Dollars) for the maintenance of Emergency Ways established by the
Board of Selectmen as provided by RSA 231:59-a. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMEN)(RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. Article 43 is adopted. $2,000.00 (T)

ARTICLE 44 To see if the Town will vote to transfer to the Pelham Veterans Memorial
Park Trust Fund the amount of $1,679.00 (One Thousand Six Hundred and Seventy
Nine Dollars). This amount is equivalent to the amount of income generated from beach
sticker fees. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) (RECOMMENDED
BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. Article 44 is adopted.

$1,679.00 (N)

ARTICLE 45 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the amount of
$6,000.00 (Three Thousand Dollars) for the purpose of building a drainage swale at
Pelham Veterans Memorial Park to control washout of sand from the Town Beach area
and to authorize the withdrawal of $3,000.00 (Three Thousand Dollars) from the Pelham
Veterans' Memorial Park Maintenance Trust fund. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD
OF SELECTMEN)}{RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and
seconded. Article 45 is adopted.  $3,000.00 (N) $3,000.00 (T)

ARTICLE 46 To see if the Town will accept the provisions of 202-A:4-c,providing that
any Town at an annual meeting may adopt article authorizing indefinitely, until specific
recision of authority, the public library trustees to apply for, accept and expend,
without further action by the Town Meeting, unanticipated meney from a state, federal or
other governmental unit or a private source which becomes available during the fiscal
year. A pubiic hearing will be held prior to expending any such funds. (RECOMMENDED
BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) Lisa Escalera offered an amendment to change the
wording from “WITHOUT FURTHER ACTION BY TOWN MEETING” to “BY ACTION
OF TOWN MEETING” and delete the last sentence completely. Seconded. After
considerable discussion, Lisa Escalera withdrew her amendment and offered a second
amendment which would delete the phrase...”"AND EXPEND BY FURTHER ACTION OF
TOWN MEETING”... and have the phrase ... “TO APPLY FOR, ACCEPT AND
EXPEND..."read ..."TO APPLY FOR AND ACCEPT"....Delete the last sentence and
replace it with ..."TOWN MEETING ACTION IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO EXPENDING
ANY SdUCH FUNDS."” Seconded. Amendment is adopted. Article 46 as amended is
adopted.
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ARTICLE 47 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to sell to
Robert Peterson a parcel of land known as Map 4 Lot 75 for a sum of $30,000.00 which
was previously agreed through a 1996 purchase and sales agreement. Said lot was
approved for sale through a 1987 warrant article which has lapsed. This article conforms
to RSA 80:42. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN)(RECOMMENDED
BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. Article 47 is adopted.

ARTICLE 48 To see if the Town will vote to authonze the Selectmen to sell property
located at M&L 002-049 to Anne Hince in the amount of $1.00 plus all legal fees for such
transfer. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN){RECOMMENDED BY
THE BUDGET COMMITTEE} Moved and seconded. Article 48 is adopted.

ARTICLE 49 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$35,000.00 (Thirty Five Thousand Dollars) for the reclamation and reforestation of the
portion of Elmer G. Raymond Memorial Park previously mined for gravel;

and to authorize up to $30,000.00 (Thirty Thousand Dollars) to be withdrawn from
either the Pelham Forestry Maintenance Fund or any trust funds or certificates of deposit
which have been previously set aside for the original project;

the balance of $5,000.00 (Five Thousand) to come from general taxation;

this will be a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:7 and will not lapse until the project
is complete or in three years, whichever is less. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN)}(RECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE) Jim Druding offered
an amendment that would change the second and third paragraphs to read; “AND TO
AUTHORIZE UP TOQ $30,975.00 TO BE WITHDRAWN FROM SURPLUS RESULTING
FROM THE SALE OF GRAVEL; AND THE REMAINING AMOUNT OF $4,025.00 TQ
BE WITHDRAWN FROM THE FORESTRY MAINTENANCE FUND.” The first and
fourth paragraphs would stay the same. Seconded. Amendment is adopted. Article 49
as amended is adopted. $35,000.00 (N)

ARTICLE 50 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of
$39,216.00 for health and weifare support services for Pelham residents. These funds
are for services provided by:

City of Nashua Mediation Services $ 500.00
Home Health and Hospice Care $20,000.00
Gateway Family Heaith Center $ 750.00
St. Joseph's Community Services $ 1,560.00
Center for Life Management $11,406.00
Greater Salem Caregivers $ 4,000.00

Rape and Assault Support Services Inc. $ 1,000.00

{(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMENYRECOMMENDED BY THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE) Moved and seconded. Article 50 is adopted. $39,216.00 (T)

ARTICLE 51 To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $800.00
{Nine Hundred Dollars) for Pelham forestry and to authorize the withdrawal of this amount
from the interest earned from the Peiham Forestry Maintenance Fund established for this
purpose pursuant to RSA 31:113; {o continue the Multiple Use Forest Management &
Education Program for all of Petham's forest land as first undertaken under article 33
voted at the 1992 Town Meeting. This will be a non-lapsing account per RSA 32:3 VI and
will not lapse for three years. (NO PORTION OF SAID AMOUNT SHALL BE RAISED BY
t.OCAL TAXES) (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF
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SELECTMENXRECOMMENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE} Moved and
seconded. Article 51 is adopted. $900.00 {N)

ARTICLE 52 To see if the Town will vote pursuant to RSA 31:110 to establish a Town
Forest, TM Lot #9-65, to be known as the Thomas J. Kirby Town Forest. In accordance
with R3A 31:112, the Thomas J. Kirby Town Forest shall be managed by the Forestry
Committee for the purposes described in RSA 31:111. This parcel consists of
approximately thirty acres of Town property which is located off Woodlawn Circle.
(RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) An amendment was offered by
Gayle Ploof to read as follows: “TO SEE IF THE TOWN WILL VOTE PURSUANT TO
RSA 31:110 TO ESTABLISH A TOWN FOREST, TM LOT #9-65, TO BE KNOWN AS
THE THOMAS J. KIRBY TOWN FOREST, IN ACCORDANCE WITH RSA 31:112; THE
THOMAS J. KIRBY TOWN FOREST SHALL BE MANAGED BY THE FORESTRY
COMMITTEE FOR THE PURPOSES DESCRIBED IN RSA 31:111; THIS PARCEL
CONSISTS OF APPROXIMATELY SIXTY FOUR +/- ACRES OF TOWN PROPERTY
WHICH IS LOCATED BETWEEN WOODLAWN CIRCLE AND ARLENE DRIVE.”
Moved and seconded. Amendment is adopted. Article 52 as amended is adopted.

ARTICLE 53 To see if the Town will vote to disconfinue the Pelham 250th
Anniversary Fund, an expendable general trust fund established under RSA 31:19a,
said fund having been created under Article 33 at the 1594 Town Meeting. Said funds,
with accumuiated interest to date of withdrawal, are to be transferred to the Town of
Pelham general fund. (RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN) Moved
and seconded. Article 53 is adopted.

John Lavailee, Chairman of the Budget Committee, stated the total taxable figure for the
1997 Town Meeting is $3,986,900.00. The nontaxable figure is $346,597.00, making the
total $4,333,497.00. This reflects a net increase of $129,138.00 over the oniginal Budget
Committee recommended figure.

Respectfully Submitted,

Linda Derby, CTC
Town Clerk
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TAX COLLECTOR™S REPORT
FORM ¥5-61 Sumeary of Tax Accoumts Page |
: Fiscal Year Ended: 12/731/97

TOMN OF PELHM - - oo Levies Of = = = = === - -

Uncollected Taxes -
Beginning of Fiscal Year:

Property Taxes........... 85,747, 13
Resident TaxeS...........
Land Use Change Tax...... 15,2790
Yield Taxes....oeruvus
Utilities . cuciniacnans

Taxes Committed to Collector
During Fiscal Year:
Property Taxes........... 13,049,177 75

Land Use Change Tax..... 18,640, 2
Yield TS .awsuusss 16:532. 09
Utilities......

Added Taxes:

Property TaXes........... 1,487, B5
Resident TaxeS..v.viives.

(verpayments:
Property Texes.......... 12,844, 00 37,966 00

Yield Taxes......ccoeuseis
Wilities.cooiaiiininnnn

Interest Collected on

Delinguent Taxes......... 10,875, 86 48,583, 74
Peralties Collected on
Property Taxes........... 4,699 0@
Residemt TaXes...........
Other TaXes..ivvveviinans BB 24,82
Total Debits 13:129,51% 864,322 87 .28
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TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT

FORM ¥G-6) Summary o¢ Tax Accounts Far 2
Fiscal Year Ended: 12/31/57
TANOFFRHM = = - leviesof = - - -~ - - - -
1997 19% Prior
Remitted to Treasurer -
During Fiscal Year:
Property Taxes........... 12,388,685, 46 422,342 42
Resident Taxes...........
Land Use Change Tax...... 5250 @ 14,773, 60
Yield Taxes..ocvveennvans 1271509
Uitities . vvennnennnnn,
Interest on Taxes........ 19:875. 06 48,588, 74
Cost/Pemalties.......... X% 4,738
Discount Allowed:
Abatements Allowed:
Propetty Taxes ..v...v... 49,786 ¥ 38:519 a2
Resident Taxes..........
Land Uss Change Tax...... 2,908 60 500,
Yield Taxes..soviavesreas 5817, %
(1147 53T SO
Tax Lien Executad During Year!
B, T
Deeded to Town During Year:
16588
Urcotlected Taxes -
End of Fiscal Year:
Property Taxes........... 624,977, 64
Resident Taxes...........
Land Use Change Tax...... 1.3 00
Yield TaXes. ..cocevvrunss
Utilities......voeuveens
Total Credits 13,129,511 82 84,33 97 .08
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TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT

FORM M5-61 Sumeary of Tax Lien Accounts Page 3
Fiscal Year Endede 12/31/97
TOWN OF FEEHPE 000 e levies of - - ------ -
1955 1935 Prior
Balance of Unredecwsed Taxes ~
Begiming ot Fiscal Year: 235,888, 22 93,953 52
Tax Llens ExeCuted t0 Town
During Fiscal Year: 389,542. 59
Subsequent Tawes Paid:
Over Payments:
24831 &0
Interest Collected:
After Lien Execution: 5:140.13 3538 6 12:201. 15
Collected Redemption Costs:
1,934, 89 1,492 9 1,758
Total Debits 443,447, 89 274,768, 88 127,948, 17
Remittance to Treasurer -
During Fiscal Year:
Redespticns 196,998, 37 173,883, 45 85+213 28
Imterest and Costs
{Atter Lisn Execution) 11.874. 3 37,6768 15,994
Apatement of Unredeeped Taxes:
2,985, %2
Deeded 10 Town During Year:
(Taxes, Inmterest & Costs) 8. 3 47668 1,168 25
Urredeemed Taxes -
End of Fiscal Year: 192,128 21 B427.91 B.S72 81
Total Credits 443,447, 83 274,763, 88 127,948, [7
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STATEMENT TOWN CLERK'S ACCOUNTS

RECEIPTS

Motor Vehicle Permits

1997

6 Main Street

Pelham, New Hampshire 03076-3723

$1,117,838.00

Dog Licenses 4,741.50

Dog Penaities 156.00
State Dog License Fees 517.50
Animal Population Fees 1,898.00

Municipal Agent Fees 28,080.00
Title Fees 4,678.00
Charge for Returned Checks 350.00
Federal Liens, Filing Fees, Miscellaneous 5,484 53
Vital Statistics 10,307.00
Hunt/Fish Licenses 5,682.75

Total $1,179,833.28
RECEIPTS REMITTED TO TREASURER
Motor Vehicle Permits $1,117.838.00
Dog Licenses, Penaities & Fees 7,413.00
Municipal Agent Fees 28,080.00
Title Fees 4,678.00
Charge for Returned Checks 350.00
Federal Liens, Ucc's, Miscellaneous 5,484 53
Vital Statistics 10,307.00
Hunt/Fishing Licenses 5,682.75

Total $1,179,833.28

Respectfully Submitted,
Linda Derby, CMC,CTC
Town Clerk
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TOWN OF PELHAM

6 Main Street
Pelham, New Hampshire 03076-3723

REPORT OF THE PELHAM ASSESSOR
To the Residents of Pelham:

The 1997 Revaluation of all properties in the Town was completed in September
of 1997. Vision Appraisal software has been installed, enabling ali assessing
functions to be done by computer. All property records now show a detail of the
construction of the building, a breakdown of land value, a sales and value histery and
a sketch and photo of the building. Taxpayers are welcome to visit my office to
request a copy of their property record.

The final net taxable value for 1996 at 56% of valuation was $289,772,131. In
comparison, the net taxable value for 1997 at 100% valuation is $497,981,665.

There was a decline of new businesses in 1997. Dunkin Doughnuts opened
for business in Peilham Plaza. Chunky's Cinema has been approved to install three
more movie screens. The site plan for Rite Aid Pharmacy has been approved and it
is hoped that construction will begin in the spring of 1998. There were three new
residential subdivisions in 1997. They include: Michelle Avenue, Marsh Road and
Simpson Road with a second phase in 1998.

Yield taxes, which are applied when trees are harvested, were assessed in the
amount of $16,532 in 1997, as compared to $7,533 in 1996. This figure is somewhat
inaccurate as some of the wood & timber that was cut in 1997 will not be billed until
April of 1998.

Current Use lien reteases resulted in $38,640 in revenue in 1997, as compared
to $52,279 in 1996. There are several pending subdivisions which will preduce
current use release revenue in 1998. Since 1986, Current Use lien releases have
generated over $789,000. This has proven to be an important source of revenue for
Pelham. However, the amount of taxes shifted to others as a result of land assessed
under Current Lise was nearly $179,280 in 1997 alone.

Another item, like Current Use assessment, which results in taxes being shifted to
others is exemptions. A total of 654 exemptions were granted in 1997 in the
following categories:

Planning/Building Dept. $35-7811 / Assessing Dept. 635-3317 / Fax 6356954
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Type of Exemption Number of Taxes Shifted

Exemptions to others
Elderly Total Exempt 63 $174,553
Opt. Adj. Elderty Exemption 39 $ 25643
Blind Exemption 3 $ 1973
Solar Heat Exemption 13 $ 1328
Wood Heat Exemption 41 $ 1485
Standard Veterans Exemption 490 $ 49,200
Disabled Veterans Exemption 5 $ 7,000
TOTAL 654 $261,182

Any property owner wishing to apply for an exemption or for a Current Use-land
assessment is reminded to complete and return the appropriate application by April
15, 1998 in order to qualify for the 1998 tax year. Anycne that is applying for an
abatement or Elderly Exemption, now has until March 1 following notice of the
November tax bill, to file. Applications are available in the Assessor's Office at the
Town Hall. Due to changes in State Law effective January 1, 1998, all recipients of
the Elderly Exemption will need to reapply for the exemption in 1998. All current
recipients of the exemption will receive a letter and application from the Assessor's
Office. The change in the law affects the income amount allowed to qualify for the
exemption. All applicants must now include their Social Security payments as part of
their income. The new allowable amount of income in order to qualify is $19,000 for
a single person and $28,100 for a married couple. These amounts were adopted by
ballot vote in the 1997 election. Any resident is welcome to telephone me at
635-3317 at any time and | will gladly answer any exemption or assessing questions
that you may have.

Respectfully Submitted,

Janet G. Reardon
Assessor, Town of Pelham

-34 -



TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAIL, STATEMENTS
AND SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996
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INCEFTINDENT AUDITOR'S REPCRT
March 11, 1357

Board of Selectmen
Town of Pelham
Palham, New Hampshire

Wa have audited the accmmpanying general purpese financial statexmenzs cf
the Town of Pelham, New Earpshire, as of and for the vear ended December
31, 1996, as listed in the table of contents. These general pucscose

financial statements are the respoRsibility of the Town's mahagemenc. OCur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial

statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in acccrdance with generally aczepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and pexform the audit T2
cbtain reasonable asyurance abcut whether the geheral puposde financial
statements are Z-ee of material misstatement, An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures iz the gereral pu-pose Zinancial statements. An auciz alse
includes assessing the acsounting principles used and significan:
estimates mage by management, as well as evaluazting the overall generzal
purpgse financial statement presentation. We believe that our augdit
provides a reasorazle basis for our crinicn.

The general purpcse financial statements referred to above do not include
the general fixed assets account group, which shouid be included ia order
to conform with generallv accepted acsounting principles. The acpunts
that should he recorfec as general Zixed assets are not kaown.

In our opinien, excset for the effect on the financial statements of The
omission described iz the preceding paragzaph, the general purpose
financial statements referzed to in the first paragraph present Zaizly, in
all materiepl respects, the firancial pesition of the Town of Pelram, New
Hampahire, as of December 31, 1296 and the results of its operaticcs and
the cash figws of its proprietary and nonexpendable trust funds fzr the
year then ended in confecrmify with generally accepted accouncing
principles.

Qur audit was made for the purpose cf forming an oplnion oo the general
purpese financial starements takez as a whole, The accompanving cszbining
and individual fund financial statements listed as supporting schedcles in
the Table of Contents are rzresented for purcoses of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the general purpose financial stazements cf
the Town ci Pelham, New Hampshire., Such informatieon has been sc=iazzed o
the auditing procedures arpliec irn the audit c¢f the general purpcse
financial statement$ anc, in cur opinicn, is fairly steted in all matesial
respects in relation to the ceneral purpose financial statements haken as
a2 whole.

Respectfully submitted,

Mosens Riakh D

MASON + RICH PROFESSIONAL ASSICIATION
Accountants and Rudicars
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Notes to Financial Statements:

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

Basis of Presentation

Basis of Acceunting

Budgetary Accounting

Depcsits and Temporary Investments

Investments

Inventory

Property by Tax Liens and Tax Deeded Properties
Deferred Revenue

Compensated Absences

Total Columns (Memorandum Only) on Combined Statements

A.

Ragnmmaommonow

Note
Note
Note
Note
Note
Note
Note
Note
Nozte
Note
Note

2 -
3 -

@ -~ o e
¥

9-

Froperty Tax

Due To Other Governments

Individual Interfund Receivables and Payable
Changes in Long-Term Debt

Reserves and Designations of Fund Equity
Budgeted Decrease in Fund Balance

Pension Plan

Deferred Compensation Plan

10 - Risk Management
11 - Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs
12 - Litigation

-a37-

Page
No

10-15

16-17
17
17
18-18
15-22
22
22-23
23
23
24
24



SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources -
Budget and Actual

Schecdule of Expenditures and Cther Financing
Uses - Budget and Actuyal

Special Revenue

Combining Balance Sheet

Combining $tatement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Balances

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Balance Sheet - All Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Fund Balances - All Expendable Trust Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

- All Agency Funds
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B-1 28
B-2 29
c- 30
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xhibit A

TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31, 1996

Fiduciary Account
Govermmemal Fund Types  Fund Types Group

Trost General Torals
Special and Loog-Tem (Memorandum
General Revenuc Agency Debt Only}
ASSETS

Cash $4,808,910 $13,318 $934,449 % - $5,756,677
Temporary Investnents 133,294 - 1,275,968 - 1,409,262
Investments - - 959,531 - 959,531
Taxes Receivable 1,094,055 - - - 1,094,055
Accours Receivable 22,866 - - - 22,866
Due From Other Funds (Note 4) 402,495 1,003 50,036 - 453,554
Prepaid Expenses 57,449 - - - 57,449
Invenrory 72 . - - 72
™ -perty by Tax Lien and Title 46,122 - - - 46,122

. aount t0 be Provided in Future Years - - - -
for Retirement of Long-Term Debt - - 1,099,315 1,099,315
TOTAL ASSETS $6,565,263  $14321 83219984 51099315 §10,898.R83

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Pert of This Financial Staternent

{Condnued)
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{Continued)
TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31, 1996

Fiduciary Account
Gavernmental Fund Types  Fund Types CGroup

Trust General Totals
Special and Long-Term (Memorandum
General Revenue Agency Debt Only)
L AND AN
Lisbili
Accounts Payable 578,505 $ - s - ) - £78,503
Accrued Liabilities 44,006 - - - 44,006
Due to Other Governments (Note 3} 5,096,640 - - - 5,096,640
Due to Other Funds (Note 4) 51,039 - 402,495 - 453,534
Deferred Revenue 55,971 - - - 55971
Lease-Purchase Obligation (Note 5) - - - 24 805 24,805
Drue to Specific Individuals - - 1,191,377 - 1,191,377
7 mpensated Absences Payahle - - - 234,510 234,510
. .ads Payable (Note 5) - - . 840,000 840,000
Toral Liabilities 5,326,159 - 1,593,872 1,099,315 8019346
Fund Balance
Reserved for Encumbrances 199,600 - - - 199,600
Reserved for Prepaids 72 - - - 72
Reserved by Trust Instrument - - 288,710 - 288,710
Unreserved: - - - - -
Designated for Capital Actuisition - - 843,851 - 843,851
‘Designated by Trust Instruments - - 493,551 - 493,351
Designated for Specific Purposes - 14,321 - - 14,321
Undesignated 1,035,432 - - - 1,039,432
Total Fund Balance 1,239,104 14,321 1,626,112 - 2,879,537

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE ~ 86565265 ~$§14,321 55,219,984 51099515 10,858,885

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of This Finencial Statement
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Types
Totals
Speciall  Expendsble (Memorandum
General Revenue Trust Only}
Revennes
Taxes $13,785906 § - $ - $13,785,906
Licenses, Permits and Fees 1,112,699 660 - 1,113,359
Intergovernmental 522,461 - - 522,461
Cherpes for Services 142,311 8,556 - 150,867
Interest and Dividends 118,741 225 62,401 181,367
Miscellanegus 181,091 - -16,250 197,341
Totml Revenues 15,863,209 9441 78,651 15,951,301
Expenditures

Town:
General Government 989,489 1,406 331,049 1,321,944
Public Safety 1,199,757 1,389 - 1,201,146
Highways amd Strects 488,339 - 48,518 537,757
Sanitation 187,368 - 11,957 199,325
Health 39,290 - - 39,290
Welfare 30,307 - - 30,307
Cuiture and Recreztion 280,996 2,516 2,846 286,358
Conservation g,138 - - 8,138
Debt Service - Principal 105,000 - - 105,000
- Interest. 42 641 - - 42,641
Capital Outlay 470,760 - - 470,760

Total Town Expenditures $3,842 585 55311 §394,770 54,242,666
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of This Financial Statement

{Continued)
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(Continued)

TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 1996

Fiduciary
Govemnmental Fimd Types Fund Types
Totals
Special Expendable (Memorandum
Creneral Revenue Trust Only)
Other Governmenm] Units:
School District Assessment $10,096,640 § - $ - 510,096,640
Connty Taxes 1,144,812 - - 1,144,812
Total Other Governmental Units 11,241,452 - - 11,241,452
Total Expenditures 15,084,037 5311 394,770 15,484,118
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
“yver Expenditures 779,172 4,130 (316,119) 457,183
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 85,016 723 648,518 734,257
Operating Transfers (Cut) {592,232) - - (592,232)
Total Other Finaneing
Sources (Uses) (507,216) 723 648,518 142,025
Exceas (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources (U'ses) 271,956 4,853 332,399 609,208
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 967,148 9,468 994,263 1,970,879
Fund Balances, End of Year §1,239,104 $14,321  $1,326,662 52,580,087

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of This Financial Starement
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Revenues
Taxes
Licenses, Permits and Fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Interest and Dividends
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

E  ditures

Lown

General Government
Public Safety

Highways and Streets
Sanication

Health

Welfare

Culture and Recreation
Conservarion

Debt Service - Principal

- Interest
Capital Outlay
Total Town Expenditures

Other Governmental Units:
School District Assessment
County Taxes

Total Other Governmental Units

Total Expenditures

TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Exhibit C

General Fund Special Revenue Funds
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual  (Unfavorable)
$13,710,840  §13,785,906 $75066 § - - -
900,000 1,112,699 212,699 - 660 -
509,151 522,461 13,310 - - -
84,000 142,311 58,511 - B,556 8,556
50,000 118,741 68,741 - 225 225
151,000 181,091 30,051 - - .
15,404,991 15,865,209 458218 - 9,441 B.781
982,514 989,489 (6,975) - 1,406 (1,406)
1,296,279 1,199,757 96,522 - 1,389 (1,389
493,185 488,839 4,346 - - -
183,636 187,368 (3,732) - - -
47,016 39,290 7,726 - - -
49,025 30,307 18,718 - - -
296,628 280,996 15,632 - 2,516 (2,516)
10,838 8138 2,700 - - -
105,000 105,000 - - - -
47,525 42,641 4,884 - - -
632,239 470,760 161,479 - - -
4,143,885 3,842,585 301300 - 5,311 {5311)
10,096,640 10,096,640 - - . -
1,144,812 1,144,812 - - - -
11,241,452 11,241,452 - - - -
$15,585,337 $15,084,057 $301.300 § - $5,511 ($5,311)
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of This Financial Statement
(Continued)

-43 -



Exhijbit C

TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

General Fund Special Revenue Funds
Vanance Vanance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)  Budget Actugl  (Unfavorable)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures £19,654 $779,172 5750518 § - $4,130 £3,470
Other Fipancing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 85,016 85,016 - - 723 723
Operating Transfers (Cut) (592,232) {592,232) - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (507,216) (507,216) - - 723 723
Ex.css (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources
(Usss) (Budgetary Basis) (Note 7) (487,562) 271,956 759,518 . 4853 4,193
Adjustments:
Nonbudgeted Special Revenue Funds
Not Inciuded in Adopted Budget - - - - - -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources
(Uses) (GAAP Basis) (487,562) 271,956 759,518 - 4,853 4,193
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 967,148 967,148 - 9,468 9,468 -
Fund Balances, End of Year $479,586 $1,239,104 $759,518 $59,468  $14,321 $4,193

The Accompanying Notes are an Integra]l Part of This Financial Stazement
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Exhibit D

TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Fiduciary
Fund Types
Non-
expendable
Trust
Interest and Dividends $15,400
New Funds 1L750
Miscellaneous -
Total Operating Revenues 25,150
Operating Fxpenses
Trust Income Distributions 8,735
Total Operating Expenses 8,735
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenses 16,415
QOther Finamcing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers (Qur) -
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenses
end Other Financing Sources ({'ses) 16,415
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 283,035
Fund Balances, End of Year $299,450

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Pant of This Financial Statement
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TOWN OF PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996

Fiduciary
Fund Types
Non-
expendable
Trusts
Cash Flows ing Activities
Excess (Deficicncy) of Revenues Over Expenses - Exhibit D $16,415
Adjustments to Reconcile Excess (Deficiency) of Revennes
Over Expenses to Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities:
Interest and Dividends on Investments (13,400)
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts Payable (2,401}
Total Adjustments (15,801)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Acavities 614
Cash Flows from Investing Activiges
Interest on Investments 13,400
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,014
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 196,290
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $210,304

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of This Financial Statement
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Town of Pelham
Operating Budget
Annual Report

Department

1995
Expended

1996
Expended

1997
Town

Appropr.

1997
Expended

1998 1958
Selectmen’s Budget Comm.
Budget Budget
Recommend Recommend

MEMORIAL DAY
Salaries
Suppiies
Utilities
Gas,Oil,etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Specials

TOTAL

SOLDIERS AID
Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Qil etc
Repairs
Rentais
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Specials

TOTAL

INTEREST ON TAN

Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Qil etc
Repairs
Rentals
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Specials
TOTAL

INT. L-T DEBT
Salaries
Supplies
Utilities
Gas,Oil,etc
Repairs
Rentais
New Equip
Expenses
Misc/Specials

TOTAL

962.00

1.000.00

1.000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00 +,000.00

962.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

1.000.00

1,000.00 1,000.00

25.00 25.00

5,000.00

25.00 25.00

5,000.00 §,000.00

47,775.00

42,641.00

5,000.00

42,840.00

43,435.00

5,006.00 5,000.00

38,006.00

33,518.00

47,775.00

42,641.00

42,840.00

- 181 -

43,435,00

38,006.00 33,516.00




Town of Pelham
Operating Budget

tal Répd
1998 1998
1997 Selectmen's Budget Comm.
1995 1996 Town 1997 Budget Budget
Department Expended Expended Appropr. Expended | Recommend Recommend
PRIN. L-T DEBT
Salaries - - - - - -
Supplies - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - -
Gas,Qilefc - - - - - -
Repairs - - - - - -
Rentals - - - - - -
New Equip - - - . - -
Expenses 103,000.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 105,000.00
Misc/Speciats - - - - - -
TOTAL 105,000.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 105,000 .00 105,000.00
TOTAL OF ALL DEPARTMENTS
Salaries 1,732,616.00 1,855,909.00 | 1,940,927.00 1,910,522.00 | 2,025,256.12  2,038,167.52
Supplies 138,385.00 153,830.00 164,560.00 154,622.00 175,648.14 166,392.00
Utilities 64 572.00 63,756.00 5§9,570.00 68,233.00 74,196.55 67,761.60
Gas, Oil,eic 60,653 Q0 €1,851,00 82,724.00 62,118.00 83,362.84 79,930.36
Repairs 59,6826.00 83,801.00 67,736.00 93,794.00 87,252.42 81,401.52
Rentals 146,091.00 165,628.00 132,794.00 122,882.00 221,667.63 202,021.00
New Equip 27,479.00 56,512.00 30,341.00 25,637.00 32,667.39 33,003.00
Expenses £99,068 00 791,102.00 744.853.00 763,541.00 838,311.39 807,749.00
Misc/Specials 73,406.00 53,370.00 56,824.00 89,080.00 70,065.65 72,668.00
TOTAL 3,002,106.00 3,286,059.00] 3,290,429.00 3,290,422.00 | 360842813  3,549,094.00 ;

i
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A9DSDTRHBUDGET CHART

Based on Actual Appropriations
categoridzed by the various budget sections

Capital Outlay

15% Gengr | Gov't

Highway
10%
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE MS-7
DEFPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION

...

61 So.Spring St., P.O.Box 1122
Concord, NH 03302-1122

(603) 271-3397
VI
g}-’_ﬂnvh‘
5 R
-b}% ‘f/

BUDGET FORM FOR TOWNS WHICH HAVE ADOPTED
THE PROVISIONS OF RSA 32:14 THROUGH 24

BUDGET OF THE TOWN
OF Pelham

NH.

Approprigtions and Estimates of Revenue for the Ensuing Year January 1,_1397  to December 31, 1357 or
for Fiscal Year From

to

MPORTANT. Pleases mad RSA 32:5 appiicabie to all municipalities.

f. Use Mis form o list the entire budget in the appropriale recommended and nol recommended area.  This means the
gperating budget and all special and individuai warmant articies must be posted.

2. Hold at least one public hearing on this budget.

3. When complated, 8 copy of the budgat must be pasted with the warrant. Anolher capy must be placed on file with the town
derk, and a copy sent io the Daparment of Ravenue Administration at the addrass above.

THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT

Date 2/12/98
(s
=y

7

L/-/ A 4&{2@?{U

(Remitdd 1997)
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Year

L1994

Budget - Town of

Pelham

MS5-7

(including communications)

I el Bl e - e i B
RECOMMENDED HOT AECOMMENDED RECOMMENDED ROT RECOMHEWDED
L GENERAL GOVERNHMENT iy
4130-4133 | Exscutlva 42,340 42,340 42,383 (43) 42,382
1:40-4143 || Election, Req.& vital 45,495 44,807 46,075 2,405 47,075 {1,000}
¢150-4151 || vinanclal Administration 16 241,372 233,301 393,658 {15,464) 283,591 10,067
1152 Revaluation of Property 30,929 33,194 38,175 1,051 36,960 1,215
1153 Legal Expansa 54,000 75,401 70,000 0 60,000 10,000
11554159 || reraonnal Admintecration 106,687 114,283 115,337 0 115,337 0
1191-4153 | Franning & Zoning 30, 3] 108,721 112,299 142,587 11,201 129,491 13,096
194 Genozal coveranent 79,137 72,315 80,995 (2,000} aL,882 (887)
4195 Comatarias 41,400 35,436 43,485 9,632 42,285 1,200
ass tneurance 19G, 000 184, 805 189,211 0 192,500 (3,289)
419 :S:::t.islng & Reglonal 6,787 6,787 6,737 o 5,787
4198 Other General Govarnment o} o 0 4] 0
PUBLIC SAPETY
s210-4214 || Polica 20,14, 21 939,711 990,871 1,079,783 2,825 994,705 85,078
4215-4219 || Ambuiance 4] 0 0 C 0 4]
4220-4225 || Fira 310,157 307,602 377,100 (2,154) 376,399 701
4240-4245 i sui1ding Inepaction O [¢] 0 0 0
4290-4298 || Emergency Management 1,080 402 1,088 1,000 a8
4299 Othar Public safaty e} 0 0 [} o] QO

AIRPORT/AVIATION
CENTER

$3101-4309 u Alrport Oparaticne




- 98l -

Year 1998 Budget - Town of paipapg MS-7
apprepriations Actaal SELECTHEN 'S APPROPAIATIONS XNSUING NUDOET COMRITTEN'S APPACPEIATIONS
FURFOBE OF APPRCPRIATIONS warz Prlor Taar As Rxpenditures PISCAL TRAR THIUING FISCAL TEAR
Acaot . 3 (RAKR 32:3,V) Artd Approved BY DRA Prior Yaar
wor NOT RECOMMITED
HIGHWAYS & ETREETS
4311-4312 |} Admin., Alghways & Streste 395,033 395,58A 467,008 (622) 447,695 19,313
4313 Bridges 500 [¢] 500 0] 500
4316 Strast Lighting 22,877 23,677 24,1581 Q 24,151
ans other o 0 C 0 0 0
SAHITATION
4321-4323 221‘{:(‘7?—:5:01 id waste 199,790 220,338 239, /9], {34} 230,143
4324 5011d Wnate Disposal ] 0 0 o] 6]
4325 so1id Waste Clean-up c 9
A326-4132% Sewags Collection & 0
Disposal & Othar
WATER DISTRIBUTION
& TREATMENT
433124332 || Admin. & water services 25 15,000 14,244
4335-4339% || Water Trestmeat,
Conservation & Othar 0 Q
ELECTRIC
4351-4352 Adminh. & Genaration O
4353 Purchame Costs O
4354 Electric Equipment Maint.
4359 othar Blectric Coats 0 0
HERLTH AND WELFARE
dali-d4l4 dmin. & Pest Control
Rdmin. @ Teat contre 2,503 2,753 2, 662 (59) 2:662
e gt ther 39,217 37,656 i, 166 0 38,066
44414442 Adnmin. & Direct Assiatanca 36,750 24,952 20,000 o} 30,000
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Year _ 1998 Budget - Town of _Pelham MS-7
Appropriations Agtual BELECTHEN' 'S APFROPRIATIONS ENBUIRG BUDGET COMMITTEE'S RAFFROPATATIONY
PURPOAX OF APPROPRIATIONS warr Prisy Yaar As Expenditures FISCAL EMSUING FISCAL YEAR

roat . | (RER 3213,V) ared Approved By DRA Prior Taar
RECOMVIIVEED wor RECOMMENDED wor
ey ;:;’::gg:armenul Welfars 0 0 Q 0 gl Q
A445-4447 Vendor Faymants & Othsr o 0 Q 0 0 0
CULTURE &
RECREATION
4520-4529 || Parke & Recreation 149,430 146,429 154,498 (1,162} :149,579 4,919
45504538 || cibracy 32 121,116 112,698 163,222 30,755 124,978 38,244
1583 ratrictic Purposes 1,025 1,000 4,525 0 4,525 0
4589 other Culture & Racreation 57,588 27,572 29,809 (154) 29,655 154
COHSERVATION ' g ; : i ;
A atural Resouzees 0 0 0 g 0 0
1619 Gther conservation 44 2,200 2,200 4,132 4,138 4,033 9
45314532 | REDEVELOPMENT &
HOUSING o 0 0 0 0 o
4651-4659 ECOHDOMIC
DEVELOPMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0
DEBT SERVICE
4711 Princ.- Long Term Bonds &
Hotes 105,000 105,000 105,000 o 105,000 e
A il 42,840 43,435 38,006 0 33,516 4,490
4723 Intersat on TANm 5‘ 000 0 5,000 Q 5’000 [n]
st90-4799 | other pebt service 0 0 0 0 0
CAPITAL OUTLAY | dgessescssasssns | cosesesesiseesseoacd ] sdeey
1901 Lend 41,900 4,086 35,320 35,320 0
4902 Machinery, Vahiclas & 133,107 168,916 365,079 81,333 283,746
Equiprant
4903 Pulldings 46,49 37,000 3,015 0 0 o
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Year _ 1993 Budget - Town of _ Pelhan MS-7
Appropriations Actual SELICTHRE'S APPROPRIATIONE FWSUING BUDGEY COMMITTRE 'S APPROPRILTIONS
PURPOSE OF APPROPRIATIONS Warr Prior Year as Expeaditores FIECRL YEAR EXADING PISCAL TEAR
Raot .} {hEk 32:13,v) art) Approved By DRA rrior Ysar
[ NOT AECOHMENDRD NOT RECOMMENDED
1908 '::;;{3\;;;:)":- Other Than 12 315,018 181,697 186.295 0 186,295 ¢]
4912 To special Ravenue Pund o 0 0 0
49213 1o capital Projecta Fund 0 o 0
914 To Entarpriss Fund 0
Sewar- 0 0
Water-
zlnctric--
Alrport— o s} 0 0 0 0
4915 To Capltal Resarve Fund 182,000 182,000 11¢,000 o] 60,000 50,000
4916 To Expsndabla Trumt Funds
Truat Fung) 13,679 19,679 29,008 0 29,008 0
1917 :&;u::aiz:dualntenlnua 1o 239, 000 232,000 232,000 0 232,000
4918 ;;ggnaxpendablg Truat 0 0 0 0 0
4919 To Agency Funds 0 o U 0 0 0
SURTOTAL 1 4,333,497 4,203,376 4,805,936 40,315 4,278,853 527,083

If you have a line item of appropriations from more than one warran
of the line total for the ensulng year.

Rect. .k Warr. Aacunt Root. & Warr. Amount
{a) Art.} (8) Art. 4
4901 35 1,000 4902 18 57,772
490} 34 13,000 4902 19 3,107
4901 25 6,320 4902 40 250,000
49m a 15,000 4802 48 2,700
A2 22 31.500
4007 27 20,000

t article, pleasa use the space below to identify the wake-—wp
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Year _199C Budget - Town of _ Pelham MsS-7

--SPECIAL WARRANT ARTICLES*~*

Special warrant articles are defined in RSA 32:3,VI, as appropriationa 1} in petitioned warrant articlea; 2) appropriations
raised by bonds or notes; 3) appropriating to a separate fund created pursuant to law, such as capital reserve funds or trusts
funda; or 4} an appropriation designated on the warrant as a special article or as a nonlapeing or nontraneferable article,

Appropriations BELECTEN 'S APPRAOPAIATIONS ENSUING BUDGET COMMITTRE’S APPROPRIATION
FURPOSE OF APPROPRIATIONS warrx Prior Taar As Expesuditares FISCAL TRAN EhIUING FISCAL TRAR

Aoatd (RER 3213,¥) arth Approved By DREA Price Tear

noT RECOHWENDED WOT RECOMMENDED

AUBTOYAL 2 Racommended

«+INDIVIDUAL WARRANT ARTICLES**

"Individual” warrant articles are not necessarily the same as "special warrant articles”. An example of an individual warrant
article might be negotiated cost items for labor agreemente or items of a one time nature you wish to address individually.

Appropriations Rxpenditures SBLECTHEN'S APPROPLIATIONS EWSUING BUDGET COMMITTER'S APPROFRIATION
PURFOSE OF APPROPRIATIONS Warr Prior Tear As Prior Year FISCAL TEAR ERSUING PISCAL TEAR
Acord (RER 32t3,VI) aArt t Approved By DAX
L d HOT KRB

BUATOTAL } Recommended




yTn» 1958

"

roct. s soomce o mevmm | ware. | negmtjee | e ) e VI
TAXES
320 Land Uss Change Taxes 38,640 25,000
aise Rapidant Taxes n n a
05 f Tisid Toxee B.000 16,532 10,000
3186 Paymant in Lisu of Taxes 0 0 o}
1ie8 othar Taxes 0 0 0
1190 g:;::llt & Panalties on Delingquent 135’000 139.‘465 135’000
Invantory Penaltias o o a
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES :
3210 Business Licenses & Parmith o] 0 o]
3220 Wotor Vehicle Parmit Fass 900,000 1,117,838 950, 000
2230 Building Parmite 40,000 74,113 60,000
2940 othar Licenses, Permits & ress 75’ 000 75 , 914 75 . 000
3311-331% || FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 20,000 35,000 41,000
TROM STATE
3351 Shared Revenues 59,504 357,201 50,000
33s2 Menles & Rooma Tax Clstribution 1i0,818 0 250,000
282 || Fhemy Bieck crent 388,760 188,760 186,295
3354 Watsr Pollution Grant o} o] 0
EETH Housing & Community Development o} Q0 Q
R 83 1,000 1,000
3387 Flood Control Reimburesment 0 0 Q
3158 other (Including Railrcad Tax) 0 o) 0
379 FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 1,000 672 1,000
CHARGES TOR SERVICES :
3a01-3404 Income frnm.nupnmenta 106, 700 181,541 1681 . 705
3d09 Other Charges 0 0 o]
MISCELLAREOUS REVENUES
3501 Sale of Municipal Property o
1562 Intersst on Invastmants 70,000 0 100 AA0
3501-350% 1| other 87,000 163,324
INTERFUND OPERATING ; S
TRANSFERS IN
3912 " Prom Spagcial Revenus Funds O Q q
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Year 1998

Budget - Town of _pPelham __

M5-7

Aace-$ BOTRCE O REVENCE Harr | e e | Moo T B ruing Taar
33 Trom Capital Projects Pundy Q a
L4 From Enterpriss Funds 4] 4] 0

Sewar - (Offmst) a A ~

Mater - (Offmat) o 0 o

Blectric = (Offset) 0 0 o]

Alrpart - (0ffset) 0 o] 0

3918 From Capita) Rasarve Funds 0 901000 0

3916 From Trust & Agancy Funds , 184,889 72,213 14,000
OTEER FIHANCING BOURCES

EIET] H rroc.fron Long Tarm Bands & Wotes o o o
Amcunts \7?!!3 r:n. rund

Balasce ("Surplua’) 17,679 17,679 17,908

Tund Palance { Surplus’) 21,753 321,753 200,000

TOTAL REVENUES & CREDITS 2,350,286 2898 745 5 A1% O0R

**BUDGET SUMMARY **
SELECTMEN BUDGET COMMITTEE
S

FUEEOFAL 1 Eaccmmmsded (from pagqe 4) 4,805,936 4,27

SUFTOTAL 2 Spscial WerTamt articles Deccmmsnded (page 5)) 4] ¢]

SUSTOTAL } “Imdividoal” warrast articles Esqommsnded (page 5) 0 0

TOEAL Ay tiosy 4,805,936 4,278,853

Lassi ZJawnmt of Estimated Rwveuves & Credits (from sbove) 2,417,008 2,417,008

Ratimatat Amowst of Taxss To Ba Reised 2,388,928 1,861,845

(REV.1%87)
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Teown of Petham
Report of the Trust Funds
Decmeber 31, 1997

PRINCIPAL INCOME
Balance New Fands  Gain/(Lass) Withdrawals Balance Balance Income  Withdrawals  Balance F s n
Name of Fund Purpose 1/1/97 Created  on Security -} 13/34/97 11197 {+) =) 1272187 ¥ C—13]

COMMON CEMETERY TRUSTS
Common A Cemelery 48,508.51 48,508 51 11313 3.164.09 3,282.22 0.00 V=% 508 5|
Common B Cemetery 25,166.54 12.05 25,178.59 [LX¢.1] 1.350.12 1,350.12 6.00 2 e— 178,59
Common C Cemeleny 11317500 18,400 0O 131,575.00 31571 2.851.40 3,167.11 0.00 13 I 575,00
Total Cammon Cemetery Trust 186.850.05 18,4400 12.05 205,262 10 43384 136501 179945 0.00 = 262.10
COMMON LIBRARY TRUSTS
Sherman Hobbs Librany 31T 148 5721.38 0.00 333140 533.40 0.00 ——.721.38
Charles Seavey Library 1,593.66 0.97 1,594.63 0.00 148.67 148.67 0.00 I 594.63
Frank Woodbury Library 5,719.20 343 5,722.68 0.00 $331.52 533.52 0.00 72268

Yota! Comtmton Library Trust 13,030.76 0.00 7.92 13,038.63 0.00 1,215.59 1,215.59 0.00 | T— 038.68
CAPITAL RESERVE FUNDS
Revaluation Assessing 84.419.00 31,385.81 3,013.19 11,748.98 5,661.67 1741265 21— 445.84
Abbott Bridge Reconsiruction Bridge 20,000.00 17.000.00 37,000.00 1,22547 1,822.67 3.048.14 4= (18.14
Municipal Building Building 330.970.30 172,750 00 558,720.30 27,905.04 19.205.14 47.110.18 0 S — 83048
Gibson Cemetery Fence Cemetery 57283 572.83 551.11 61.25 612.36 B 18519
Ambulance Fire 3192073 15,000 1 5292073 2.511.66 2.791.11 53027 s 231 30
Reoyveling Equipmeni Incineraior 15.671.16 1567116 1,598.8] 941,22 2,4003 1— 211.19
Recycling Faciliny Incinerator 39.406.00 39,406.00 6,119.43 1,182,335 7,501.98 A C— 90798
Maint. on Recyeling Facility Incinerator 43.14 4314 0.00 0.00 0.00 43.14
Landfill Closure Landfill 93,362 .50 1.000.00 96,362.30 9,789,717 1,698.31 12,488.08 1O R 50,55
Library Library 167.89 167.89 195.%0 30.00 225.90 393.79
S1. Margaret's Drive Road 90,000.00 90,000,00 551412 5.205.55 3,839.2¢8 6,880.9% S CO— 820,99
E. G. Ravmond Memorial Park  Parks & Recreation 0,00 0.00 155.59 0.00 255.59 255.59
Memorial Athlctic Ficld School 5.600.00 5,600.00 8,102.04 346.51 B.448.55 1 S 4855
Scitor Bus Scniors 10.000.00 10.000.00 1,700 54 633.92 1.339.46 | J—| 3 19 46

Total Capital Reserve Funds T80,133.35  210,750.00 0.00 €1,385. 81 909,497,774 1141900 40,586.90 3,839.28  114,166.63 1,02 a——— 664 42
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Tovere of Pethan:
Rueprort of the Trust Funds
Decmcher 31, 199~

PRINCIPAL INCOME
Balance Gain/(Loss) Withdrawals Balance Balance Income  Withdrawals  Balance Fund
Name of Fund Purpose 1nM7 on Security {-) 128 14197 (+) =) 1HN1/97 Total

INDIVIDUAL TRUSTS
23Mli Anniversan Anniversany Celeb 23.518.91 1551891 .00 2,270.91 1,539.88 3,810.79 0.00 0.00
Cable Equipment Cable Dept 18.45).02 19.299.68 19.151 34 4,131.89 2,329.84 6.461.73 2561307
Kochler/Cahill Cemetery 20000 200 (K) 22422 10.73 23495 434.95
Henry Currier Cemetery 151.22 15112 279.46 15.94 29540 646.62
Eva Pariscau Cemetery 500.00 500.00 239.8 1B.69 25187 57.87
E & A Rnvinond Cemetery 125,00 225.00 196.80 10.67 20747 43247
Funds Conservation Eascment  Conservalion 5.000.00 3.000.00 185.13 282,59 467.72 5.467.72
Compensated Absence Employee Relalions 3434248 46,926 18 22.416.30 3,466.30 3,74149 120119 29.624.09
Healils lnsurance Entployee Relations 194.830.27 20317534 223.634.93 23,001.94 21,646.02 44.647.96 268.302.89
Forest Comnmission Foresiry 58,519.39 4,068 15 79,246.62 2,347.19 3,136.64 5,481.83 84,730.45
Emergency Way Matntenance  Higlway Dept 3.082.19 235270 2,729 49 501.66 291 80 793.46 3,522.95
Highway Dept. New Equip. Highway Dept. 20,000.00 19,871.00 129.00 740,54 1,130.36 1,870.90 1,999.90
Noreen Brown Library 12,497.44 12.497.44 342474 867.76 4,291.50 16,789.94
E & E Chalifoux Librany 5.000.00 5.000.00 535,55 10169 83724 583724
Marn Coner Librany 150.00 £50.00 185.45 8.48 193.93 34393
Man Gage Library 1.000.00 1.000.00 1.323.40 12663 1.450.03 2,450.03
Golden Brook Park Public Parks & Recrealion 250.00 250.00 5.89 1395 19.84 269.84
Mitldoon Park Pabhe Trust Parks & Recrcation 250.00 254004 589 13.95 19.84 269.84
PYMP Mainicnance Purks & Recreation 3.390.00 3.940.01 112899 200.34 J6R.60 559.00 1.687.99
Rayvaond Park Capitat lmpr. Parks & Recreation 4890500 48.905.00 269734 281232 5,509 .46 321446
Muldoon Park Privie Trus! Parks & Recreation 100.00 1.631.03 0.00 232 .32 1,631.35
Brent Circle/Sprang S1. Road lmprovement 0.00 10.000.00 0.00 237.24 23124 10,237.24
Valley Hill Road Road Improvemeni 0.00 6,000 00 0.00 242102 25494 242102 25494 254.94
Dr. Emecst M. Law Scholarship 10.000.00 £0.000.00 5%4.57 361.33 300.00 64590 10,645.90
Grace C. O'Hearn Memorial Scholarship 0.00 6.100.00 0.00 $5.24 8524 6,185.24
Ruth Richardson Scholarship 5.000.00 5.000.00 303.03 RN 300.00 185.59 5.286.5%
Starliglters Do Sehalirsiup 5.0 00 5.000.60 31235 0.2 30040 292.36 5,292.56
Robirisou Tennis Coun School 307500 3.075.00 5932.77 {3816 6,070.93 9,145.93
ADA Modification Fund School 16.250.00 16.250.00 £20.85 930.36 1,751.22 18,001.22
Schoo) Building Maimenanee School 10.000 .00 1000000 E.144.25 IR1.R3 1.426.08 11.426.08

Tudof Individual Trass 521,%07.92 000 33E152.07 189,841.36 5$1,572.47 4162328 7.331.81 91.863.94 581,705.30
GRAND TOTAL OF ALL TRUST FUNDS 15,9212 1997 4125379 161763988 13541437 90,7918 20,8613}  206,0M0.61 1,51),670.80



Town of Pethem

Warrant Articles
1997 Carried

Year/ Prior yrs  Total YTD Appropr. Overto

Numb. Description Appropr. Expend, Expend. Balance 1988
1997
2t Municipal Building Cap. Res. 150,000 o 150,000 Q
b3 Health Insurance Fund 232,000 ] 232,000 a
24 Stete Highwsay Grant 160,018 4] 178,388 1,630  YES
] S{. Margaret's Drive 135,000 [} 1] 135000  YES
27 4 u 4 backhes 40,000 [} 28,000 20,000
28 4 x 4 pickup truck 29,948 0 25,688 4,258
30 Abbott Bridge 17,000 0 17.000 0
2 Police Union Contract 28,148 0 28,148 0
3 Polica Crurser 25,161 0 2507 90
as Landfil Ckrsure Fund 1.000 0 1,00G 0
38 Defibriltators 30,000 4] 23,755 6,245
39 Ambulance Capital Reserve 15,000 o 15,000 0
40 Compensated Absance Fund 15,000 0 15,000 0
41 Hydrart Fees 15,000 0 8,558 B.444 YES
42 Rengvate Senior Center 37,000 0 0 37,000 YES
43 Emergency Way Maint. Fund 2,000 0 2,000 0
44 PVYMP Fund 1,879 0 1679 0
45 Drainage Swale & PVMP 6.000 ] 3478 2522 YES
49 Reforestation of Raymend Park 35,000 Q 530 34,470 YES
50 Health & Weifare Support Serv. 39,218 Q 37858 1,560 YES
51 Forest Manag. & Educ. Program 900 a kS B64 YES

1,043,068 a 790,985 252,083
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Town of Peiham

Warrant Articles

1997 Carried
Year/ Prior yrs Total YTD Appropr.  Overto
Numb. Description Appropr, Expend. Expend. Balance 1998
1956
22 Lease of Fire Truck 50,954 0 50,941 13
23 Protective Clothing (Fire) 17,000 14,438 2562
25 Hydrant Fees 16,800 2112 7.688
29 Highway Block Grant 161,656 158,347 3,309
38 Simpson Miff Road Engineer 10,000 247 o 9,753 YES
46 Raymond Memarial Maintenance 2,050 1712 338 o]
52 PVMP resurf. tennis/basketball ¢rl, 4725 3972 741 12
53 Monument at Muldoon Park 1,200 0 1,128 72
54 Renovate Senior Center 37,000 0 2670 34,330 YES
56 Library Card Catalegue 26,995 a 13,815 313,180 YES
57 Health Care Trans. Fund 5,000 0 o 5000
333,280 187,628 83,192 62,360
1995:
24 Salt Shed 28,000 25,880 345 1.67%
33 1995 Tax Maps 4,800 =} 0 4,800 YES
7 Simpson Mill Road fandfill 22,430 20,400 0 2,050 YES
38 Long Pond weed infestation 6,000 3,057 2943 ¢
44 Forest Management Program 12,368 9.668 42 2658 YES
54 Police radio antenna 3.000 670 1,646 644 YES
76,518 59,775 4976 11.867
1594;
28 Police Federal Grant 82,086 49,233 33 653 0
53 Hepalitis B Vaccinations 3,000 1.714 141 1.148 YES
58 TDO Telecommunications System 2,266 0 o] 2266 YES
TOTAL 88,152 50,947 33,794 3411
TOTAL OF ALL WARRANTS 1,541,218 288,550 912947 320,721
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Pelham School District Officers

Moderator
Philip Currier

School District Clerk
Donna M. D’Arcangelo

Treasurer
Sandra M. Corbin

Pelham School Board

Robert S. Bean, IIIl............. 2000
Al Rotondi......coviviinnnnnnnns 1998
Robert Turnquist.(Interim}...... 1999
Marie Stadtmiller............. ..2000
April Lazarus...........- Ceraeee 1998

Superintendent of Schools
Raymond J. Raudonis

Business Administrator
Gerald P. Boucher

Director of Special Services
Sandra A. Plocharczyk

Building Administrators

E. G. Sherburne School........ DeVayne E. Howell

Pelham Memorial School........ Dennis R. Goyette

Pelham High School........... Robert A. Pedersen
Auditors

Plodzik & Sanderson
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Finmanclal Presentatiom

To the Members of the Scheool Beard
Pelham School District
Pelham, New Hampshire

Ve have audited the accompanying general-purpese financial statements
of the Pelham School District as of and for the year ended June 30,
1997 as listed 1In the table of contents. These general-purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the School District’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.

Ve conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of materlal misstatement. &An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit alsoc includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Ve
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for ocur opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financlal statements referred to
above present fairly, in all materlal respects, the financial position
of the Pelham School District, as of June 30, 1997, for the year then
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinicon on the
general-purpose financial statements of the Pelham School District
taken as a wvhole. The combining and individual fund financial
statements listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
general-purpose financial statements of the Pelham School District.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to
the general-purpose financial statements taken as a vhole.

July 14, 1997 Plodzik & Sanderson
Professional Association

NOTE: Materlals relating to the Auditor’s Report are available for
review. Any person or persons wishing to review this document can do
s0 by visiting the O0ffice of the Superintendent of Schools, 19
Haverhill Road, Vindham, NH during the hours of 8:00 am to 4:00 pm.
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Department of Revenue Administration
Municipal Services Division
Concord, NH 03302-1122

[

1997 Tax Rate Calculation
Town of Pelham Tax Rate

- School Portion -

Due To Local School 510,045,672,

Due to Regional School -0-

Less: Shared Revenues 151,271,

Net School Appropriation $9,894,401.

Special Adjustment _-0-

Approved School({s) Tax Effort §9,894,401.
School{s) Tax Rate $19.87

Andrea M. Reid
Director
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TOWE OF PELHAN, NEY HAKPSHIRE
SCHOCL DIGYRICY MEEPING

NARCH 12, 1997

The Annual Schoel District Keeting vwas calied to erder at 7:4% p. m, by Moderator
Philip R, Currier, Fresent were Schoal Board Hembers Xr. Dyane Pox, Dr. Derald 1ill
fChairnaa), Mrs. Rpril Lazarus, NWr. Lawrence Hall, and Nr. Al Rotendi. Paul Pultar,
Student Representative to the Scheol Board, was also preseat

The Budget Committee was represented by Mr. John Lavallee (Chairman) and Nr. Hal
Lynde.

Klso present were Juperintendent Raymond J. Raudoais, Business Administrater, Kr,
Gerald Boucher, and School District Leqal Coucse] Mr, Rohert Leslje

We al)l gtood and recited ¥he Pledge of Rllegiance

Nt, Corrier because of the size of this evenings meetings, I have appointed Assistant
Kederztors to help out, Bveryone had been checked iz upon entering, hand stamped,
and given & Scheel District Secret Ballot. Mr. ferrier outlined the grocedure for
the Secret Ballots. This should expedite the Secret Ballet voting,

Nz, Cutcier outlined the rules governing the mesting, veting procedures, and revieved
the wneaning and use of “Restricted Reconsideratiocn”. A wotiom to restrict
recongideration way be wade after the adoption of any article. Ao article way be
teconsidered if the body votes Lo do s0 at a later time duriag the weeting. It will,
however, be taken up at a special weeting oo fever than seven days later and after
a public aotice has been given

Pazliamentary Rules govern the meeting to keep everything as simple as pessible

Thanges in the wording of an article are to be written out and given to the moderator
for the eorrect werding,  There is a special statute that governs motion to
tecsasider on bond issues and reconsideration can only be done a3t apother meeting--
rol tonight.

Re, Curriec read Article 1 as follows:

1 $o see if the Pelhan School Distriet will vote to raise and appropriate the
sun of STY MILLION NWINR HUNDRED YROUSAMD DOLLARS (§6,998,808) fotr Che
construction and eriginal equipping of a nevw school buildiag, and te
authorize the issuance of nmot wore than §6,968,089 of beads or notes in
ascordaace with the provisions of the Nunicipal Finance het (RSA Chapter 33)
and to autherize the sehoel board to issue and negotiate suck bonds or rates
and to determine the rate of interest thereom. (2/3 balloet vete requized},
(Recomnendsd by the Pelham School Beard) [Recommeaded by the Pelbam Budget
Comnittee} GSebeduled ia the Capital Improvement Flan

Hr. {uzrier inforwed us that, by lav, bond issuss have to be voted on by
secret ballot vote and that when the poles apen they bave to remaie open for
at least one {1} hour.

A1l present viewed a video presentatien by Mr. Al Rotondi on the propesed
eleserntary school ané a time tise on the work dene so far on this issue
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Conversation oo the oew elementary school ceatered arpund:

fupport of new school due to existing overcrewding conditions at

! 4rbpurne !C ]

- Gouble gessions

- Moving Grades 7 and 3 to the high school

- hdding a second fleer te Sherburme Schao)

- Questioning the design of the nevw school and the cost

- Tocrease in the tax rate

- Nake Sherburne Scheel an open-concept school
Safety issues at Sherhurne Schoel

- Guestions regarding state building aid being applied to renovaticns
and/or additions te Sherburne Schoel

- Note options presentad to the voters

- Air quality at Sherburne School

- Yhe town's comnitment to this plan
figh taxes affecting preperty values

- Medular clagses

- Nore time to study the sitvatien

- Onknowa factors {cost ete.) about the renovations to Sherburne School
te use as 3 sunicipal facility

- Putting off the nevw elementary school now will cost us mere in the
future

- Worries of reevaluation
Protection of our senlor citizens and those on fixed incomes

- Woney net being set aside in the past to save ap for the nev sehool--
ne finazcial planniag

- Design of the new school being state-of-the art alloving fer future
growth

- Boing this now as the econewy is io fairly good shape and houses are
still tedog built so the qrowth prohlen is not going away

- Providing space and a good learning envirocment for eur students so
that they w111 be well trained and able to compete

- Students from other towns attending Pelbam schools
fhis is the right thing to do--we all have a respensipility to educate
odr children

- The reality that the townspeople would net vete in a Hunicjpal
Building while the Sherburae School stood yaused--the Sherbarne Schosl
is a fine facility fer a Hunicipal Building

. Applaudiag the Board, Selectmen, aad Beilding Committee for woerking
cogperatively to solve many space issues in town

- Projected enrollments posing questiens reqarding needed space

- Concern that the §6.9 X will qo over budget
Space problems have Deen studied now for § years with ieput from the
tagpayers--now is the time
Tin-Nin situationa fer both the town and the schoel

- the need to offset tares with business and industry

- Capitel Improvement Plan this year cut 2.7 willion dellars in current
and foture capitel improvement needs if the Sherburne School can be
yaed az a wupicipal center
Consideration of building a new high scheol

- After the school--how many wore teachers, how many wore aides, ete.

- Comment that Pelham is pretty aach in the center among HH tovns on the
tay rate

- Peaple 2ot helleving that the contractor can quarantee the 6.4 millicn
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- Reconsider adding on Lo the dack of Sherbaorne Schoel

- She addition to Sherburne School came in at 5.5 sillien and still did
not address the poor bus situatien, segtic probleas,
and ether space issues in the schaol and ip the town

- Phe populatien is groving and this prohlen will net go away

Mr. Corvier aonounced that we are now ready te vete. A11 agreed that this voting
will end our business this evening, that the results will be announced, and that we
will reconvene o¢n Thursday evening at 7:.32, Harch 13

The polls were opes at 18:22 p. . and officially closed at 11:26 p. w.  There were
1,839 yotes cast with 635 in the affirnative and 484 in the segative with 2 blanks
It was not a 2/3 eajority. 1Article 1 is defeated

Session | was adjoecurned at 12:15 a. #

Segsicn 2
Thorsday, Karch 13, 1997
7:3¢ 3. a.

Session ? began at T:38 p. w. with all of us reciting tne Pledge of Allegiance.

We, Curpier reainded ug that there is uo restricted reccosideration on a bond issue,
The statute states, oh bond issues in excess of §186,830, vpon favorable approval of
the motion te reconsider actual recessideration shall net take place qntil the
expiration of at least 7 days-from the date on which the sriginal vote &r motion was
raken, In addition, notice has to be published of the tine and place recousideration
will take place. Tt must be published in a newspaper of general circulation at least
two days before the reconsideration vote. §o wotion te reconsider tomight, if
approved, cannet be taken up tonight. We will have te set up a date at least 7 days
ia the futnre. The wotion to recoensider is a majority vite

¥r. 8canzanl made a naotion to recemsider Article ! av an adjourned session of this
gesting to be held at Palhae High Scheol on Saturday, Harch 22, at 9 o'clock in the
wotning. fhe polls to remain open for a period of 4 hours. The gotion was seconded
After some discussicn debate was limited and a request for secret tallot veting was
submitted. After everyome io the ball had voted, Xr. Corrier continued with business
vhile the ballets were being counted ¢4 reconsideration.

A procedural motion was made by Mrs. lLandry to aove Article 19 up and discuss it at
this time in order te provide an option on Charter Schools, It was seconded, 2
short discussion followed, however, a show of cards was in the negative.

Nr. Curriet wentioned that Articles 2 and 3 clearly depended upon the eutcome of
Article 1, therefore, proceeded with Article 4

Mrs. Escalsra wade 3 wmotion to grewp Articles 4, 5, and 6 and has suybaitted
signatyres for secret hallot voting ou these articles. Discussion will be separate
o0 each article But veting will e in ope trip, by secret ballot, with three ballst
bowes. This was secended and a show of cards was in the positive

#r, Currfer vead Article 4 as follows
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7o see {f the Pelhanm School District will vete to raise and appropriate the
sun of OER RUEDRED SEVBETT-TWO PHOUSAKD FIVE BHUEDRED PCRYF-03% DOLLARS
{§172,541). Said guw of weney being the anount pecessary to Fend the cost
items of the 1397-98 school year attributable to the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the Pelham School Beard and the Pelhan Bducation
kssociation. {Recozazoded by the Pelban School Boatd) (Hot Recowmmended by
the Pelhan Budget Committe). )

Hr. Greenhalgh submitted 2 writtes awendment to this article. The amendment
is to add the words "This is a specfal article® to the beginning of Articles
4, 5, and €. By law, by adding these words, the money can only be spent for
the exact purpose of the article and not to be tranmsferred. We would vote ob
the arendnent to Article 4 at this time aod if Nr. Greenhalgh wished, could
add these words to subsequent articles,

Biscession revelved around the $1,188 iacrease, the 18% contribution teward
health jnsurance, the continued discussion toward werit-based pay, this not
being included io the .39 figure,

Mr. Currier informed us of the outcome of the vote to reconsider, There were
714 ballots cast with 425 yes votes and 289 were me. Article ! will be
reconsidered.

Beterning to Artiele 4 discussion continued with merit and performance.
There is alse incleded this year an insurance buy-out which will save &s
roney ia the long rua. Of some concern is the fact that the School Board
negotiates--as this is a conflict of interest. L comeent about the
contribation toward health inmsurance belng 2 strong asset teward further
negotiations being a plus was offered by Hr. Scanzanmi.

Guestions were raised again about the motien to add *This is a special
atticle” and Nr. Lestie explained that this could bolé some litigation for us
in the future.

Thets was & moticn t¢ limit debate. MNr. Leslie, upon request, eyplained
‘qoverning body". Clarificatien of qovercing bedy is not defined in the
statote. This weeting is geperally referred t¢ as the legislative body

¥arraots have to be posted ahead of time by the “governiog body” and the only
¢nes who can post a warrant is the School Board.

¥e would nov vote on the zmendment &nd a shov of cards was in the positive
and the amesdwent is adopted. Debate is limited on Article

Kr. Currier read Article § as follows

To see if the Pelhaw Schoel District will vete to raise acd appropriate the
sug of THIRTY-EI6AP THOUSAND TWO HURDRSD PORTT-POUR DOLLARS ($38,244}), Sald
sun of woney being the amount necessary to fund salary imcreases and salary
related costs fer 112 people {aides, custodians, secretaries, special
education gersonnel and walntenance pergonnel) for the school year 1937-93
{Recommended by the Pelham School Beard) {Recommended by the Pelkam Budget
Conmittee}
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Mr. Currier reeinded as that ¥r. Greenbalgh's amendsment alse applied to
Article 5. Discussion revelved arovod these facts: that this is a 1.6%
ingrease, that these employees are ae integral part of the school and a grest
perocentage of them work at winieal waqes, and that most of these employees do
not receive any benefits or lImsurance. Questions still surrounded the
amendaent "This i3 a special article” and Mt. Leslie again reeinded us of
what the statute ipdicates and that ve may be f{mviting litigatien in
procesding as we are, & motion was wade te limit debate om Article §. The
vote vas on the amendsent to add the words "fhis is s special article® to the
beginaing of the article. A show of the voting cards vas in the affirmative.
and the amendment is adopted.

Nr. Currier then read Article 4 as fellows

to see if the Pelham Scheel Distzict will vote to raise and appropriate the
sun of TEN THOGSAND 3IY KUKDRED PIPPT-FOUR DOLLARS {1e,654}. Said sum of
noney being necessary to fend salary increases and salary related costs for
principals and assistant principals. ({Recommended by the Pelbam School
Board) (Recosmended by the Pelhan Budget Committee)

Hr. Corrier reminded us that the motion to amend Article & to add the words
"this is a special artiele” is on the floor. There vas discussioen regarding
the percentage of a 2.§% increase for § pesple en a evaluation of
performance, The evaluatien would he by the Superintendent. There vas alse
sone further discussien oo the {mpact of these three articles ¢n a tax
increase. A motion vas made to limit debate. AlLl were in faver, fhe vote
here is agaip on the amendsent. & shew of cards Is fn the affirnative and
the amendment is adopted to add the words "This is a speeial article’

Nr. Currier reminded us that this fs a secret ballet vote, each article te
have its own ballot box, we would vote in ene trip, and place ane ballet in
each box.

The body discussed the pext time we would meet to continue School Bistrict
Heeting and the cousensus was to weet on Teesday svenlug, Nareh 18, at 7:3¢
p. L.
Nr. Scanzani spoke te his original wotion and after some discussien and
debate abgut the time frame for dejiberation, and polling tises, Hr. Scanzani
pade a second ®motien to keep the pells cpen until 8:92 p. n. This was
seconded. After fucther discussion and clarification by Xr. Lesiie, Legal
Counsel, we took a hand count on beginolag discussion at 9:98 a.m. and open
the polls after a motien to limit debate--the polls to reaais open until 8:88
5. b on §aturday, March 22, The vote was in the affirmative
Nr. Corrier announced the reselts of Article § which were

Yes - 337 Bo - 2186
hrticle 5 is adopted in the zmouot of §38,244.
The tesults ¢f Article € were

fes - 15¢- Bo - 399
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Artiele § i3 not adopted.

Mrs. Bscalera made & wotion to restrict reconsideration on Articles § and &
and the motion passed ia the affirmative.

Hr. Currier then read Article 7 as follows

7. Po ses if the Pelhan fchool District will vete to ralse and appropriate the
gus of FIFTY-CRE YHOUSARD FGUR HURDRBD SIITY-S1I DOLLARS ($5i,466) te
continue providing Child Benefit Services to Pelhan school childrea attending
§t. Patrick School. (Recommended by the Pelham School Board) [Recommended by
the Pelhan Budget Commibtes)

Pr. Bd spoke to this article te suppert the contindation of the scheel nurse,
school lunch program, and test and testing. Pr. Ed made a motion to amend
the figure to §48,125 to colncide with salary and text increases at tomight’s
neeting, The vote was in the affirmative on the amended figure. A voice
yote was also in the affirmative op Artiele 7,

Article 7 is azdopted im the awomat of §48,125 and a motien to restrict
reconsideration was alsg {n the affirmative

Nr. Currier aopounced the results of Article & which were
Yes - 171 Ro - 373

hrticle 4 i3 not adopted, & wetion was made to restrict reconsidacatiosn
which was in the affirsative.

Session 2 wag adjourned at 11:32 §. .

Sesgion 3
Toesday, Mareh 18, 1997
7:3% p. M

The mseting was called to order at 7:41 p. w. and ¥r, Pox and Or. Hill lead uys in the
Pledge of Aliegiance.  Nr. Currier recognized their vyears of serviece to the
ceamunity, Mr. Courvier thanked Mrs. Robertson and her cafeteria staff, ballet
¢lerks, Nr. Guilbaault, Nr. Wilkins and the custedial staff, Mr. acd Mrs. Nierswa,
the Supetvisors of the Chacklist, ¥r. Wholey, Hr. Defarelis, ballet counters, police,
cahle TV crews, and to all who helped dering the School Election and JDistrict
Keeting.

there vag a short discussion about the pelliag hours on Saturday, Marck 27, and if
they could be changed at Saturday’s meeting. RAfter several points of order, a notion
was nade by Nr. Bl1lis to restriet reconsideration on Saturday’s pelling hours so they
canbot be changed. The wetica was seconded and a voice vete was in the afficmative
to restrict reconaideration,

The Budget Comaittes moved to take Article 22 up at this pelnt and discuss and vote

on the operating budget, A1l voted in the affirmative and Mr. Currier read Article
22 as follows:
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7.

To see what sun of mooey the Felham School Distriet will vote te raise and
appropriate for the suppert of schools and for the paymeat of salacries for
the School Distriet and for the statutery ohligations of the district, that
is, to see If the Bchael District will vote to accept the School Distriet
Bydget as prepared oy the Budget Committee or to take any other action
theretes,

Nr. Lavallee announced the operating budget figure of §14,675,267.¢0. 1Dr.
Hill said that te arrive at this figure they have te remove any one time
fiqures approved at last year's meeting. Schoel budgets are down about
34,008 froa last year, There is an increase on the health insurance and
retirement contributions ¢n the districi-gside accounts. {Qther accounts are
down 30 the total budget is essenatially levsl fonded.

Nrs. Landry aade a motion te amend account number 11:.106.12.5742.133. 1The
Schoo! Board requested & figure of §7,508 to purchase baad uniforms. The
budget committee reviged this figure to §3,685. ¥e peed §$3,815--the
difference. A count of catds, te vote for the ameadment, was as follows

Tes - 182 fe¢ - 121
the count was in the affitmative. The anendneat is adepted.

Nr. Currier annoupced that we would 06w vote on Article 22 as amended. The
pew fiquere is §18,679,082.8¢, The voice vote was positive,

hrtiele 22 is adepted in the amoont of $14,679,082.94, A motion vas wade
from the floer to restriet reconsideration and the voice vote was fa the
positive, Article 72 is restricted

Nr. Curriep then read Acticle 2 ag follows:

To see 1f the Pelbam Scheel District will vote teo raise and appropriate the
spa of POUR EBUNDRED ZLRVEH THOUSARD DOLUARS [§411,008), Said suw of money
necessary to build kindergarten space as part ¢f the propesed elementary
school building. Phis space would {nclude § classrooas and storage area for
3 total §,508 3q. ft. Said sum to be bonded along with the new schoel bond.
[Subnitted by Petition) (Mot Recowmended by the Pelhaa School Board) (Hot
Recomaended by the Pelhan Budget Committee]

Kr. Rotondi wmade a motien to indefinitely postpene Article & uatil
legislation i3 fortheoming and we have a better handle on the kindergarten
situation. The action was seconded. Concern was that we be ready if the
legislatuze votes to begin implementing kindergarten in Wew Jampshire. the
nev gchool is designed to add kindergarten space when needed so efsentially
we are ready, Hr. Rarcinkowski rewinded us, bovever, met to get too excited
about this as the state does net have anmy woney. Nr. Currier remiaded us
that this ig a hond issue. There was alse disctussion about the space peeded
for kindergarten as oppesed to that needed for other elementary space. M
Bacalera wanted to vait to see what the outcome is before ve spend any woney.
We will now vote on the motioa to indefinitely postpone action on Article 2
Yoter cards were taiged in the affirmative. Artiele 2 1is indefinitely
postpened. A wction was aade from the floer to restrict reconsideration on
hrtiele 2. It was in the affirmetive. Article 2 is restricted.
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Hr, Currier read Article 3 as follows

Yo see if the Pelham School Distriet will vote te raise and appropriate the
sun of PIVE AURGRED NINGTY-THREE TEQUSAMD TWO AUNDRED PIVE DOLLARS (§593,205)
for the purpese of payiang the first installment ¢n the interest and principal
of the bond or eote repayaent for “he construction of the nev elementary
school, [Recozmended by the Pelham .:hool Board) (Recoamended by the Belhanm
Budget Committee} Scheduled in the Capital Iwproveaent Plan

Dr. Hill woved that Article 3 be amended by adding the fellowing “this vote
to take effect only if Article ! is voted in the affirmative by a 2/3 vote
required for its passage’ to the ead of Article 3.  The amendmept was
secondsd, Dr. Hill stated that this will ecly allew passage of Article 3 if
Brticle 1 passes.

There was concern that this would 1nfluence the vote en §aturday. NI,
Lavallee ezplained that if we do oot pass this Artiele, zod Article | on the
schoel does pass, than we will need te do ¢ne of two things., Take the
$593,205 qut of the operating budget or we way have to wall & year and come
back to raise the wopey at that time. There vas a motion to limit debate
Kr. Greenhalgh breught te eur attemtion that we had discussed the faet that
ve would add "Phis is a special article” to the beginning of every article
We, Scanzant asked legal council for advice again on this issge. Nr. Leslie
again reminded ws that “governing body® as far as the statue is congerned
refers to the School Board. The Schoo!l Board is the *qoveraing body” who can
pest the warrants, Yo add "Phis is a special article™ at this meeting has
net affect whatsoever. Again there was a agtien to limit debate in the
affirwative. We £irst voted on the School Board amendment to add "this vote
te take effect only if Article ! is voted in the affirmative by a 2/3 vote
required for its passage’. A show of voler cards was positive and the
akendsent is adopted. Kow we would volte on the second amendment to add "fhis
is a special article”. The show of voter cards was segative. The second
anendaent 15 oot adepted.

§e¢ would gow vote on Article 3 as amended by the Board, The vote, By show of
cards, wags in the affirmative, Article 3, as amended, is adopted {to hezome
effective upon the affirmative 2/3 majority vete on Rareh 22. There wag a
sotion From the floor to recoasider Aetiele 3. Tt was secended. After
¢larification of the Schoel Board's amendeent and some more discussion we
teok 2 motion to limit debate which was adopted. The vote now is to
recongidar Article 3 and the show of cards was negative. The reconsideration
vote is defeated

Kr. Currier now read Article 8 as follews

To gee if the Pelhas School District will vote to raise and appropriate the
sun of SEVEHTT-FOUR THOUSARD SBVEEK EYNDRED FIPTY DOLLARS (§74,798). Said sux
of money necessary to fund the first year lease for a sodular classroonr,
($39,750) and a teacher to staff this classroom {$35,008). {Reconmended by
the Pelhaz Schoel Board) {Not Recommended by the Pelbham Budget Coknitteae)

Hr. Bean nade a notion to amend Article § ag follows
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to see if the Pelhaw Scheel Distriet will vete te ralse and appropriate oo
pote than §96,09% fer the purchase of a double wodular classzoor to be used
at . G. Sherburne School. Sald money will iaclude the cost of a classcoom
yith a bathroow, stairs, & handicap ramp, delivery, set-up, and skirting.
Fhe anendment is seconded,

Thare was wuch discussion about the differencesbenefits between leasing and
purchasing. And, even if the ney schesl is passed on Saturday, this will
alleviate the ¢vercrewding for one year. We could then take advantage of 2
buy-back, use elsewhers fin town, or sell the medular. Paere was a cowment
abeut ncdulats not belding their value wery well. Concern was raise about
the achbuyal gumber of rocss needed at Sherburne School. hlso, Mz, Boucher
provided us with an explanmation between the eost of leasing and the cost to
purchase. A gquestion of why we need an additienal teacher i€ the encallments
are going down? Dr. Hill addressed this igsye as we have veeded teachers for
awhile and if we have a clagstoom, we could use & teacher for Chat room. R
suggestion was alse made to use the modulars as administrative effices.

There was a motion te limit debate and the vote would be on ¥r, Bean's
agendrent. A shov of voter cards was in the negative and the arcndment did
not pasg. We would now vote on the artiele as originally posted. A show of
yoter cards was also 1o the negative. Article 8 ig defeated. There was 3
gotion from the flove to reetriet reconsideration on Article 8. Article & is
pov restricted,

At this poirt the body voied to come back on Wednesday evening, Warch 13,
1997, &t T:88 p. &

Nr. Demgs rade a wotion to vote, by Secret Ballet, on Saturday on the
renainder of the articles we have reasiniag.

Phe vote on this motien was pegative and we will meet on Vednesday to finish
anything we de not complete tonight--Saturday will remain as planmged

Hr. Currier anaoenced that there are requests for Secret Ballots on Articles
5, 18, and t1 whieh are all articles for oew pesitions. We will discuss each
article separately and vote in ome txip with 3 ballots

#r, Currier oov read Article % as follows:

To sge if the Pelhamn Schoel District will vote to raise and appropriate the
sgbp of THIRTY-PIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (39,808} to fuad a Spesial Bducation
Counselor pesition at the Pelhaw Memorial School. (Recommended by the Pelhan
gehcol Board) (Net Reconmended by the Pelhan Budget Committee]

Mr. Rotondi inforgmed us that Memerial School now shares a special-veeds
counselor with Sherburne Schesl. Recasse of increased responsibilities and
needs in this area we need this additienal pesitioa, Encouragement was "no"
from the floor on all these new positions as we have soge latge budgst
concerns this yeat and many felt some of these other igsues could wait,

A voice vete was in the affirwative to limit debate

Kr. Currier oow read Article 19:
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i,

1L.

12.

to see if the Pelham Schoel District will vote to raise aod appropriate the
sur  of TYHIRIT-FIVE THOUSABD DOLLARS ($§39,888) to fuod a Social
Studies/Science teacher position at Felham Righ School. {Recommended by the
Felhan 8c¢hool Board) (Not Recoaxended by the Pelham Budget Comnittee)

Nr, Poyr gpoke tc this issue and esplained the need for this Social
Studies/Science teacher position. Block scheduling, student auwbers, and an
increase in graduation requirements indicate the need for this teacher. Nrs.
Landry urged passing this article as ve need advanced courses available for
all out students to remain competitive. Many felt that we should not lose
gite of providing a good education for cur students. Nr. Nelaughlin, noted
from experience, that If we are going to do dlock scheduling "right” then we
do need additional teachers to provide their education. Mr, Lavallee stated
that the Budget Comnittee did oot approve this article because of the latqe
expenses ve had this year and felt that we could possible held off on this
expense. Debate was limited,

Nr. Currier read Article 11 as follevs:

To see if the Pelham School Distriet will vote teo raise and appropriate the
gon of SEVBRTEEN THOUSARD PIVE RUNDRBD DOLLARS {$17,808) to fund a 1/2 tiwe
fechaelogy teacher position at Pelham High Seheel. (Recomnecded by the
Pelbar School Board) (Mot Recomwended by the Pelhaw Budget Comzitiee}

hs the high school only has a partially staffed Technology Department, this
would allew for wmore courses to be offered te the high school students

Questions surccunding this article were: What is Technolegy?, Hov wmany
students go to $alen Vocatisnal Proqraa?, and hov many roows do we need for
the Technology Progran? FPeople were alse concerned about all these {ncreases
affecting our Senior Citizens. Mr. Dutton urged support for these articles
as it's not the building but the teachers, curriculun, etc, that makes for z
qood 3cheel.

Debate was limited by a voice vote and Mr. Currier ezplained how we would be
votiag on these three articles. It would be a Secret Ballot vote with one
trip to the voting table, There would be a separate box for each article.

While the bailets were being counted, Nr. Currier preceeded with Article 12:

To gee if the Pelham Scheol Distriet will vote to raise and appropriate the
sun of TWBATY-FIVE THOUSAKD DOLLARS ($25,894) to fund a Techrology Directer
position for the Pelhan Scheol Distriet. (Recommended by the Pelhaw Scheol
Board) ([Recommended by the Pelhan Budget Comaittee)

Hr. Hall brought to our attention that we are currently sharing the pogition
with ¥indhan and Bedford and that this woney would add funds to those we
already have to fund a full-time Technology Director. He read us the
responsibilities of this position. Mr, havallee explained that we would nov
bave a full-time position. & full-time positien allows uws to make much
better progress io enhancing the technology pregrams io the schecls, This
positian has received the support of the Technical Committee.

Nt. Currier ancounced the results of Article 9:

Tes - 59 Ro - 158
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Article 9 is defeated.

Continuing wity Article 12, Mrs. Johnson supports this Article as ve peed Lo
continue to educate both the teachers and the students and keep them up on
the new programs available. The Director’s positien is a year-reund
pesition,. §90,09% would be both salary and benzfits

L voice vote from the floor linited debate on Artiele 12. ‘There is also &
request for a Secret Ballet wote oo Article 17. Mr. Currier asked if we
would like to combine this vote, like the others, with Article 514, e would
discoss Artiele 14 pext and vote or both of them at one tize. The body vas
in agreement with this suggestien and Mr. Currier read Article 14 at thies
tige:

f2 see if the Pelham School District will wote to ralse and appropriate the
sen of FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS (§15,080). Said suw of money necessary to
fuad & Pechaelegy  Support  pesitien  for  the  Pelbaw  Schesl
Bistrict.{Reconnended by the Pelhan Schoel Board) (Recomaended by the Pelhan
Budget Committee}

Mr. Fzll peinted out to us thal this positlen is essentially to set up an
accognt to repair and saintain the existing compoters. The aceocunt will come
gnder contractval services, This money i3 oot for a person/position hut te
fupd the account to pay for those repairs. Yhere aren’'t any bepefits
associated with these services--this is just e repair equipmeat.

Nrs. Bdwards nade an aaendment to change the word “pesition® Lo “coatract”.
In doing so we woold not be apening the door for anether person.  The
amenduent was seconded
Nr. Currier announced the results of Article 18:

Teg - %2 Bo - 223
fhere was one blank ballet. Artiele 14 i» defeated.
At this time we also had the reselts of Article 11

Tes - 71 Te - 247
htticle 11 is defeated,
} wotien was nade from the floor to restrict reconsideratioz on Articles 9,
16, and 11 and all other articles cowpleted this evening. The wmotioa was
seconded.
Debate 15 1imited on Article 14, Qur veting 18 on Mrs. Bdwards aszendment to
replace the word position with the werd "coatract®, A shev of veter cards
wag in the affirmative. The amendwent iz adopted.
Again we would vote ln the same wanner on both Article 12 aod Aeticle 14
The boedy agreed that we would recess after this vore and reconvene toncrrow

evening, Harch 19, at T+88 p, n.  No cthar busiaess will be taken up tonight
ather than counting the ballots on Articles 12 and 14,
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After counting the results on Article 12 are:

Tes - 78 fo0 - 133
There were I blank hallets, Article 12 is defeated
The results of Article 14 are

Tes - 88 Fo - 11
There was 1 blapk ballot. Rrticle 14 is defeated

The meeting was recessed at 11:48 p. »,

Sessien 4
Nednesday, Marck 19, 1997
71080 p, u.

The aeeting was called to ordar at T:86 p. w,  Nr. Currier asked Mrs. Stadtailler
and Mr. Bean to lead us in the Pledge of Allegiance. He recognized these two aew
ncabers of our Scheol Beard

Por those who left earlier oo Tuesday evening, Mz. Curzier announced the results of
both Articles 12 and td4. Mrs, Caisse moticned to restrict reconsideraticn on both
Articles 12 and {4, Tt xas an affirmative vote frow the floor and both articles are
restricted.

Ar. Currier read Article 13 as follows

13. To see if the Pelham Scheol Bistrict will vote to raise and appropriate, as
g deficit appropriation, for the 1996-97 fiscal year, the suw of OBE HUBDRED
THOUSARD DOLLARS (§164,000), for repairing the septic systes at Pelham High
Scheol. (Recommended by the Felham School Board) (Recommended by the Pelhan
Budget Comaittee) Scheduled in the Capital Imprevement Plaa

Kr. Bail stated that the actual cest of the replacement was §143,8€9 apd Che
reason for asked foc ouly 5168 088 is that the dlstrict will be able to cover
$41,8084 through the funds available in the bhealth insurance andg
trangportation accounts,

Krs, Bscalera wanted to knev if the company is still waiting te be paid. Nr.
Boucher sald that as we haven't as yet closed out our books we are able to
abserh that full amount of money uatil we get to that peint in the year when
we have to pay the balaace of our bills. Mre, Escalera also wanted te koow
{f we did not fund this §$106,008, where would the money come {rom to pay fer
the septic systea? Mr. Boucher rceplied that we c¢ould try to negotiate not
paying some of gur bills, Also, there ate supplies that we would not be ahle
ty purchase. Kr. Raudonis mentioned that bussing weuld also have to taken
inte consideration when we have to lock at the Dudget for additional wonies.
$tate law does oot require us to bus high school stedents to 2chool.

Other concerns vere hids oo the job and could gseptic have been repaired
instead of replaced.
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15,

There vas an affirmative vote to linit debate. There was another request for
3 Secret Ballet wote ea thig article and again we will vote ip the same
aannet as before. While ballots were counted, Wr. Carrier read Article 14:

To see if the Pelham School Distriect will vote to raise and appropriate the
gup ¢f TWENTE-POUR THOUSAND RIRE AUXDRED GSBYRRTY-PIVE DOLLARS ([4§24,97%).
§aid sun of mooey necessary teo purchase Ceplacement furniture (chairs, tables
etc.) for Pelhar Migh Scheel. {Recommended by the Pelham School Board)
Beconnended by the Pelhar Budget Comnittee)

Nra. Lazarus addressed the body and asked for suppert on this articls as the
furniture is 28 years old and cannot be repaired any longer

Hrg. Bsealera wmade a wotion to amwend Artiele 1% to add, after the werd
furniture, the words "mot for office use'. This was seconded.

There was an affirmative vote to limit debate. A shew of veter cards was in
the affirmative on this amendwent, There was a request for a Secret Ballet
vate on Article 15,

The reselts on Rrticle 13 are:
Tes - 154 Yo - &%

Artiele 13 is adopted in the amount of §10@,888. fThere was a voice vote o
restrict reconsideratien oo hrticle 13 and it was in the affirmative,
hrticie 13 ig restrieted.

¥r. Currier tosk a wmotien to combine Articles 16 and 17 and 18 ip Secret
Ballot votiag and the body approved putting these computer articles together

Nr. Currier read Aztiele 16 as follows:

To gee if the Pelhaz School District will vete to raise and appropriate the
sun of THIRTY-T¥0 THOUSARD BIGHT EUNDRED DOLIARS {§32,388) te purchase 1f
sonputers, & priaters, 1 LCD screen and assorved software for Pelham High
School. {Recomsepded hy the Pelhaw School Beard] (Bot Recommended by the
Pelhan Budget Committee] Scheduled in the Capital Improvenent Plan

Nr. Coombs wade & motion to awend Mrticle 16 to read to “purchase/lease” 16
computers and to add the wocd “purchase” before 1 LD screen, This would
allow g3 to consider options other than purehasing the computers. The
antndneat waz seconded. A question was raised as to who was going te use
these computers, Mr. Rotondf explained that these computers woyld be wsed in
the Science Department. There was wuch discussion about the benefits of
purchasing vs. leasing. The Technical Staff supports these articles after
aech research aad investigation imte the needs of the schoals. There was
also further discussion abeut purchasing used computers, MHr. Wessina said
that leasing has worked very well in imdustzy, hevwever, the leasing industry
is aot prepared to vork with school systews to adequately supply their needs.
The Budget Comnmittee did oot approve of these articles, at the timz, ag they
were oot broken dewn as they here, Also, as this was going te be a tough
financtal year, this had an fmpact on our decision
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There were no more speakers and debate was lisited op the amendaent., The
yote i3 now on the amendment to read "purchase/lease” and also to add the
word “purchase” before t LDC scraen.

A show of cards was not conciusive 3¢ we had a count of the veter cacds with
this results:

Yes - 98 Ho - 132
The anendaent is defeated.

the Board aade another amendment to add the words "Said coeputers to be IBK
compatible.” te the end of Article 16, This was seconded. The vote on this
amendment by voter cards was in the affirmative.

Me. Curzisr anmednced the resylts of Article 15
Tes - 153 fe - 83
Article 15 18 adopted for §24,975,
Nr. lLavallee teok over at this peint to give Mr. Currier a short break.

Article 16 was still oa the floor and an anendmsnt was wade from the £loor to
add the words "not for effice use™ after Pelhaz High Schoel. This was
seconded, A show of hands was in the affirmative. The amendment is adopted,
Debate Is new limited on Article 1%,

Kr. Lavallee now read Rrkbicle 17

To gee if the Pelhanm Scheol Distriet will vote Lo raise and approptiate the
sen of YHERDT-TWO THOUSARD IWO HUBDRED YWEHTY-PIVE DOLLARS {$32,225] to
putchase 18 computers and § gprioters fer Pelham Xemorial School.
[Recormended by the Pelham School Board) [Hot Recoagended by the Pelhan
Judget Committee} Scheduled in the Capital Ieprovement PFlan.

[isa Gibbs asked if apy of these articles get put into the ragular budget!
Kr. Lavallee said that in the by-laws, any capitol itew that is te last 2
years or more 3ad costs wore than §5,888 should come up as & varrant artiele,
He alse explained that the Capitel Improvemeat Plap is a growp that
deternines our capitol needs and have put together &z five-year program and
these computers are part of that prograa.

There is & notion here alae to add the werds “Said computer to be IBN
compatible only" ta the end of the article.

There vas still some discussion on Article 16, therefore, at this petat there
was a aotjon to linit debate on Article 16. This vas seconded,

On Article 17 Mr. Rotondi said that Hemerial School has the fewest mumber of
computers aad again these computers will be used in the Science Department.

Dehate was liwited and a show of voter cards was in the affirsative to the
ameadnent. The anendment is adopted.
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Nr. Greenwoed supported these computers as they are strongly aeeded in the
sehools, They oeed IBX compatible compyters and they will be a great asset
in the Seience Departeent and also for Project RISE. Nrs. Young asked us to
listen to those, whor we have chosen to advise us, on how we should spend our
woney. They Rhave leeked iato the needs of our students. Mr. Davitt peinted
out these computers are important te the education of our students--qur
future.

There wags a woticn Lo limited debate which vas seconded.
N, Lavailee read Artiele 18:

To see if the Pelham School District will vate to raise and appropriate the
sun of YNEHTU-RINE THOUSAND THRER KCWORED DOLLARS ($29,389) to purchase 1§
conputers and & printers fer B.G. Sherburme Schocl. {Reccmmended by the
falhan §cheol Board;  [Not Rezvmmended by the Peltam Budget Committee)
Scheduled in the Capital Tmprovement Plan.

fhe Board agalo resinded us of their motion to add "Said computers to be IBK
Coppatible” at the end of the article. This was seconded

Wr. Rotondi satd that the iatent of thes: computers (I8 conpatiblel to be
used at the fevrth grade Yeve! in the Science areas and alse in other subiect
areas, Phis wouid alsc help with Preoject RISE. ALl these computers help
with the continuity of curriculum. A point made by Mr. Guimond was where
would we pet the copputers if there is already overcrowding at Sherhurne
Schoel?

Hr. Rafferty made 2 motion to amend Atticle 18 to add "not for office use'.
This amendment was sacended.

Phe vote now is on Doth anmendments and a show of veter cards was in the
affirwative. The apeadments are passed. Bebate is limited on Article 18

Kr, Curcier returned and read Artiele 19 as listed:

"$hall we adept the provisions of REK 194-B, implementing & charter and open
enrollwent schoel progran?”; “Shall me mere thap 7-18 percest of the
district’s caczert pupil eazollwent by eligible for tuition to attend chartet
and open envollrent schools locatad sutside the school district?”; "Shall e
wore than 15 percent of the distriet’s carrent pupil earelluent be eligible
for tuition to attend charter and apen anrellment schools iocated inside the
schoel digtrict?” (Subnitted by Petition)

Nrs. Landry spoke to this warrant and explained what a ¢harter schoel is, hov
it would be fuaded, and whe would be able to attend

Dr. Hill made a wotion to awend this artticle from 7-18% to @3 and from 13% to-
8% which allows a study inte the charter school but negates the district from
funding a charter school at this time. 7This protects the district this year
antll a vote o9 a final propesal is nade. This was secoaded

Nrs, Debona supports this article as she would like cheices in her children’'s
equcation, This would also bave a positive effect on efucation. Other
¢iscussion revolved around funding, numbers of children | -wing the district,
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why our costs would not change, and streng feelings agaiost Pelham tax
dollars leaving Pelhan. Dzr. Hill reminded us all that if the percentages are
oot changed to "8° and we are cousidered aa open earoliment school then
stadents could opt to leave this distriet this year. Mr. Bean informed us
that the RSA's indicate that they cannot fovestigate a charter school without
sur approval, If we do pot approve this article, at this time, they cacnot
pursue a progesal.

There was 2 motion te vote op the amendment at this time and a show of voter
carde was in the affiraative. The asmendment is adopted.

Hr. Marcinkowskl polnted out that the School Bistriet and the teachers could
vote to beceme a Charter School, this is a trial program for § years for oaly
19 chsrters schools in Hew Hawpshire, and eaployees of Charter Schools are
considered public enployees and are entitled to all on~enefits of those
employees--they can also unionize, Continued diseugsion surrounded who can
attend sech schools.

Debate was limited en Article 19 and seconded. We woul: vote hy Secret
Baliot on Article 19 as amended

¥r, Currier aooounced the results of Article 16:

fes - 121 ic - 139
hrticle 16 is defeated.
the results of Article 1T:

fes - 119 fo - 139
Article 17 is defeated.
hod, the results of Article 18

Tes - 86 To - 173
Article 18 is defeated.
Hr. Bean made a wmotion to restrict reconsideration oo Articles 15, 16, 17,
and 18. A vpice vote was affirmative and Articles 15, 16, 17, and 1B are
restricted.
Ne, Cucrier read Atticle 20 as follows:
To see if the Pelbham School District will vote to raise and appropriate the
gun of TRERPY THOUSARD DOLLARS (§2¢,968). Said sum of woney necessary to fua
Article 19 which, if passed, will allev up to ten percent (19%) of Pelhax's
gtudeats te attend ¢pen entollment schools cutside of the school district in
accordance with RSA 194-8. {Recommended by the Pelham Schogl Board) (Net

Recormended by the Pelhasn Budget Comnittee)

Based ¢p the "0 percentaoes in Artiele 19, Dr. Hill reconmends defeat of the
article,
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There vas a show of voter cards in the negative and Article 2@ is defeated

L wotion te restrict recomsideration en Article 20 was in the pogitiv:
Article 20 is restricted.

Por obvicys reasons Nr, Currier announced he would not read Article 21, The
article below is ag posted

We the undersigned registered voters of the Town of Felhaa, hersby request
the Pelbam Schosl Beard to place the following petitien warraat article on
the Schee!l Warrant for the March {2, 1997 Schos! District Neeting. This
atticle is:

Shall we wote te¢ adept the Pelham §ehool Distriet Conflict of [nterest
Ocrdinance as follows:

Section i+ Ko meaber of any §echool Board and no §choel employes shall
introdyce, discuss as a wember, approve, act upon, or vote upen any motion,
resolution, permit or other matter in which be or she, or a meuber of his or
her fanily, has a fiaancial interest

{a} If the wmatter to be introduced, discussed, appreved, or voted upon
relatss to a School matter or a patcel of laad owned by a Board member, or a
teaber of his or %er family is ap abutter to such a parcel of land, the Board
wenbear shall by deemed to bave a Financial interest ia the matter to e
introdused, discussed, approved, or voted upon

(b} TE the matter to be isntreduced, diecussed, approved or voted wpon
relates to 2 persen or business with whow or which the Board xember, or Lis
or ber spouse, has had 3 Eipanclal tramsaction during the past year, the
Board nember shall be deemed to have a fipancial interest in the matter to be
introduced, discussed, approved or voted upen. For the purposes of this
gubsection, the mere purchase ¢f goods or services froa a person or Dusiness
in the ordinary course of that person's or business’s retail or service
business shall net prevent & Board member frow istroducing, discussing,
approving or voting upen a watter which relates te that persee or business

Rot withstandicg the first sentence of this subsection, a Boatd after having
publicly heard all of the relevant facts, may, by a public xajority vote of
2 legal quorue of its mewhers, deteraine that the prior financial tramsaction
did net create & financial intersst in the wmatter teo be introduced,
digcussed, approved voted upen. Hotwithstandioy the first sentence of this
subsection, the School Board after having peblicly heard all of the relevant
facts, aay, &y a public xajority vote of a legal quorum of its members,
determioe that the prier financial trassaction an issue did not give the
Sehool Board meaber a fimaneial interest in the watter in issve.

Section 2: The determination of a School Board merber's eligibility te
introduce, discuss as a wewber, approve, or vote pursuant to Section 1 above
shall e wade by 2 majority vote of a legal quorum of the members of the
Board present at the time said introduetion, discussien, approval, or vote is
about to eccur, Ho weaber shall be allowed to vote on the issuve of his or
her eligibility. Any person may raise the issue of eligibility.

Section 3. If a Beard wember ineligible to vote under Section 1 and 2 votes
in & nanoer prohibited by Section i amd 2, the vote will not be rendered
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iavalid, ezcept when the matbter passed on the streagth of the ineligible
yote, Kotwithstanding the forgeing sentepse, no vote will be deemed invalld
if relied uvpon in good faith by a thizd party who dié not have actual
knowledge of the mewber’s ineliqibility, when he or she relied on the vote.
N0 VOUE OF ARY BOARD SHALL BE INVALID BY VIRTUE OF THIS ORDIBANCE. I? PRICS
10 THE VOTE, A KRJORITY OF & LEGAL QUORUX 0F THR BCARD, PRESENY AND ¥4PIHG,
DRTREMINES THAY THE MENBER IN IS3UZ IS BLIGIBLE TO VOTE. AlL eligibility
votes shail be duly recorded in the alsutes of the Board

Section 4: Ho Board official or employee shall use School property or laber
fotr personal purpeses, Mo School official or eeployee shalluse 8chootl
property or laber to advaece the political cause of any candidate for publie
office or any political party. Nothing ia the forgoing sentesce shall
prevent political candidates or parties from holding public meetings on
Schaeol owned property or lo scheel owned buildings

Section §: Ko scheol offivial or employee or business contrelled by such
official or eaployee shall sell eor enter inte a contract to sell to the
Sehool District anything having a value ip ezcess of two husdred dollars

eysapt By open conpetitive bidding

Section § {al: Ne informstion acquired by a School officiel or employee

throogh or by virtue of his or ber official position, shall be used by the
School official er employes for his or her figanciail benefit, for the
financial benefit of 2 wmewber of bis of her fawily, or for the financial
benefit of any other perscn or business

Seeticw & (b): Wo person, while a member of the §chool Board, Budget
Conmittee or Trust Fund Trustees shall alse be a Departwent Head oy a full-
time empleyee of the Town of Pelhan

Section 6 {¢j: Ao person, While a wember of the School Board, Budget
Comwittee or Trust Fund frustees, or within four sonths of having heep a
aeaber of the Schoel Beard, Budget Cowmittes or Trust Zund Yrustees shall
apply to become or become a full-time employee or Departwent Kead of the Town
of Pelhan School District.

Section 6 (d): Every person who is eaployed in violation of any subsection
af Section § oo the date that Sectien & becomes effective, shall within one
year frowm the effective date of Section 6, tesign dis or her pesition as a
senber of the School Board, Budget Comwittee or Trust Fund Trastees

Section § {e}: Tt shall be the duty of the Sehool Board to enforce the
ptevisions of this erdinance, TE any person fails toc resign as a member of
the §ehoel Board, 3udget Committee or Trust Fumd Trusteea as required by
Section 6 (dy, or LE any persen takes office or accepts esployment jn
yiolation of any subsection of Section 6, the School Board shall isitiate
reaoval proceedings in the Hillsborough County Superior Court as autherized
by Rev Hawpshire RSA 31:3%-a. If the §chool Board fails to initiste removal
proceediogs a8 yequired by this section after having heen requested to do so
in writing by 5@ voters of the Town of Pelhan, any 1¢ registered voters of
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the Town way brieg a nandamus action against the Schoel Board in the
Hillsboreugh County Superior Court seeking a Court Order directing the School
Board to initiate retoval proceedings. The costs of any removal preceedings
and/or successful mandamus proceedings shall be berne by the Pelhan Sehoel
Distriet. The Pelham School District shall not pay any of the costs ingurved
by & member of the Schoel Board, Budget Cowmittee or Trust Fund Trustess in
unsuccessfully defending any rvenoval proceeding inmitiated by the Schos!
Board,

Section 6 (f}:  Any full-time epployee or Department Bead of the Pelhas
Schoel District who wishes to become a weaber of the Sctool Board, Budget
Committese or Trust Pund Trustees shall voluntarily resign hisz or her pesition
of exploynent priot to declaring his candidacy with the School Clezk for any
elected position or prier teo accepting an appeintment to any appointed
positien.

Section 6(g): It shall be the duty of the School Board, Budget Committee and
frust Fund frustees te create writbten position descripticns fer each and
evary one of thelr empleyees, including Departwent Heads. A11 such position
fescrigtions shall be opes te 1lnspection and copying by wembers of the
public. Rothing in the forgoing sentence shall prevent the negotiatien of
employnent agreements if executive session or prevent collective bargaining
as pernjtted by applicable state and federal laws.

Section 7: Ko Schoel official or eaplovee shail claim to act oc behalf of
any Beard or Departeest without prier acthorization frem said Beard or
Departaent.

Section 8: It is the duty of every School official and employee, who learns
or knows of a vielation ¢f this crdinance, to veport that vielatico to the
Sehool Board.

Section §: Kotwithstanding Section € e, it shall be the duty of the School
Board to enforce all the provisions of this ordinance and take approptiate
remedial actien, If the School Board fails to take action to resmedy the
infraction as required by this section after haviag been requested to do so
in writing by 25 reqistered voters of the Yown of Pelham, any 10 registered
voters of the town may bring a wandamus actien against the Schosl Board in
the Billsboerough County Superior Court seeking & Court Qrder directing the
School Baard to take remedial action. Court and leqal costs of any remedial
action and/or successful mandamus proceedings shall be borme by the Pelhawm
School District., The Felham School District shall not pay any ¢f the costs
incurved By @ wember of the Scheol Board, any School employee or appointed
afficial in unsuccessfully defending any remedial actien initiated by the
School Beard.

Sectign t4: For the purpose of this ordinance, the following definitiens
ghall apply:

{a) & Board member's family ghall iaclude his or her apouse, parents
grandpareats, childrea, gqrandehildcen, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles,
nieces and nephews and the parents, grandparents, children, qrandchildren
brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, sieces, aod nephaws of the member's spouse.

- 217 -



{b} Ao abutter is ene who owes land adjacent to or within 209 feet of a
parcel of land

{e) & School official is any persen holding any elected or appointed Schosl
position or office including Committees and Sub-Comnittees

(d) X School or Scheel District ewplovee is any full-tiae, part-tinme,
permanent, or temperary ewpleyea, including such enployess who are eeployed
by the Scheol Distriet or School and paid by a federal or atate
assistance/grant pregraa.

{e} The term School Board includes all School-Board, Schopl District Beards,
Coxniseions and Comnittees and Sub-Comnittees.

Section I1: If any provision contained in this ordinance iz held to be valid
for aay reascn by a ceurt of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not
invalidate in any warner any other provision of this ordinance

This ordinance will become effective iwnediately upon its adoptioa at the
1997 School Distriet X¥eeting. (Subaitted by Petitien)

Ke. Bean wade a motion to amead Article 21 as there were a couple of
typewritten errors. On Sectiop 6B we need to add “School District™ azd in
Section 11 in the first line the word should be "invalid" not valid, fhe
anendwent is seconded.

Coaments were raised about this being a violation of our civil rights.
k show of voter cards vas in the affirmative to adopt Hr. Beao’s amendment

Nr. Bourgeois made asother motion to amendment the artiecle by adding to
Section 7 the word "writtea” prior authorization. A shew of veter cards was
in the affirmative and this azendanent is adopted.

Kr. Curcier anaounced the results of Artiele 139:
Tes - 163 Ro - 9@
hrticle 19 is adopted.

Nrs, Turnquist asked of legal Counsel 1f this i3 a legal artitle. Nr.
Leslie's response was that this body is 2ot empowsred by the state
legislature to adopt a conflict of interest ordinance. YTherefore, it would
be gore fn the mature of an advisory. fThis would be tested in the courts
The statute allows towns the right to set up a coaflict of ipterest. He did
not see anything that empowers Schogl Disteicts that right, Re did not feel
this would be binding but act as as advisory ordinance

8r. Rill noted that there is nothing uaethical qoing on here--everything fs
aboveboard, The Beard has a poliey which ethically quides thee in their
vork, This also could bave an impact o parents who might sit on comaittees
ot subconsittees for the school. This increases the liability of the town,
Would the body want us to take this and encompass this with ocur current
pelicy.
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Xrg. Bdvarde made 2 motien to awend this article by adding “living in the
household” after the word family ia Section 1. This was seconded

Nr. Lavallee asked Mrs. Bdvards if her intention was also to delete Section
18A, She wanted to add this to her awepdmeat.

M. Currier said that we would now vote on the amesdment to Section 1. A
show of voter cards is tegative. The amendment to Section ! is defeated.

Kr. Bundock of Sceafc View Dr. asked we all te consider that an easy golution
to all this and if semebody dees wrong you cam easily vote them oytb--this
being a auch better resedy

%r. Raudonis confirmed that negotiatiens are bandled with a gqreat deal of
cars apd wmany have abstalmed when voting would relate to a collective
bargaining situation that would relate to a fawily situatien.

Kr, KcColgan stated this "this s the most hate-filled document” he hase seen.
Kr, NclLaughlin made apother motion to remove all reference to "Trusteez of
the Trust Fyod”. This also was seconded. After a short discussion, howaver,
the vote on this azendaent was {0 the negative. This amendwent js not
adopted.

Larry Major asked the Beard about their conflict of interest pelicy and Dr.
Bi1l read the pelicy for our inforeaties.

Nre. Beauchesne asked {f someone was going te be responsible to trace family
trees?

Dr. Hill assured we all that the Scheol Board's policy is binding--it is in
theit policy wanual.

Debate was limited at this tire. This again was Secret Balloet wveting.
There was a notion from the fleor te restrict reconsideration om every
article cowpleted this evening. A vwolee vote in the affirpative restricted

all articles

We aow voted on the three (3} adopted amendments and the results of the
Secret Ballot voting were

Tes - 41 o - 151
I blank
Article 21 1s defeated.

h notion was made to restrict recounsideration on Article 21 aod it was an
affirmative vote, Article 21 was restricted,

¥e adjouzned this evening at 11:48 p, w.
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Gpecial Session - Heconsideration Vote
Gehool Distriet Meeting
§aturday, Mareh 22, 1997

The nzeting vas opened at 9:18 and we all stocd for the Pledge of Allegisnce,

Nr, Currier intteduced those present: Mr. Lavallee, Mr. Lynde, Dr. Ei}1, Mrs.
Lazares, and Mr. Rotondi. Alsoe preseot were Nr. Boucher, Nr. Traffie from Hotter
Censtruetion, Mr. Bissen frowm the architectural firw, Ns. Bliane Gorrow weur Legal
Counsel today, and Xr. Raudonis

Mr. Currier read Article 1 as follows:

1. To see if the Pelhan School Distriet will vote to raise and appropriate the
sug of STY MILLUO® RINE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS {$6,90¢,889) for the
copstruction and original equipping of a new scheol building, and te
aathorize the issuance of not wore than §6,989, 088 of bonds or notes in
accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Finance At (RSA Chapter 33)
and to autherize the gchool board to issue and aegotiate such bends or rates
and to determine the rate of interest thereon., (273 ballot vate required),
{Recoemended by tbe Pelham School Board) (Recomsended by the Pelhaa Budget
Committee) Scheduled in the Capital Improvement Plan

Mr. Curcier reminded ws aad those at home that the poells will remain open
watil 8:88 p. a, this evening, The meeting stays open until after the polls
ate ¢losed and until we count the halloets and announce the resplts. Then a
wotion to adjourn will be in order. TWe will he in recess while we are
voting,

Fr. %4 urged us all to be considerate of our celghbors and friends. We all
have questicns and concerns before we can vote--we need an open nind. Be
urged us to respect those vhor we have voted {nto office and entrusted this
work iste their carge.

Mrs. Burtoen gave us a brief history of the schools in Pelbam and uzged vs, as
we bave done in the past, to suppert ecur schools. Aad Mrs. Stadtailler,
asked ¢s to consider the wessages we are seading our childres, Also, Nr.
Scanzanl asked us all te leok at the facts, ask questions, and not let this
opportunity pass ua by.

Nr. NeDevitt asked us to realize that a "no” vote will mot limit our taves--
we have come up with the wost effective golation. We way also loese the
gppertunity for any available §tate Aid

Hr. Davitt asked for an explanation of Senate Bil1 28%¢

Nr. Rotondi sald that Bill 282 is a new bill, that if approved, will have
towns qualify by a "means” test to gqualify for any building aid. Based wpou
that “ameans” test, the town of Pelbam 15 a property rich community and,
therefoze, would not Dbe eligible for any state ald--sheuld this bill pass.
We would lese the 38% state aid we axe now anticipating receiving.

Nrs. Saurman urged everyone to just vete on the facts we knew today. She vas
concerned about bov "reval® would affect ug all
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Nr, Sherman advised us to take care of "all our tfown needs” and then we cap
go out and attract business and we esn theo show we have taken cate of our
town needs and have s¢mething to affer the business community,

Nr. Herb Currier urged voting for the new school as Sherburne School was
afequate in its day but does not weet teday's needs,

Nr. Caisse asked Kr. Lavallee what the tax would be if the new school does
not get vored in today?

Wr. Lavallee gaid that if the school does pot pase the rate will decrease by
§1.82, If the schoo!l deeg paes it will intrease about .72,

¥r, Bourgecis still felt that we need to shift Kemorial students iate the
bigh schoel a3 the high scheol is mot at capasity

¥r, Lynde pointed out some facts

The Budget Committee approved this plan hecause this was ae
oppertune time to do this for the town

- There wgs a need

- This could be done without a major impact on the tax rate
he towa is also inm the hest Fiaancial shape it has ever been
there are increases in revenus
fhe Capito]l Iwprovement Coanittee has laid out a good glan fer
the town for future ceeds

Hr. fctondi reminded os that there aten't any nev tsachers with this ney
gchoo) upless we vote on them fext year. The nev building will be fully
operational. There also will be 2 new fields for all studeats to use. 1Also,
we looked at the air quality at Sherburne and that iz why we presented the
portables for consideration

¥r, tovan of Liviegston Rd., Clerk of the Planping Board and Chairman of the
CIP Committes, agrees bthat there are passionate arguments on hoth sides,
hovever, the peeds of this tewn, usvally prejected out at least 7 years, are
great and we have come up with this plan to meet cur town and schoel needs,
It is true that you canmot implement impact fees when you are not zeeting
your curreat needs. Lastly, we sre greabtly entanclag ocur municipal needs by
ysing the Sherburae School

Kany felt that they honestly cannet afford more tazes--that they are already
too high,

Nrs. Rotondi asked if Wr, Traffie could give us sone backgrournd informatioa.
e gave told us about his buainess, his dealings with building schoels,
and proaised us he would do 3 good job for the people of Pelhan.

Kr. Dutten was outraged at the issue of the air quality aod why nothing has
been dene. Nrs. Lazarus resinded us that it would cost upwards of §80¢,000
to $1K to properly vent Sherbucrne School. Mrs. Hamel, our aurse at Sherburne
School, told us that there are 5% students who bave asthwa 2t Sherdurne
School., Mr. Dutton urged a solutien - pow!
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vhat vill be to capacity ia 181

Mr. ODruding applauded the benefits of the Recreation Departeent having
additional space and the future growth that such space could provide the
pecple of Pelhan,

Nr. HcColgan applauded Dr. Rill fer all bis fine wort and years of
dedication.

Discugsion ended st 11:1% a. & and the pells were opened for voting and
renained opea until B:8% p. . After ballots were counted, the tally was:

3,166 ballots were cast, 7 ballots were blank
Yeg - 1,535 fo - 1,82¢
hrticle 1 is defeated.
The aeeting was adjocrned at 9:84 p, w,
Respectfully subritted:
Pl
a3 Glicar Oﬂ(«‘?«éé'—

Bonaa B'Arcangele
Sehaol Distriet Clerk
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ABSENTEE
OFFICIAL BALLOT

(,\.I-
w ANNUAL SCHOOL DISTRICT MEETING
TOWN OF

PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE Beoma?r e'g,acamg_nta

March 10, 1998 DONNA M. D'ARCANGELG, SCHOCL DISTRICT GLERK

INSTRUCTIONS TO YOTERS
1. To vote, complete the arrow(s) 4m  wit pointing to your choices, like this gme——ag

2. To write-In 2 candidale not on the ballol, write the name on the line provided for the office and compiste the amow 4= =g pointing

to the write-in line, like this qme—g

——— ———  _____  ———
QFFICIAL BALLQT
e SUHOOL OFFICIALS __ SCHOOL DISTRICT WARRANT
For School Board
ONE YEAR Vote for ONE: QUESTIQN #2

To see it the Pelham Schoo| Digtrict will vole to raise and appropriate the sum of SEVEN
ROBERT TURNOUIST | #4|LLION THREE HUNDRED ANE THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($7,303,000) for the con-
structicn and original equipping of a new school building, and to autherize the issuance of
WRITE-IN =8| ot more than $7,303.000 of bonds or notes in accordance with the provisions of the
————e————— Municipal Finarice Act (RSA Chapter 33) and to authorize the schoel board to issue and
For School Board negotiate such bonds of rates and to determine the rate of imarest therecn. (Sukmitted by
THREE YEARS Vote for TWO: Patition} (Recommended by tha Pelham Schosl Board) {Not Recommended by the
Pelham Budgel Committes) (REQUIRES A 273 MAJORITY VOTE)
JACK L. CAYNON

+ 4

YES 4=
ND 4=

GARL HUETHER
APRIL LAZARUS

WRITE-IN

QUESTION #3

To sea if the Pelham Schogl District will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of SIX HUN-
DRED TWENTY-SEVEN THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED AND FIFTY-TWO DOLLARS
{$627.852) for the purpose of paying the first installment on the interest and the principal
of the bond or note repayment for the construction of the new elementary school. To
beceme effective only it Article #2 is adopted.(Submitted try Petition) (Recommendad try

- ihe Palham School Board) {Nel Recommended by the Pelham Budgat Committes
For School Gistrict Moderator Estimated tax impact 123 M 4 " )

ONE YEAR Vole for ONE:

t4t 14t
AAARRA

WRITE-H

YES =
NO =

PHILIF R. CURRIER

WRITE-IN

QUESTION #4

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of TWD HUN-

DARED THREE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED SEVENTY-ONE DGLLAﬁSAS%DQ?ég?g). Said

isiri 3 sum of money being the 2mount necessary to fund the cost items of the -99 schaool

ONEEASRBMN District T{,:T: ;:]l;eor“, year atiributable to the Collective Bargaining Agreament between the Pelham Scheol 8oard
- and the Pelham Education Association. (Recommended by the Pelham Schoo! Board)

SANDRA M. CORBIN - {Recommended by the Pelham Budgel committee) Estimatsd tax impact 40

WRITE-IN

+ 4
AR

YES 4=
ND 4=

. QUESTION #3
For Schaol District Clerk To ses if the Palnam School District will vote to raise and approprizte the sum of FORTY-
ONE YEAR Vote for ONE: FIVE T?;OUSAND SIX HUNDRED F%RTY—UNE DOLLARS ($45,641). Saad sum (f)f money
" being the amount necessary to fund salary Increases and salry related costs for aides,
DONNA M. D'ARCANGELD custodians, secretaries, school |unch and maintgnange personned. This 45 a2 3% pay
WRITE-W g | increase for 112 people for the 1398-99 school year (Recommended by the Pelham
Schaol Board) (Recommended by the Palham Budget Commities)
Estimated tax impact .09

-
-

YES 4=
HO -

OUESTION #8

To see if the Pelnam Schoot District will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of TWENTY
FOUR THOUSAND SEVENTY-SEVEN DOLLARS (524,077}, Said sum of money being nac-
essary to fund salary increases and salary related costs for 3 principals, 3 assistant princi-
pals and ten special education personnei. (Recommended by ihe Pelkam School Bogrd)
(Recommendad by the Pelham Budget Committen) Estimated tax impact .04

YES 4=
NQ -

QUESTION #7

“Shall the district ratify ang fund the propased contract between the Pelham Charter School
and the Pelham School District, for a peried ot five (5) vears for initial adopticn with a first
year annuat appropriation of £3,88% per student not to exceed $777 800 which shall be
approved by the voters in the district operating budget? The tirst year total financial impact
of a “yes” vote on this question is estimated by the school board at $540,850."

Mote: Explanation: An aMtirmative vote will raise and appropriate the sum of $540,850 for
the esttmated additional costs atiributable to the first year's operation of the Charter
School. (Mot Aecommended by the Pelham Schoel Bpard) (Not Recommanded hy the
Pglham Budget Commitiee) Estimated Lax impact 1.07

YES 4=
NO =

TURN OVER TQ
CONTINUE VOTING
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“Shall we adopt the provisions of
fSA 194-B, implementing a charter
and open enroliment school pro-
gram? Shall no more than 0% of
the district’s current pupil enroll-
ment be eligible for tuition to attend
charter and open enroliment
schools located outside the district;
and shall no mare than 20% of the
district's current pupil enrcliment
be eligile for tuition to attend char-
ter and open enrclment schools
located inside the school district?”

QUESTION #9

The following non-binding referen-
dum guestions are here to gathar
public opinion only. The Pglham
School Board will use the results in
developing any groposals to come
befare voters designed to meat the
district’s Space needs to accommo-
date growing enroliments. Please
indicate which of the following
alternatives you would be likely to
support if the board brings such a
proposal to the voters in 1999,

Would you be likely to supporl:
{choose ane):

a A new 80,000 square foot buiid-
ing o house 900 students in
Readinress through grade five
replacing the present E G.
Sherburne School? Current esti-
mated cost is: §7,303.000

. A 50,000 square foot building to
house 500 students in some
combination ot grades
Readiness to grade five relieving
crowding at both Sherbune and
Memoriat  Schools?  Current
estimated cost is; $3,950,306,

Additions and renovations to E.
G. Sherburne School creating
approximately 90,000 square
feet overall o house 900-1000
students in Readiness to grade
five? Current estimated cost is:
£6,050.000

To renovate the gymaasiums at
Memorial  and  Sherburne
Schools o accommodate six {6)
and four (4) £lassrooms respec-
tively and to construct two (2}
gymnasiums  approximately
7650 square feet sach at an
estimated total cost of $1.6 mil-
fion dollars,

er

3]

e

QUESTION #10

The following non-pinding referan-
dum question iz here to gather
public opinion onty. The Pglham
Schaol Board will use the results in
geveloping any proposal to come
befare volers designed to meet the
district’s space needs to accommo-
date growing enrollmants.

In your opinion should public
tundergarten be included in any
proposed school construction
project as long as the state
reimburses the district for 75%
af the construction costs related
to the kindergarten program?
The current estimated construc-
tion ¢0sts would be $521.625.

YES 4@ =
NO 4= =g
YES 4m =%
Np = =g
YEs 4 =g
No& =g
YES =g
N =g
YES =g
ND 4= =g
YEG 4@ =
No 4= =g

W?II ]

To see if the Pelnam Schoal District
will vote to raise and appropriate
monies to fund the salary and ben-
efits of addilional teaching posi-
tions for Pelnam High School as
follows.

a. $35.000t0 fund a Social Studies
teacher? (Rgepmmended by the
Peiham Budge! Cammitiga}

b. 35,000 to fund a Science
teacher? {Recommended by
the Pelham Budget Committes)

$15000 to fund a half-time
Technology/art teacher? (Not
Aecommended by e Pelham
Budgel Commiltee}

$15,000 to fund 2 half-time
Mathematics teacher? (Not
Recommended By the Petham
Budget Cammitier)

I

o

. 315,000 to fund a half-ime
Spanish teacher? [Not Recom-
mended by the Pelham Budget
Committee}

™

. $15.000 to fund a hall-time
Special  Educaten  guidance
counselor? {Recommended hy
the Peiham Budges Commitige]

Estimated tax impact .07 07 03
.03 .03 .03 (All Positions Recam-
mended by He Pelham School
Board)
QUESTION #12
To see if the Pelham School District
wiil vate to raise and appropriate
manies to fund the salary and ben-
efits of additional teaching posi-
tions for Petham Memaorial School
as follows:

$35.000 to fund a sixth grade
teacher?

™

o

$35.000 to fund an eighth grade
teacher?

o

. $15,000 to fund a hali-time
guidance counsetar?

Estimated tax impact .07 .07 .03

{Recommended by he Pglham
School Board) {Nat Recom-
mended by the Peltam Budgel
Commiltae)
QUESTION #13

To see if the Pelnam School District
will vote to raise and appropriate
monies to fund the sakary and benelils
of additional teaching pesitions for £
G. Sherburne School as follows:

a. 35,000 to fund a second grade
teacher?

b. $35,000 to fund a fourth grade
teacher?

These positions will only be funded
and filled upon passage of Article
14—modulkar classrooms for EG.
Sherburne School.

Estimated tax impact .07 07
{Recemmended Yy ihe Palham
School Board) {Nat Recom-
mended by the Pelham Budget
Commitige)
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YES 4m
ND 4=
YES 4m
NO 4=
YES 4=
HD =

YES 4=
NO 4=

YES 4m
ND 4=

YES 4m
N0 4=

YES 4=
NO 4=
YES &=
NO &=
YES m
NO &=

YES 4=
NO =
YES 4=
NO -
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WG TION £14

To see if the Peiham School District
will vote 10 raise ang appropriate the
sum af ONE HUNDRED FORTY-TW0D
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY-
THREE DOLLARS ($142,563). Said
sum of money being the amount
necessary o fund two (2) modular
classronms fer the E. G. Sherburne
Schonl. These classrooms will pro-
vide the necessary space for two
additional classroom teachers and
for the music and art programs
{Recommended by the Pelham
Schoel Board) (Recommended by
the Pelham Budgel Commitles)
Estimated tax impact .28

QUESTION #15

To see if the Pelham School District
will vole to raise and appropriate the
sum of ONE HUNDRED FORTY-TWO
THQUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY-
THREE DOLLARS ({$142.563). Said
sum of money being necessary to

= fund two (2) modular classrooms for

the Pelham Memorial School. These
classrooms will provide the neces-
sary space 1o allow for two addition-
al classroem teachers. {Recom-
mended by ihe Pelham School
Baard} (Not Recommended by the

mg| Felham Budget Commitiee)

ARAAALRAM

Estimated lax impact 28

OUESTION #16

To see if the Pelham School District
will vote lo raise and appropriate
the sum of TWO HUNDRED THOU-
SAND DOLLARS ($200.000}. Said
sum of money necessary to fund
the maodifications fo the heating
and ventilation system at the E. G.
Sherburne School. Al specifica-
tions will be rewiewed by the
Suilding Inspector of the Town of
Palham prior to bid invitations
being distributed and said Building
Inspecter will review the project
upon completion. (Recommended
by the Pelhain School Board)
(Recommended by the Pelham
Budget Commiltee)

Estimated tax impact .39

QUESTION #17

To see if the Pelham Scheal District
will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of THIRTY-FOUR THOU-
SAND DOLLARS ($34,000). Sad
sum of money being the amount
necessary to replace a section of
roof at E. G. Sherburne Schooi. All
specifications will be reviewed by
the Building Inspector of the Town
of Peltam prior to bid inyitations
being distributed and said Building
Inspector will review the project
upon completion. (Recemmended
by the Pelham Schoosl Board)
{Recammendad by \he Pelham
Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact 06

CONTINUE VOTING ON
SECOND BALLOT

L]
YES 4@ =y
No 4=
YES 4 =
NO = =i
YEG 4= =g
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ANNUAL SCHOOL DISTRICT MEETING

ABSENTEE
OFFICIAL BALLOT

TOWN DF
PELHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

March 10, 1998

INSTRUCTIONS TO YOTERS

1. Te vote, complote the arrow(s} 4m  mg pointing f0 your cholces, lika this gme——mg
2. To writa-in a candidats not on the baMot, wrie the name on the lina previded for the offlce and complets the amow 4= = pointing
to the writg-in ling, like lhis que——g

QUESTION #18
To see if the Pelham School District
will vete to raise and appropriate the
sum of FIFTY-ONE THODUSAND o0L-
LARS ($51.000). Said sum of money
being the amount necessary to
replace a section of roof at Pelham
Memarial School. All specifications
will be reviewed by the Building
Inspector of the Town of Peiham
priar to bid invitations being distrib-
uted and said Suitding Inspector will
review the project upon completion.
&Runmmundod by the Petham
chool Board) (Aecommended by
the Pelham Budgel Commitiee
Estimated tax impact .10

YES
N -

QUESTION #18
To see if the Pelham School District
will vote tc raise and appropriate the
sum of THIRTY-TWO THOUSAND
SEVEN HUNDRED SIXTY-THREE
DOLLARS {$32.763). Said sum of
maongy being the amount necessary
to fund an additionai bus to accom-
modate the inceeased student anrob-
ment of the Palham School District.
by the Palham Scheol
} (Recommeendad by the Pelham
Commitiea
Estimated tax impact .06

YES =
NO =

QUESTION #20

To see if the Pelham School District
will vole to raise and appropriate the
sum of THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($35,000). Said sum of
mengy being the amount necessary
to replace the school district tractor.
The current vehicle is 21 years old,
gﬂunmmendud by the Pelham

choal Board) (Recommended b

ihe Pelham Budget Cummll‘.aeg
Estimated tax impact .07

YES 4m
HO =

QUESTION #21

To see if the Pelham School District
will vote 1o raise and appropriate the
sum of TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS
{$10.000). Said sum of maney 10 e
used to complete architestural ang
engineering studies for future con-
struction. (Recammanded by the
Pslham Schosl Board) (Recom-
manded by the Palham Budget
Commitiee,

Estimated tax impact .02

YES 4m
NO @

QUESTION #22

To see if the Pelham School District
will vote to raise and appropriate the
sum of THIRTEEN THOUSAND DOL-
LARS (§13.000). Said sum of money
necessary 10 purchase track and field
equipment for the Pelham School
District track and field program
{Submitted by Pstition) (Aecom-
mended by the Pelham School
Board) {Aecommanded by the
Pelham Budget Committes)
Estimated tax impact .02

YES 4m
NO =

g

QUESTION #23

To see # the Pelham School District
will vote to raise and appropriate the
sum of TWO THOUSAND SIX HUN-
DRED EIGHTY-TWO DOLLARS
($2,682;. Said sum of money to fund
two track and field coaching posi-
tions at Pelham High School.
gﬂeeumm-nded by the Pelham
chool Board) (Retommended by
iha Pelham Budgel Commitiee)
Estimated tax imgact 005

YES ™
NO &=

QUESTION ¥24

To see if the Pelham School District
will vote to raise and appropriate the
sum of ONE THOUSAND THREE
HUKDRED FORTY ONE DOLLARS
{$1,341). Said sum of money being
the ameunt necessary to fund a
Cross Country Goach at Pelham High
School. (Recommended by the
Palhar Sehaol Baard) (Recom-
mended by the Pelham Budget
Committee)

Estimated tax timpact .003

YES
ND 4=

QUESTION #25

To see if the Pelham School District
will vote to raise and appropriate the
sum of TWO THOUSAND TWQ HUN-
DREC DOLLARS {$2,200). Said sum
of money being the amount neces-
sary to fund a Wrestling Coach at
Palbam  High School. (Recom-
mended by Ihe Pelam School
Board} (Not Recommended by the
Pelham Bedget Committea)
Estimated tax impact .004

YES ¢m
KO &=

QUESTION #26

To see it the Petham Schoo! District
will vote to raise and appropriate the
sum of TY-NINE THOUSAND
FIVE HUNDRED TWO DOLLARS
($49,502). Said sum of money being
the amount necessary to continug
providing Child Benefit services 1o
the Petham school chitdren attending
St. Patrick School. {Recommended
by the Petham Scheol Board)
(Racemmended by ihe Pelham
Budgel Commities)

Estimated tax impact .09

YES ¢m
NO 4=

QUESTION #27

To ses if the vaters approve the Gre-
ation of a planning committee,
appointed by the School District
Moderator as prescribed by RSA
134-C:2.1), for the purpose of study-
ing the feasiility of having the
Pelham Schoot District withdraw
fram SAU 28 to become an indepen-
dent, singie district administrative
unit per the prowisicns of ASA t94-
G:3. The Planning Committee shall
submit it$ recormmendation 1o the
voters in accordance with the provi-
sions of RSA 184-C:2, 1MV, and VI,
no fater than the 1999 Annuat District
Mesting. The above committee wilt
ais¢ report on the advantages ang
disadvantages of tha prasent organi-
zational structure and makg any rec-
ommendations thereto. &swmmad
V Petition) %FIEOUIH S A 35

AJORITY YOTI

YES ¢m

NO 4=
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QUESTION #28

To see if the School District will vote
1o create a COOPERATIVE SCHOOL
DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE
ta study the adwsability, evaluating
all grade levels, of establishing a
cooperative school district with the
Windham School District; to see it
the District will ralse and aﬁgrupnals
the sum of TWO

LARS {$200) to rneel any EXpenses
of this Gommittee; to see i the
District will authorize the Moderator
lo appoint three members, of whom
one must be a Pelham Scheol Board
Member, (Submlitted by Patitian}
(Recommended by the Pelham
School Board) {Recommended by
the Palham Budgel Committea}

QUESTION #29

In accordance with ASA 197:3,
(authorization for Special Meeting on
cost items) shall the Pglham School
District it Article 4 is defeated, autho-
rize the governing body 1o call ane
special meeting, at its option, to
address Article 4 cost items only.

QUESTION #30

Shafl the Pelham Schoel District
raise and appropriate as an operating
Ludget, not including appropriations
by special warrant articles. the
amounts set forth on the budget
posted with the warrant, for the pur-
poses set forth therein, totaling
$10,948,195. Should this article be
defeated, the operating budget shall
be $10.861.028, which is the same
as last year, with certain adjustments
required by previous action of the
schoof district, or by law, or the gov-
erning body may Rold one special
megting in accordance with RSA
40:13 X and XV, to take up the issue
of a revised operating budget onfy.

Note: Warrant Article 30 (operating
budget) does not include appropria-
tions proposed under any other war-
rant articles.

{The Budgel Commlitiee recom-
mended $10,943,195) {The Schoal
Board recommended $10,948,195)

YES4m  wf
NO@m =t
YES 4 m
N =
YES 4w
LU I |
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Scheol Warrant
State of Nev Hampshire

To the inhabitants of the School District in the Town of Pelham, New
Hampshire qualified te vote 1in District affairs: You are hereby
notified of the following annual School District meeting schedule.

First Session of Annual Meeting (Deliberative)

You are hereby notified to meet at the Pelham High School in said
District on the 3lst day of January, 1998 at 10:00 a.m. This session
shall consist of explanation, discussion, and debate of warrant
articles numbered 2 through number 30. Varrant articles may be
amended subject to the followlng limitations: (a) warrant articles
whose wording 1s prescribed by law shall not be amended and (b)
varrant articles that are amended shall be placed on the official
ballot for a final vote on the main motion, as amended.

Second Session of Annual Meeting (0fficial Ballot Voting)

You are hereby notified to meet again at the Pelham Memorial School in
Pelham, on Tuesday, March 10, 1998 between the hours of B8:00 a.m. and
8:00 p.m. to vote by officlal ballot on warrant articles numbered 1
through 30.

Article 1 - Election of Officers, (voting by official ballot March 10,
1998). To choose the following School District officers:

i. To choose a Moderator for the ensulng year.
2. To choose a Clerk for the ensulng year.

3. To choose two members of the School Board
for the ensuing three years.

4, To choose one member of the School Board
for the ensuing year.

5. To choose a Treasurer for the ensuing year.

2. To see 1f the Pelham School District will vote to ralse and
appropriate the sum of SEVEN MILLION THREE HUNDRED AND THREE
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($7,303,000) for the construction and original
equipping of a new school bullding, and to autherize the issuance
of not more than $7,303,000 of bonds or notes in actordance with
the provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA Chapter 33) and
to authorize the school board to 1ssue and negotiate such bonds
or rates and to determine the rate of 1nterest thereon.
{Submitted by Petition) ({Recommended by the Pelham School Board)
{Not Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)
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To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-SEVEN THOUSAND EIGHT
HUNDRED AND FIFTY-TWO DOLLARS (5627,852) for the purpose of
paylng the first installment on the interest and the principal of
the bond or note repayment for the construction of the new
elementary school. (Submitted by Fetitlon)} ({Recommended by the
Pelham School Board) (Not Recommended by the Pelham Budget
Committee)

Estimated tax impact 1.23

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of TWO HUNDRED THREE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED
SEVENTY-ONE DOLLARS ($203,871). Said sum of money being the
amount necessary to fund the cost items of the 1998-99 scheol
year attributable to the Collective Bargaining Agreement betveen
the Pelham School Board and the Pelham Education Assoclation.
(Recommended by the Pelham Scheol Board) (Recommended by the
Pelham Budget committee)

Estimated tax impact .40

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to ralse and
appropriate the sum of FORTY-FIVE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED FORTY-ONE
DOLLARS (5$45,641). Said sum of money being the amount necessary
to fund salary increases and salary related costs for aides,
custodians, secretaries, school lunch and maintenance personnel.
This is a 3% pay increase for 112 pecple for the 1998-99 school
year. (Recommended by the Pelham School Board} {Recommended by
the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .09

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of TWENTY FOUR THOUSAND SEVENTY-SEVEN DOLLARS
($24,077). Said sum of money being necessary to fund salary
increases and salary related costs for 3 principals, 3 assistant
principals and ten special education personmel. (Recommended by
the Pelham School Board) (Recommended by the Pelham Budget
Committee)

Estimated tax impact .04
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7. Shall the district ratify and fund the proposed contract betveen
the Pelham Charter School and the Pelham School District, for a
period of five (5) years for initial adoption with a first year
annual appropriation of $3,889 per student not to exceed $777,800
which shall be approved by the voters in the district operating
budget? The first year total financial impact of a "yes" vote on
this question is estimated by the school board at $540,850.

Note: Explanatlion: An affirmative vote will raise and
appropriate the sum of $§540,850 for the estimated additional
costs attributable to the first year’s operation of the Charter
School. {Not Recommended by the Pelham  School Board} (Not
Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact 1.07

8. "shall we adopt the provisions of RSA 194-B, implementing a
charter and open enrollment school program? Shall no more than
0% of the district’s current pupil enrollment be eligible for
“tuition to attend charter and open enrollment schools located
outside the district; and shall no more than 20% of the
district’s current pupil enrcllment be eligible for tultion to
attend charter and open enrollment schools located inside the
school district?"

The following non-binding referendum questions are here to gather public
opinion only. The Pelham School Board will use the results in developing
any proposals to come before voters designed to meet the district’s space
needs to accommodate growing enrollments. Please indicate which of the
following alternatives you would be likely to support if the board brings
such a proposal to the voters in 1999.

Would you be likely to support: (chcose ome):

a. A nev 90,000 square foot building to house 900 students in Readiness
through grade five replacing the present E. G. Sherburne School?
Current estimated cost 1s: $7,303,000.

b. A 50,000 square foot bullding to house 500 students in some
combination of grades Readiness to grade five relieving crowding at
both Sherburne and Memorial Schools? Current estimated cost 1is:
$3,950,306.

c. Additions and renovations to E. G. Sherburne School creating
approximately 90,000 square feet to house 900-1000 students in
Readiness to grade five? Current estimated cost 1s: $6,050,000.
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10. The folloving non-binding referendum question is here to gather public
opinion only. The Pelham School Board will use the results in developing
any proposal to come before voters designed to meet the district’s space
needs to accommodate growing enrollments.

11.

12.

In your opinion should public kindergarten be dincluded in any
proposed school construction project as long as the state reimburses
the district for 75% of the construction costs related to the
kindergarten program? The current estimated construction costs would
be $521,625.

To see 1f the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate monies to fund the salary and benefits of additional
teaching positions for Pelham High School as follows:

a. 535,000 to fund a Social Studies teacher?
(Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

b. $35,000 to fund a Sclence teacher?
(Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

c. $15,000 to fund a half-time Technology/Art teacher?
{Not Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

d. $15,000 to fund a half-time Mathematics teacher?
(Not Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

e. 515,000 to fund a half-time Spanish teacher?
(Not Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

f. $15,000 to fund a half-time Special Education counselor?
(Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .07 .07 .03 .03 .03 .03
(All Positions Recommended by the Pelham School Board)

To see if the Pelham School District will wvote to raise and
appropriate monies to fund the salary and benefits of additicnal
teaching positions for Pelham Memorial School as follows:
a. $35,000 to fund a sixth grade teacher?
b. $35,000 to fund an elghth grade teacher?
c. §$15,000 to fund a half-time guidance counselor?

Estimated tax impact .07 .07 .03

(Recommended by the Pelham School Board) (Not Recommended by the
Pelham Budget Committee}
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13.

14.

15.

16.

i7.

To see if the Pelham School District will wote to ralse and
appropriate monies to fund the salary and benefits of additional
teaching positions for E. G. Sherburne School as follows:

a. $35,000 to fund a second grade teacher?
b. $35,000 to fund a fourth grade teacher?

Estimated tax impact .07 .07

{Recommended by the Pelham Scheool Board} (Not Recommended by the
Pelham Budget Committee)

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to ralse and
appropriate the sum of TWO HUNDRED FIFTY-FIVE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED
THIRTY-THREE DOLLARS ($255,733). Said sum of money being the amount
necessary to fund four (4) modular classrooms for the E. G. Sherburne
School. These classrooms will provide the necessary space for twoe
additional classroom teachers and for the music and art programs.
(Recommended by the Pelham School Board) (Pelham Budget Committee
Recommended $142,563)

Estimated tax impact .50

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of ONE HUNDRED FORTY-TW0 THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED
SIXTY-THREE DOLLARS (5142,563). Sald sum of money being necessary to
fund two (2) .modular classrooms for the Pelham Memcorial School.
These classrooms will provide the necessary space to allow for two
additional classroom teachers. (Recommended by the Pelham School
Board) (Not Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .28

To see 1f the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($200,000). said
sum of money necessary to fund the modifications to the heating and
ventilation system at the E. G. Sherburne School. (Recommended by
the Pelham Scheool Board)  (Recommended by the Pelham Budget
Committee)

Estimated tax impact .39
To see if the Pelham School District will wvote to railse and
appropriate the sum of THIRTY-FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS ($34,000). Said
sum of money being the amount necessary to replace.a section of roof
at E. G. Sherburne School. (Recommended by the Pelham School Board)
(Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .06
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of FIFTY-ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS (5$51,000). Said
sum of money being the amount necessary to replace a section of roof
at Pelham Memorial School. (Recommended by the Pelham School Board)
(Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .10

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of THIRTY-TVO THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED SIXTY-THREE
DOLLARS (532,763). Said sum of money being the amount necessary to
fund an additional bus to accommodate the increased student
enrollment of the Pelham School District. (Recommended by the Pelham
School Board) (Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)}

Estimated tax impact .06

To see if the Pelham School District will vote toe raise and
appropriate the sum of THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS (535,000). Said
sum of money being the amount necessary to replace the school
district tractor. The current vehicle is 21 years old. (Recommended
by the Pelham School Board) (Recommended by the Pelham Budget
Committee)

Estimated tax impact .07

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS (510,000). Said sum of
money to be used to complete architectural and engineering studies
for future construction. (Recommended by the Pelham School Board)
{Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .02

To see 1f the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of THIRTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS (5$13,000). Said sum
of money necessary to purchase track and. field equipment for the
Pelham School District track and field program, (Submitted by
Petition) {Recommended by the Pelham School Board) (Recommended by
the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .02
To see 1f the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of TWO THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED EIGHTY-TWO DOLLARS
(52,682). Sald sum of money to fund two track and field coaching
positions at Pelham High School. (Recommended by the Pelham School
Board) (Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .005
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

To see if the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of ONE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED FORTY ONE DOLLARS
{$1,341). Said sum of money being the amount necessary to fund a
Cross Country Coach at Pelham High School. (Recommended by the Pelham
School Board) (Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .003

To see 1f the Pelham School District will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of TWO THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,200).
Sald sum of money being the amount necessary to fund a Wrestling
Coach at Pelham High School. (Recommended by the Pelham School
Board) (Not Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .004

To see 1f the Pelham School District will vote to ralse and
appropriate the sum of FORTY-NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED TWO DOLLARS
(549,502). Saild sum of money being the amount necessary to continue
providing Child Benefit services to the Pelham school children
attending St. Patrick School. (Recommended by the Pelham School
Board) (Recommended by the Pelham Budget Committee)

Estimated tax impact .09

To see 1f the voters approve the creation of a planning committee,
appointed by the School District Moderator as prescribed by RSA
194-C:2,11, for the purpose of studying the feasibility of having the
Pelham School District withdrawv from SAU 28 to become an independent,
single district administrative unit per the provisions of RSA
194-C:3. The Planning Committee shall submit its recommendation to
the voters in accordance with the provisions of RSA 194-C:2,IV,VI,
and VII, no later than the 1998 Annual District Meeting. (Submitted
by Petition)

To see if the School District will vote to create a COOPERATIVE
SCHOOL DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE to study the advisability,
evaluating all grade levels, of establishing a cooperative school
district with the Windham School District; to see if the District
will raise and appropriate the sum of TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($200) to
meet any expenses of this Committee; to see if the District will
authorize the Moderator to appoint three members, of whom one must be
a Pelham School Board Member. (Submitted by Petition) (Recommended
by the Felham School Board) (Recommended by the Pelham Budget
Committee)
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29.

30.

31.

In accordance with RSA 197:3, (authorization for Special Meeting on
cost items) shall the Pelham School District 1f Article & 1is
defeated, authorize the governing body to call one speclal meeting,
at its option, to address Article 4 cost items only.

Shall the Pelham School District ralse and appropriate as an
operating budget, not including appropriaticns by special warrant
articles, the amounts set forth on the. budget posted with the
varrant, for the purposes set forth therein, totaling $10,948,195.
Should this article be defeated, the operating budget shall be
$10,861,029, which is the same as last year, with certain adjustments
required by previous action of the school district, or by law, or the
governing body may hold one special meeting in accordance with RS4
40:13 X and XVI, to take up the issue of a revised operating budget
only.

Note: Warrant Article 30 (operating budget) does not include
appropriations proposed under any other warrant articles.

To transact any other business that may legally come before this
meeting including the appointment of committee.

Given under our hands at said Pelham, Newv Hampshire, on the 20th day
of January, 1998.

2
A d
Al Rotondi
April Lazaru =

ot Tuznsgee, F
REEEEF,TanquiSt (Interim)

~~ Robert S. Bean, III

g 4
Marie Stadtmiller
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Full Name

Allen Walter
Amlaw Sandra
Anderson Rodney
Andrews Robin
Beauregard Jo-Ann
Bellisle Lillian
Borsa M. Rita
Breen Kristen
Bronstein Valerie
Brunelle John
Carr Donna
Chester Haureen
Cibulski Joyce Marie
Coleman Jane
Corbin Michelle
Cormier Joanne
Covey Kathryn
Dailey Donna
Dangelas Bernice
Dixon Nancy

Flynn Mary E.
Gadoury Judith
Gotshall Christopher
Gotshall Dianne
Greenwood Darlene
Grue Beverly
Guilbeault Ellen
Hamel Joyce
Hannigan Jerry
Harden Susan
Hargreaves Paula
Harrington Cynthia
Harvey Janice
Hobbs Brenda
Hockaday Hary Lou
Holston Teresa
Houlne’ Margaret
Howell DeVayme
Jessup Pamela
Kelly Kathleen
Korn Elizabeth
Lamontagne Patricla
Law Celine

Pelham Town Report
Pelham Employee Listing
1997-1998

E.G. Sherburne School

Subject

Custodian
Grade 4 Tchr
Custodian
Chapter I Tutor
Individual Aide
Library Aide
Grade 4 Tchr
Resource Room
Grade 2 Tchr
Custodian
Grade 2 Tchr
Individual aAide
Chapter I Tutor
Individual Aide
Readiness Tchr
Grade 2 Tchr
ATt

Individual Aide
Grade 3 Tchr
Teacher Aide
Asst Principal
Individual Aide
Playground Alde
Grade 1 Tchr
Grade 2 Tchr
Individual Alde
Individual Alde
Nurse

Husic

Grade 1 Tchr
Guidance Couns.
Individual Alde
Resource Room
Individual Aide
Grade 1 Tchr
Individual Aide
Grade 1 Tchr
Principal

Grade 4 Tchr
Individual Aide
Guidance Couns.
Individual Aide
Grade 4 Tchr
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Contract Amount

22,568.00
43,700.00
19,656.00
11,025.00
9,843.00
16,889.00
31,700.00
25,900.00
35, 400.00
23,150.00
30,700.00
6,502.00
12,821.00
13,936.00
22,200.00
43,700.00
21,500.00
9,843.00
39,900.00
10, 180.00
49,225.00
13,072.00
2,740.00
42,200.00
37,400.00
11,455, 00
16,080.00
40,909.00
45,900.00
25,900, 00
46,900.00
9,239.00
33, 400.00
13,076.00
31,700.00
9,464.00
25,900, 00
57,465.00
36,200.00
9,239.00
35, 400.00
9,003.00
33,000.00



Full Name

Leonard Elizabeth
Libman Lois
McComiskey Nichele
McCoy Tina
McDonough Leona
McNamara Teresa
Meltzer David
Munroe Ruth
0‘Malley Lisa
Patenaude Pauline
Philbrick Beverly
Provencal Jane
Prugnarola Doris
Queenan Nancy
Quinn Mary E.
Rivard Carol
Robertson Stuart
Rotondl Susan
Saracusa Rosemary
Sarris Mary Ann
Strasburger Donna
Sullivan Shirlee
Taylor Helanie
Tobin Barbara
Viger Michelle
Vagner Anne

Yalsh Pamela Ann
Ward Phyllis
Welgler Laura
Villiams Julie

Vaite Karyl

Babaian Thomas
Basil Henry
Beals Steven
Bedard Eva
Black Donald
Byrne Kathrene
Campbell Barbara

Pelham Town Report
Pelham Employee Listing
1997-1998

E.G. Sherburme School

Subject

Chapter I Tutor
Teacher Alde
Readiness Tchr
Inclus. Facilitator
Secretary
Individual Aide
Speech Path.
ESL Tutor

Grade 1 Tchr
Individual Aide
St. Patrick’s Nurse
Physical Ed.
Individual Alde
Grade 3 Tchr
Grade 1 Tchr
Grade 3 Tchr
Grade 3/4 Tchr
Reading Spec.
Grade 4 Tchr
Grade 1 Tchr
Grade 2 Tchr
Resource Room
Grade 3/4 Tchr
Grade 3 Tchr
Grade 2/3 Tchr
Secretary
Individual Aide
Grade 2 Tchr
Playground Aide
Grade 3 Tchr

Pre-Schoel

Individual Aide

Pelham High School

Physical Ed.
Social Studies
Asst Principal
Library Aide
Sclence
Business Tcher
Nurse
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Contract Amount

12,821.00
7,425.00
37,200.00
28,900.00
20,257.00
9,239.00
47,400.00
20,248.00
22,500.00
9,239.00
25,171.00
41,400.00
12,752.00
24,500.00
43,700.00
47, 400.00
33,900.00
37,400.00
43,700.00
43,200.00
41,400.00
25,900.00
43,400.00
35,900.00
24,200.00
16,345.00
10, 458.00
30,200.00
12,562.00
28,900.00

10,150.00

23,500.00
46,400.00
47,663.00
16,787.00
30,900.00
31,500.00
30,579.00



Full Name

Camire, Joseph
Carbee Carocline
Chicoine Barbara
Cody Kelli
Colby HMargaret
Colby Margaret
Costa John
D/Arcangelo Donna
Desautels Peter
deSorgo Charmian
Dickey Robert
Dixon Lester
Dizazzo Donna
Durkin Pamela
Emory Elena
Fanning Michael
Florino Janet
Flynn Shawn

Fox Linda

Gary Janet
George Rebecca
Gllcreast David
Gioseffi Diane
Gray James
Guilbeault Donald
Hammar Brenda
Hodsdon Mark
Howell Judith
Johansen Linda
Johnson Nanette
Labrosse Tomya
Lagasse Heather
Louf Rita

Lyder Roger
Lyon Sharon
Marino Grace
Martin Doreen
Metz Judy

Mills Kelly
Hohr Dorothy
Honte Sara
Morrill Timothy

Pelham Town Report
Pelham Employee Listing
97-98

Pelham High School

Subject

Maintenance/Custodian
At Risk Counsel
Secretary

ART

Individual Alde
Special Ed.Ailde
Hath

Secretary
Technology Education
Individual Aide
Custodian
Custodian
Secretary

ESL Tutor
Language Arts
Guidance Couns.
Individual Aide
Math

Language Arts
Home Economics
Individual Alde
Math

Social Studies
Individual Aide
Dir Maintenance
Individual Aide
Business Tcher
Social Studies
Secretary

Comp. Ed.

Hath

Individual Aide
Secretary
Soclal Studies
Science

Foreign Lang
Individual Aide
Physical Ed.
Resource Room
Language Arts
Resource Room
Sclence
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Contract Amount

25,646.00
21,520.00
6,840.00
25,500.00
13,699.00
5,118.00
47,400.00
18,023.00
38,900. 00
9,595.00
18,928.00
18,928.00
13,096.00
13,712.00
23,200.00
34,900.00
7,953.00
22,500.00
49 ,400.00
39,700.00
11,262.00
27,900.00
26,900.00
8,903.00
45,389.00
10,860.00
24,900.00
40,900. 00
2,964.00
45,900. 00
24,200.00
5,746.00
26,988.00
43,400.00
31,700.00
30,700.00
9,828.00
33,000.00
26,200.00
33,900. 00
26,900.00
42,200.00



Full Name

Horse Valerie
Neal Sharon

Noel Elizabeth
Ort Christine
Padian Carole
Pedersen Robert
Peterson Susan
Provencher Regina
Quintiliani Patricia
Roberts Kenneth
Rossi Kristen
Savaris Anthony
Scaer Stephen
Seniov Thomas
Sheridan Lou Ann
Sintros Marina
Smith Christine
Stine Cristine
Vilkins Raymond
¥ilson Helen

Bellemore Michele
Blanchard Lucinda
Bonomo Sue A.
Borst Virginia
Carr Susan

Cate Phyllis
Cavanaugh Kelly
Chase Andrea
Chulack Hary
Comeau Robin
Corbin Sandra
Curfman Charles
Davis Robert
Davison Sandra
Desllets Brian
Desmarals Leonard
Dickey Mary Ann

Pelham Towm Report

Pelham Employee Listing

97-98

Pelham High School

Subject

Spec. Needs Tch
Foreign Lang
Individual Aide
Secretary
Foreign Lang
Principal
Librarian
Language Arts
Individual Aide
Social Studies
Home Economics
Science
Resource Room
Husic

Math

Language Arts
Language Arts
Hath

Custodian

Spec Ed Coordinator

Pelham Memorial School

Teacher Alde
Individual Alde
Teacher Aide
Grade 8 Tchr
Physical Ed.
Individual Aide
Individual Aide
Music

ATt

Individual Aide
Secretary
Individual Aide
Custodian

Grade 6 Tchr
Grade 5 Tchr
Custodian
Chapter I Tutor
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Contract Amount

34,900.00
29,900,00
11,713.00
12,662.00
32,200.00
57,465.00
29,408.00
41,400.00
14,472.00
38,900.00
33, 400.00
43,200.00
29,900.00
36,900.00
39,700.00
49,400.00
33,400.00
38, 400.00
28,808.00
46,125.00

10,541.00
9,349.00
14,319.00
45,900.00
46,900.00
10,221.00
9,582.00
28,500.00
33, 400.00
5,202.00
21,925.00
9,103.00
18,928.00
42,700.00
43,700.00
18,928.00
9,471.00



Full Name

Doumas Anthony
Dugan, Jr. ¥William
Dukette Carole
Durkin Pamela
Farris Linette
Fisher Carol
Prederick Ruth
Gerace Bonnie
Goyette Dennis
Greer-Robinson Della
Gunning Hargaret
Hachez Kathleen
Hagedorn Orlene
Hamel Honica
Hancock Kathy
Hecht-Finger Leslie
Holmes Richard
Jellison Jessica
Johnson Karen
Katsoupis John
King Ann

Labranch Dorothea
LeBlanc Sherry
Lecuyer Cynthia
Levine Susan
Liebke Mary Jane
Lizzie Vicki
Marchi Lisa
McCarthy Sandra
Michaud Carol
Molloy Diane
Moynihan Elaine
Hurphy Jacqueline
Narlee David
Ormsby Katherine
Patnaude Michelle
Poole Linda
Robert Pamela
Saplenza Joy
Schulte Nancy
Scott Joseph
Silva Joseph
Sullivan Terence
Thompson Debra

Pelham Towvn Report

Pelham Employee Listing

97-98

Pelham Memorial School

Suhject

Grade 5 Tchr
Grade 8 Tchr
Grade 8 Tchr
Individual Aide
Individual Aide
Individual Aide
Individual Aide
Foreign Lang
Principal
Resource Room
Grade 5 Tchr
Library Aide
Grade 5 Tchr
Grade 6 Tchr
Asst Principal
Grade 7 Tchr
Grade 6 Tchr
Individual Aide
Grade 7 Tchr
Grade 6 Tchr
Individual Aide
Grade 6 Tchr
Individual Aide
Custodian
Nurse

Grade 8 Tchr
Resource Room
Grade 8 Tchr
Grade 5 Tchr
Individual Aide
Grade 7 Tchr
Teacher Aide
Grade 6 Tchr
Guidance Couns.
Individual Aide
Individual Aide
Individual Aide
Resource Room
Grade 7 Tchr
TAG
Maintenance/Custodia
Grade 7 Tchr
Physical Ed.
Individual Aide
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Contract Amount

43,700.00
43,200.00
22,200.00
9,996.00
9,828.00
13,784.00
9,103.00
34,700.00
58,276.00
27,900.00
46,400.00
9,653.00
30,700.00
22,500.00
47,663.00
36,900.00
47,400.00
9,349,00
43,700.00
47,400.00
9,103.00
38,900.00
8,953.00
18,928.00
28,350.00
39,900.00
24,900.00
26,900.00
44,900.00
9,595.00
30,400.00
9,103.00
43,200.00
47,854.00
7,808.00
6,552.00
9,595.00
21, 500,00
30,200.00
24,200.00
24,960.00
38,700.00
39,000. 00
9,103.00



Full Name

Tryon Dlane
Tucker Anne
Viscosi Ali
Vest Carol

Willman Joanne

Zannini Cec

Pelham School District Lunch Program
Employee Information

1997-1998

Pelham Memorial School

Subject

Grade 7 Tchr
Resource Room

son Individual Alde

Librarian

Grade 8 Tchr

ilia Grade 5 Tchr

Lunch Program
Enployee Information

Belcher Beverly
Bevens Beverly
Bouchard Jeanne
Burton Brenda
Carreiro Anna Marie
Crossley Vendy
Demers Lise

Dolce Linda

Dunn Jill

Ernst Kathleen
Fields Frances
Francis Barbara
Grantz Patricia
Jusczak Elizabeth
Kochanek Jeanne
Kubit Linda

Kuhn Christine
L’Heureux, Pauline
Martin Susan
Honterlsi Jane
Nault Hay

Reed Debbie
Robertson Laura
Robertson Phyllis
Spencer Cynthia
Spracklin Linda
Sullivan Carol
Vhalen Irene

1997-1998
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7,371.00
14,460.00
5,160.00
17,581.00
2,239.00
13,696.00
13,377.00
3,780.00
3,960.00
7,228.00
5,446.00
5,037.00
10,574.00
14, 460,00
7,371.00
2,530.00
4,926.00
4,649,00
5,037.00
5,037.00
15,925.00
4,649.00
2,973.00
34,485,00
5,405.00
4,677.00
5,446.00
6,143.00

Contract Amount

42,200.00
46,900.00
10,860.00
19,900.00
43,400.00
42,200.00



Pelham School District Lunch Program
Employee Information

1997-98

Pelham School District Lunch Program
Financial Statement

July 1, 1996 to June 30, 1997 School Year - 1996-97
Beginning balance - July 1, 1996 25,407.83
Recelpts

Reimbursement § 89,329.00

Child Lunch 168,162.75

Snack Bar 98,972.45

Adult Lunch 8,103.92

Yarrant Articles (District) 25,601.00

Vindham Request 149,894.61

Interest 429.49

Other Income 258.52
Total Beceipts §540,751.74
Total Moniles Availahle $566,159.57

* kK ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ * &k

Expenditures

Food § 237,221.85

Labor 274,443.60

Purchase Equipment 279.35

Expendables 16,814.35

Maintenance Repair 1,292.11

Other 1,605.98
Total Expenditures §531,657.24
Total Cash on Hand § 34,502.33

* % k& & & k * &k
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 1997

Cagh in Bank $§_34,502.33
Accounts Recelvahle 0

Commodities Inventory 8,361.39

Food Inventory 4,727.75

Supplies Inventory 3,829.55
Total Cash on Hand, Receivable, & Inventory § 51,521.02
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PELHAM SCHOOL BOARD REPORT

To the Residents of Pelham:

This past year certainly has provided the board with a variety of challenges. From the
ongoing crisis with young Danny Hall to the lengthy proposed charter school discussions
to the negotiations with the P.E. A, our agendas were always full with little time for the
monthly "work sessions" which we had hoped to establish on a regular monthly basis. I
want to commend all the board members for the giving of their time and their knowledge
in providing the leadership necessary to assure that our public schools move aggressively
into the next century with clearly defined educational goals and objectives.

While "school is still out” with respect to the proposed Pelham Charter School, the fact
that the you shall have the final say as to whether you wish to expend the funds necessary
to provide for this new public school is an accomplishment for which the Pelham Schoo]
Board received & Senate Proclamation from Senator James Rubens on January 19, 1998.

You likewise shall have the opportunity to provide our educators with a new two-year
contract which, I am proud to say includes a co-payment feature for health insurance;
something you have been asking the teachers to participate in for many years,

While the failure of the new school proposal last year was extremely disappointing, the
need for space remains critical today. After much discussion the board decided that a
variety of options to meet our long-term space needs, placed before the voters in a non-
binding question format, would be the best way to get a sense for how the Pelham
community wishes to address future expansion. For the short-term, modular classrooms
are part of the warrant before you this year.

This year has provided some interesting opportunities for our students at all grade levels,
with the most notable perhaps being at the high school level where arangements have
been made, through the School-to-Careers Program, to aliow PHS students to take
courses at several local colleges. Along with increased athletic opportunities in new golf
and wrestling programs, as well as an expanded Track & Field team, the direction of our
high school is 4 positive one to be sure.

The air quality at the E.G. Sherburne School was improved with the addition of several
new fans, as well as the installation of lockers for the children's clothing. A new warrant

article this year would address the replacement of the HVAC system there, as well as
fixing some roof problems.

With the Governor providing the leadership, the funding of public kindergarten has now
been defined. With a five-year window of opportunity already begun, it behooves us to
provide direction with respect to where, when, how, and if to implement such a program,
Again we shall look to the voters for that direction in the form of a non-binding question.
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The negativism that has been perpetuated by local media continues to provide obstacles
to the continued implementation of ocur Frameworks for Quality. Rather than applaud the
administrators for maintaining tight budgets; for expanding student opportunities; for
making maximum use of limited space and resources, these behind-the-scene gurus bring
no positive suggestions or ideas to the table; only inaccurate rhetoric and unfounded
accusations. Perhaps it is time for everyone to take a step backwards, to reflect upon their
vision of where this town is going, and to make a commitment to provide a Pelham that
you want your children to grow up in.

Finally, I am leaving the school board after six years of service. My sincere thanks go
out to those with whom I have had the pleasure to serve on this board over the years, My
prayers go out to the entire Hall family for the challenge they have been confronted with
and the strength of character they have shown. I also wish to commend the entire SAU
28 staff for their professional and competent service to the Pelham community; this
despite the ridicule and personal character attacks on some of the finest people with
whom [ have had the pleasure to be associated. It is not by coincidence that our SAU 28
is one of the finest in the State; it is through hard work and unquestionable ethics that has
produced a cost per.pupil that is the lowest among multi-district SAU's in New
Heampshire, Thank you all for your support and guidance; your efforts have allowed me
to gain insight, not only in school board advocacy, but also in my professional and
personal life as well.
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SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

To the Residents of Pelham,

The events of this last year have been interesting, often perplexing, challenging and
never dull. It appears likely that this year will provide more of the same.

Providing a quality education to a growing enroliment in crowded facilities continues to
attract the time and energies of the school board, staff, administration and involved
citizens. We are still several classrooms shor of what is needed forcing Sherburne’s
art and music teachers to limit programs to what can be transported from room to room,
teaching health classes in haif of Memorial School's library, creating large classes at
almost every grade level, and pressing storage areas into service as instructional
areas. These conditions, and | could site several more examples, presently
characterize the situation at both Sherburne and Memorial Schools. interestingly the
schoot district will shortly be called upon to consider similar circumstances at Pelham
High School as large classes that presently exist in the elementary grades make their
way into that school. Regardless of the solutions that the community may find
appealing, it is imperative that consensus be built so that facilities can be built.

Qur fall 1897 enrcliments were:

Grade 1 172 Grade 5 169 Grade 9 158
Grade 2 150 Grade 6 148 Grade 10 148
Grade3 166 Grade 7 180 Grade 11 128
Grade 4 142 Grade 8 161 Grade 12 113

Historically, the following has been true of our enroliments:

Year Students Year Students Year Students

1987 1516 1991 1595 1995 1751
1988 1472 1992 1609 1996 1780
1989 1579 1993 1630 1997 1835
1990 1579 1994 1704 1998 1879
*Projected
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Because we typically use the most conservative methodologies in projecting future
enrollments, the actual growth consistentiy out paces predicted growth. This
conservative view works when there is extra space. It is not practical when you
already have crowded schools. In 1996 we projected enrolliments for 1997 in grades
1 - 8 at 1229 students and had 1288 actually arrive. Again in 1996 we predicted that
we would be educating 1785 children in grades 1 - 12 in 1997 and in fact had 1835
students begin the school year. Although the school board has decided to put off
proposing new school building for a year in order to determine what the community
would support as a solution, this in no way implies that a real problem does not exist
and that it will not get worse. The extended 1997 annual school district meeting
rejected a plan that would have solved elementary classroom needs as well as
accommodating needed space and facilities for the municipality. With the stakes
getting higher as time passes, it is imperative that you provide your school board with
direction by responding to non-kinding referendum questions that will be on the official
ballot on March 10, 1998.

Speaking of the official ballot, Pelham voters have adopted this new form of
government. What this means is that final decisions on all matters before the school
district meeting will be finally decided by ballot voting at the polls on the second
Tuesday in March. Essentially, the school district meeting has been divided into two
pants. The first part is referred to as Session One or the Deliberative Session. This will
occur on January 31, 1998. Session One is similar to the traditional meeting where
debate, discussion and deliberations occur. It is at this meeting where articles on the
warrant, except those specified by law, may be amended. !f no amendments are
offered to an article, it is not acted upon at all. All articles, whether in original form or
as amended at the deliberative session, will not have a final vote until the second part
of the meeting, on March 10, 1998, which is called Session Two or the voting session.
At that time all warrant articles, including the school district's proposed budget, will be
voted on by official ballot. School district offices will be filled at that time as well. Like
any change, this will take some getting accustomed to and really calls upon every
registered voter to participate in both the deliberative and voting sessions. The first to
be informed, and the second to express your wishes.

Beginning in May, the Pelham School Board worked for four months with the founders
of the Pelham Charter School to complete an application and contract as directed by
the vote of the 1997 Annual School District meeting. This work was completed in
September and the contract and application for the Pelham Charter School was
approved by the board as having met the statutory requirements of RSA 194:B.
Subsequently, the contract was approved by the State Board of Education and the
final decision will rest with the voters on March 10, 1998. Other than the proposed
new building, seldom has an issue raised more controversy in the school district.
Because there are no charter schools in New Hampshire and because the process,
as well as the funding method, is unique to our state, there is very little guidance to call
upon. Questions about the law (RSA 194:B) resulted in changes to it last spring and |
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would not be surprised if continuing confusion, particularly over funding, did not resutlt
in further changes in 1998 as well. If the voters approve the warrant anicle, a charter
school will operate in Pelham. [t will be a public school receiving public funds and run
by a board of trustees. The founders intend 1o educate, in the first year of a five year
contract, 200 students in grades 1 - 4. Absolute preference for attendance in this
school has been established (by this law) for Pelham children. This is a critical
decision in the history of this community, residents should make themselves informed
by attending hearings and the deliberative session, and involved by voting at the
voting session.

The school district continues to be student focused in planning, program development
and decision making. The four major curriculum areas have been alighed with the
New Hampshire curriculum frameworks thereby providing each student with an up to
date and challenging program of studies. State and federal grant monies have been
focused on implementing programs that advance students towards higher levels of
academic achievement. This is true in the development of our local education
improvement plans, a district-wide writing plan, our district technology plans, all
curriculum areas, school to careers program, and the several new courses and co-
curricular opponrtunities that have heen established. In addition, we have provided
advisory programs at both Pelham High School and Memorial School, continue to
build upon the successful social skills program at Sherburne School and see the
influence of the school to careers pregram benefiting students in all schools.

Employing a continuous improvement model requires that we use data to drive
decisions. In education that data comes from a variety of sources including state and
national test results, student performance on teacher developed tests and
demonstrations, formal and informal input from students and their parents,
recommendations from the three school councils and a close eye on program
evaluation. |n March of 1998 the New England Association of Schools and Colleges
will be sending a visiting team to evaluate Pelham High School's suitability for
accreditation. The high school is completing a ten year accreditation, and in order to
maintain its status, will undergo a rigorous self evaluation that will be validated by this
visiting team. Being an accredited high school means that colleges and universities
know that applicants from Pelham have graduated from a school that has met the
several standards required by the New England Association. The results of the visiting
team'’s evaluation will direct us toward more planning and new goals and objectives. It
will also give us a picture of how well we have produced results that were intended by
previous initiatives, goals and objectives. Many hours of staff and community
members’' time have been spent to date and these people are to be thanked and

commendsd.
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The 1997 annual meeting failed to approve articles that would have provided teachers
and building administrators with salary increases. In both cases this was the second
time in four years that this has occurred. Also in both cases it has placed our
compensation programs below par for the region and state. Unfortunately, it also
results in losing staff to higher paying positions and in difficulty atiracting candidates
for some of our teaching jebs. In an effort to be more forward thinking, a team of
teachers, board members and the superintendent are attempting to create a mode!
that would improve upon the salary schedule structure by acknowledging and
compensating for things that add value in addition to experience and education.
Hopefully this work will resuit in a plan that could be part of the next round of collective
bargaining.

Many, many good things are going cn in your schools beth in terms of teaching and
leaming and involvement in the community. | would be remiss if | did not point out that
Pelham High celebrated the first State Championship won by one of its teams. The
Varsity Baseball team received this reward for its efforts on the field of play. There are
other success stories in this school district. Examples of student achievemant,
volunteerism, community involvement, memorable teaching and outstanding
commitment to teaching and learning are everywhere. Qur three school councils
continue to give life to the district's Framework for Quality, and your school board,
diligently and with integrity, steadfastly maintains the educational mission and vision of
the Peiham public schools. For all those people who provide me with assistance,
wisdom, guidance and support, | am most grateful. They range from citizen to teacher,
SAU staff to school board member, custodian to student, and they help to make a
complex job worthwhile.

In closing, | am in hopes that the 1998 Annual School District meeting will be
productive, thoughtful, focused on issues and not personalities, and imbued with the
wisdom that our forefathers assumed when creating the annual meeting form of
government. | thank and commend retiring board members Al Rotondi and April
Lazarus and wish them well in all future endeavors. | would also acknowledge Larry
Hall for his too brief, but certainly outstanding, service to the district. School board
service is daemanding, rarely recognized and often misunderstood. Despite this,
people of quality still come forward. Thank you.

Raymond J. Raudonis
Superintendent of Schools
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DIRECTOR OF SPECIAL SERVICES REPORT

Over the course of the 1996-97 school year, the Pelham School District provided
special education and educationally related services to a total of two hundred
seventy-four students between the ages of three and twenty-one. These students
have been identified through a comprehensive referral and evaluation process, and
classified in one or more of the 14 areas of disability, as defined in state and federal
regulations. The services provided by the Pelham School District are individually
determined by a team of people knowledgeable about the student, and are
designed to ensure that each child’s educational needs are met within the least
restrictive environment, to the greatest extent that is possible and appropriate.

In accordance with SAU 28's Iocal Child Find Program, referrals for students
between the ages of 0 and 21 who are suspected of having an educational disability
can be made at any time by contacting the Director of Special Services. A full
range of special education and educationally related services is available to
Pelham students in all three of Pelham’s schools, as well as through the Windham-
Pelham Preschool, located in the O'Hare Building next to the Golden Brook School.
{These services are described in detail in the Local Special Education Plan, which is
located in the Office of the Superintendent of Schools). The Pelham School District
ensures that, to the maximum extent appropriate, students with disabilities are
educated with students who do not have disabilities, within the least restrictive
environment. A continuum of alternative educational environments is available
for students identified with special needs between the ages of 3 and 21 and includes
full or part-time participation in regular classrooms with specially designed
modifications and/or special education consultation, individual or small group
support within a resource setting, as well as placement outside the local, public
school if determined necessary. A variety of educationally related services is also
available, again, based upon students’ individualized education programs. These
include physical and occupational therapy, counseling, speech/language therapy,
vision therapy, behavior management, and rehabilitation counseling,

Project applications for federal monies were completed in June and submitted to
the Department of Education for approval and funding in conjunction with
Pelham’s Consolidated Grant Application. Entitlement monies received for the
1996-97 school year were allocated to the support of in-district programs.
Preschool funds were combined with funding from three other school districts to
continue the Regional Preschool Improvement Project, which is organized and
managed by SERESC. The goal of this project was to provide technical assistance,
training and support for the families and staff of participating preschool programs
in order to maximize inclusionary opportunities for preschool children with
disabilities. Through the project, specialized services of several consultants and
therapists were provided. SERESC also coordinated the regional child check
program with federal funds from five local districts. In March, the Golden Brook
School in Windham hosted SAU 28's Saturday screening, one of four which took
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place throughout the fall and winter months, for the purpose of determining the
existence of educational disabilities for students between the ages of 0 and 5 years.
Follow up appointments were made for those students requiring further testing in
accordance with initial screening results.

Vocational services were contracted with LLD.E.A. entitlement funds to address
transitional goals for some students with disabilities at the high school level. Also
funded were three instructional assistants for Pelham High School and E.G.
Sherburne School, and a part time counselor to support students with educational
disabilities at Pelham High School. Professional development activities for both
teachers and instructional assistants were developed and/or supported with
remaining funds. Title I monies provided the salaries for a tutor of remedial
reading at Pelham High School and for three tutors at E.G. Sherburne and Pelham
Memorial School. These tutors provided remedial math and reading instruction to
approximately 100 students in grades two through eight. Participation in these
programs temains based on several selection criteria, including teacher referral,
standardized test scores, and classroom performance,

Planning for an important new initiative took place throughout the 1996-97 school
year. Through the work of a committee comprised of teachers, administrators,
counselors and school board members, a proposal to develop the Expanding
Student Options Program was developed and approved. With funds from several
grant sources, this new program seeks to identify students who are not succeeding
in school and provide alternative options for them through early intervention and
coordination of services. Parent involvement, student commitment, and
community collaboration are the critical components of this new opportunity for
our students. '

Thanks are extended to the Pelham community, members of the Pelham School
Board, and the administrators and faculty of Pelham's schools, for their ongoing

efforts on behalf of all students, and their continued support for students with
educational disabilities.

Respectfully submitted,

Sandra A. Plocharczyk
Director of Special Services
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E. G. SHERBURNE SCHOOL
Principai’s Report

This is the twenty-fifth time that | have had the honor of reporting the progress of the E.
G. Sherbumne Schoo! family, and making recommendations for improvements needed to insure
continued growth in the educational offerings of our students. Our gg}&test accomplishment has
been o become a school of choice in which parents can choose learning environment that
best meets the educational needs of their child/children. We have three altematives from which
parents can choose: 1. the traditional classroom, 2. the multi-age/continuous pro%ess and 3.
the Iooping dassrooms. In alf three leaming environments, the same curricuia is followed, basic
education is stressed and the whole child’s needs (social, emotional and academic) are
addressed. Our curricula has been aligned with the State of New Hampshire Frameworks which
challenges our students to perform at higher academic levels.

As we prepare our students to live in and be productive members of society in the
twanty-first century, we are aware that they will be competing in a global economy. Therefore,
our students are involved in the School to Careers Program which gives them an awareness of
choices for their future. The Schools to Careers Curriculum developed district-wide has been
adopted as a model by the State of New Hampshire for other school districts to emulate.
Business representatives are advising us that basic skills alone will not insure our students’
succass in this global economy. Our students will be required to work as members of a
cooperative group of employees to solve complex problems by using creative problem solving
and critical thinking skills to arrive at solutions that no one student could generate independently.

We are fortunate to have a very active Sherburne School Council representing the
desires of parents, community and business interests in the Town of Petham. This Council helps
our School to set the direction for future endeavors. Qur Council was recently granted a le?ht
D. Eisenhower Science and Mathematics Grant to establish a summer science camp. Hopefully,
this is the beginning of a summer school program for our students.

t would like to make the following recommendations for improvement that will enable us to
continue to provide our students with outstanding educational opportunities:

1. We need more ¢lassroom space because of increased enroliment.

2. We need two additional teachers because of increased enrollment,

3. We will need to begin to replace social studies, reading and language arts
texts due to the age of the texts.

I would like o take this opportunity to thank Mr. Raudonis, Mr. Boucher, Mrs. Plocharczyk,
Miss Flynn and my staff for your continuing support and encouragement.

Respecttully submitted,

Dr. DeWayne Howell
Principal
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Pelham Memonal School
Principal’s Reporl

It is with great pleasure that I again present my annual repori as Principal of Pelham Memorial School.

Last year, two significant accomplishments were realized in order to affect more diversified and positive
learning experiences for our students - “Advisor/Advisee” and “Writing Across the Curriculum™ programs.
Our advisory program was eslablished after the entire staff participated in workshops during the previous
year’s early release days. The main concepts of this program consist of focusing on social, emotional,
physical, and intellectual development of our middle school students. Fifty-cight adults — including
teachers, support staff, secretary, and administrators — serve as advisors to all our students. Advisories
range in size from ten to twelve and consist of groups of 5% and 67 graders or groups of 7% and §* graders.
A commiltec met regularly to provide activities and to assure that our program was functioning as planned
We all think the program is successful. Probably because we started slowty, estabtished specific activities,
and had a supportive staff. Most staff wouid like to see an expansion of this program; however, space and
time are major concems,

Our writing program began last year after our staff spent two release days and one entire workshop day
learning new sirategics to “develop writing and thinking skills across the curriculum.” We are excited
about this program that is being used in every classroom. The reason for our excitement is that our studenis
scored significanily higher on their writing samples as measured by the California Achicvement Test and
the New Hampshire Educational and Improvement Asscssment Program. As a result of our efforts, a
district-wide wriling program is being investigated.

[ would be remiss if I did not niention the successes of all students as measured by standardized testing,
Fifth, seventh, and eighth prade scores were some of the best ever. We continue to achieve significantly
higher than the national averages and expected outcomes. Our sixth graders exceeded all state averages in
alt categories on the State of New Hampshire test.

It gives me great pleasure to share some continued accomplishments on existing programs:

- 'The Junior High National Honor Society continues to be an integral part of our extra curricula
activities. Sixteen additional students were imcucted last year.

- Peer mediation is an effective opportunity for students to settle differences: approximately twenty
students serve as mediators for their peers.

- Qur chess club, advised by community volunieer Charles Dick, ranked first in both the
elementary and junior high school competitions.

- The D.A R E. program, under the direction of Officer Michael Pickles. is an invaluable asset to the
cummiculum of our scheol.

- Our volunteer program was recognized with another “Blue Ribbon™ award.

Over crowding continues to be a major issue. All members of the Pelham community are welcome 1o visit
us while school is in session  In order to appreciate our concermns, it behooves our citizenry to observe first
hand the conditions that exist. I encourage the community to sincerely investigate future building. The
need is inevitable and the longer we wait the more costly it will be,

in conclusion, I wish to thank all my staff for their conlinued suppont and efforts in making our school a
clean safe, enjoyable place to jearn. [ thank the parents and community at large, the school board, central
office staff. and you Mr. Raudonis for all your support and assistance. Lastly, a special thanks to my
secretary, Mrs. Sandra Corbin and my assistant, Mrs. Kathy Hancock who assist me daily in managing
Pelham Memorial School.

Respectfully submitted,

Dennis R. Govette
Principal
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PELHAM HIGH SCHOOL

Principal's Report

Uppermost in my mind as | write this year's report is the ten-year accreditation
visit by a team of evaluators from the NEASC Commission on Public Secondary
Schools coming up at the end of March. We have spent nearly 18 months preparing
for the visit, and | am confident that the team will find Pelham High School to be a
vibrant and innovative place of learning for all of our students. As chair of our self-
study, Judy Metz has kept the process rolling on a timetable for compistion in January
{about two months prior to the visit).

Our School-to-Careers initiatives have expanded this year to include broader
opportunities for student internships and job shadowing at work sites. A variety of
workshops for teachers have been conducted to begin to focus on the task of helping
students make informed career decisions and choices. A summer institute was
conducted in the summer of 1997 to focus our weekly advisories on career assessment
and planning. Maost recently, we have initiated a dual enroliment program with Castle
College and Franklin Pierce College whereby students can take college courses for
both high school and college credit simultaneously. So far, six students will take
advantage ctf this program during Semester 1.

A committee was established this year to look at academic standards within the
high school, to insure quality control and to make recommendations to the staff
regarding standards for student achievement. A recommendation coming from this
group was to establish a writing committee to set standards for student writing across
the curriculum. As a result, the superintendent has formed writing committees at all
three schools to coordinate the writing process throughout the district.

We continue to see a growing music program produce quality musicians and
quality performances. In their new concert and marching uniforms, band members
proudly represent Pelham High School throughout the region. This year six of our
students were selected for New Hampshire All-State in both band and chorus
competition. For two students, Abigail McCracken and Brian Cooke, these are multi-
year selections.

Our students continue o participate in sports at an ever-increasing rate. The
reintroduction of wrestling this year has brought more students under the athistic
umbretla. More than half of the student body takes part in at least one sport during the
school year. We continue to participate in the Southeastermn League competitions in
cheering and speech. There is also an annual SEL Arts Festival to which we send
scores of students.
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The Pelham Community Players returned this year to perform another original
production by Susan Peterson entitted: “We Too Were Cool°, This was a community
effort aimed-at raising scholarship money for students. Nearly $5,000 was raised by
this production alone to assist students as they move on to coliege. And speaking of
college, our seniors continue to view a post-secondary education as a necessity as
evidenced by about 75% of our students going on to further their education.

As we spend significant time this year in workshops and staff development
aimed at aligning our curriculum with state standards and integrating our instruction
across the curriculum, we hope to continue the tradition of providing quality education
to every student and family we serve.

My thanks to a hard-working faculty, staff and a diligent student body for their
efforts this past year. Together we make Pelham High School a caring place and a
quality educational experience for all.

Respectfully submitted

Robert A. Pedersen
Principal
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Pelbam School District Enrollment

Grade Enrolled 1997-98 Projected 1998-99
1 172 175
2 150 147
3 166 154
4 _142 168

630 644
5 169 146
6 148 177
7 180 159
8 _161 _182

658 664
9 158 148
10 148 161
11 128 138
12 13 124

547 571

Distriburion of Superintendent’s Salary

Pelham 50.1% $40,143.00
¥indham 49.9% 39,983.00
$80,126.00

Distribution of Business Administratror’s Salary

Pelham 50,1% $30,296.00
¥indham 49.9% 30,175.00
$60,471.00
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Date U-Jan-3

Peihan School District Proposed Bydget for 1999-99

heet Nunbor hceount Daseriptian

fudget %-971

Expend 95-97

Budget §7-%9

Bud Cew 38-9%

Hifarance

1-1100-89-5112-111 $alacies-Teachers
1o1400-00-5114-111 Salarias-Aides
1-1180-00-5120-11) Salaries-S4bs
1-1100-09-5128-111 Tuteréng
1-1t80-00-5448-111 Regairs te Inst, Eav
1-1100-60-5501-111 Prafessionat Keeting
L-1340-80-5610-111 Sugslies
1-1100-01-5610-111 Swpplies
1-1190-02-5610-111 Supaliny
1+1100-05-5610-141 Juppiiss
1-1100-08-5610-111 Supalies
1-£100-11-5610-111 Swppties
1-1108-12-5610-4L1 Supalins
1-1100-19-5610-111 Swpplies
1-1100-23-66L0-111 Supplfes
1-1190-80-5630-111 Dokt
1-1106-05-5630-111 3oeks
1-1100-11-5630-111 Baots
1-1108-13-5630-111 Baeks
1-£108-15-5630-111 Becks
1-1106-24-5630-111 Bosks
1-1100-13-5640-111 Periodicals
1-1100-80-574:-111 Equisment
1-110-00-5142-111 Aeplace. of Inst. Ed
L-1180-61-5T42-111 Teehnadegy

1-1200-80-5112-111 S arfes-$pecial ¢
1-1390-00-5114-111 Salarins-Alas
1-1200-00-5610-111 Supplins
1-1200-B0-5630-111 Daaks
1-1280-00-5141-111 Equipment

1-1120-08-5112-111 Salariet-Gul dacee
1-2120-20-5410-115 Suppties

1-1130-08-5112-111 Salaty-Nerse
1=130-00-5620-111 Supslies

1,165, 841,00
3, 151,00
2,008,00

136,60

13.00
1,008.00
15,3000
1,1%5.00
4,430.00
1,001.8¢

167,80
13,5100

.60

LN
1,046, 40

502,00
§,268.00
1,208.00
1,458,00
348400
£,045.00
1.037.00
4,502.00
1,900.08
18,000.0¢

1,322,047 .04

119,400, 08
450
1,100.00
HELA ]
80

1,112,130. 74
37,8050
19,463.15

17.08
30.00
1,964.44
18,422.99
1,044
Lin
Lme
435,99
£3,424,98
IELN
042,38
19,930.9¢
§66.94
5L
1,189,439
1,55.99
3,395.82
1,806.75
3,011
XN
174,00
9,402.0¢

1,396 895,46

17,400.80
13,%10.50
1,301t
BN
Nl

1,110,§77.80
31,430,800
8,000.00
0b.02
135,08
00,00
15,381.90
1,195.00
4,3689.00
1,081.09
164.00
12,916.00
HI.ig
§00.90
10,8460
5§2.00
§,263.00
1,103.00
1,458.00
3,418.09
t, 045,00
3,031.00
2,142.00
1,500.04
.00

1,409, 036,00

118,400.00
19,099, 0¢
1,300.40
547,00
£330, 0t

£,167,103.90
31,480, 00
18,000.00
$40.00
135,00
500,00
25,38L.00
1,195.00
4,369.0
1,456.00
163,00
13,046, 00
117,00
§25.00
12,470.00
249000
542000
1,284.00
1,667,600
3,619.00
2,1%5.00
3,7%6.00
A0
740108
.0

132, 66408

118,404,00
18,959.00
1,300.00
5,621,490
H

1,514,461
M
KT
.00
0
A
M
.00
)
1,184,00
+.0¢
130.00
m
5.0
1,430.00
1,830.00
557,00
81.00
09,00
200,09
1,250.00
189,09
7,492,08CR
901.00
A

80
125.00C
1,338.06Ck

152,323.00

41,800.80
T.He

147,926, 8%

42,308.40
$.00.00

155,544, 08

12,300.40
1000

1$3,381.00

§2,300.00
10,763.00

1,863,0008

L1
3.463.00

$,040.00

[[R1N 1)
10700

11,350

11,321.10

44,909.00
460.58

41,869.50
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10,99%.08
1, k.60

403,00

12,803.90

i, 508,00
1,014.00

41,923.00
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Bate 17-Jas-90

Petham Schoal Distrdict Proposed Budqet for 1933-9¢

Acet Nunber Account Dascription

L-2059-08-5112-1E1 Salary-Speech
1-2158-00-5630-111 Pasks

1-2099-00-5492-£11 Assenbldes

1-2910-00-5502-115 Teachers’ Workshops
1-2110-80-5648-11% Profassional Publica

1-2021-00-5144-111 Sataries-Aides

L+ 320-09-5440-111 Ropairs ané Xalntena
1-2222-98-$453-111 Audivvisual
1-211-00-5614-111 Suppl fas
1-2220-00-5638-111 Bodks
1-2222-09-$640-111 Pariodicals
1-1200-00-5678-111 Awdiovisval
1-2222-13-5680-101 Supp) Les-Naps
1-2212-00-5741-11% Souipment

L-3410-04-5110-111 $adary-Priscioa?
1-1410-90-511E-111 Salary-Assist. Prine
1-2410-00-8512-111 Salary-Regelar
1-210-00-5115-111 Salarfes-Sedretariny
1-110-09-5832-111 Supplles-Postign
1-1410-09-5610-111 Supplies
1-2410-90-5814-111 Profassional Nebers
1-2490-00-5¢10-131 Report Cards-Supplie

1-2542-80-5112-1L Salarfas-Custodians
$-2542-00-5431-111 Rubdish
1-25471-00-5435-111 Sentfe Tank
1-2643-90-5440-11F Repairs
1-7542-00-5468-111 Const, Sery
1-2642-00-5831-111 Tatephem
1-2542-90-5610-111 Supp)ies

Budget %5-97

47,400,900
45,00

Expand 35-47

4,400
12316

Bugget 47-9¢

47,400 .58
5.0

Bud Con 33-49

A7 A80.0
375,00

Difiarence

1,765.08

16,457.90
750,00
515,00

1,436.00
N
352.00

20,£20.00

E7,485.00
19, 125,00
L. 0
4,952.00
1,700.0¢
1,108,680
450,00
6.0

1,313

15,467.0¢
192.10
§78.72
1,563.3

10,173.13

57,485,100
§5,125.80
1,100.00
LR
1,700.00
1,186,392
650,80
in.y

47,145.00

590,80

2,300,90
465.0¢

1.400.00
465,06

2, 768.00

16,489.00
750,00
§95.00

136,80
§,002.00
381,08
d00.00

26,754,480

b7,465,0¢
49,1508
1,918.80
35.718.00
1,700,00
1,100,060
468,00
ne.n

2,765.0¢

16,958.00
§09.0¢
§89.00

1,454.00
1,513.00
9.00
100,89
o600
1,300.90

H,20.0

§7.465.90
4%,115.90
1,5i8.00
8,728.00
1,706.00
1.100.00
150.90
.o

40
2580008
.00
15.00
1.0

IR

A0
M
40

149,636.00

§4,791.800
1,808.00
1,780.09
5,900.00

N
§.600.00
£,900.00

150,199.15

[IRIEA 1Y)
3,068.65
1.747.3

9,045,201

A0
§,419.55
10,740.45
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§6, 476,08
180608
1.740,00
§,140.00

H
£,000.00
T,140.80

151,372.00

647600
2,000.m
1,700,00
5.10¢.00

45,800, 00
4,000,008
1.100.00



Date 17-Jan-48

Polhan School Bistrict Propased Budget for 1998-99

heet Humber hegount Oeseription budqet 96-97 Expesd 36-47 Budqet ¥7-33  Bud Con 95-44 T

1-2643-00-5682-£11 Edectricity H,029.00 N 17,731,400 1,131.00 M

1-2541-00-5653-111 Heat 13,424.00 15,4697 14,106, 00 14, 186,90 40

1-2842-00-§141-111 Eeuipment 1,000.00 16,198, 2t 1,489.00 1,469.00 N ]

{-1542-00-5T41-111 Replace. Hen-Inst. E 1,58¢.00 5,450 00 At N ]
1-2544-00-5440-111 Repair to Ken-Ingt. 100.40 1.512.8 LA 180,00 100.0600

1-5544-00-5442-151 Malntenance Contract §,986.00 B8 7.196.00 T,186.00 A}

141,031.00 148,735.4 142,348,400 146,%48,00 14,608.00

1-5310-90-5563-11% Charter Sthesls ] N . 1.00 b.00

e L 00 1.0 i.80

E.G.5harburne Schoed Tats! 1.907,143.00 2,097,630, 1% 1,467, 715.%0 1,019,584.09 §1,839.08
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Date 27-Jan-33

Paihan Schoel Ofstrict Prapused Dudget far 1998-89

et Number hecount Description

1-1400+00-5112-112 Salaries-Toachers
1-1190-00-5114-142 Salarfes-Aidas
1-1100-00-5520-132 Sataries-Subs

1-1100-12-5440-112 Repairs to Tnst. Eqd
1-1100-00-5581-152 Professionai Hesting

1-1100-09-5610-112 Sepplies
1-1180-01-5610-112 Supplfes
1-1100-02-5610-112 Supplies
1-1100-03-5610-112 Supplies
1-1100-05-5610-112 Supplins
1-1100-06-5610-112 Supolies
1-1100-08-5610-112 Supplies
L-1100-11-5818-112 Swppliss
1-1100-12-5618-112 Suppliss
1-1180-13-56L0-112 Swppliss
§-1100-15-5618-117 Supplies
1-1180-23-5639-112 Supolies
$-119¢-05-6430-112 dooks
1-1100-06-5630-112 Boeks
1-1180-09-5630-112 Books
1-1100-51-5630-112 Botks
$-1480-12-5620-112 Haeks
1-1106-13-5630-112 Boeks
1-5580-15-5630-112 Boeks
1-1100-23-5650-L10 Bosks
1-1100-33-5T41-112 Equionent
1-1108-01-5742-117 Technolegy

1-1200-00-5112-117 Salarfes-Speeta) Ed
1-1708-00-5114-112 Salarfes-hides
1-1200-05-5610-117 Supplies

1-1410-09-5112-112 Satarfes-Sparts
1-1410-00-5390-112 0ffictals
1-1410-00-5610-112 Supalias
1-1410-05-5610-117 Supplies

1-2120-80-5112-112 Salary-Buldince

Budgat $6-97 Expend 96-37 Budoet 97-44

1,16,750.6¢ 1,265,521.42 1,247,950.40

21800 13,95.00 14,860.00
10,000.00 11,083.44 0,080.00
50600 895,80 §00.00
1,500.00 1,556.97 1,000.0¢
19,388.00 19,010.00 20,043,00
1,381.00 1,481,620 1,347.9¢
4, 15.00 1,418.97 6.095.00
§72.00 41,10 1,543,800
$1.00 134,43 300,90
3l.0¢ 417,90 557,00
§,407.00 1,81.81 1,501.00
12.00 %Y £0.00
25.00 119.9 1500
§60.00 §oe.80 560,00
116,00 225,00 162,40
.0g A0 .00
1,860.00 1,260.40 538.00
682,00 $13.62 .0
1.416.00 1,415.46 1180
T.014.0¢ T,113.50 §,771.00
1,413,008 1.000.31 1,2%0.00
1,864.00 AR ] 100
1,763.00 [RLEA Y 1,170.00
L6008 1,6%86.04 4,§32.00
1,677.00 1,761 1,617.00
1, 800.00 19,768,480 .0

Bud Com ¥3-9%

1, 44,400, 0¢
60,00
26,000.00

560,90
509.00
23,904.00
1,808.00
§,005.0¢
1,085.00
308.00
.0
1,600.00
9.0
125.00
1.u41,0
nLw
5.0
1.801.00
1,912.80
£00.60
1.7199.80
130.00
1,058,008
11,2504
1,591.00
4,275.08

biffecence

00
484, 080%
b0
145,00
1.00Ck
5.0
.00
LR
§70.00
03.00
1,450
1,673,00
1,682, 90CR
4,971,0008
300, 0008
42480
1,516.00
1,041.00CR
1,890,006
.ot

1,403,826.¢0 LA, 34907 L,47,382.00

1,356,444, 00

154,100.00
18,187.%0
6.0

164, 693.08

12,0100
4, 10,50
5,685.00

50,00

£, 061,00

.01
.00
§5. 0OCR

$5.000R

00

Rl
230,008

0

154,100.00 135,400.00 164,100.80
19,545,800 1,352.94 14,197.00
1.0 115,97 451,00
14,367,010 144,028,891 154, 149,00
12,007.00 5,793.00 72,207.00
4,440.00 §,040.09 4,710,900
§,§95.00 5,681.41 §,915.00
150,00 250,80 260,00
31,502.00 7,110.41 32,500.00
41,8500 4, 454.00 A7,354.40
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12,3520

A7, 854,00

234, 00CR



(1L

Felham School Disbrict Proposed Bugget for 1398-99

Aect Number hecount Beseription

Budget $6-47

Exnend %6-97

Budget §7-98

Bud Con 3%-94

Ditferencs

.................... P EETTEEEmmmmree MM rEemrems e ariasraaeTETU Semmesrmammmmeme Feddemmemeeeeman eaevammemeeNean

1-2120-00-5610-112 Supplies

1-2138-00-5112-112 Salary-Hurse
1-2130-00-5610-112 Supplies

1-2050-60-5012-117 Salary-Soeech

{-2150-00-5097-112 Assemdlies

1-2210-00-5562-112 Teachers' Workshops
1-2210-00-5640-112 Prafessional Pudlica

1-2272-00-8114-112 Sataries-Aides
1-2222-00-5440-112 Repalrs and Haintena
1-2282-00-5610-112 Supplies
1-1000-08-6530-117 Books
1-2212-00-5640-112 Pariodicals
1-2127-06-5870-112 Audiovisus
[-2021-33-5670-112 Auglovisual
1-2222-15-5670-112 hudiovisua
1-2228-15-5680-112 Supp}fes-Naps

1-2410-00-5110-112 Salaty-Principal
1-2410-00-5110-112 Saiary-Assist. Prine
1-2410-60-5112-112 Salary-Requiar
1-2410-00-5115-117 Salarfes-Sacretaries
1-2410-00-5532-112 Supplies-Pastaqe
1-2410-80-5618-112 Supoliss
1-7410-00-5810-112 Professiona] Kembers
1-2490-00-5112-117 Sataries-Davartmint
1-2430-00-5610-152 Report Cards-Supplin
1-2480-00-5898-212 araduatien

4,579.00

52.492.00

13,350.00
00,00

§,177.99

4,578.00
§2,430.09

14,350.00
1,000.00

52,432.00

15,350,00
1,000,00

19,250.00

19,395.00

19,350.00

19,3%5.00

19,350,060

19,395.00

7500

9,413.0¢
556.90
1,500.00
1,500.00
350.60
181,00
1%8.0¢
41,00
183,00

1,725.00

$,663.00
£50.00
1,330.00
§.065.00
B60.C0
210,00
240.09
930.00
178,00

$,653.00
508,00
1,500,80
8,800.00
350,00
100,00
159.00
§86.00
3100

.00
1504008
1500

1,831.00
.00
10.08cR
18,00
§.00
77100

14,306.00

58,276.00
47,663.00
3.836,00
1,363.00
1,500.60
1,30.00
1,285.00
11,§50.00
1,460.00
1,059.00

2,000.00
2,979, 0
1,500.00
1,285, 2
1,260.11
11,558.87
1,106.18

884,31
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1, 140,00

§8,276.00
47,683.00
$,836,00
1,§14.00
1,500,00
1,100.00
1,365.00
11,550.08
1,560.00
1,050.00

21,808.00

58,075.00
47,663.00
3.836.00
91400
1,500.00
1,100.00
1,865.00
11,850,00
1,550, 00
105009



Date 27-Jan-98

Paihan Schoa) Bistrict Proposed Budgat for 1998-%4

Aeet Number Aecount deseription

1-2642-00-5112-112 Satardes-Custodians
1-2542-40-5431-112 Aubdish
1-2542-00-5435-117 Septic Tank
1-3547-00-5440-112 Rapairs
1-2542-00-5460-112 Construction Service
12542-30-8531-112 Tetaphons
1-1542-00-5410-117 Supplias
1-2542-00-5852-117 Elacteielty
1-2542-00-5653-112 Heat
1-2542-40-5657-112 Gas
1-2542-00-5742-117 Ruplace. Mon-lnst, E
1-25¢4-00-5440-112 Repxir to Non-Inst.
1-2544-00-5441-112 Naintenance Contract

Pelhan Memotial School Totdd

bugget ¥6-%7

fxpend 96-97

Todget A7-9%

Bud Com 38-3%

Pifterence

159,773.00

§3,14%.00
5.600.00
1,760.00
1,300.00

110,000.00
1,700.00
1,200, 0¢

17,400.00

17,818.00
1,972.00
},645.00

HiAL
164400

143,929,891

83,012
5,460,901
LHnn
5,458,711

118,000,00
[N
9,409, 85

17,551.45

22,624,010
1,587,556

15,093.07

506,44
9,989.03

150,804.00

#4,750.00
5,600.50
1,700.00
+,§50,00

i
1,000.00
§,260.00

26,061.09

23, 458,00
1,999.00
T,008.00

.08
0,436.00

150,804, 00

64,750.00
5,600.00
1,700.00
1,650.00

00
1,000.90
9,200.08

26,044.00

1,768.00
2,310.00
5,361,480

Bl

8.436.00.

M
[7.00CR
§40,00CK

4.9
1,048, 00CR

1,152.371.00

1,100,949.97
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1,$81,013.00

1,98%,371.00

§08.08



Date 17-Jan-94

Folhaw School Bistriet Prepased Budaet for 1998-9¢

heet Number Acesunt Deserigtion

1-1100-00-5112-13% Stdarfes-Tvachers
1-1100-00-5120-133 Salarins-Subs

1-1106-09-5121-133 Tatering

1-1108-22-5122-133 Salat{es-Driver Edue

1-1100-02-5440-533 Rapairs to Dnst.
[-1100-09-5440-133 Repairs to Inst,
1-1100-10-5440-133 Repairs to Iast,
t=1100-1%-5040-130 Repzirs o Inst.
1-1100-13-5440-133 Repairs to Inst.
1-1100-03-5442-13% Regalrs to Inst.
£-1100-21-6442-133 Aopatrs te Inst.

Equ
{7
Equ
Eeu
Fqu
{13
Equ

1-1108-90-5501-133 Prefessiona! Heeting

1-1100-40-5610-133 Swpplies
1-3108-02-5410-133 Supplies
1-1100-83-5610-133 Supg!ins
[-1100-05-5610-133 Supplies
1-1100-06-5618-133 Supp! fas
$-1500-88-5610-137 Suppl et
1-1108-09-5610-131 Supplins
1-1109-10-5510-13% Suoplies
1-1100-1¢-5610-183 Supslies
1-1160-17-8810-133 Suoptins
141100-13-5610-133 Swopl fes
1-1100-15-5610-133 Suppldns
1-1109-22-5610-133 Supplies
1-1108-23-5610-133 Swpp) fes
1-1100-02-5630-£37 Boeks
1-1100-05-5430-133 Basts
1-1100-06-5630-133 Rooks
1-1100-09-5638-133 Bocks
1-1100-10-5630-133 Books
1-1108-11-5530-133 Danks
1-5100-12-5630-131 Boaks
1-1169-13-5§38-133 pooks
1-3100-15-6630-133 dosks
1-1160-23-5636-133 Dosks
1-1140-82-5741-133 Equipment
1-1100-03-5741-139 Equipment
1-1100-85-5T41-133 Equisamnt
1-1180-06-5741-133 Equipmeat

L-1100-69-5741-13% Eqvipnent Homs fc.

1-1100-13-5741-133 Equtpment
[-1100-93-5742-133 Tachaalogy

1-1100-02-5742-133 Reslace, of Inst. Eq

Badqet 36-97

1,103,403.40

4,000, 80
795.00
19,260.40
1,h08.00
660,90
2,800.00
1,140.90
350,00
A
.00
1,568.00
12,790.08
2,10.0
1,400
1,100.00
1,616.0¢
£, 470,08
2,700.00
$,500.00
3,404.00
75,400
§,354.00
1,398.00
1,460.00
)
523,00
2,955.00
1,170.48
152,00
146,96
1,030
147500
1,864.00
591500
1,550,00
571,00
.00
7,00.08
100,00
0
2,000.90
19,000,00
450,00

Expend 36-97

£,205,708.92
4,582.99
§71.40
20,145.38
1,12.60
§76.45
131531
1.208.57
360.4¢

00
1,002,650
17,829.31
LS.
2,480,0%
1,142.8§
1,7156.12
1,546.51
1,68.51
§,554.47
1,609.13
n.n
037157
1,395.43
LA
918,16
180,01
3,010,682
LI6) 48
66,90
151,42
IR
1.483.00
1,18.82
§.914.95
1,685.73
576.00
0
1.618.25
1e.40
.40
1,995.90
18,%62.17
851,47
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Budget §7-38

1,312,38.00
24,090, ¢0
195,00
20,314.00
§50.90
£00.00
2,000,80
1,100.00
00

.08
850,00
1,000.08
12,780.00
1.700,0¢
1,000.00
1,060.00
{,546.90
1,470.00
2,700.00
§,192.00
2,843,100
300,00
§,283.00
A0
2,596.00
1,082.90
§25.00
7,345.00
2,130
L
153.00
1,158.00
1,300.00
3,600.00
§,434.00
1,545.00
.o
10,428.00
1,600,00
00

Bud Con 38-%9

1,318, 270.00
4,000,90
795.00
1,210.00
00,80
600,08
2,400.00
1,750.00
400,80
1,290.00
450.00
1,500.00
13,080.09
1,100.00
1,480,094
1,055.00
1,97.00
1,932.00
1,9%0.08
§,300.00
3,400.00
350.00
8.183.00
LLEN ]
1,546, 00
675,00
158.00
2,950.0¢
2,640.00
.o
1.437.40
4,000.00
1,640.00
3,505.00
7,246.00
1,842,00

R
1,900.00

1,058,000k
.00
.00
$04.00
50.08¢CR
08
100,90
150.90
0,00
1,230.00
400,60C8
500.60
16,08
Ll
490,00
§.60
L0
§12.00
200.0¢
108,00
18,60t
50,00
1,700,049
853,00
A0
327, 00CR
185.00
§.00
13000k
0
1,084,008
1,912.89
360,00
16.00CR
6200
§.00CR
A48
£0,41,000R
199, 08CR
00
400,90
492.00Ck
00
00



Date 12-lan-%8

Polhan Scheel District Progesnd Budgat fer 199319

Expand 96-97

Budget 97-38

$ud Con 98-99

dittarance

heet Nuaar Aeepant Daseription Budget 6-47
L-1109-09-5742-133 Replace. of Inst. g 00
L-§104-10-6142-130 Raplace. of Inst. E4 184,08
I-1106-11-6142-133 Reptics, of Inst. ¢ 1, 666,00
L1-iton-13-5042-13) Equipnest 2,440,080

1,43%,588.00

0.5
LY
137,90

$,453,140.54

13, 00090
185, 740.00
LY
31,08
264,26

5000
134,00
1,508.00
.01

1,451,488.40

13,000,00
16,155.00
7500
94e.00
00

HLHA
3,619,008

.00
§,0%8.0000
§.61%,00

1,450,513.0¢

12 000.80
16,1550
615.00
B§9.00
]

£, 375, 00Ck

09
Ll
L
.0

190,304.54

20,364.05

109,876.00

3,§50.00

166,890.00

,024.00

8,884.06

55, 750,00
16, 058,00
503,90
1,000, 24
1,062.90

M, 650.80

§3,585,00
16,512.00
0,400.00
1,15.00
1,088.80

44,004, 90

§5,555.00
11,612.00
8,§00.00
21,635, 00
2,400.90

1,304.00

1,000.0¢

§50.00

.08
250.08Ck
10.00¢CR

HUREERL]

1,840,008
3,504.80
4,49.51
1,511
418,56

192,992.00

41,300.00
37,625.00
5.063.00
1,501.09
1,000.00

145,312.00

91,300.00
17,515.80
§,068.00
2,560.00
.0

178, 317.60

30,579,100
650,91

136,354,008

0,578,090
§43.00

136,453.00

30,578.00
3.5

L-1200-00-6112-13) Sabarfas-Spacial & 182,225.00
1-1200-08-5114- 128 Salartes-Aides 15,011.00
1-1200-00-5610-12) Supptins 17500
1-1280-80-5434-133 Baaky 500.00
1-12688-00-5M1-19% Equipmant 00.0¢
11,110

£-1300-00-5861-10) Tyitiom 31,600.80
31,670.00

1-1418-00-5112-133 Salaries-Sports £1,586. 00
1-1400-00-5390-133 Offdeials 16,050,086
1-1018-00-5501-130 Prof, Hestings--Atht b.600,00
1-1414-00-5518-137 Susplius 1.689.00
1-1410-05-5618-123 sepplins 1,010,800
182,992.00

1-120-00-5112-11 Dalaries-Guidines 11,380.00
{-2120-20-51L5-139 Salarlns-Socretarfos 34,0000
1-2110-00-5410-133 Supplins 5,4068.80
1-1620-00-5620-133 beoks 1,501.09
1-2100-00-51E-13F Eqvioment £.000.08
135,100.04

1-3138-90-5112-13) Salary-Murse $0,579.00
L2130 08-5610-113 Suppltas §3.00
nmamn

1-20M-00-5892-137 Assaabl fas 500.00
§00.00
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I

Patnan $ehoo District Prapusnd Budger for 1990-38

heet Number hecomnt Duseription

Budger 36-37

Expund 36-97

Fudget $7-34

ud Com 93-9

Difference

1-2210-04-5692-133 Teachars’ Verkshans
1-2410-00-8640-133 Profassional Publica

§-2022-00-5114-133 Salarfes-Aides
L-2210-00-5449-133 Repatrs and Naiatead
1-2221-08-5410-133 Supplies
1-2122-00-5630-133 Beoks
1-2712-00-5670-133 Audievisuz
1-2122-15-5630-133 Swoplins

1-H10-00-5150-133 Salary-Princinal
1-2410-09-5111-132 Salary-Assist. Prine
1-1010-00-5112-131 Salary-Regular
1-2018-04-5185-133 $alaries-Yoeretaries
1~ 1418-09-5390-133 NEASC Evaluation
1-1410-00-5532-133 Supplies-Pestage
1-2480-08-5618-138 Supp)tes
1-2410-80-5810-133 Profassionzl Members
1-2490-00-5112-132 S3Yaries-Depastuent
1-2496-00-5640-137 Suppl les-Arards
1-24%6-00-5893-133 Gradwation

1-2642-00-5112-139 Salaries-Custadians
1-2542-08-5435-133 Rebbish
1-2542-80-5435-133 Septie Tank
$-2547-00-5440-133 Repairs
1-2542-00-5530-133 Telephune
1-2542-00-5610-133 Supplies
1-26472-00-5452-133 Electricity
1-2542-01-5453-£33 Keating 011
1-25€2-00-5657-133 fas
P-2542-00-5742-137 Reploce. Men-Inst, €
1-2544-08-5442-133 Maintemance Contract

Fathan Bigh Sehanl Total

1,350.00
T.073.08

1.805.04
14401y

1,350.00
7,413.00

HEIR
1,013.00

16,203.00

16,354.0¢
190.00
1,395.00
1,200.00
1,100.90

HRCIN

§7,465.80
17,643.00
103600
37.631.00
40
1,400.80
1,450
3.590.00
§,000.00
1,500.0¢
1.425.00

10.34.23

16,359.04
§11.72
1,412.93
L, 162,87
1,962
§57.55

7.094.78

§1,465.00
47,683.0¢
1,000.00
37.199.54

Al
$,585.00
8,268 14
1,549.08
6.50,43
1,504.00
3,13.00

i#,223.08

16,742.00
100,80
1,295,800
3,310
2,500.00
40

15,§93.00

§7,465.00
47,563.00
3.836.00
38,854.00
10,000.90
3,490.00
1,995.8¢
3,590,400
6,000.00
1,506,808
3,123.00

18,223.08

16,700.80
tas.09
1,560.00
§,200.00
2,800.00
540,00

16.137.00

57.465.00
47.683.00
3,436.00
,554.00
¢
1,4%0.00
7,945.00
3,5%0.00
§,060.00
1,500.5¢
3,10.00

.00
609,004
B45.0003

1,884.00
$00.00¢r
508.00

L]
10,000.00C0

172,353.00

172,781.00
§,600.80
1,740.00
$,780.09

L1,380.90
10,104.80
§L,425.00
L HE0

00.90
3,008.90
4,566.00

171,156.13

190,138.1
§.474.0%
[RHIN ]

12,642.86
12444
12,718.93
50,044,549
0,500,35
.04

IR 1L
152,968.35

183,214.0¢

176,445,490
§,600.90
1,70¢.00
§,700.00

11,900,080
14,340.00
$7,490.40
HIRLIN ]
30,80
1, 875,08
3, 666.00

173, 114.00

19,339.08
§,600.00
1,700,680
9,700.40

11.940.09
10,180.00
§2,436.80
2%,534.00
350.0¢
.0t
1,646.00

10,002.00C8

1,354.00

.4

00

.00

A0

4

4,446.00
13.00¢k

59,00
24,975,008

00

1,360, 140,00

2,530,516.35
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2,410,174.00

1,095, 805.00

LT 004R



Date 17-Jan-94

Pelhaw Schoal Bistrict Proposad Busqet Tor {998-99

heot Number heesunt Deseriptisn

Buget 94-47

Expend $6-47

Budgat 97-83

Bug Com 93-18

4-7560-00-5112-110 Sataries Loneh Proga
4-2560-00-5200-110 Senedits Food Servic
4-2560-00-5440-110 Repairs Food Service
4-2560-00-5610-11¢ Supplies Food Servie
1-2560+00-5706-110 Equipaet

Scheol Lunch Total

200,000.0¢
30,080.00
4,090.00
100,000.60
1,500.00

100,000,080
30,000.0¢
4,000,100
100,000, 0¢
1,500.0¢

Difference
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335,560.00

336,5¢0.00



NN

Pelhan Schee) District Proposed Budget for 199899

Atk Number heeoont Deseription

Sudget 16-97

Expend 9§-97

fudqat 37-98

Bod Con 93-9%

Ditterencs

1-1200-00-5112-199 Salarias-Spacial E
1-1780-00-5114-399 3alarins-Aides
1-1700-80-5569-199 Tuition
1-1200-29-5010-199 Speetal Services

1-2118-00-5270-183 Coursa Cradit

1-2310-00-5103-149 Salaries-Seheol Boar
1-2310-00-5104-198 Salary-Treasurer
1-7314-00-5105-1%9 Salary-Hodtrater
1-2310-00-5107-199 Salary-Clerk
1-2310-90-5115-159 Salatdes-Seeretaries
1-2310-00-5380-199 Cansus
1-2310-00-5391-199 Avditors
1-2310-00-572-199 Counsel Fees
1-2318-00-5540-148 Agvertising
1-2310-00-8550-199 Baliots
1-2810-00-5§91-1%9 Supplins-Disteict Of
L-2310-00-5692-199 Supalies-Traasurer
1-3310-00-5850-19% 4. 5.5.5.4. Dues
1-2310-00-5690-19% Comnitter Expanses
1-2310-09-5391-193 Distriet Meating Cot

1-2320-40-8351-199 §,A.U. §28 Shars

1-2552-00- 5513188 Regular Sarvics -10
1-2553-00-5513-199 Spactal Pup!'s
1-7553-80-5513-198 Speetal Bv--

[-2900-80-5211-199 Health Insvranc

29,130.90

200, 016.08
43,936,080
483,489.00

1318108

3,100.0

204,535,713
421,384 .34
34,2641

[ ER N

A0

1,800
H1,815.00
L ER N ]
13,181.00

M0
193,584,108
59,0500

13,181.00

A8

1.0

32.548%.00

33,018, 0000
40

1,135,952.00

3,104.00

1§, 100,00

1,500.00
1,400.00
198.80
100,04
L, 430.00
2,900.09
4,300.08
15,000.00
1,%00.00
toe.00
1,850.00
§0¢.04
3,065.00
00,60
300,60

1,003,618.8¢
19,461.42
18,461.62

1,500.00
1,H0.88
100,68
§00.00
1,365,0¢
2,024.86
414,88
12,581.00
4,425
i17.14
3,438.90
1,309.7%
3,108
1L124,55
7,030.31

3,108.0¢

1.a0.0
1,000.00
100,60
80,00
1,430.00
1,700.04
4,308.00
15.408.90
1,%90.00
fod. %0
1,650.0¢
75040
3,465.00
"0
0.0

1,120,894, 00
36,100.04
16,100.40

1.504.80
1,400.00
90,00
100,09
1,430.09
RITRY
4,800.80
15,008.00
Lo
1,208.00
L5908
750.00
1,560.00
1.8
300,00

43,445,010

113,087.0%

62,561.92

113,082.00

13.0%5.08

31200

13,190.80

120.153.10

113,081.80

377,300.00
17,645.00
71,089.00

113,082.00

3, 488.0°
238,315
10,42

13,4100

310.300.00
265,744, 8
1,009.80

110,58.00

.00
H3,000.10
1,140

n.n
11,196, 0¢
N1

636,054.00

626,062.00

§20,80%.67

§23,182.5¢
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$64,03.00

745,357.00

31,716,090

Y1, 480.00

17,623.00

W, 111,40



Bate 17-Jan-4%

Faldan Sehaol Hateist Progesad budgat for 199099

heet Bunber heeamnt Duseriptin

L= 29000 T T-11Y Deata) lnsaranee
1-2084-00- 5212199 Life Tasuranes
1-2800-00- 5214188 Verker's Cemponsatie
1-2909-00-5121-1%¢ Retirammt

1=2300- 085127199 Retiremint-Teachers
L-290e-04-5200-14¢ £.1.C.0
1-2900-00-5260-14% Unamplatanat Coapass
1-1900-00-5526- 148 tiadility Engurance

1-2100- 00515 2-19 Qalarles-Ienn
L-YT0a-00-5614-143 Langd iyt
L=-9744-00- 448 2- 198 Leack Balarfes

1-4200-00-5300- 199 Tachaden) Servicis

1-5104-00-5030-199 Principnl edt
1-5106-04-500-19¢ Iatarest Davt

1-2H48-04-5610-19% Suppl fas-Title ¥1
1-1700-04-5112-18% PL H:lil PO
1-1288-01-5112-19% Tithe 1

1-5240-40-S801-1%9 Distriet Naney

§-5256-00-5010-19¢ Tochaedegy Trust
1-5265-01-5484-19% ADA Trust

Biskriet Yide Aeeawats Tatal

trind Tata)

Doiget %-9) LUUTR IS H Budget 97-90 bod Com 90-YY

nALw i 19,6050 BN
1H,000.0 ;.40 1H,1M 1
U8 ) (IR R ] §5.000.00 5,000
LT HA 10,0801 LHBIIR]) 1350

10, 701.00 1,130 15, 476.00 16408500
e 1L8704p WL nen §13, 8340
11,750 (R} N i1,150.H 11,160
19,008,040 [FR AT 78,000, 04 An.n

156, 6at0 L4000 LM L LS

LRI ] HH0H 14,1500 A8
Lin 1,162 HELEN 00
11,6004 14000 1,110 M
LI/ IN] 6,081 0, 115,04 M
w000 1.4 Ln 1.0
1.0t.0 11,0500 1.00 (W]
LRIIR ] 11,5060 LIRHEN L] LMt
15,530 EL RN 1] 1n.51.. 18,3400
1500 H.HLY 10,554.0 19.39.08
W,800.0¢ SRR a0 W
45,050, 00 1.6 15,0500 .00
e 6.0 Han W.0m.n

15, 05004 01858 105,060, 00 165,950, 08

(XN 1,010 13,951.00
""""" T T
i A .M 1.0
i 9] L
............ ;.;; .-...........:;; --_;“ .....-......;:;;

HBL,0L0 WSS A0 10,540,150

Estimated tax impact .31
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Dittarenta

Ll
11210
LA
§,10.08

il

M

131, 950. 04

2,150, 0000
L7000
16,129, 1048

48,525, 0000

Lin
1,18%.00C0

R

151.768.00



Pelham School Pistrict Budyst 1998-99

Reventes
Acct # Description Approved PFroposed Budget Committes
1997-98 1998-99
Revenne From State Sotirces
3110 Foundation Aid 124,985, 85,962, 85,962.
3210 School Building Ald 0 i} 0
3220 Area Vocatlonal 4,000, 4,000. 4,000,
3230 Driver Education 10,950. 11,0040, 11,000.
240 Catastrophic Aid 101,052, 100,000, 100,000,
3270 Child Mutrition 0 0 0
Revente From Fedaral Somrces
4200 Nedicald 30,000, 30,000. 30,000,
4410 ECIA Chapter I & II 60,000. 60,000. 60,000.
4460 Child Mutrition 90,000, 90,000, 90,000.
4470 Handicapped Program (PL94:142) 45,050, 45,050, 45,050.
Local Revenua Other Than Tames
1300 Tuition from Driver Education 12,000, 11,000. 11,000.
Child Nutrition 240,000. 291,000. 291,000.
Other Local Revenue 0 4,394, 4,394,
Unreserved Fund Balance 1996/97 126,720, 0 0
ﬁ“, 757, $732,406, $732,408.

PEDSAS
Revised 1/28/98
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